
Agenda for the Cortland County Industrial Development Agency 
March 9, 2026 – Noon 

40 Main Street, Suite A, 2nd Floor Cortland New York, 13405 
Roll Call- 

Approval of Minutes – February 9,2026 

New Business 
1. Review 2025 IDA Independent Audit
2. Consideration of final inducement – Scott Road Solar, LLC
3. Consideration of final inducement – Homer Solar Energy Center, LLC
4. Crown City Solar – Project 1,2, & 3

a. SEQR Determination/Recommendations
b. Consideration of Preliminary Inducement

5. Appoint Directors to the Cortland County Business Development
Corporation

6. Appoint Committees (Finance, Governance, Audit)
7. Appoint Officers/Signatories for 2026
8. Authorize Agency Policies for 2026
9. Review IDA Solar Project Summary

Old Business 
1. 5 Kennedy Parkway Update

Monthly Reports – 
1. Finance Report
2. Director’s Report

Adjourn – 

Mike McMahon Chairman 
Stephen Compagni Vice Chairman 
Clint Brooks Secretary 
Deborah Hayden Treasurer 
Dr. Kathleen Burke Member 
William McGovern Member 
Jason Hage Member 
Melanie Vilardi Executive Director 
Andrea Skeels Chief Finance Officer 
Ashley Riehlman Community Relations Specialist 





Minutes for the Cortland County Industrial Development Agency 

February 9, 2026 – Noon 

40 Main Street, Suite A, 2nd Floor Cortland New York, 13405 

Roll Call- Chairman McMahon called the meeting to order at 12:04pm 

Also Present – John Sidd, Michael May, Chloe Pruett, Rob Panasci, Pedro Rodriguez, Bob 

Haight, Marie Weiss 

Approval of Minutes – January 12,2026 

New Business 

1. Scott Rd Solar, LLC

a. SEQR Determination/Recommendations – Chairman McMahon made a motion to

approve resolution# 2026-02-09-01; Ms.Hayden seconded; all voting in favor; none

opposed.

b. Consideration of Preliminary Inducement – Chairman McMahon made a motion to

approve resolution #2026-02-09-02; Ms.Hayden seconded; all voting in favor; none

opposed

2. Homer Solar Energy Center, LLC - AES Solar

a. SEQR Determination/Recommendations – Chairman McMahon made a motion to

approve resolution #2026-02-09-03; Ms.Hayden seconded; all voting in favor; none

opposed

b. Consideration of Preliminary Inducement – Chairman McMahon made a motion to

approve resolution #2026-02-09-04; Ms. Hayden seconded; all voting in favor; none

opposed.

Old Business 

1. 5 Kennedy Parkway Update – The Cortland County IDA has closed on the property, and will be

putting out a RFP for renovations

2. Homer Ave Bridge Update – FEMA has awarded the Cortland County IDA with a $575,875

grant to replace the bridge.

Monthly Reports – 

1. Finance Report

2. Director’s Report

Adjourn 12:56– Chairman McMahon made a motion to adjourn, Ms. Hayden seconded; All in 

favor; none opposed 

Mike McMahon Chairman Present 

Stephen Compagni Vice Chairman Absent 

Clint Brooks Secretary Present 

Deborah Hayden Treasurer Present 

Dr. Kathleen Burke Member Absent 

William McGovern Member Present 

Jason Hage Member Present 

Melanie Vilardi Executive Director Present 

Andrea Skeels Chief Finance Officer Present 

Ashley Riehlman Community Relations Specialist Present 
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COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE 
AT THE CONCLUSION OF THE AUDIT 

To the Board of Directors 
Cortland County Industrial Development Agency 
Cortland, New York 

We have audited the financial statements of the Cortland County Industrial Development Agency 
(the Agency), a component unit of the County of Cortland, New York, for the year ended 
December 31, 2025.  Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our 
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, as 
well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit.  We have 
communicated such information in our letter to you dated December 5, 2025.  Professional 
standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Matters  

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The 
significant accounting policies used by the Agency are described in Note 1 to the financial 
statements. During the year ended December 31, 2025, no new accounting policies were adopted, 
and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2025.  We noted no transactions 
entered into by the Agency during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or 
consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the 
proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and 
are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and 
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of 
their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events 
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. No significant sensitive estimates 
affecting the financial statements were noted.  

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to 
financial statement users.  The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were 
those related to investments in property. The disclosure of investment in properties is detailed in 
Note 4 to the financial statements. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
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Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and 
completing our audit. 
 
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate 
level of management.  There were no misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures. 
 
Disagreements With Management 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditors’ report.  We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during 
the course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated [Date] , 2026. 
 
Management Consultations With Other Independent Accountants 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations.  If a consultation 
involves application of an accounting principle to the Agency’s financial statements or a 
determination of the type of auditors’ opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our 
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the 
consultant has all the relevant facts.  To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other 
accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Agency’s auditors.  
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our 
responses were not a condition to our retention. 
 
Other Matters 
We applied certain limited procedures to the Management’s Discussion and Analysis, which is 
required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our 
procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the RSI. 
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We were engaged to report on the Schedule of Projects, which accompanies the financial statements 
but is not RSI.  With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of 
management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to 
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the 
information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements.  We 
compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used 
to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 
 
Restriction on Use 
This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of the 
Cortland County Industrial Development Agency and is not intended to be, and should not be, used 
by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Insero & Co. CPAs, LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
 
Ithaca, New York 
[Date] , 2026 
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MANAGEMENT COMMENT LETTER 

To the Board of Directors of 
Cortland County Industrial Development Agency 
Cortland, New York 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Cortland County Industrial 
Development Agency (the Agency), a component unit of the County of Cortland, New York, as of 
and for the year ended December 31, 2025, in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAS), we considered the Agency’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s 
internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s 
internal control.   

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the Agency’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis.   

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may 
exist that have not been identified. 

We would like to thank you and your staff for the cooperation and support given to us during the 
process of the audit.  We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you and look forward to our 
continued involvement. 
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This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of 
Directors, and others within the Agency and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Insero & Co. CPAs, LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
 
Ithaca, New York 
[Date] , 2026 
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CORTLAND COUNTY 
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Cortland, New York 

FINANCIAL REPORT 

For the Year Ended 
December 31, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 

To the Board of Directors 
Cortland County Industrial Development Agency 
Cortland, New York 
 
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Cortland County Industrial Development 
Agency (the Agency) a component unit of the County of Cortland, New York, as of and for the year 
ended December 31, 2025, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
the Agency’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Cortland County Industrial Development Agency, as of 
December 31, 2025, and the respective changes in financial position, and where applicable, cash flows 
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing 
Standards). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of the Agency and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the 
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.  
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Agency’s ability to 
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any 
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS 
and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood 
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user 
based on the financial statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 
 
• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures 
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. 

 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the Agency’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-
related matters that we identified during the audit. 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with GAAS, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Supplementary Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Agency’s basic financial statements.  The Schedule of Projects is presented 
for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
 
The Schedule of Projects is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. 
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the Schedule of Projects is fairly stated in all material respects 
in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated [Date] , 
2026, on our consideration of the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters.  The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 
 
Other Reporting Required by New York State Public Authorities Law   
We have also issued our report dated [Date] , 2026 on our consideration of the Agency’s compliance 
with §2925(3)(f) of the New York State Public Authorities Law. The purpose of that report is to 
describe anything that came to our attention that caused us to believe the Agency failed to comply 
with the Agency’s Investment Guidelines, the New York State Comptroller’s Investment Guidelines, 
and §2925(3)(f) of the New York State Public Authorities Law.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Insero & Co. CPAs, LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
 
Ithaca, New York 
[Date] , 2026 
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The Cortland County Industrial Development Agency (the Agency), a component unit of Cortland 
County, New York, was created in 1974 to encourage economic growth in Cortland County. 
 

Mission: The Cortland County Industrial Development Agency was created to promote the 
prosperity of its residents through the creation of jobs (new or retained), recreational, and 
economic opportunities in Cortland County.  The Agency will achieve these goals through the use 
of various tax incentives provided by the Agency, which shall be proportional to jobs, economic 
activity projected, or opportunities provided to the citizens (stakeholders) of Cortland County. 
 

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) provides a comprehensive overview 
of the Agency’s financial position as of 6, and the result of its operations for the year then ended.  
Management has prepared the financial statements and related footnote disclosures along with this 
MD&A.  The MD&A should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and related 
footnotes of the Agency, which directly follow the MD&A.   

 
OVERVIEW OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
The financial statements of the Cortland County Industrial Development Agency have been prepared 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as 
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  
 
The basic financial statements consist of a Statement of Net Position; a Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position; a Statement of Cash Flows; and accompanying notes.  These 
statements provide information on the financial position of the Agency and the financial activity and 
results of its operations during the year.  A description of the Agency’s financial statements follows. 

 
• The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Agency’s assets and liabilities, 

with the difference between the two reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases 
in net position may serve as a useful indicator as to whether the financial position of the Agency 
is improving or deteriorating. 

 
• The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents information 

showing the change in the Agency’s net position during the most recent fiscal year.  All changes 
in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, 
regardless of the timing of cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses reported in this statement 
include all items that will result in cash received or disbursed in future fiscal periods.   

 
• The Statement of Cash Flows provides information on the major sources and uses of cash during 

the year. The cash flow statement portrays net cash provided or used from operating, non-capital 
financing, capital financing, and investing activities. 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AGENCY AS A WHOLE 
Our analysis below focuses on the net position (Figure 1) and changes in net position (Figure 2) of 
the Agency’s activities.   

Figure 1 
 

Current Assets:
   Unrestricted Cash 2,549,996$     1,311,440$     1,238,556$     
   Short-Term Lease Receivable 13,710            13,354            356                 
   Prepaid Expenses 8,031              1,154              6,877              
Noncurrent Assets:
   Long-Term Lease Receivable 28,523            42,233            (13,710)           
   Capital Assets, Net 1,696              2,005              (309)                
   Investments in Property 604,797          604,797          -                      
Total Assets 3,206,753       1,974,983       1,231,770       
Current Liabilities:
   Unearned Revenue -                      141,632          (141,632)         
Total Liabilities -                      141,632          (141,632)         
Deferred Inflows of Resources - Leases 42,233            55,587            (13,354)           
Net Position:
   Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,696              2,005              (309)                
   Unrestricted 3,162,824       1,775,759       1,387,065       
Total Net Position 3,164,520$     1,777,764$     1,386,756$     

 Statement of Net Position Agency
20242025 Change

Total Dollar

 
 
Significant changes from prior year are as follows: 
 
• Total cash increased by $1,238,556 in the current year primarily as a result of an increase in 

project fee revenue.  
 
• Unearned revenue decreased by $141,632 primarily due to timing of the receipt of PILOT 

agreement payments. 
 
• Deferred inflows of resources for leases decreased as result of the collection of lease revenue in 

the current year.  
 
• Unrestricted net position increased as a result of revenue exceeding expenses in the current year.  
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Our analysis in Figure 2 considers the operations of the Agency’s activities. 
 

Figure 2 
 

2024
Operating Revenues:
   Fee Income 1,406,384$   262,000$      1,144,384$  
   Lease Income 14,854          14,508          346              
   Interest Income 1,479            1,825            (346)             
Non-Operating Revenues:
   Interest and Earnings and Other 39,582          31,719          7,863           
Total Revenues 1,462,299     310,052        1,152,247    
Operating Expenses:
   Professional and Administrative Expenses 75,543          65,426          10,117         
Total Expenses 75,543          65,426          10,117         
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 1,386,756$   244,626$      1,142,130$  

Change2025
Total DollarChanges in Net Position Agency

 
 
Significant changes from the prior year are as follows: 
 
• Fee income increased this year due to a significant project fee received in the current year. 
 
• Operating expenses increased by $10,117, primarily due to additional project expenditures in the 

current year.  
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2025 FACTORS BEARING ON THE AGENCY’S FUTURE 
 
Downtown Investment 
The Cortland County Business Development Corporation has also been directly involved in the 
planning and development of the Village of Homer’s Downtown Revitalization Initiative (“DRI”). 
Homer had a successful application and are working through the process to start their approved 
projects. The BDC will be handling the small project fund which will account for $500,000 of the 
DRI money to be used for projects less than $100,000. 
 
The Cortland County Business Development Corporation has also funded and advocated for the 
Village of Marathon which was awarded the NY Forward grant. This program is very similar to the 
Downtown Revitalization Initiative, but for smaller municipalities. The Village of Marathon has 
submitted a list of potential projects to NY for evaluation.  Upon receipt of the selected projects from 
NY the construction will begin.  The projects are highly impactful for the village and the greater 
Cortland County community. 
 
APEX 
The former APEX manufacturing site on the city’s east end was mothballed in 2017 and was razed 
in 2021 with the contractor leaving mountains of debris on site that could not be sold for scrap—the 
CCIDA, acquired and removed the remaining debris field using licensed abatement contractors. The 
project is also a major redevelopment opportunity, with 8 acres of land, appropriate zoning, and 
proximity to the Interstate and other transportation infrastructure. The recent announcement of 
Micron’s intention to build a $100 billion chip-fab facility in Onondaga County only enhances the 
site's marketability just 50 minutes down Interstate 81. This site has had numerous Environmental 
Site Assessments performed on it, by the City’s Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA) 
Brownfield Cleanup grant, that revealed a few different environmental concerns on the site and 
adjoining sites. These studies are currently being quality reviewed by the EPA to be approved for 
reuse. Quality review approval has been received, the CCIDA will look to do an appraisal on the site 
to find out the value of the site. We have received an EPA Brownfield grant to assist with this site 
reuse plan.
 
EPA Brownfield Community Grant 
The Agency applied to the Environmental Protection Agency’s Community Brownfield Grant in 2023 
to receive up to $600,000 in grant funds to assist with environmental studies to be performed on 
developmental sites across the county. These studies will help to assist in the redevelopment of sites 
or general cleanup if any environmental issues are found. Fortunately the Agency was approved for 
this funding. We are now waiting for the award letter from NY.  Upon receipt of the award letter we 
will move forward in identifying uses for the grant. 
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Buckbee Mears 
The 200,000-square-foot facility is now partially occupied with about three-quarters of the building 
still available for lease. The agency continues to work hand in hand with the owner to help fill the 
site, which has the potential to develop as a unique local and regional employment asset. 
 
Micron 
The Micron announcement has led to several conversations about development opportunities both for 
business and housing across the county. The IDA has held numerous planning sessions with 
appropriate local, regional, and state partners to move those opportunities forward. The IDA has met 
with the Micron Community Engagement Committee to see what best connections the county might 
need to be making to properly situate itself for future development. The Agency continues this 
engagement and have entertained a few grant proposals to support initiative in Cortland County that 
have been identified by the Micron Community Engagement Committee. 
 
Solar Development 
The agency has incentivized numerous solar projects of varying sizes to date, with 2 more projects in 
the pipeline. One is a proposed 90MW facility across various locations in the towns of Homer, 
Cortlandville, and Solon. Developers have already secured a power contract with the state of New 
York and have now secured a siting permit from the state of New York. The IDA assisted in 
negotiating mega-watt payments and host community agreements with the municipalities and the 
developer.  This project has an estimated start date of Spring 2026.  Conversations in regards to a 
Payment in Lieu of Tax agreement with the company will be finalized in early 2026. Two other solar 
projects are looking for approval in early 2026, one being in the Town of Cortlandville and another 
in the Town of Homer. 
 
Agency Headquarters 
The CCIDA continues to lease space at 40-42 Main St. in the city of Cortland and has acquired a new 
location at 5 Kennedy Parkway in the city of Cortland. The acquisition solidifies the agency’s 
presence in Cortland’s and would also comprise a meaningful and cost-effective approach to 
managing the agency’s overhead costs. The agency will seek proposals for interior renovations to 5 
Kennedy Parkway and look to relocate mid 2026. 
 
Byrne Dairy 
A Payment in Lieu of Tax agreement was negotiated and approved by the IDA board of directors in 
2025. The company will invest $120million and currently has over 100 employees working at the 
site, with plans to have up over 200 employees when the project is completed in 2027.  
 
Homer Bridge FEMA Grant 
In 2024 there was a flood that had a damaging impact on the bridge that accesses the property owned 
by the IDA in the Village of Homer.  A grant application was submitted in 2024 and was awarded in 
early 2026.  The agency is planning to move forward on bridge construction in the summer of 2026.  
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CONTACTING THE AGENCY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
This financial report is designed to provide the Agency’s clients, investors, and creditors with a 
general overview of the Agency’s finances and to demonstrate the Agency’s accountability for the 
money it receives.  If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, 
contact the Cortland County Industrial Development Agency, 40 Main St., Cortland, New York 
13045. 
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ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Unrestricted 2,549,996$     
Prepaid Expenses 8,031              
Leases Receivable - Short-Term 13,710            

Total Current Assets 2,571,737       

Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets, Net 1,696              
Investments in Property 604,797          
Leases Receivable - Long-Term 28,523

Total Noncurrent Assets 635,016          

Total Assets 3,206,753       

LIABILITIES
Total Liabilities -                      

Deferred Inflows of Resources - Leases 42,233            

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,696
Unrestricted 3,162,824       

Total Net Position 3,164,520$     

NO A
SSURANCE IS

 PROVID
ED O

N THESE FIN
ANCIA

L STATEMENTS



CORTLAND COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2025 

 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
 
6 

Operating Revenues
Fee Income 1,406,384$         
Lease Income 14,854                
Interest Income From Leases 1,479                  

Total Operating Revenues 1,422,717           
 
Operating Expenses
Administrative Support - CCBDC 50,000                
Professional Services 21,057                
Insurance 1,448                  
Special Projects 2,522                  
Other Expenses 516                     

Total Operating Expenses 75,543                

   Operating Income 1,347,174           

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest and Earnings 39,582                

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 39,582                

   Change in Net Position 1,386,756           

Net Position, January 1, 2025 1,777,764           

Net Position, December 31, 2025 3,164,520$         
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Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash Received From Providing Services 1,281,085$      
Cash Payments - Contractual Expenses (82,111)            

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 1,198,974        

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities -                       

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest Income Received 39,582             

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 39,582             

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,238,556        

Cash and Cash Equivalents, January 1, 2025 1,311,440        

Cash and Cash Equivalents, December 31, 2025 2,549,996$      

Reconciliation of Net Revenue Operating Income (Loss) 
  to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Operating Income 1,347,174$      
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Operating Revenue (Expense)

to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Depreciation Expense 309                  
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses (6,877)              
(Increase) Decrease in Lease Receivable 13,354             
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Revenue (141,632)          
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Inflows of Resources - Leases (13,354)            

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 1,198,974$      
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The financial statements of the Cortland County Industrial Development Agency (the 
Agency) have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
(U.S. GAAP).  The more significant of the Agency's accounting policies are described 
below. 

   
Organization and Purpose 
The Agency was created in 1974 by the New York Legislature under the mandate of Article 
18-A, “New York State Industrial Development Agency Act” of New York State municipal 
law for the purpose of advancing job opportunities, health, general prosperity, and economic 
welfare of the people of Cortland County. The Agency also works to improve current 
recreation opportunities, posterity, and standard of living.  The Agency is exempt from 
federal, state, and local income taxes.  Although established by the Cortland County Board 
of Representatives, the Agency is a separate entity and operates independently of the 
County.  The Agency is considered a component unit of Cortland County. 

 
Reporting Entity 
The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government which is the Cortland 
County Industrial Development Agency; (b) organizations for which the primary 
government is financially accountable; and (c) other organizations for which the nature and 
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would 
cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete as set forth 
in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, “The Financial 
Reporting Entity,” as amended. 
 
Basis of Accounting 

    The accounts of the Agency are maintained on the accrual basis of accounting. 
 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
The Agency considers all highly liquid investments having an original maturity of three 
months or less to be cash equivalents. 

 
Equity Classifications - Statement of Net Position 
 
• Net Investment in Capital Assets - Consists of capital assets including restricted 

capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding 
balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

 
• Restricted - Consists of resources with constraints placed on its use either by 1) external 

groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other 
governments; or 2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

 
• Unrestricted - Consists of all other resources that do not meet the definition of 

“restricted” and “net investment in capital assets.” 
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued 

 
   Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and 
disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Related Parties 
Cortland County Business Development Corporation (the CCBDC) is a private, nonprofit 
organization founded in 1992 to attract new business, develop existing businesses, and 
promote and develop job opportunities in Cortland County.  The Executive Director of the 
CCBDC acts as the Chief Executive Officer of the Agency; the Chief Finance Officer and 
Project Development Director of the CCBDC acts as the Chief Finance Officer and Project 
Development Director of the Agency; and the Board of Directors of the Agency are all 
members of the CCBDC’s Board of Directors. 
 
Cortland County Development Corporation (the CCDC) is a private, nonprofit organization 
founded in 2011 to attract new business, develop existing business, and promote and develop 
job opportunities in Cortland County.  The Executive Director of the CCDC acts as the Chief 
Executive Officer of the Agency; the Chief Finance Officer and Project Development 
Director of the CCDC acts as the Chief Finance Officer and Project Development Director 
of the Agency; and members of the Board of Directors of the Agency are also members of 
the CCDC’s Board of Directors. 
 
Capital Assets 
Capital assets are recorded at cost.  Depreciation is recorded using the straight-line method 
over the estimated economic useful life of the respective assets.   
 
Investments in Property 
Investments in property are recorded at the lower of cost or fair market value and consist of 
land and land improvements held for investment purposes. The land and related 
improvements are not depreciated. 
 
Leases 
The Agency determines if an arrangement is or contains a lease at inception. The Agency 
records a right of use asset and lease obligations for leases in which they are the lessee, and 
lease receivables and deferred inflows of resources for leases in which they are the lessor. 
The amounts are initially based on the discounted future minimum lease payments over the 
term of the lease. The Agency uses the rate implicit in the lease agreement. 
 
In some cases, the implicit rate is not easily determinable, and the Agency elects to use the 
rates from similar agreements to determine the present value of the payments.  
 
The lease term is defined as the non-cancelable period of the lease plus any options to extend 
the lease when it is reasonably certain that it will be exercised. For leases with a term, 
including renewals, of 12 months or less, no intangible lease asset or liability has been 
recorded in accordance with the standard. The Agency’s lease agreements do not contain 
any material residual value guarantees or material restrictive covenants.    
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued 

 
Revenues 
The Agency first utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities.   

 
Operating Revenues 
Operating revenues of the Agency consist of administrative fees, proceeds from leasing 
arrangements and grants received for projects.  Investment earnings are reported as non-
operating revenues.   

 
New Accounting Standards 
The Agency adopted and implemented the following current Statement of the GASB 
effective for the year ended December 31, 2025: 
 
• GASB has issued Statement No. 102, “Certain Risk Disclosures,” effective for the year 

ended December 31, 2025. There was no material effect on the financial statements. 
 
Future Changes in Accounting Standards  
 
• GASB has issued Statement No. 103, “Financial Reporting Model Improvements,” 

effective for the year ending December 31, 2026.  
 

• GASB has issued Statement No. 104, “Disclosure of Certain Capital Assets,” effective 
for the year ending December 31, 2026. 

 
Agency management will evaluate the impact future pronouncements may have on its 
financial statements and implement as applicable.  
 

Note 2 Deposits and Investments 
State statutes govern the Agency’s investment policies.  In addition, the Agency has its own 
written investment policy.  Agency monies must be deposited in Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC) insured commercial banks or trust companies located within the state.  
The Treasurer is authorized to use demand accounts and certificates of deposit.  Permissible 
investments include obligations of the U.S. Treasury and obligations of New York State or 
its localities. 
 
Collateral is required for demand deposits and certificates of deposit at 105% of all deposits 
not covered by federal deposit insurance.  Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are 
obligations of the United States and its agencies and obligations of the state and its 
municipalities and school districts. 

 
Total cash balances were $2,500,062 at December 31, 2025, all of which was FDIC insured 
or collateralized. Carrying value of deposits at December 31, 2025 totaled $2,500,062. 
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Note 3 Capital Assets  

At December 31, 2025, the Agency’s capital assets consisted of the following: 
 

Office Equipment 2,159$        
Leasehold Improvements 3,377          
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (3,840)         

Net Capital Assets 1,696$        

 
The Agency incurred depreciation expense of $309 for the year ended December 31, 2025. 

 
Note 4 Investments in Properties 

At December 31, 2025, the Agency held investments in three properties with a combined 
value of $604,797. 
 
• The Agency maintains railroad property which it leases to New York, Susquehanna, and 

Western Railway Corporation (see Note 6).  Value of the land at December 31, 2025 
was $209,818. 

 
• During 2015, Contento Redevelopment Local Development Corporation, Ltd., a former 

component unit of the Agency, was dissolved and a related parcel of land transferred to 
the Agency at a cost of $91,835.  

 
• During 2022, the Agency acquired land from Cort Holdings, LLC at a cost of $25,000. 

The Agency then provided betterments to the property in the amount of $278,144, 
resulting in a total investment in property of $303,144.  

 
Note 5 Payments in Lieu of Taxes 

During the time in which property is leased to a company, the property is exempt from taxes 
other than special and valorem levies and special assessments.  However, the Agency enters 
into Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) agreements wherein said company is required to 
make annual payments to the county, local municipalities, and school districts.   
 
In 2025, PILOT payments of $551,432 were received for real property tax payments 
compared to $2,110,776, which would have been received if businesses paid taxes in full.  
Abatements in aggregate totaled $1,559,344. Exemptions for sales tax were $36,073.   
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Note 6 Leases 

 
Lease Receivables 
The Agency enters into agreements to lease space and other assets that are considered leases 
to outside organizations. The Agency is not party to any material short-term leases, and 
current leases do not require any variable payments.  

 
    Leases receivable as of December 31, 2025 are as follows: 

 
Description Discount Outstanding

of Lease Term of Lease Rate December 31, 2025
Park Outdoor - Digital Sign #1 01/01/2019-12/31/2028 2.660% 19,219$                  
Park Outdoor - Digital Sign #2 01/01/2019-12/31/2028 2.660% 19,219                    
Park Outdoor - Static Sign 01/01/2019-12/31/2028 2.660% 3,795                      

Total Lease Receivables 42,233$                  

The following is a summary of the future lease receivables: 
 

Year Lease Revenue Lease Interest Total
2026 13,710$                 1,123$                   14,833$            
2027 14,074                   759                        14,833              
2028 14,449                   384                        14,833              

42,233$                 2,266$                   44,499$            
 

The Agency recognized lease revenue of $14,854 and interest income of $1,479 for the year 
ended December 31, 2025.  
 

Note 7 Related Party Transactions 
During 2014, the Agency entered into an administrative service agreement with the 
CCBDC. Under this agreement, the Agency agreed to pay CCBDC $25,000 annually for 
administrative services commencing January 1, 2014. The agreement renews automatically 
unless terminated. During the fiscal year 2022, the agreement renewed under new terms 
that the Agency would pay $50,000 annually.  

 
Note 8 Subsequent Events 

As of the date of this report, the Agency was in the process of purchasing a building in 
Cortland to relocate its operations. As of December 31, 2025, the Agency had made a 
prepayment of $6,850 towards the purchase. The Agency anticipates closing on the property 
in early 2026 with an estimated purchase cost of $185,000. 
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Total
Mortgage Tax Payments in Property Taxes Property Tax Base Year Current

Project Name Project # Purpose Exemptions Lieu of Taxes if Not Exempt Exemptions Jobs Employment

Cortlandville PV LLC 1101-24-02 Solar Construction -$                       -$                       27,500$            106,974$          79,474$            -                    -                     

AK Community 1101-23-01 Housing 6,962                 -                         9,729                11,163              1,434                -                    -                     

C'ville, LLC 1101-13-02 Manufacturing -                         -                         83,539              251,527            167,988            -                    112                

Crescent Commons 1101-17-01 Housing/Commercial -                         -                         26,523              281,909            255,386            -                    2                    

Creamery Hills (SEPP Inc.) 1101-20-01 Housing -                         -                         12,379              21,376              8,997                2                   2                    

DG NY C'Ville #1 1101-21-03 Solar Construction -                         -                         24,355              161,740            137,385            -                    -                     

DG NY C'Ville #3 1101-21-04 Solar Construction -                         -                         23,877              221,356            197,479            -                    -                     

Greek Peak Holdings 1101-22-01 Tourism -                         -                         -                       -                       -                       80                 188                

Janis Solar 1101-21-01 Solar Construction -                         -                         32,473              278,855            246,382            -                    -                     

Lapeer Solar 1101-19-01 Solar Construction -                         -                         45,000              291,530            246,530            -                    -                     

83-85 Main St. 1101-19-02 Commercial -                         -                         16,393              25,965              9,572                -                    -                     

Pyrotek, Inc. 1101-11-02 Manufacturing -                         -                         54,220              72,294              18,074              42                 89                  

Yellow 3 LLC 1101-21-02 Solar Construction -                         -                         17,860              89,304              71,444              -                    -                     

iSpice 1101-24-01 Construction 29,111               -                         177,584            296,783            119,199            -                    -                     

36,073$             -$                       551,432$          2,110,776$       1,559,344$       124               393                

*Base Year Jobs = The number of employees before the project to the left; total current employees retained to the right.  

Sales Tax
Exemptions
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL  
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS  

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN  
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 

To the Board of Directors of 
Cortland County Industrial Development Agency 
Cortland, New York 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
Cortland County Industrial Development Agency (the Agency), a component unit of the County of 
Cortland, New York, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2025, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Agency's basic financial statements, and have 
issued our report thereon dated [Date] , 2026. 
 
Report on Internal Control of Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Agency’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s 
internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s 
internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the Agency’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention 
by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify 
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Agency’s financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statements.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to 
be reported under Government Auditing Standards.  
 
Purpose of This Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Agency’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Agency’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Insero & Co. CPAs, LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
 
Ithaca, New York 
[Date] , 2026  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH 
§2925(3)(f) OF THE NEW YORK STATE PUBLIC AUTHORITIES LAW 

 
 
Board of Directors  
Cortland County Industrial Development Agency 
Cortland, New York  
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Cortland 
County Industrial Development Agency (the Agency), a component unit of the County of Cortland, 
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2025, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the Agency’s basic financial statements, and have issued our opinion 
thereon dated [Date] , 2026.  
 
In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the Agency failed 
to comply with the Agency’s Investment Guidelines, the New York State Comptroller’s Investment 
Guidelines, or §2925(3)(f) of the New York State Public Authorities Law (collectively, Investment 
Guidelines), which are the responsibility of the Agency’s management, insofar as they relate to the 
financial accounting knowledge of noncompliance with such Investment Guidelines.  
 
This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and 
management of the Cortland County Industrial Development Agency, and the Office of the 
Comptroller of the State of New York and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone 
other than these specified parties.  
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Insero & Co. CPAs, LLP  
Certified Public Accountants  
 
Ithaca, New York  
[Date] , 2026 NO A
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Cortland County 
Industrial Development Agency 

 
 
 

 

Consideration of Final Inducement  

Homer Solar Energy Center, LLC 

AES 
 

 



  

A regular meeting of Cortland County Industrial Development Agency (the 
"Agency") was convened in public session at the offices of the Agency located at 40 Main 
Street, Suite A, in the City of Cortland, Cortland County, New York on March 9, 2026 at 
12:00 o'clock p.m., local time. 
 
 The meeting was called to order by the Chairman and, upon roll being called, the 
following members of the Agency were: 
 
 PRESENT: 
 

Michael McMahon   Chairman 
Stephen Compagni   Vice Chairman 
Clinton Brooks   Secretary 
Deborah Hayden   Treasurer 
Kathleen Burke   Member 
William McGovern   Member 
Jason Hage    Member  
 

  
 ABSENT: 
 
FOLLOWING PERSONS WERE ALSO PRESENT: 
 

Melanie Vilardi   Executive Director  
Andrea Skeels   Director of Finance and Project Development 
Ashley Riehlman   Community Relations Specialist 
John P. Sidd, Esq.   Agency Counsel 

 
 
 
 The following resolution was offered by ________________, seconded by 
______________, to wit: 
 
 

Resolution No. _____________ 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF 
DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH A STRAIGHT-LEASE 
TRANSACTION FOR A COMMERCIAL PROJECT FOR 
HOMER SOLAR ENERGY CENTER, LLC 
 

 
 WHEREAS, Cortland County Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency") is 
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New 
York, constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the 
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "Enabling Act") and Chapter 77 of the 
1974 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 902 of said General Municipal 
Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the 



 2 
 
 

"Act") to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, 
reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of commercial facilities, 
among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing economically sound 
commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and 
economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their prosperity and 
standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and 
 
 WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and 
empowered under the Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more 
"projects" (as defined in the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed, 
reconstructed and installed, and to convey said projects or to lease said projects with the 
obligation to purchase; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to an application (the "Application") presented to the Agency 
by Homer Solar Energy Center, LLC (the "Company"), as well as a cost benefit analysis, 
the members of the Agency, on February 9, 2026, adopted a resolution (the "Preliminary 
Inducement Resolution") whereby the Agency preliminarily agreed, subject to numerous 
conditions, to consider undertaking a project (the "Project") consisting of the following: (A) 
(1) the acquisition of an interest in ± 600 acres of land (the "Land") located within the 
Towns of Homer, Cortlandville and Solon, Cortland County, New York (2) construction of a 
90 MW AC solar photovoltaic facility and related infrastructure on the Land (the "Facility") 
and (3) the acquisition and installation therein and thereon of fixtures and equipment 
comprising the Facility (the "Equipment"), all of the foregoing to constitute a solar 
photovoltaic facility to be operated by the Company (the Land, Facility and Equipment 
being collectively referred to as the "Project Facility"); (B) the granting of certain "financial 
assistance" (within the meaning of Section 854(14) of the Act) with respect to the 
foregoing, including potential exemptions from certain sales taxes, real estate transfer 
taxes, mortgage recording taxes and real property taxes (collectively, the "Financial 
Assistance"); and (C) the lease (with an obligation to purchase) or sale of the Project 
Facility to the Company or such other person as may be designated by the Company and 
agreed upon by the Agency; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Preliminary Inducement Resolution the Executive 
Director of the Agency (A) caused notice of two public hearings of the Agency to hear all 
persons interested in the Project and the financial assistance being contemplated by the 
Agency with respect to the Project (collectively the "Public Hearing") to be published on 
February 12, 2026 in the Cortland Standard, a newspaper of general circulation available 
to residents of the County of Cortland, (B) caused notice of the Public Hearing to be mailed 
on February 11, 2026, together with notice, if any, that the Agency intends to deviate from 
its uniform tax exemption policy and which included the Agency’s Preliminary Inducement 
Resolution, by certified mail return receipt requested to the chief executive officer of the 
county and of each city, town, village and school district, as well as the school district clerk, 
in which the Project is to be located (C) conducted the Public Hearing on February 23, 
2026 at 10:00 a.m. local time at the Cortland County Office Building, Auditorium, 60 
Central Avenue, in the City of Cortland, County of Cortland, New York and the second at 
5:00 p.m. local time at the Homer Community Building located at 31 North Main Street, in 
the Town of Homer, County of Cortland, New York, (D) prepared a report of the Public 
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Hearing which fairly summarized the views presented at said public hearing and distributed 
same to the members of the Agency (“Report”); and  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter 
43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "SEQR Act"), and the 
regulations (the "Regulations") adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of 
Environmental Conservation of the State of New York (collectively with the SEQR Act, 
"SEQRA"), by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on February 9, 2026 (the 
"SEQR Resolution"), the Agency has determined that, in accordance with § 94-c of the 
New York Executive Law, the environmental review associated with the Project was vested 
exclusively in the Office of Renewable Energy Siting (“ORES”) and that no further 
environmental review of the Project is warranted, required or authorized under the State 
Environmental Quality Review Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on March 9, 2026 
(the "Final Inducement Resolution"), the Agency determined, following a review of the 
Report, to finalize the preliminary determination made by the Agency in the Preliminary 
Inducement Resolution to proceed with the Project and the granting of the Financial 
Assistance described in the notice of the Public Hearing; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to consummate the Project and the granting of the Financial 
Assistance described in the notice of the Public Hearing, the Agency proposes to enter into 
the following documents (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Agency Documents"): 
(A) a certain lease to Agency (and a memorandum thereof) (the "Underlying Lease") by 
and between the Company, as landlord, and the Agency, as tenant pursuant to which the 
Company will lease to the Agency the Project Facility; (B) a Uniform Project and Lease 
Agreement (and a memorandum thereof) (the "Lease Agreement") by and between the 
Agency and the Company, pursuant to which, among other things, the Company agrees to 
undertake the Project as agent of the Agency and the Company further agrees to lease the 
Project Facility from the Agency and, as rental thereunder, to pay the Agency's 
administrative fee relating to the Project and to pay all expenses incurred by the Agency 
with respect to the Project; (C) a payment in lieu of tax agreement (the "Payment in Lieu of 
Tax Agreement") by and between the Agency and the Company, pursuant to which the 
Company will agree to pay certain payments in lieu of taxes with respect to the Project 
Facility; and (D) various certificates relating to the Project (the "Closing Documents"); 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF CORTLAND 
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.  The Agency hereby finds and determines that: 
 
  (A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers 
necessary and convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the 
Act and to exercise all powers granted to it under the Act; and 
 
  (B) The Project constitutes a "project," as such term is defined in the Act; 
and 



 4 
 
 

  (C) The acquisition of the Project Facility and the lease of the Project 
Facility to the Company will promote and maintain the job opportunities, general prosperity 
and economic welfare of the citizens of Cortland County, New York and the State of New 
York and improve their standard of living; and 
 
  (D) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to enter into the 
Agency Documents. 
 
 Section 2.  In consequence of the foregoing, the Agency hereby determines to: (A) 
accept the Underlying Lease; (B) proceed with the Project; (C) acquire the Project Facility; 
(D) lease the Project Facility to the Company pursuant to the Lease Agreement; (E) enter 
into the Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement; and (F) grant the Financial Assistance with 
respect to the Project. 
 
 Section 3.  The Agency is hereby authorized to acquire a leasehold interest in the 
Project Facility pursuant to the Underlying Lease and to do all things necessary or 
appropriate for the accomplishment thereof, and all acts heretofore taken by the Agency 
with respect to such acquisition are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed. 
 
 Section 4.  The Agency is hereby authorized to acquire the Project Facility as 
described in the Lease Agreement and to do all things necessary or appropriate for the 
accomplishment thereof, and all acts heretofore taken by the Agency with respect to such 
acquisition are hereby ratified, confirmed and approved. 
 
 Section 5.  The form and substance of the Agency Documents as approved by the 
Chairman, Vice Chairman or Executive Director are hereby approved. 
 
 Section 6.  (A) The Chairman, Vice Chairman and Executive Director of the Agency 
are each hereby separately authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver the 
Agency Documents and, where appropriate, the Secretary (or Assistant Secretary) of the 
Agency is hereby authorized to affix the seal of the Agency thereto and to attest the same, 
with such changes, variations, omissions and insertions thereto as the Chairman or Vice 
Chairman or Executive Director shall approve, the execution thereof by the Chairman or 
Vice Chairman or Executive Director to constitute conclusive evidence of such approval. 
 
   (B) The Chairman, Vice Chairman or Executive of the Agency is 
each hereby further authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to designate any additional 
Authorized Representatives of the Agency (as defined in and pursuant to the Lease 
Agreement). 
 
 Section 7.  The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby 
authorized and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and 
things required or provided for by the provisions of the Agency Documents, and to execute 
and deliver all such additional certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such 
fees, charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be 
necessary or, in the opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper 
to effect the purposes of the foregoing Resolution and to cause compliance by the Agency 
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with all of the terms, covenants and provisions of the Agency Documents binding upon the 
Agency. 
 

Section 8.  Pursuant to Section 875(3) of the Act, the Agency shall recover, 
recapture, receive, or otherwise obtain from the Company that portion of the Financial 
Assistance which constitutes state sales and use tax exemptions taken or purported to be 
taken by the Company to which the Company is not entitled or which are in excess of the 
amount authorized by the Agency or which are for property or services not authorized by 
the Agency as part of the Project or were taken by the Company when the Company failed 
to comply with a material term or condition to use property or services in the manner 
required by the Agency.  The Company shall cooperate with the Agency in its efforts to 
recover, recapture, receive, or otherwise obtain such state sales and use tax exemptions 
and shall promptly pay over any such amounts to the Agency.  The failure to pay over such 
amounts to the Agency shall be grounds for the New York State Commissioner of Taxation 
and Finance to assess and determine state sales and use taxes due from the Company 
under Article 28 of the Tax Law of the State of New York, together with any relevant 
penalties and interest due on such amounts. 

 
Section 9.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 
 The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on 
roll call, which resulted as follows: 

 
Michael McMahon   VOTING ______________ 

 Stephen Compagni   VOTING ______________ 
 Clinton Brooks   VOTING ______________ 
 Deborah Hayden   VOTING ______________ 
 Kathleen Burke   VOTING ______________ 
 William McGovern   VOTING ______________ 

Jason Hage    VOTING ______________ 
 
 

The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted. 
 
STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
COUNTY OF CORTLAND )  ss.: 
 
 I, the undersigned Secretary of Cortland County Industrial Development Agency 
(the "Agency"), DO HEREBY CERTIFY, that I have compared the foregoing extract of the 
minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the Resolution contained 
therein, held on March 9, 2026 with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the 
same is a true and correct copy of such proceedings of the Agency and of such Resolution 
set forth therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same related to the subject 
matters therein referred to. 
 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 
meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respect duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the 
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Public Officers Law (the "Open Meetings Law"), said meeting was open to the general 
public and due notice of the time and place of said meeting was given in accordance with 
such Open Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency 
present through said meeting. 
 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in full 
force and effect and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the 
Agency this 9th day of March, 2026. 
 
 
        __________________________ 
        Clinton Brooks, Secretary 
 



 

A regular meeting of Cortland County Industrial Development Agency (the 
"Agency") was convened in public session at the offices of the Agency located at 40 Main 
Street, Suite A, in the City of Cortland, Cortland County, New York on March 9, 2026 at 
12:00 o'clock p.m., local time. 
 
 The meeting was called to order by the Chairman and, upon roll being called, the 
following members of the Agency were: 
 
 PRESENT: 
 

Michael McMahon   Chairman 
Stephen Compagni   Vice Chairman 
Clinton Brooks   Secretary 
Deborah Hayden   Treasurer 
Kathleen Burke   Member 
William McGovern   Member 
Jason Hage    Member  

  
 
 ABSENT: 
 
 
FOLLOWING PERSONS WERE ALSO PRESENT: 
 

Melanie Vilardi   Executive Director  
Andrea Skeels   Director of Finance and Project Development 
Ashley Riehlman   Community Relations Specialist 
John P. Sidd, Esq.   Agency Counsel 

  
 
 The following resolution was offered by ________________, seconded by 
______________, to wit: 
 
 

Resolution No. _____________ 
 
 

RESOLUTION FINALIZING THE PRELIMINARY 
INDUCEMENT RESOLUTION FOR A CERTAIN 
COMMERCIAL PROJECT FOR HOMER SOLAR ENERGY 
CENTER, LLC 
 

 
 WHEREAS, Cortland County Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency") is 
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New 
York, constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the 
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "Enabling Act") and Chapter 77 of the 
1974 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 902 of said General Municipal 
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Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the 
"Act") to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, 
reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of commercial facilities, 
among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing economically sound 
commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and 
economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their prosperity and 
standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and 
 
 WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and 
empowered under the Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more 
"projects" (as defined in the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed, 
reconstructed and installed, and to convey said projects or to lease said projects with the 
obligation to purchase; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to an application (the "Application") presented to the Agency 
by Homer Solar Energy Center, LLC (the "Company"), as well as a cost benefit analysis, 
the members of the Agency, on February 9, 2026, adopted a resolution (the "Preliminary 
Inducement Resolution") whereby the Agency preliminarily agreed, subject to numerous 
conditions, to consider undertaking a project (the "Project") consisting of the following: (A) 
(1) the acquisition of an interest in ± 600 acres of land (the "Land") located within the 
Towns of Homer, Cortlandville and Solon, Cortland County, New York (2) construction of a 
90 MW AC solar photovoltaic facility and related infrastructure on the Land (the "Facility") 
and (3) the acquisition and installation therein and thereon of fixtures and equipment 
comprising the Facility (the "Equipment"), all of the foregoing to constitute a solar 
photovoltaic facility to be operated by the Company (the Land, Facility and Equipment 
being collectively referred to as the "Project Facility"); (B) the granting of certain "financial 
assistance" (within the meaning of Section 854(14) of the Act) with respect to the 
foregoing, including potential exemptions from certain sales taxes, real estate transfer 
taxes, mortgage recording taxes and real property taxes (collectively, the "Financial 
Assistance"); and (C) the lease (with an obligation to purchase) or sale of the Project 
Facility to the Company or such other person as may be designated by the Company and 
agreed upon by the Agency; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Preliminary Inducement Resolution the Executive 
Director of the Agency (A) caused notice of two public hearings of the Agency to hear all 
persons interested in the Project and the financial assistance being contemplated by the 
Agency with respect to the Project (collectively the "Public Hearing") to be published on 
February 12, 2026 in the Cortland Standard, a newspaper of general circulation available 
to residents of the County of Cortland, (B) caused notice of the Public Hearing to be mailed 
on February 11, 2026, together with notice, if any, that the Agency intends to deviate from 
its uniform tax exemption policy and which included the Agency’s Preliminary Inducement 
Resolution, by certified mail return receipt requested to the chief executive officer of the 
county and of each city, town, village and school district, as well as the school district clerk, 
in which the Project is to be located (C) conducted the Public Hearing on February 23, 
2026 at 10:00 a.m. local time at the Cortland County Office Building, Auditorium, 60 
Central Avenue, in the City of Cortland, County of Cortland, New York and the second at 
5:00 p.m. local time at the Homer Community Building located at 31 North Main Street, in 
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the Town of Homer, County of Cortland, New York, (D) prepared a report of the Public 
Hearing which fairly summarized the views presented at said Public Hearing and 
distributed same to the members of the Agency (“Report”); and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter 
43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "SEQR Act"), and the 
regulations (the "Regulations") adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of 
Environmental Conservation of the State of New York (collectively with the SEQR Act, 
"SEQRA"), by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on February 9, 2026 (the 
"SEQR Resolution"), the Agency has determined that, in accordance with § 94-c of the 
New York Executive Law, the environmental review associated with the Project was vested 
exclusively in the Office of Renewable Energy Siting (“ORES”) and that no further 
environmental review of the Project is warranted, required or authorized under the State 
Environmental Quality Review Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, having complied with the requirements of Section 859-a of the Act and 
the requirements of SEQRA with respect to the Project, the Agency now desires to make 
its final determination whether to proceed with the Project; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF CORTLAND 
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.  The Agency hereby determines that the Agency has now fully complied 
with the requirements of Section 859-a of the Act and the requirements of SEQRA that 
relate to the Project. 
 
 Section 2.  Having reviewed the Report, and having considered fully all comments 
contained therein, the Agency hereby further determines to proceed with the Project and 
the granting of the Financial Assistance described in the notice of the Public Hearing upon 
the following additional condition: that the Company enter Host Community Agreements, or 
equivalent, with the Towns of Homer, Solon and Cortlandville (“Towns”) and Cortland 
County (“County”) which Agreements shall require an annual payment to each of the 
Towns of no less than $3,000.00 per megawatt (MWAC) based on the total megawatt 
capacity of the Project in each such town and an annual payment to the County of no less 
than $2,500.00 per megawatt (MWAC) based on the total megawatt capacity of the Project 
in the County, which annual payments shall increase by 2% each year for a period of 15 
years. 
 

Section 3.  Pursuant to Section 875(3) of the Act, the Agency shall recover, 
recapture, receive, or otherwise obtain from the Company that portion of the Financial 
Assistance which constitutes state sales and use tax exemptions taken or purported to be 
taken by the Company to which the Company is not entitled or which are in excess of the 
amount authorized by the Agency or which are for property or services not authorized by 
the Agency as part of the Project or were taken by the Company when the Company failed 
to comply with a material term or condition to use property or services in the manner 
required by the Agency.  The Company shall cooperate with the Agency in its efforts to 
recover, recapture, receive, or otherwise obtain such state sales and use tax exemptions 
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and shall promptly pay over any such amounts to the Agency.  The failure to pay over such 
amounts to the Agency shall be grounds for the New York State Commissioner of Taxation 
and Finance to assess and determine state sales and use taxes due from the Company 
under Article 28 of the Tax Law of the State of New York, together with any relevant 
penalties and interest due on such amounts. 
 
 Section 4. The Chairman, Vice Chairman and Executive Director of the Agency 
are hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the Company 
and to do such further things or perform such acts as may be necessary or convenient to 
implement the provisions of this Resolution. 
 
 Section 5.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 
 The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on 
roll call, which resulted as follows: 

 
Michael McMahon   VOTING ______________ 

 Stephen Compagni   VOTING ______________ 
 Clinton Brooks   VOTING ______________ 
 Deborah Hayden   VOTING ______________ 
 Kathleen Burke   VOTING ______________ 
 William McGovern   VOTING ______________ 

Jason Hage    VOTING ______________ 
 
The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted. 
 
STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
COUNTY OF CORTLAND )  ss.: 
 
 I, the undersigned Secretary of Cortland County Industrial Development Agency 
(the "Agency"), DO HEREBY CERTIFY, that I have compared the foregoing extract of the 
minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the Resolution contained 
therein, held on March 9, 2026 with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the 
same is a true and correct copy of such proceedings of the Agency and of such Resolution 
set forth therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same related to the subject 
matters therein referred to. 
 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 
meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respect duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the 
Public Officers Law (the "Open Meetings Law"), said meeting was open to the general 
public and due notice of the time and place of said meeting was given in accordance with 
such Open Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency 
present through said meeting. 
 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in full 
force and effect and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded. 
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 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the 
Agency this 9th day of March, 2026. 
 
 
        __________________________ 
        Clinton Brooks, Secretary 



Cortland County 
Industrial Development Agency 

 
 
 

 

Homer Energy Center, LLC 

Application 
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IMPORTANT NOTICE: The answers to the questions contained in this application are necessary to 
determine the applicant’s eligibility for financial assistance from the Cortland County Industrial 
Development Agency. The answers will also be used in the preparation of papers in this transaction. 
Accordingly, an officer or other employee of the applicant who is thoroughly familiar with the business 
and affairs of the applicant and who is also thoroughly familiar with the proposed project should answer 
all questions accurately and completely. This application is subject to acceptance by the Agency. 

CORTLAND COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 
APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

 

 
TO: CORTLAND COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

37 CHURCH STREET 
CORTLAND, NEW YORK 13045 

 
APPLICANT: Homer Solar Energy Center, LLC 

 
APPLICANT'S STREET ADDRESS: 292 Madison Avenue, Floor 15 

CITY: New York STATE: NY PHONE NO.: (303) 597-8778  

E-MAIL ADDRESS: chloe.pruett@aes.com 
 

NAME OF PERSON(S) AUTHORIZED TO SPEAK FOR APPLICANT WITH RESPECT TO THIS 
APPLICATION: Chloe Pruett 

 
IF APPLICANT IS REPRESENTED BY AN ATTORNEY, COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING: 

 
NAME OF FIRM: Young/Sommer LLC 

 
NAME OF ATTORNEY: Robert Panasci 

 
ATTORNEY’S STREET ADDRESS: 5 Palisades Drive 

CITY: Albany STATE: NY PHONE NO.: (518) 438-9907 
 

E-MAIL ADDRESS: RPanasci@youngsommer.com 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
NOTE: PLEASE READ THE INSTRUCTIONS ON PAGE 2 BEFORE FILLING OUT THIS 
APPLICATION 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

INSTRUCTIONS 

mailto:chloe.pruett@aes.com
mailto:RPanasci@youngsommer.com
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1. The Agency will not approve any applications unless, in the judgment of the Agency, said application contains sufficient 
information upon which to base a decision whether to approve or tentatively approve an action. 

 
2. Fill in all blanks, using "none" or "not applicable" or "N/A" where the question is not appropriate to the project which is the 

subject of this application (the “Project”). 
 

3. If an estimate is given as the answer to a question, put "(est)" after the figure or answer, which is estimated. 
 

4. If more space is needed to answer any specific question, attach a separate sheet. 
 

5. When completed, return two (2) copies of this application to the Agency at the address indicated on the first page of this 
application. 

 
6. The Agency will not give final approval to this application until the Agency receives a completed environmental assessment 

form concerning the Project, which is the subject of this application. 
 

7. Please note that Article 6 of the Public Officers Law declares that all records in the possession of the Agency (with certain 
limited exceptions) are open to public inspection and copying. If the applicant feels that there are elements of the Project 
which are in the nature of trade secrets or information, the nature of which is such that if disclosed to the public or otherwise 
widely disseminated would cause substantial injury to the applicant’s competitive position, the applicant may identify such 
elements in writing and request that such elements be kept confidential in accordance with Article 6 of Public Officers Law. 

8. The applicant will be required to pay to the Agency all actual costs incurred in connection with this application and the Project 
contemplated herein (to the extent such expenses are not paid out of the proceeds of the Agency’s bonds issued to finance the 
project). The applicant will also be expected to pay all costs incurred by general counsel and bond counsel to the Agency. The 
costs incurred by the Agency, including the Agency’s general counsel and bond counsel, may be considered as a part of the 
project and included as a part of the resultant bond issue. 

 
9. The Agency has established an application fee of Five Hundred Dollars ($500) to cover the anticipated costs of the Agency in 

processing this application. A check or money order made payable to the Agency must accompany each application. THIS 
APPLICATION WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED BY THE AGENCY UNLESS ACCOMPANIED BY THE APPLICATION FEE. 

 
10. The Agency has established a project fee for each project in which the Agency participates. UNLESS THE AGENCY AGREES IN 

WRITING TO THE CONTRARY, THIS PROJECT FEE IS REQUIRED TO BE PAID BY THE APPLICANT AT OR PRIOR TO THE 
GRANTING OF ANY FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE BY THE AGENCY. 

 
FOR AGENCY USE ONLY 

 

1. Project Name or Number  
 

2. Date Application Received by Agency  , 20  

3. Date Application Referred to Attorney for Review  , 20  

4. Date Copy of Application Mailed to Members  , 20  

5. Date Notice of Agency Meeting on Application Posted  , 20  

6. Date Notice of Agency Meeting on Application Mailed  , 20  

7. Date of Agency Meeting on Application  , 20  

8. Date Agency Conditionally Approved Application  , 20  

9. Date Scheduled for Public Hearing  , 20  

10. Date Environmental Assessment Form ("EAF") Received  , 20  

11. Date Agency Completed Environmental Review  , 20  

12. Date of Final Approval of Application  , 20  

 
I. APPLICANT INFORMATION-COMPANY TO RECEIVE BENEFITS (the “COMPANY”) 
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A. Identity of Company: 
1. Company Name: Homer Solar Energy Center, LLC 

Present Address: 2180 S 1300 E, Suite 500 
Zip Code: 84106  Employer ID No.: 86-2283998 

2. Indicate type of business organization of Company: 
 

 
a.  Corporation. Incorporated in what country?  ; 

State: ; Date Incorporated:  ; 
Authorized to do business in New York State? Yes   No  

i. Is the Corporation Publicly Held? Yes  No . If yes, please list 
exchanges where stock is traded:    

 

ii. If no, list all Stockholders having a 5% or more interest in the 
Company: 

 
Name Address Percentage of Holding 

   
   
   
   
   

b.  Partnership. General or Limited partnership?  
Name all partners below: 

 
Name Address General 

Partner 
Limited 
Partner 
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c. X Limited Liability Company. Formed in what country USA 
State: Delaware Date of Formation: 12/18/2020 
Authorized to do business in New York State? Yes_X_ No ; 
Name all members below: See Exhibit 1 

 
Name Address Membership Percentage 

   
   
   
   
   

 
d.  Sole proprietorship. Name of Sole Proprietor:  

3. Is the Company a subsidiary or direct or indirect affiliate of any other 
organization(s)? If so, indicate name of related organization(s) and 
relationship:  

 

B. Management of Company: 
List all officers/directors/managers (complete all columns for each person): 

 
Name and Home Address Office Held 
Bernerd Da Santos President 
Woody Rubin Chief Development Officer 
Joel Thomas VP, East Development 
Joshua Baird Senior Director, NY Development 
Sasha Kran Senior Manager, NY Development 
Chloe Pruett Developer 

  
 

  

C. Company/Management History: 
1. Is the Company or management of the Company now a plaintiff or a 

defendant in any civil or criminal litigation? Yes  No X . 
2. Has any person company listed above ever been convicted of a 

criminal offense (other than a minor traffic violation)? Yes  
No X . 

3. Has any person company listed above or any concern with whom 
such person has been connected ever been in receivership or been 
adjudicated a bankrupt? Yes  No X . 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

If the answer to any of questions 1 through 3 is yes, please furnish details in a separate 
attachment. 
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II. PROPOSED PROJECT DATA 
A. Description of the Project: 

1. Please provide a narrative of the Project and the purpose of the 
Project (acquisition, construction, renovations and/or equipment 
purchases). Identify specific uses occurring with the Project. Describe 
any and all tenants and any/all end users (attach additional pages): 
 The Project is a 90-megawatt alternating current_(MW-AC) photovoltaic solar  

_facility located on approximately 600 acres of leased private land in the Towns  
 of Homer, Cortlandville, a_nd Solon within Cortland County, New York. See  
_Exhibit 1 for additional details on the Project.  

 
2. Describe the reasons why the Agency's Financial Assistance is 

necessary and the effect the Project will have on the Company's 
business or operations and any corresponding benefit to the Cortland 
County community (attach additional pages): 
The Agency's financial assistance will help mitigate the risks associated with this 
project, support the project economics, keep the project competitive with 
similar projects in the state. The Project would not be feasible without the 
Agency's financial assistance. See Exhibit 2 for additional details. 

 
3. Is there a likelihood that the Project would not be undertaken but for 

the Financial Assistance provided by the Agency: 

Yes  No 
 

4. If the Project could be undertaken without the Financial Assistance 
provided by the Agency, then provide a statement indicating why the 
Project should be undertaken by the Agency (attach additional pages): 
The Project will not be built without the Agency's financial assistance. 

 
 
 
 

B. Location of Project: 

1. Street Address: See **Exhibit 3** for all project parcel details 
 

2. City:  N/A  
3. Town:  Homer, Cortlandville, and Solon  
4. Village:  N/A  
5. Is any portion of the Project located outside of Cortland County? If 

so, identify the other county: _N o  
6. School District:  Homer Central SD and McGraw Central SD  
7. Tax Parcel Nos.:  See **Exhibit 3** for all project parcel details  

X 
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C. Description of the Project site: 
 

1. Approximate size (in acres or square feet) of the Project site: 600 acres 
Attach a map, survey or sketch of the Project site. 
See Exhibit 4 

2. Are there existing buildings on the Project Site? 
Yes_X No . If yes, 
a. Indicate each existing building and indicate the approximate 

size (in square feet) of each building: 
_The final site plan will avoid all buildings. 

 
 

 
b. Are the existing buildings in operation? Yes  No . 

If yes, describe the present use of each building in operation: 
_N/A  

 
 

 
c. Are the existing buildings abandoned? Yes   No ; 

About to be abandoned? Yes  No . If yes, 
describe: 
_N/A  

 
 

 
d. Attach photographs of existing buildings. 

 
3. Utilities Serving the Project Site: 

Water: Municipal   , Other   . If other, describe _N/A   

Sewer: Municipal , Other  . If other, describe _N/A    

Electric Utility Co.: National Grid    

Natural Gas Utility Co.: N/A    

Other Utility Sources: _N/A     

4. Present Legal Owner of the Project Site: See Exhibit 3 
a. If the Company owns the Project site, indicate: 

Date of Purchase:  

_N/A 
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Purchase Price:  
 

b. If the Company does not own the Project site, does the Company 
have the contractual right to purchase the Project site? Yes X  
No . If yes, indicate: Option to Purchase (a portion of one parcel for 
Date Contract Signed: 12/15/2023 the utility substation) 
Date Ability to Purchase Expires: 12/15/2026  

 
c. If the Company does not own the Project site, is there a 

relationship legally or by common control between the 
Company and present owner of the Project site? 
Yes X  No . If yes, describe: See Exhibit 3 

 
 
 

 
5. Zoning District in which the Project is located: Agricultural and Residential 

 
6. Are there any variances or special permits affecting the Project site 

now or which need to be obtained to complete the Project? 
Yes  No_X . If yes, list below and attach copies of all 
variances or special permits: 

 
 
 

 
D. Description of the Proposed Construction: 

1. Does part of the Project consist of the acquisition or construction of a 
new building or buildings? Yes _X No . If yes, indicate number of 
and size of new buildings: 
 Single Mobile Trailer with Skirting (46x10)  

 
 

 
2. Does part of the Project consist of additions and/or renovations to 

existing buildings located on the Project site? Yes  No  X . If 
yes, indicate: 
a. The number of buildings to be expanded or renovated:  
b. The size of any expansions:  

 

c. The nature of expansion and/or renovation: 
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3. Describe the principal uses to be made by the Company of the building 

or buildings to be acquired, constructed or expanded: 
Operations and maintenance building 

 

 
 

 
E. Description of the Equipment: 

1. Does part of the Project consist of the acquisition or installation of 
machinery, equipment or other personal property (the “Equipment”)? 

Yes_ X  No  . If yes, describe the Equipment: 
Solar panel arrays and racks, piles and footings, inverters, transformers,  
electrical collection system_ , substation equipment, fencing, and cables.   

 
 

2. With respect to the Equipment to be acquired, will any of the 
Equipment be previously used Equipment? 
Yes  No X . If yes, please provide detail below: 

 
 
 

 
3. Describe the principal uses to be made by the Company of the 

Equipment to be acquired or installed: 
The equipment will be used to produce clean renewable energy. 

 
 

 
F. Project Use: 

 
1. What are the principal products to be produced at the Project site? 

The Project will produce megawatts of renewable energy. 
 

 
 

 
2. What are the principal activities to be conducted at the Project? 

The Project will generate renewable energy. 
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3. Does the Project include facilities or property that are primarily used in 
making retail sales of goods or services to customers who personally 
visit such facilities? 
Yes  No X . If yes please provide detail: 

 
 
 

 
4. If the answer to question 3 is yes, what percentage of the cost of the 

Project will be expended on such facilities or property primarily used 
in making retail sales of goods or services to customers who 
personally visit the Project?  % 
N/A 

5. If the answer to question 3 is yes, and the answer to question 4 is 
more than 33.33%, indicate whether any of the following apply to the 
Project: 
N/A 

a. Will the Project be operated by a not-for-profit corporation? 
Yes  No . If yes, please explain: 

 
 
 

 
b. Is the Project likely to attract a significant number of visitors 

from outside the economic development region (as established 
by Section 230 of the Economic Development Law) in which 
the Project will be located? 
Yes   No  . If yes, please explain: 

 
 
 

 
c. Would the Project occupant, but for the contemplated Financial 

Assistance from the Agency, locate the related jobs outside of 
New York State? 
Yes   No  . If yes, please explain: 

 
 
 

 
d. Is the predominant purpose of the Project to make available 

goods or services which would not, but for the Project, be 
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reasonably accessible to the residents of the city, town or 
village within which the Project will be located because of a 
lack of reasonably accessible retail trade facilities offering such 
goods or services? 
Yes  No . If yes, please provide detail: 

 
 
 

 
e. Will the Project be located in one of the following: (i) an area 

which was designed as an empire zone pursuant to Article 18-B 
of the General Municipal Law; or (ii) a census tract or block 
numbering area (or census tract or block numbering area 
contiguous thereto) which, according to the most recent census 
data, has (a) a poverty rate of at least 20% for the year in which 
the data relates, or at least 20% of households receiving public 
assistance, and (b) an unemployment rate of at least 1.25 times 
the statewide unemployment rate for the year to which the data 
relates? 
Yes    ; No . If yes, please explain: 

 
 
 

 
6. If the answers to any of subdivisions c. through e. of question 5 are 

yes, will the Project preserve permanent, private sector jobs or 
increase the overall number of permanent, private sector jobs in the 
State of New York? 
Yes   No . If yes, please explain: N/A 

 
 

 
 

 
7. Will the completion of the Project result in the removal of an industrial 

or manufacturing plant of the Company or another proposed occupant 
of the Project (a “Project Occupant”) from one area of the State of New 
York to another area of the State of New York? 
Yes  No   X  _. If yes, please explain: 

 
 
 

 
8. Will the completion of the Project result in the abandonment of one or 

more plants or facilities of the Company or a Project Occupant located in 
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the State of York? 
Yes  No X . If yes, provide detail: 

9. If the answer to either question 7 or question 8 is yes, indicate whether
any of the following apply to the Project:

N/A 
a. Is the Project reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive

position of the Company or such Project Occupant in its
industry?
Yes ; No . If yes, please provide detail:

b. Is the Project reasonably necessary to discourage the Company
or such Project Occupant from removing such other plant or
facility to a location outside the State of New York?
Yes  No . If yes, please provide detail:

G. Project Status:

1. If the Project includes the acquisition of any land or buildings, have
any steps been taken toward acquiring same?
Yes X  No . If yes, please discuss in detail the approximate stage 
of such acquisition: 
The Project has entered into option agreements with interested landowners 
for property that will be leased. One purchase option agreement has been 
secured for the site control of the point of interconnection. All necessary 
land has been secured for the construction and operation of the project. 

2. If the Project includes the acquisition of any Equipment, have any steps
been taken toward acquiring same?
Yes  No X . If yes, please discuss in detail the approximate
stage of such acquisition:
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3. If the Project involves the construction or reconstruction of any 
building or other improvement, has construction work on any such 
building or improvement begun? Yes   No X . If yes, please 
discuss in detail the approximate extent of construction and the extent 
of completion. Indicate in your answer whether such specific steps 
have been completed as site clearance and preparation; completion of 
foundations; installation of footings; etc.: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
4. Please indicate the amount of funds expended on the Project by the 

Applicant in the past three (3) years and the purpose of such 
expenditures: 
The Applicant has incurred approximately $72,000 in 
development costs associated with engineering studies and real 
estate surveys. 

 
III. INFORMATION CONCERNING LEASES OR SUBLEASES OF THE PROJECT 

(PLEASE COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING SECTION IF THE APPLICANT INTENDS 
TO LEASE OR SUBLEASE ANY PORTION OF THE PROJECT) 
A. Does the Company intend to lease or sublease more than 10% (by area or fair 

market value) of the Project? Yes  No  X . If yes, please complete 
the following for each existing or proposed tenant or subtenant: 

 
Sublessee Name:         
Present Address:               
City:    State:   Zip:    
Employer’s ID No.:       
Sublessee is:  Corporation;  Partnership;   ; Limited 
Liability Company;  Sole Proprietor 
Relationship to Company:    
Percentage of Project to be leased or subleased:   
Use of Project intended by Sublessee:   
Date of lease or sublease to Sublessee:  
Term of lease or sublease to Sublessee:   
Will any portion of the space leased by this sublessee be primarily used 
in making retail sales of goods or services to customers who personally 
visit the Project? Yes  No   . 
If yes, please provide on a separate attachment 
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a. details; and 
b. the answers to questions II (F) (4) through (6) with 

respect to such sublessee. 
 

B. What percentage of the space intended to be leased or subleased is now 
subject to a binding written lease or sublease?  % 

 
 

IV. EMPLOYMENT IMPACT 
 

A. Indicate below the number of people presently employed at the Project Site 
and the number that will be employed at the Project site at the end of the first 
and second years after the Project has been completed (Do not include 
construction workers). Also indicate below the number of workers employed 
at the Project site representing newly created positions as opposed to 
positions relocated from other project sites of the Applicant. 

There will be no positions created by relocating from other project sites of the Applicant. 
 

 Current # of If Financial If Financial 
Assistance is 
granted, 
estimate the 
number of FTE 
and PTE jobs to 
be Created by 
Two years after 
Project 
completion 

Estimate number 
Jobs at Assistance is of residents of 
proposed 
Project location 
or to be 
relocated to 
Project location 

the Labor 
Market Area in 
which the 
Project is located 
that will fill the 
retained and 
created FTE and 

granted, 
estimate the 
number of 
FTE and PTE 
jobs to be 
Retained 

  PTE jobs Two 
  years after 
  Project 
  completion** 

Present Full Time     
Present Part Time     
First Year Full Time   1  
First Year Part Time     
Second Year Full Time     
Second Year Part Time     
Total: 0 current jobs N/A 1 FTE 1 FTE 

**For purposes of the question, please estimate in the fourth column the number of FTE and PTE 
jobs, as indicated in the second and third columns, that will be filled by residents of the Labor 
Market Area. The Labor Market Area includes Cortland County as well as the counties of Cayuga, 
Onondaga, Tompkins, Broome and Chenango. 
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Category of Jobs to be 
Retained and Created 

Estimated Average Salary 
or Range of Salary 

Estimated Average Fringe 
Benefits or Range of Fringe 
Benefits 

Management   
Professional   
Administrative   
Production   
Independent Contractors   
Other $36/hr 30% 

 
B. Please state the anticipated date of completion of the Project site and the 

anticipated date of occupancy of the Project site: 
 
 
Project Site Completion Date:    
Project Site Occupancy Date: 

V. PROJECT COST 

Q4 2027 

 
A. State the costs reasonably necessary for the acquisition of the Project site, the 

construction of the proposed buildings and the acquisition and installation of 
any machinery and equipment necessary or convenient in connection 
therewith, and including any utilities, access roads or appurtenant facilities, 
using the following categories: 

 
Description of Cost: Amount: 

Land Acquisition $  
Building Construction $  
Building Renovation $  
Machinery and equipment costs $ 92,080,500  
Utilities, roads and appurtenant costs $  
Architects and engineering fees $  
Costs of Bond issue (legal, financial and printing) $  
Construction loan fees and interest (if applicable) $  
Other (specify) 
_Other equipment  
_Development costs  

 
 

$ 48,440,000  
$ 63,784,000  
$  
$  

TOTAL PROJECT COSTS: $ 204,304,500  

B. Have any of the above expenditures already been made by the Applicant? 
Yes X  No . If yes, indicate particulars: 
The Applicant has incurred approximately $72,000 in 
development costs associated with engineering studies and real 
estate surveys. 

Q4 2027 
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VI. FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE EXPECTED FROM THE AGENCY 

A. Tax Benefits: 
1. Is the Applicant requesting a real property tax exemption in 

connection with the Project from the Agency? Yes X  No . 

2. Is the Applicant expecting to be appointed agent of the Agency for 
purposes of receiving an exemption from N.Y.S. Sales Tax or 
Compensating Use Tax? Yes X  No . 

3. Is the Applicant requesting a mortgage recording tax exemption in 
connection with the Project from the Agency? Yes X  No . 

 
4. What is the estimated value of each type of tax exemption being 

sought in connection with the Project? Please detail the type of tax 
exemption and value of each exemption: 
a. N.Y.S. Sales and Compensating Use Taxes: $ 3,875,200  
b. Mortgage Recording Taxes: $ 518,900  
c. Real Property Taxes: $ 8,086,953  

(Please consult with the Agency in 
calculating the estimated value of the 
real property tax exemption) 

d. Other (please specify): 
$  
$  
$  

5. Are any of the tax-exemptions being sought in connection with the 
Project inconsistent with the Agency’s Uniform Tax-exemption 
Policy? Yes X  No  . If yes, please explain how the request of 
the Applicant differs from the Agency’s Uniform Tax-Exemption 
Policy: 
We are asking for a 15-year PILOT that has payment based on 
a $500/MW basis, escalating at 2% per annum. This term is 
beyond the UTEP policy of 10 years. 

 

 

B. Financing: 
 

1. Is the Applicant requesting that the Agency issue bonds to assist in 
financing the Project? Yes  No X . If yes, indicate: 
a. Principal Amount of Bonds Requested $  
b. Maturity Requested  Years 
c. Is the Interest on such bonds intended to be exempt from 

federal income taxation? Yes No . 
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2. What is the approximate amount of private sector financing to be 
obtained? $_51,893,300 . Is the Applicant expecting that 
the private sector financing of the Project will be secured by one or 
more mortgages? Yes_X  No . 
If yes, what is the approximate amount of private sector financing to 
be secured? $ . 

 
3. Is the Applicant expecting that any of the financing of the Project 

will come from public sector sources? Yes  No_X . 
What is the approximate amount of public sector financing to be 
obtained? $ . 
If yes, is the Company expecting that the public sector financing of 
the Project will be secured by one or more mortgages or grant 
agreements? Yes  No . 
If yes, what is the approximate amount of public sector financing to 
be secured? $ . 

4. Please state the approximate amount to be invested in the Project 
(not borrowed or the subject of a grant) by the Applicant 
$_152,411,200 . 

 
5. Please state the approximate total amount of borrowed funds to be 

invested in the Project $51,893,300  

VII. REPRESENTATIONS BY THE APPLICANT 
The Applicant understands and agrees with the Agency as follows: 

 
A. Job Listings: In accordance with Section 858-b (2) of the New York General 

Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project 
receives any Financial Assistance from the Agency, except as otherwise 
provided by collective bargaining agreements, new employment 
opportunities created as a result of the Project will be listed with the New York 
State Department of Labor Community Services Division (the "DOL") and with 
the administrative entity (collectively with the DOL, the "JTPA Entities") of the 
service delivery area created by the Federal Job Training Partnership Act 
(Public Law 97-300) ("JTPA") in which the Project is located. 

 
B. First Consideration for Employment: In accordance with Section 858-b (2) 

of the New York General Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees 
that, if the Project receives any Financial Assistance from the Agency, except 
as otherwise provided by collective bargaining agreements, where 
practicable, the Applicant will first consider persons eligible to participate in 
JTPA programs who shall be referred by the JTPA Entities for new employment 
opportunities created as a result of the Project. 
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C. Local Workforce Development: The Applicant understands and agrees that 
if the Project receives Financial Assistance from the Agency, except as 
provided by collective bargaining where practicable, the Applicant will 
increase the skill base of the local workforce through training, opportunities 
for professional development and career track advancement. 

D. Annual Sales Tax Filings: In accordance with Section 874(8) of the New York 
General Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the 
Project receives any sales tax exemptions as part of the Financial Assistance 
from the Agency, in accordance with Section 874(8) of the General Municipal 
Law, the Applicant agrees to file, or cause to be filed, with the New York State 
Department of Taxation and Finance, the annual form prescribed by the 
Department of Taxation and Finance, describing the value of all sales tax 
exemptions claimed by the Applicant and all consultants or subcontractors 
retained by the Applicant. 

 
E. Annual Employment Reports: The Applicant understands and agrees that, 

if the Project receives any Financial Assistance from the Agency, the Applicant 
will file, or cause to be filed, with the Agency, on an annual basis, reports 
regarding the number of people employed at the Project site. 

F. Absence of Conflicts of Interest: The Applicant has received from the Agency 
a list of the members, officers and employees of the Agency. No member, 
officer or employee of the Agency has an interest, whether direct or indirect, 
in any transaction contemplated by this Application, except as hereinafter 
described: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

G. Federal, State and Local Laws: The Applicant/Owner/Occupant/Operator 
receiving the Financial Assistance understands and agrees that it must be, at 
all times, in compliance with applicable local, state and federal tax, worker 
protection and environmental laws, rules and regulations. 

H. Environmental Matters: The Applicant acknowledges that certain 
environmental representations will be required at closing. The Applicant shall 
provide copies of any known environmental reports, including any existing 
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Report(s) and/or Phase II 
Environmental Investigations. The Agency may require the Company and/or 
Owner of the Premises to prepare and submit an environmental assessment 
and audit report including, but not limited to, a Phase I Environmental Site 
Assessment Report and a Phase II Environmental Investigation, with respect 
to the Premises at the sole cost and expense of the Owner and/or the Applicant. 
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All environmental assessment and audit reports shall be completed in 
accordance with ASTM Standard Practice E1527-13, and shall be conformed 
over to the Agency so that the Agency is authorized to use and rely on the 
reports. The Agency, however, does not adopt, ratify, confirm or assume any 
representation made with reports required herein. 

I. Release: The Applicant and/or Owner, and their successors and assigns, 
hereby release, defend and indemnify the Agency from any and all suits, causes 
of action, litigations, damages, losses, liabilities, obligations, penalties, claims, 
demands, judgments, costs, disbursements, fees or expenses of any kind or 
nature whatsoever (including, without limitation, attorneys', consultants' and 
experts' fees) which may at any time be imposed upon, incurred by or asserted 
or awarded against the Agency resulting from or arising out of any inquiries 
and/or environmental assessments, investigations and audits performed on 
behalf of the Applicant and/or Owner pursuant hereto, including the scope, 
level of detail, contents or accuracy of any environmental assessment, audit, 
inspection or investigation report completed hereunder and/or the selection 
of the environmental consultant, engineer or other qualified person to perform 
such assessments, investigations and audits. 

J. Hold Harmless Provision: The Applicant acknowledges and agrees that the 
Applicant shall be and is responsible for all costs of the Agency incurred in 
connection with any actions required to be taken by the Agency in furtherance 
of the Application including the Agency's costs of general counsel and/or the 
Agency's bond/transaction counsel whether or not the Application, the 
proposed Project it describes, the attendant negotiations, or the issue of bonds 
or other transaction or agreement are ultimately ever carried to successful 
conclusion and agrees that the Agency shall not be liable for and agrees to 
indemnify, defend and hold the Agency harmless from and against any and all 
liability arising from or expense incurred by: (i) the Agency's examination and 
processing of, and action pursuant to or upon, the Application, regardless of 
whether or not the Application or the proposed Project described herein or the 
tax exemptions and other assistance requested herein are favorably acted 
upon by the Agency; (ii) the Agency's acquisition, construction and/or 
installation of the proposed Project described herein; and (iii) any further 
action taken by the Agency with respect to the proposed Project including, 
without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all causes of action and 
attorneys' fees and any other expenses incurred in defending any suit or 
actions which may arise as a result of any of the foregoing. Applicant hereby 
understands and agrees, in accordance with Section 875(3) of the New York 
General Municipal Law and the policies of the Agency that any New York State 
and local sales and use tax exemption claimed by the Applicant and approved 
by the Agency, any mortgage recording tax exemption claimed by the Applicant 
and approved by the Agency, and/or any real property tax abatement claimed 
by the Applicant and approved by the Agency in connection with the Project, 
may be subject to recapture and/or termination by the Agency under such 



Page ~19~  

terms and conditions as will be established by the Agency and set forth in 
transaction documents to be entered into by and between the Agency and the 
Applicant. The Applicant further represents and warrants that the information 
contained in this Application including, without limitation, information 
regarding the amount of the New York State and local sales and use tax 
exemption benefit, the amount of the mortgage recording tax exemption 
benefit, and the amount of the real property tax abatement, if and as applicable, 
to the best of the Applicant's knowledge, is true, accurate and complete. 

K. False or Misleading Information. The submission of any knowingly false or 
misleading information by the applicant may lead to the immediate 
termination of any Financial Assistance and the reimbursement of an amount 
equal to all or part of any tax exemptions claimed by reason of Agency 
involvement in the Project. 

 
REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
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VERIFICATION 
 

(If Applicant is a Corporation, Limited Liability Company, General or 
Limited Partnership) 

STATE OF   ) 
COUNTY OF    ) ss.: 

 deposes and says, under the penalties of perjury, 
that he/she is the    (must be the chief executive 
officer, member, manager, general partner or such other individual duly 
authorized to bind the applicant) of    (name 
of applicant); that he/she has read the foregoing application and knows the 
contents thereof; and that the same is true, complete and accurate to the best of 
his/her knowledge; that the reason this verification is made by the deponent 
and not by the applicant is the applicant is a    
(Corporation, Limited Liability Company, General or Limited Partnership). The 
grounds of deponent's belief relative to all matters in the application which are 
not stated upon his/her own personal knowledge are investigations which 
deponent has caused to be made concerning the subject matter of this 
application as well as information acquired by deponent in the course of his/her 
duties as   of the applicant and from the books and 
records of the applicant. 

 
Signature:   
Print Name: 

 
Sworn to before me this   
day of  , 20   

 
 

 

Notary Public 
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VERIFICATION 
 

(If applicant is sole proprietor) 

 
STATE OF   ) 
COUNTY OF    ) ss.: 

 deposes and says, under the penalties of perjury, 
that he/she has read the foregoing application and knows the contents thereof; 
and that the same is true, complete and accurate to the best of his/her 
knowledge; that the grounds of deponent's belief relative to all matters in the 
said application, which are not stated upon his/her own personal knowledge, 
are investigations which deponent has caused to be made concerning the 
subject matter of this application. 

 
 
 

Signature:   
Print Name: 

 
 

Sworn to before me this   
day of  , 20   

 
 

 

Notary Public 



Exhibit 1 
Description of the Project 

The Applicant (AES) acquired Homer Solar Energy Center, LLC on April 9, 2025. 

The Project is a 90-megawatt alternating current (MW-AC) photovoltaic solar facility located on 
approximately 600 acres of private land in the Towns of Homer, Cortlandville, and Solon within 
Cortland County, New York. 

The table below shows the approximate breakdown of the MW to be produced by the Project 
in each town: 

Town % of MW Total MW 
Cortlandville 48% 43.13 
Homer 34% 30.43 
Solon 18% 16.44 

The Project has full site control of the land required for the purpose of constructing and 
equipping a 90 MW solar facility which will include solar arrays, operations and maintenance 
building, inverters and transformers, an electrical collection system, project substation and 
switchyard and internal infrastructure to produce renewable electricity. 

The Project received its Office of Renewable Energy Siting (“ORES”) permit on January 9, 2023. 
The Company has designed the Project to minimize the environmental impacts associated with 
the Project, for example, by limiting the disturbance to forested lands and wetlands to the 
maximum extent practicable. As part of the ORES permit process the Company submitted an 
application that included extensive studies evaluating the potential impacts associated with the 
Project and identified methods which have been agreed to be implemented to avoid, minimize 
and mitigate any potential impacts. 

Homer Solar Energy Center, LLC is authorized to do business in New York State. Please see 
below the organizational chart of ownership: 



 

ACE Development 
Company, LLC(DE) 

 
  

Homer Solar Energy 
Center, LLC (DE) 

 
 

 

 

 

AES Clean Energy 

 

  

 

 



 

Exhibit 2 
Reasons for Financial Assistance 

The Project will provide a variety of benefits to the Cortland County community. The Project 
will bring an economic stimulus to the area during construction by providing approximately 150 
jobs during peak construction, 1 full time highly skilled job, and local contracts for goods and 
services. The Project will also provide additional revenue to the local taxing jurisdictions, school 
district and local landowners. The Project is also consistent with the New York State Energy Plan 
implementing a Clean Energy Standard (CES), which encourages the development of clean 
energy and renewable resources as a tool to combat climate change, curb harmful air pollution, 
and improve New York State’s economy. The Project will safely generate enough clean, 
renewable electricity to power more than 20,000 New York households. 



 

Exhibit 3 
Project Parcels 

 
Landowner Parcel ID Address Agreement Type 

 
Barylski, Michael & Denise 

 
78.00-01-30.000 

Hicks Hill Rd 
Cortland, NY 13101 

 
Solar Land Lease 

 
Beard, Edwin 

 
58.00-02-11.110 

2628 E. River Rd 
Cortland, NY 13045 

 
Solar Land Lease 

 
Beard, Edwin 

 
58.00-02-11.110 

2628 E. River Rd 
Cortland, NY 13045 

 
Option to Purchase 

 
Beard, Terry, et al. 

 
58.00-01-53.100 

E River Rd 
Cortland, NY 13101 

 
Solar Land Lease 

 
Beard, Terry, et al. 

 
68.00-01-38.100 

Shippey Rd 
Cortland, NY 13101 

 
Solar Land Lease 

 
Beard, Terry, et al. 

 
68.00-01-38.100 

Shippey Rd 
Cortland, NY 13101 

Collection Facilities 
Agreement 

 
Couture, Bruno J. 

 
78.00-01-33.000 

2760 Phelps Rd 
Cortland, NY 13101 

Collection Facilities 
Agreement 

 
Dove, Daniel 

 
68.00-1-42.000 

Parks Rd 
Cortland, NY 13101 

 
Solar Land Lease 

 
McCall, Thomas 

 
68.00-01-39.000 

5035 Town Line Rd 
Cortland, NY 13101 

 
Solar Land Lease 

 
Moffitt, Christopher 

 
78.00-01-40.000 

2911 Heath Rd 
Cortland, NY 13101 

 
Roadway Easement 

 
Nael Cam Farms 

 
79.00-01-02.100 

Heath Rd 
Cortland, NY 13101 

 
Solar Land Lease 

 
Nael Cam Farms 

 
88.00-01-05.000 

4260 McGraw N Rd 
Cortland, NY 13101 

 
Solar Land Lease 

 
Osborne, Jr., Richard 

 
68-00-01-64.112 

McGraw N Rd 
Cortland, NY 13101 

Collection Facilities 
Agreement 

Osborne, Jr., Richard & 
Osborne, Darrin 

 
78.00-03-03.200 

Phelps Rd 
Cortland, NY 13101 

Collection Facilities 
Agreement 

 
Pellegrino, John & Noli 

 
78.00-01-08.120 

McGraw N Rd 
Cortland, NY 13101 

 
Solar Land Lease 

 
Pellegrino, John & Noli 

 
78.00-01-08.112 

McGraw N Rd 
Cortland, NY 13101 

 
Solar Land Lease 

 
Pellegrino, John & Noli 

 
78.00-01-08.200 

McGraw N Rd 
Cortland, NY 13101 

 
Solar Land Lease 

 
Soshinsky Farms 

 
79.00-01-08.000 

Route 41 
Cortland, NY 13101 

 
Solar Land Lease 

 
Soshinsky Farms 

 
89.00-06-01.000 

Soshinsky Rd 
Cortland, NY 13101 

 
Solar Land Lease 

 
Young, Peter 

 
68.00-01-37.000 

Shippey Rd 
Cortland, NY 13101 

Collection Facilities 
Agreement 



 

Exhibit 4 
Map of Project Site 

See the next page for the project site layout. 



 

SEE SHEETS 
1/CD101 
1/C201 
1/C401 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

UE  UE 

UE 

SEE SHEETS 
1/CD102 
1/C202 
1/C401 

 
 

300 State Street, Suite 201 
Rochester, NY 14614 
585-454-6110 

labellapc.com 

 
SEE SHEETS 

1/CD103 
1/C203 
1/C403 

 
 
 
 
 

UEUUEE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEE SHEETS 
1/CD104 
1/C204 
1/C404 

 
 
 

SEE SHEETS 
1/CD105 
1/C205 
1/C405 

 
 
 

 
SEE SHEETS 
1/CD106 
1/C206 
1/C406 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SEE SHEETS 

1/CD109 
1/C209 
1/C409 

 
 

 
SEE SHEETS 

1/CD108 
1/C208 
1/C408 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEE SHEETS 
1/CD110 
1/C210 
1/C410 

SEE SHEETS 
1/CD107 
1/C207 
1/C407 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SEE SHEETS 
1/C301 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
© 2021 LaBella Associates 

 
 
 
 

 

EDF RENEWABLES 
15445 INNOVATION DR. 
SAN DIEGO, CA 92128 

 
 

 
SEE SHEETS 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
UE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 SEE SHEETS 

SEE SHEETS 
1/CD111 
1/C211 
1/C411 

SEE SHEETS 
1/CD112 
1/C212 
1/C412 

SEE SHEETS 
1/CD113 
1/C213 
1/C413 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SEE SHEETS 
1/CD114 

 
 
 

 
HOMER SOLAR ENERGY CENTER 

HOMER, CORTLANDVILLE, SOLON 
NEW YORK, USA 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
NO: DATE: DESCRIPTION: 

Revisions 

1/CD118 
1/C218 
1/C418 

 

 
SEE SHEETS 

1/CD120 
1/C220 
1/C420 

 
SEE SHEETS 

1/C302 
UE 

1/C214 
1/C414 

 

 
SEE SHEETS 
1/CD115 
1/C215 
1/C415 

PROJECT NUMBER: 
 

 
DRAWN BY: 

REVIEWED BY: 

ISSUED FOR: 
 

 
DATE: 

 

 
DRAWING NAME: 

2210558 

 
BER 

DG 

PERMIT 

JULY 2021 

 
 
 

 
SEE SHEETS 

1/CD122 
1/C222 
1/C422 

 
 
 
 

SEE SHEETS 
1/CD121 
1/C221 
1/C421 

SEE SHEETS 
1/CD119 
1/C219 
1/C419 

 
OVERALL SITE PLAN 

 

 
N 

1 OVERALL SITE PLAN 

DRAWING NUMBER: 

 
G006 

 
SCALE: 1" = 750' G006 

UE 

U
E 

U
E 

U
E 

U
E 

U
E 

U
E 

U
E 

U
E U

U
E E  

U
EU

E U
E  

O
E 

U
E 

U
E 

UE 

U
E 

U 

U
E 

7/
11

/2
02

1 
6:

43
 P

M
 

FI
LE

 P
AT

H
: I

:\
ED

F 
RE

N
EW

A
BL

ES
\2

20
21

03
 - 

CI
VI

L 
&

 E
LE

CT
RI

CA
L 

EN
G

\D
RA

W
IN

G
S\

CI
VI

L\
C0

03
 O

VE
RA

LL
 S

IT
E 

PL
AN

.D
W

G
 

U
E 

U
E 

U
E 

U
E 

U
E 

U
E 

U
E 

PE
 

U
E 

1/CD116 
1/C216 
1/C416 

      E 
U

E 
U

E 
U

E 

 

 

 
SEE SHEETS 

1/CD117 
1/C217 

      
U

E 

 

 
SEE SHEETS 
1/C303 

1/C417   
 UE  

 



Cortland County 
Industrial Development Agency 

 
 
 

 

Consideration of Final Inducement  

Scott Road Solar, LLC  
 

 



 

A regular meeting of Cortland County Industrial Development Agency (the 
"Agency") was convened in public session at the offices of the Agency located at 40 Main 
Street, Suite A, in the City of Cortland, Cortland County, New York on March 9, 2026 at 
12:00 o'clock p.m., local time. 
 
 The meeting was called to order by the Chairman and, upon roll being called, the 
following members of the Agency were: 
 
 PRESENT: 
 

Michael McMahon   Chairman 
Stephen Compagni   Vice Chairman 
Clinton Brooks   Secretary 
Deborah Hayden   Treasurer 
Kathleen Burke   Member 
William McGovern   Member 
Jason Hage    Member  

  
 
 ABSENT: 
 
 
FOLLOWING PERSONS WERE ALSO PRESENT: 
 

Melanie Vilardi   Executive Director  
Andrea Skeels   Director of Finance and Project Development 
Ashley Riehlman   Community Relations Specialist 
John P. Sidd, Esq.   Agency Counsel 

  
 
 The following resolution was offered by ________________, seconded by 
______________, to wit: 
 
 

Resolution No. _____________ 
 
 

RESOLUTION FINALIZING THE PRELIMINARY 
INDUCEMENT RESOLUTION FOR A CERTAIN 
COMMERCIAL PROJECT FOR SCOTT ROAD SOLAR, LLC 

 
 WHEREAS, Cortland County Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency") is 
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New 
York, constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the 
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "Enabling Act") and Chapter 77 of the 
1974 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 902 of said General Municipal 
Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the 
"Act") to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, 
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reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of commercial facilities, 
among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing economically sound 
commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and 
economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their prosperity and 
standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and 
 
 WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and 
empowered under the Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more 
"projects" (as defined in the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed, 
reconstructed and installed, and to convey said projects or to lease said projects with the 
obligation to purchase; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to an application (the "Application") presented to the Agency 
by Scott Road Solar, LLC (the "Company"), as well as a cost benefit analysis, the 
members of the Agency, on February 9, 2026, adopted a resolution (the "Preliminary 
Inducement Resolution") whereby the Agency preliminarily agreed, subject to numerous 
conditions, to consider undertaking a project (the "Project") consisting of the following: (A) 
(1) the acquisition of an interest in a ± 30 acre parcel of land (the "Land") located at 331 
Houghton Hill Road in the Town of Homer, Cortland County, New York (2) construction of 
a 5 MW AC solar photovoltaic facility and related infrastructure on the Land (the "Facility") 
and (3) the acquisition and installation therein and thereon of fixtures and equipment 
comprising the Facility (the "Equipment"), all of the foregoing to constitute a solar 
photovoltaic facility to be operated by the Company (the Land, Facility and Equipment 
being collectively referred to as the "Project Facility"); (B) the granting of certain "financial 
assistance" (within the meaning of Section 854(14) of the Act) with respect to the 
foregoing, including potential exemptions from certain sales taxes, real estate transfer 
taxes, mortgage recording taxes and real property taxes (collectively, the "Financial 
Assistance"); and (C) the lease (with an obligation to purchase) or sale of the Project 
Facility to the Company or such other person as may be designated by the Company and 
agreed upon by the Agency; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Preliminary Inducement Resolution the Executive 
Director of the Agency (A) caused notice of a public hearing of the Agency to hear all 
persons interested in the Project and the financial assistance being contemplated by the 
Agency with respect to the Project (the "Public Hearing") to be published on February 12, 
2026 in the Cortland Standard, a newspaper of general circulation available to residents of 
the County of Cortland, (B) caused notice of the Public Hearing to be mailed on February 
11, 2026, together with notice, if any, that the Agency intends to deviate from its uniform 
tax exemption policy and which included the Agency’s Preliminary Inducement Resolution, 
by certified mail return receipt requested to the chief executive officer of the county and of 
each city, town, village and school district, as well as the school district clerk, in which the 
Project is to be located (C) conducted the Public Hearing on February 23, 2026 at 4:30 
p.m. local time at the Homer Community Building located at 31 North Main Street, in the 
Town of Homer, County of Cortland, New York, (D) prepared a report of the Public Hearing 
which fairly summarized the views presented at said public hearing and distributed same 
to the members of the Agency (“Report”); and 
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WHEREAS, , pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter 
43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "SEQR Act"), and the 
regulations (the "Regulations") adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of 
Environmental Conservation of the State of New York (collectively with the SEQR Act, 
"SEQRA"), by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on February 9, 2026 (the 
"SEQR Resolution"), the Agency has determined that it was an involved agency in a 
coordinated SEQRA review of the Project undertaken by the Town of Homer Planning 
Board (the “Planning Board”) acting as lead agency and that the negative declaration 
issued by the Planning Board following the coordinated review is binding on the Agency; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, having complied with the requirements of Section 859-a of the Act and 
the requirements of SEQRA with respect to the Project, the Agency now desires to make 
its final determination whether to proceed with the Project; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF CORTLAND 
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.  The Agency hereby determines that the Agency has now fully complied 
with the requirements of Section 859-a of the Act and the requirements of SEQRA that 
relate to the Project. 
 
 Section 2.  Having reviewed the Report, and having considered fully all comments 
contained therein, the Agency hereby further determines to proceed with the Project and 
the granting of the Financial Assistance described in the notice of the Public Hearing upon 
the following additional condition: that the Company enter Host Community Agreements, or 
equivalent, with the Town of Homer (“Town”) and Cortland County (“County”) whereby the 
Company agrees to pay the Town an upfront payment of no less than $200,000.00 and the 
County an upfront payment of no less than $170,000.00. 
 

Section 3.  Pursuant to Section 875(3) of the Act, the Agency shall recover, 
recapture, receive, or otherwise obtain from the Company that portion of the Financial 
Assistance which constitutes state sales and use tax exemptions taken or purported to be 
taken by the Company to which the Company is not entitled or which are in excess of the 
amount authorized by the Agency or which are for property or services not authorized by 
the Agency as part of the Project or were taken by the Company when the Company failed 
to comply with a material term or condition to use property or services in the manner 
required by the Agency.  The Company shall cooperate with the Agency in its efforts to 
recover, recapture, receive, or otherwise obtain such state sales and use tax exemptions 
and shall promptly pay over any such amounts to the Agency.  The failure to pay over such 
amounts to the Agency shall be grounds for the New York State Commissioner of Taxation 
and Finance to assess and determine state sales and use taxes due from the Company 
under Article 28 of the Tax Law of the State of New York, together with any relevant 
penalties and interest due on such amounts. 
 
 Section 4. The Chairman, Vice Chairman and Executive Director of the Agency 
are hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the Company 
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and to do such further things or perform such acts as may be necessary or convenient to 
implement the provisions of this Resolution. 
 
 Section 5.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 
 The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on 
roll call, which resulted as follows: 

 
Michael McMahon   VOTING ______________ 

 Stephen Compagni   VOTING ______________ 
 Clinton Brooks   VOTING ______________ 
 Deborah Hayden   VOTING ______________ 
 Kathleen Burke   VOTING ______________ 
 William McGovern   VOTING ______________ 

Jason Hage    VOTING ______________ 
 
The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted. 
 
STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
COUNTY OF CORTLAND )  ss.: 
 
 I, the undersigned Secretary of Cortland County Industrial Development Agency 
(the "Agency"), DO HEREBY CERTIFY, that I have compared the foregoing extract of the 
minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the Resolution contained 
therein, held on March 9, 2026 with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the 
same is a true and correct copy of such proceedings of the Agency and of such Resolution 
set forth therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same related to the subject 
matters therein referred to. 
 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 
meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respect duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the 
Public Officers Law (the "Open Meetings Law"), said meeting was open to the general 
public and due notice of the time and place of said meeting was given in accordance with 
such Open Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency 
present through said meeting. 
 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in full 
force and effect and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the 
Agency this 9th day of March, 2026. 
 
 
        __________________________ 
        Clinton Brooks, Secretary 



  

 A regular meeting of Cortland County Industrial Development Agency (the 
"Agency") was convened in public session at the offices of the Agency located at 40 Main 
Street, Suite A, in the City of Cortland, Cortland County, New York on March 9, 2026 at 
12:00 o'clock p.m., local time. 
 
 The meeting was called to order by the Chairman and, upon roll being called, the 
following members of the Agency were: 
 
 PRESENT: 
 

Michael McMahon   Chairman 
Stephen Compagni   Vice Chairman 
Clinton Brooks   Secretary 
Deborah Hayden   Treasurer 
Kathleen Burke   Member 
William McGovern   Member 
Jason Hage    Member  
 

  
 ABSENT: 
 
FOLLOWING PERSONS WERE ALSO PRESENT: 
 

Melanie Vilardi   Executive Director  
Andrea Skeels   Director of Finance and Project Development 
Ashley Riehlman   Community Relations Specialist 
John P. Sidd, Esq.   Agency Counsel 

 
 
 
 The following resolution was offered by ________________, seconded by 
______________, to wit: 
 
 

Resolution No. _____________ 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF 
DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH A STRAIGHT-LEASE 
TRANSACTION FOR A COMMERCIAL PROJECT FOR 
SCOTT ROAD SOLAR, LLC 
 

 
 WHEREAS, Cortland County Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency") is 
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New 
York, constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the 
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "Enabling Act") and Chapter 77 of the 
1974 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 902 of said General Municipal 
Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the 
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"Act") to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, 
reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of commercial facilities, 
among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing economically sound 
commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and 
economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their prosperity and 
standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and 
 
 WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and 
empowered under the Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more 
"projects" (as defined in the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed, 
reconstructed and installed, and to convey said projects or to lease said projects with the 
obligation to purchase; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to an application (the "Application") presented to the Agency 
by Scott Road Solar, LLC (the "Company"), as well as a cost benefit analysis, the 
members of the Agency, on February 9, 2026, adopted a resolution (the "Preliminary 
Inducement Resolution") whereby the Agency preliminarily agreed, subject to numerous 
conditions, to consider undertaking a project (the "Project") consisting of the following: (A) 
(1) the acquisition of an interest in a ± 30 acre parcel of land (the "Land") located at 331 
Houghton Hill Road in the Town of Homer, Cortland County, New York (2) construction of 
a 5 MW AC solar photovoltaic facility and related infrastructure on the Land (the "Facility") 
and (3) the acquisition and installation therein and thereon of fixtures and equipment 
comprising the Facility (the "Equipment"), all of the foregoing to constitute a solar 
photovoltaic facility to be operated by the Company (the Land, Facility and Equipment 
being collectively referred to as the "Project Facility"); (B) the granting of certain "financial 
assistance" (within the meaning of Section 854(14) of the Act) with respect to the 
foregoing, including potential exemptions from certain sales taxes, real estate transfer 
taxes, mortgage recording taxes and real property taxes (collectively, the "Financial 
Assistance"); and (C) the lease (with an obligation to purchase) or sale of the Project 
Facility to the Company or such other person as may be designated by the Company and 
agreed upon by the Agency; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Preliminary Inducement Resolution the Executive 
Director of the Agency (A) caused notice of a public hearing of the Agency to hear all 
persons interested in the Project and the financial assistance being contemplated by the 
Agency with respect to the Project (the "Public Hearing") to be published on February 12, 
2026 in the Cortland Standard, a newspaper of general circulation available to residents of 
the County of Cortland, (B) caused notice of the Public Hearing to be mailed on February 
11, 2026, together with notice, if any, that the Agency intends to deviate from its uniform 
tax exemption policy and which included the Agency’s Preliminary Inducement Resolution, 
by certified mail return receipt requested to the chief executive officer of the county and of 
each city, town, village and school district, as well as the school district clerk, in which the 
Project is to be located (C) conducted the Public Hearing on February 23, 2026 at 4:30 
p.m. local time at the Homer Community Building located at 31 North Main Street, in the 
Town of Homer, County of Cortland, New York, (D) prepared a report of the Public Hearing 
which fairly summarized the views presented at said public hearing and distributed same 
to the members of the Agency (“Report”); and  
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WHEREAS, , pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter 

43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "SEQR Act"), and the 
regulations (the "Regulations") adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of 
Environmental Conservation of the State of New York (collectively with the SEQR Act, 
"SEQRA"), by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on February 9, 2026 (the 
"SEQR Resolution"), the Agency has determined that it was an involved agency in a 
coordinated SEQRA review of the Project undertaken by the Town of Homer Planning 
Board (the “Planning Board”) acting as lead agency and that the negative declaration 
issued by the Planning Board following the coordinated review is binding on the Agency; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on March 9, 2026 
(the "Final Inducement Resolution"), the Agency determined, following a review of the 
Report, to finalize the preliminary determination made by the Agency in the Preliminary 
Inducement Resolution to proceed with the Project and the granting of the Financial 
Assistance described in the notice of the Public Hearing; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to consummate the Project and the granting of the Financial 
Assistance described in the notice of the Public Hearing, the Agency proposes to enter into 
the following documents (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Agency Documents"): 
(A) a certain lease to Agency (and a memorandum thereof) (the "Underlying Lease") by 
and between the Company, as landlord, and the Agency, as tenant pursuant to which the 
Company will lease to the Agency the Project Facility; (B) a Uniform Project and Lease 
Agreement (and a memorandum thereof) (the "Lease Agreement") by and between the 
Agency and the Company, pursuant to which, among other things, the Company agrees to 
undertake the Project as agent of the Agency and the Company further agrees to lease the 
Project Facility from the Agency and, as rental thereunder, to pay the Agency's 
administrative fee relating to the Project and to pay all expenses incurred by the Agency 
with respect to the Project; (C) a payment in lieu of tax agreement (the "Payment in Lieu of 
Tax Agreement") by and between the Agency and the Company, pursuant to which the 
Company will agree to pay certain payments in lieu of taxes with respect to the Project 
Facility; and (D) various certificates relating to the Project (the "Closing Documents"); 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF CORTLAND 
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.  The Agency hereby finds and determines that: 
 
  (A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers 
necessary and convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the 
Act and to exercise all powers granted to it under the Act; and 
 
  (B) The Project constitutes a "project," as such term is defined in the Act; 
and 
  (C) The acquisition of the Project Facility and the lease of the Project 
Facility to the Company will promote and maintain the job opportunities, general prosperity 
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and economic welfare of the citizens of Cortland County, New York and the State of New 
York and improve their standard of living; and 
 
  (D) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to enter into the 
Agency Documents. 
 
 Section 2.  In consequence of the foregoing, the Agency hereby determines to: (A) 
accept the Underlying Lease; (B) proceed with the Project; (C) acquire the Project Facility; 
(D) lease the Project Facility to the Company pursuant to the Lease Agreement; (E) enter 
into the Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement; and (F) grant the Financial Assistance with 
respect to the Project. 
 
 Section 3.  The Agency is hereby authorized to acquire a leasehold interest in the 
Project Facility pursuant to the Underlying Lease and to do all things necessary or 
appropriate for the accomplishment thereof, and all acts heretofore taken by the Agency 
with respect to such acquisition are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed. 
 
 Section 4.  The Agency is hereby authorized to acquire the Project Facility as 
described in the Lease Agreement and to do all things necessary or appropriate for the 
accomplishment thereof, and all acts heretofore taken by the Agency with respect to such 
acquisition are hereby ratified, confirmed and approved. 
 
 Section 5.  The form and substance of the Agency Documents as approved by the 
Chairman, Vice Chairman or Executive Director are hereby approved. 
 
 Section 6.  (A) The Chairman, Vice Chairman and Executive Director of the Agency 
are each hereby separately authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver the 
Agency Documents and, where appropriate, the Secretary (or Assistant Secretary) of the 
Agency is hereby authorized to affix the seal of the Agency thereto and to attest the same, 
with such changes, variations, omissions and insertions thereto as the Chairman or Vice 
Chairman or Executive Director shall approve, the execution thereof by the Chairman or 
Vice Chairman or Executive Director to constitute conclusive evidence of such approval. 
 
   (B) The Chairman, Vice Chairman or Executive of the Agency is 
each hereby further authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to designate any additional 
Authorized Representatives of the Agency (as defined in and pursuant to the Lease 
Agreement). 
 
 Section 7.  The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby 
authorized and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and 
things required or provided for by the provisions of the Agency Documents, and to execute 
and deliver all such additional certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such 
fees, charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be 
necessary or, in the opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper 
to effect the purposes of the foregoing Resolution and to cause compliance by the Agency 
with all of the terms, covenants and provisions of the Agency Documents binding upon the 
Agency. 
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Section 8.  Pursuant to Section 875(3) of the Act, the Agency shall recover, 

recapture, receive, or otherwise obtain from the Company that portion of the Financial 
Assistance which constitutes state sales and use tax exemptions taken or purported to be 
taken by the Company to which the Company is not entitled or which are in excess of the 
amount authorized by the Agency or which are for property or services not authorized by 
the Agency as part of the Project or were taken by the Company when the Company failed 
to comply with a material term or condition to use property or services in the manner 
required by the Agency.  The Company shall cooperate with the Agency in its efforts to 
recover, recapture, receive, or otherwise obtain such state sales and use tax exemptions 
and shall promptly pay over any such amounts to the Agency.  The failure to pay over such 
amounts to the Agency shall be grounds for the New York State Commissioner of Taxation 
and Finance to assess and determine state sales and use taxes due from the Company 
under Article 28 of the Tax Law of the State of New York, together with any relevant 
penalties and interest due on such amounts. 

 
Section 9.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 
 The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on 
roll call, which resulted as follows: 

 
Michael McMahon   VOTING ______________ 

 Stephen Compagni   VOTING ______________ 
 Clinton Brooks   VOTING ______________ 
 Deborah Hayden   VOTING ______________ 
 Kathleen Burke   VOTING ______________ 
 William McGovern   VOTING ______________ 

Jason Hage    VOTING ______________ 
 
 

The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted. 
 
STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
COUNTY OF CORTLAND )  ss.: 
 
 I, the undersigned Secretary of Cortland County Industrial Development Agency 
(the "Agency"), DO HEREBY CERTIFY, that I have compared the foregoing extract of the 
minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the Resolution contained 
therein, held on March 9, 2026 with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the 
same is a true and correct copy of such proceedings of the Agency and of such Resolution 
set forth therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same related to the subject 
matters therein referred to. 
 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 
meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respect duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the 
Public Officers Law (the "Open Meetings Law"), said meeting was open to the general 
public and due notice of the time and place of said meeting was given in accordance with 
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such Open Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency 
present through said meeting. 
 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in full 
force and effect and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the 
Agency this 9th day of March, 2026. 
 
 
        __________________________ 
        Clinton Brooks, Secretary 
 



Cortland County 
Industrial Development Agency 
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CORTLAND COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

IMPORTANT NOTICE: The answers to the questions contained in this application are necessary to 
determine the applicant’s eligibility for financial assistance from the Cortland County Industrial 
Development Agency. The answers will also be used in the preparation of papers in  this transaction. 
Accordingly, an officer or other employee of the applicant who is thoroughly familiar with the business 
and affairs of the applicant and who is also thoroughly familiar with the proposed project should answer 
all questions accurately and completely. This application is subject to acceptance by the Agency.  

 
TO: CORTLAND COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 37 CHURCH STREET 
 CORTLAND, NEW YORK 13045 
 
 
 
APPLICANT:__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

APPLICANT'S STREET ADDRESS:__________________________________________________________________ 

CITY:_________________________________ STATE:__________________PHONE NO.:______________________ 

E-MAIL ADDRESS:___________________________________________________________________________________ 

NAME OF PERSON(S) AUTHORIZED TO SPEAK FOR APPLICANT WITH RESPECT TO THIS 
APPLICATION:_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

IF APPLICANT IS REPRESENTED BY AN ATTORNEY, COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING: 

NAME OF FIRM:_____________________________________________________________________________  

NAME OF ATTORNEY:_________________________________________________________________________ 

ATTORNEY’S STREET ADDRESS:______________________________________________________________ 

CITY:_________________________________ STATE:__________________PHONE NO.:______________________ 

E-MAIL ADDRESS:___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  

NOTE: PLEASE READ THE INSTRUCTIONS ON PAGE 2 BEFORE FILLING OUT THIS 
APPLICATION 

 ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  

INSTRUCTIONS 

Scott Road Solar, LLC

143 West Street, Suite C201

New Milford CT 06776

prodriguez@seaboardsolar.com

Pedro Rodriguez / Shawn Brazo / Ryan Clark

Sweeney Law Firm

Mark Sweeney

16 Jeith Road

Delmar NY 518-461-6838

mark@mtsweenylaw.com
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1. The Agency will not approve any applications unless, in the judgment of the Agency, said application contains sufficient 
information upon which to base a decision whether to approve or tentatively approve an action. 

2. Fill in all blanks, using "none" or "not applicable" or "N/A" where the question is not appropriate to the project which is the 
subject of this application (the “Project”). 

3. If an estimate is given as the answer to a question, put "(est)" after the figure or answer, which is estimated. 

4. If more space is needed to answer any specific question, attach a separate sheet. 

5. When completed, return two (2) copies of this application to the Agency at the address indicated on the first page of this 
application. 

6. The Agency will not give final approval to this application until the Agency receives a completed environmental assessment 
form concerning the Project, which is the subject of this application. 

7. Please note that Article 6 of the Public Officers Law declares that all records in the possession of the Agency (with certain 
limited exceptions) are open to public inspection and copying.  If the applicant feels that there are elements of the Project 
which are in the nature of trade secrets or information, the nature of which is such that if disclosed to the public or otherwise 
widely disseminated would cause substantial injury to the applicant’s competitive position, the applicant may identify such 
elements in writing and request that such elements be kept confidential in accordance with Article 6 of Public Officers Law. 

8. The applicant will be required to pay to the Agency all actual costs incurred in connection with this application and the Project 
contemplated herein (to the extent such expenses are not paid out of the proceeds of the Agency’s bonds issued to finance the 
project).  The applicant will also be expected to pay all costs incurred by general counsel and bond counsel to the Agency.  The 
costs incurred by the Agency, including the Agency’s general counsel and bond counsel, may be considered as a part of the 
project and included as a part of the resultant bond issue. 

9. The Agency has established an application fee of Five Hundred Dollars ($500) to cover the anticipated costs of the Agency in 
processing this application. A check or money order made payable to the Agency must accompany each application.  THIS 
APPLICATION WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED BY THE AGENCY UNLESS ACCOMPANIED BY THE APPLICATION FEE. 

10. The Agency has established a project fee for each project in which the Agency participates.  UNLESS THE AGENCY AGREES IN 
WRITING TO THE CONTRARY, THIS PROJECT FEE IS REQUIRED TO BE PAID BY THE APPLICANT AT OR PRIOR TO THE 
GRANTING OF ANY FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE BY THE AGENCY. 

FOR AGENCY USE ONLY 

1. Project Name or Number _________________________________________________ 

2. Date Application Received by Agency ________________________________________, 20____ 

3. Date Application Referred to Attorney for Review ________________________________________, 20____ 

4. Date Copy of Application Mailed to Members ________________________________________, 20____ 

5. Date Notice of Agency Meeting on Application Posted ________________________________________, 20____ 

6. Date Notice of Agency Meeting on Application Mailed ________________________________________, 20____ 

7. Date of Agency Meeting on Application ________________________________________, 20____ 

8. Date Agency Conditionally Approved Application ________________________________________, 20____ 

9. Date Scheduled for Public Hearing ________________________________________, 20____ 

10. Date Environmental Assessment Form ("EAF") Received ________________________________________, 20____ 

11. Date Agency Completed Environmental Review ________________________________________, 20____ 

12. Date of Final Approval of Application ________________________________________, 20____ 

 

I. APPLICANT INFORMATION-COMPANY TO RECEIVE BENEFITS (the “COMPANY”) 
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A. Identity of Company: 
 1. Company Name: _____________________________________________________________ 
  Present Address: ____________________________________________________________ 
  Zip Code: ___________________ Employer ID No.: __________________________ 
 
 2. Indicate type of business organization of Company: 
 
 a.  Corporation.  Incorporated in what country?___________________; 
   State:__________________;  Date Incorporated: _____________________; 
   Authorized to do business in New York State?  Yes _______  No_______ 
  i. Is the Corporation Publicly Held?  Yes____  No____.  If yes, please list 

exchanges where stock is traded:______________________________________ 
   ____________________________________________________________________________ 
  ii. If no, list all Stockholders having a 5% or more interest in the 

Company: 
 

Name Address Percentage of Holding 

   

   

   

   

   

 
 b.  Partnership.  General or Limited partnership?_____________________ 
                                               Name all partners below: 

 

Name Address General 
Partner 

Limited 
Partner 

    

    

    

    

    

 

Scott Road Solar, LLC
143 West Street, Suite C201, New Milford, CT

06776 39-3834031
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 c.  Limited Liability Company.  Formed in what country _______________; 
   State:______________;  Date of Formation:________________________________; 
   Authorized to do business in New York State?  Yes_______  No_______; 
   Name all members below: 
 

Name Address Membership Percentage 

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 d.  Sole proprietorship.  Name of Sole Proprietor:________________________ 

 
 3. Is the Company a subsidiary or direct or indirect affiliate of any other 

organization(s)? If so, indicate name of related organization(s) and 
relationship:_________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

 B. Management of Company: 
  List all officers/directors/managers (complete all columns for each person): 
 

Name and Home Address Office Held 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 
 C. Company/Management History: 
 1. Is the Company or management of the Company now a plaintiff or a 

defendant in any civil or criminal litigation?  Yes______  No______. 

 2. Has any person listed above ever been convicted of a criminal offense 
(other than a minor traffic violation)?  Yes______  No______. 

 3. Has any person listed above or any concern with whom such person 
has been connected ever been in receivership or been adjudicated a 
bankrupt?  Yes______  No______. 

 If the answer to any of questions 1 through 3 is yes, please furnish details in a separate 
attachment. 

New Milford Solar Development, LLC 143 West Street, Suite C201, New Milford, CT 06776 100%

Delaware 03-17-2025
X

WES-MA Farms, LLC

Shawn Brazo - 143 West Street, Suite C201, New Milford, CT 06776 Manager
Matthew Longman - 143 West Street, Suite C201, New Milford, CT 06776

X

X

X

US

Operating Manager

 The Project SPV, Scott Road Solar, LLC is 100% owned by New Milford Solar Development, LLC, and New Milford Solar Development, LLC is 
owned by WES-MA Farms, LLC. WES-MA Farms, LLC is owned by Gayla Longman 75% and Matthew Longman 25%; Matthew is the signature and 
operating manager for all SPV's. This is the structure for all our projects' SPV's. 
In addition, the land is owned by WES-MA Farms, LLC which is our land-holding company and leases the property to the Project SPV.
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II. PROPOSED PROJECT DATA 
 A. Description of the Project: 
 1. Please provide a narrative of the Project and the purpose of the 

Project (acquisition, construction, renovations and/or equipment 
purchases).  Identify specific uses occurring with the Project.  Describe 
any and all tenants and any/all end users (attach additional pages): 

  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 2. Describe the reasons why the Agency's Financial Assistance is 

necessary and the effect the Project will have on the Company's 
business or operations and any corresponding benefit to the Cortland 
County community (attach additional pages): 

  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 3. Is there a likelihood that the Project would not be undertaken but for 

the Financial Assistance provided by the Agency: 
 
    Yes     No 
 
 4. If the Project could be undertaken without the Financial Assistance 

provided by the Agency, then provide a statement indicating why the 
Project should be undertaken by the Agency (attach additional pages): 

  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 B. Location of Project: 
 
  1. Street Address: _______________________________________________________________ 
  2. City: ________________________________________________________________________  
  3. Town: ______________________________________________________________________  
  4. Village: _____________________________________________________________________  

5. Is any portion of the Project located outside of Cortland County?  If 
so, identify the other county: _____________________________________________  

  6. School District: ____________________________________________________________ 
  7. Tax Parcel Nos.: ___________________________________________________________  
  

The Scott Road Solar, LLC project is a proposed 5MW-AC community solar proejct to be constructed

on approximately 30 acres. The total acreage of the land is 216 acres. A PILOT will increase 

the financial viability of the project whereas paying the full real property tax would not make this project
financially feasible

331 Houghton Hill Road

Homer

No
Homer Central School
45.00-01-14.00

This renewable energy project requires the Agency;s assitance in order to be economically feasible
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 C. Description of the Project site: 

 

  1. Approximate size (in acres or square feet) of the Project site:___________ 

   Attach a map, survey or sketch of the Project site. 

 

  2. Are there existing buildings on the Project Site? 

   Yes_______  No_______.  If yes, 

 a. Indicate each existing building and indicate the approximate 
size (in square feet) of each building: 

 ______________________________________________________________________ 

 ______________________________________________________________________  

 ______________________________________________________________________  

 

 b. Are the existing buildings in operation?  Yes_______  No_______.  
If yes, describe the present use of each building in operation: 

 ______________________________________________________________________  

 ______________________________________________________________________  

 ______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 c. Are the existing buildings abandoned?  Yes_______  No_______; 
About to be abandoned?  Yes_______  No_______.  If yes, 
describe: 

 ______________________________________________________________________  

 ______________________________________________________________________  

 ______________________________________________________________________  

 

 d. Attach photographs of existing buildings. 

 

  3. Utilities Serving the Project Site: 

 
Water: Municipal ___ , Other ___.  If other, describe ________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
Sewer: Municipal___ , Other ___.  If other, describe _________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
Electric Utility Co.:____________________________________________________ 
 
Natural Gas Utility Co.: _______________________________________________ 
 
Other Utility Sources: _________________________________________________ 

 
  4. Present Legal Owner of the Project Site: 
 a. If the Company owns the Project site, indicate: 
  Date of Purchase:______________________________________________ 

30

Please see attached Exhibit A

X

N/A

X

X
X

N/A

National Grid

Rollyn and Christina Farber are the current owners, 
but the Property will be purchased by WES-MA Farms, LLC; 
which is an affiliate of the Applicant, prior to the construction of the Project.
The portion needed for the Project shall be leased to the Applicant
for the construction, operation and maintenance of the Project. The 
Applicant is responsible for all real estate and property taxes related to the 
Project Site under the lease. WES-MA Farms, LLC is not seeking an 
assignment of the financial assitance provided to the Applicant.



 

Page ~7~ 

  Purchase Price:________________________________________________ 
 
 b. If the Company does not own the Project site, does the Company 

have the contractual right to purchase the Project site?  
Yes_______  No_______.  If yes, indicate: 

  Date Contract Signed:___________________________________________ 
  Date Ability to Purchase Expires:______________________________ 
 
 c. If the Company does not own the Project site, is there a 

relationship legally or by common control between the 
Company and present owner of the Project site? 

  Yes_________  No_________.  If yes, describe: 

 ______________________________________________________________________  

 ______________________________________________________________________ 

 ______________________________________________________________________ 

 

  5. Zoning District in which the Project is located:_________________________  

 

 6. Are there any variances or special permits affecting the Project site  
now or which need to be obtained to complete the Project? 

  Yes_______  No_______.  If yes, list below and attach copies of all 
variances or special permits: 

 ______________________________________________________________________________  

 ______________________________________________________________________________  

 ______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 D. Description of the Proposed Construction: 

 1. Does part of the Project consist of the acquisition or construction of a 
new building or buildings?  Yes _____  No _____.  If yes, indicate number of 
and size of new buildings: 

  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 2. Does part of the Project consist of additions and/or renovations to 
existing buildings located on the Project site?  Yes_______  No ______. If 
yes, indicate: 

  a. The number of buildings to be expanded or renovated:_________ 

  b. The size of any expansions:________________________________________ 

   _______________________________________________________________________ 

  c. The nature of expansion and/or renovation: 

   _______________________________________________________________________ 

$1,050,000

X
October 29, 2024

When all permits are issued

X

Purchase and Sale Agreement

Agricultural

X

Town of Homer Planning Board Site Plan Approval

X

X
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   _______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 3. Describe the principal uses to be made by the Company of the building 
or buildings to be acquired, constructed or expanded: 

  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 E. Description of the Equipment: 

 1. Does part of the Project consist of the acquisition or installation of 
machinery, equipment or other personal property (the “Equipment”)? 

  Yes_______  No _______.  If yes, describe the Equipment: 

  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 2. With respect to the Equipment to be acquired, will any of the 
Equipment be previously used Equipment? 

  Yes_______  No_______. If yes, please provide detail below: 

  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 3. Describe the principal uses to be made by the Company of the 
Equipment to be acquired or installed: 

  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 F. Project Use: 

 

  1. What are the principal products to be produced at the Project site? 

  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 2. What are the principal activities to be conducted at the Project? 

  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

None. The current use of the site is agricultural. The project site is +/- 216 acres, and 

+/- 30 acres will be used to build the Project. 

X
This is an estimate based on the current procurement availability, but does not affect the size or design of the project, and includes but it is not limited to: 

4,806 pv modules of 680W, 19 string inverters of 125kW, one 100kw string inverter, 40 combiner boxes, switch-board, 75kVA Zig-Zag transformer, 

7.5kva distribution transformer, PV Monitoring System, required utility poles, switch-gear, load-break switch, wiring, conduits, fencing, ground screws and
 
required racking system

X

Solely for the construction, operation and maintenance of the Project

Generate electricity for the local utility company, and to be used in the property's vicity

Generate electricity for the local utility company, and to be used in the property's vicity
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 3. Does the Project include facilities or property that are primarily used in 
making retail sales of goods or services to customers who personally 
visit such facilities? 

  Yes______  No______.  If yes please provide detail: 

  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 4. If the answer to question 3 is yes, what percentage of the cost of the 
Project will be expended on such facilities or property primarily used 
in making retail sales of goods or services to customers who 
personally visit the Project?  ________% 

 

 5. If the answer to question 3 is yes, and the answer to question 4 is 
more than 33.33%, indicate whether any of the following apply to the 
Project: 

 

 a. Will the Project be operated by a not-for-profit corporation? 
Yes_______  No_______. If yes, please explain: 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 b. Is the Project likely to attract a significant number of visitors 
from outside the economic development region (as established 
by Section 230 of the Economic Development Law) in which 
the Project will be located? 

  Yes ______  No ______.  If yes, please explain: 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 c. Would the Project occupant, but for the contemplated Financial 
Assistance from the Agency, locate the related jobs outside of 
New York State? 

  Yes _______  No _______. If yes, please explain: 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 d. Is the predominant purpose of the Project to make available 
goods or services which would not, but for the Project, be 

X
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reasonably accessible to the residents of the city, town or 
village within which the Project will be located because of a 
lack of reasonably accessible retail trade facilities offering such 
goods or services? 

  Yes______  No_______.  If yes, please provide detail: 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 e. Will the Project be located in one of the following: (i) an area 
which was designed as an empire zone pursuant to Article 18-B 
of the General Municipal Law; or (ii) a census tract or block 
numbering area (or census tract or block numbering area 
contiguous thereto) which, according to the most recent census 
data, has (a) a poverty rate of at least 20% for the year in which 
the data relates, or at least 20% of households receiving public 
assistance, and (b) an unemployment rate of at least 1.25 times 
the statewide unemployment rate for the year to which the data 
relates? 

  Yes______; No_______. If yes, please explain: 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 6. If the answers to any of subdivisions c. through e. of question 5 are 
yes, will the Project preserve permanent, private sector jobs or 
increase the overall number of permanent, private sector jobs in the 
State of New York? 

  Yes ______  No______. If yes, please explain: 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 7. Will the completion of the Project result in the removal of an industrial 
or manufacturing plant of the Company or another proposed occupant 
of the Project (a “Project Occupant”) from one area of the State of New 
York to another area of the State of New York? 

  Yes_______  No _______. If yes, please explain: 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 8. Will the completion of the Project result in the abandonment of one or 
more plants or facilities of the Company or a Project Occupant located in 

X
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the State of York? 

  Yes_______  No______. If yes, provide detail: 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 9. If the answer to either question 7 or question 8 is yes, indicate whether 
any of the following apply to the Project: 

 

 a. Is the Project reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive 
position of the Company or such Project Occupant in its 
industry? 

  Yes_______; No______.  If yes, please provide detail: 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 b. Is the Project reasonably necessary to discourage the Company 
or such Project Occupant from removing such other plant or 
facility to a location outside the State of New York? 

  Yes_______  No_______.  If yes, please provide detail: 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 G. Project Status: 

 

 1. If the Project includes the acquisition of any land or buildings, have 
any steps been taken toward acquiring same? 

  Yes_____  No_____.  If yes, please discuss in detail the approximate stage 
of such acquisition: 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 2. If the Project includes the acquisition of any Equipment, have any steps 
been taken toward acquiring same? 

  Yes_______  No______.  If yes, please discuss in detail the approximate 
stage of such acquisition: 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

X

X

Execution of the Purchase and Sale Agreement for the Property, and payments have been

made towards such an Agreement. In addition, starting the negotiation of the construction

contract with the Engineering Procurement Company

Starting to negotiate Purchase Orders for the equipment necessary for the construction of the 

Project, and the execution of the construction agreement with thge Engineering Procurement 

Company. In addition to executing the Interconnection Service Agreement (ISA) with the utility company, 

and making the ISA payment so the utility company can start designing and workign on their own

own upgrades for the project
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 3. If the Project involves the construction or reconstruction of any 
building or other improvement, has construction work on any such 
building or improvement begun?  Yes ______  No_______.  If yes, please 
discuss in detail the approximate extent of construction and the extent 
of completion.  Indicate in your answer whether such specific steps 
have been completed as site clearance and preparation; completion of 
foundations; installation of footings; etc.: 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 4. Please indicate the amount of funds expended on the Project by the 
Applicant in the past three (3) years and the purpose of such 
expenditures: 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

III. INFORMATION CONCERNING LEASES OR SUBLEASES OF THE PROJECT 

 (PLEASE COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING SECTION IF THE APPLICANT INTENDS 
TO LEASE OR SUBLEASE ANY PORTION OF THE PROJECT) 

 A. Does the Company intend to lease or sublease more than 10% (by area or fair 
market value) of the Project?  Yes_______  No _______.  If yes, please complete 
the following for each existing or proposed tenant or subtenant: 

 

  Sublessee Name:_____________________________________________________________ 
Present Address: ________________________________________________________  
City: _________________________ State: __________________ Zip: _______________  
Employer’s ID No.: __________________________________________________________  
Sublessee is: ______Corporation; ______Partnership; ______; Limited 
Liability Company; ______Sole Proprietor 
Relationship to Company: _______________________________________________  
Percentage of Project to be leased or subleased: ________________________  
Use of Project intended by Sublessee: __________________________________  
Date of lease or sublease to Sublessee: ___________________________________  
Term of lease or sublease to Sublessee: ________________________________  
Will any portion of the space leased by this sublessee be primarily used 
in making retail sales of goods or services to customers who personally 
visit the Project?  Yes_______  No______. 
If yes, please provide on a separate attachment 

X

Roughly $1,200,000 including interconnection payments, engineering, real estate, legal

and other developments costs directly tied to the Project since October 2024

X
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 a. details; and 
 b. the answers to questions II (F) (4) through (6) with 

respect to such sublessee. 
 

B.         What percentage of the space intended to be leased or subleased is now 
subject to a binding written lease or sublease? _______________% 

 
IV. EMPLOYMENT IMPACT 

 A. Indicate below the number of people presently employed at the Project Site 
and the number that will be employed at the Project site at the end of the first 
and second years after the Project has been completed (Do not include 
construction workers).  Also indicate below the number of workers employed 
at the Project site representing newly created positions as opposed to 
positions relocated from other project sites of the Applicant. 

 
 Current # of 

Jobs at 
proposed 
Project location 
or to be 
relocated to 
Project location 

If Financial 
Assistance is 
granted, 
estimate the 
number of 
FTE and PTE 
jobs to be 
Retained 

If Financial 
Assistance is 
granted, 
estimate the 
number of FTE 
and PTE jobs to 
be Created by 
Two years after 
Project 
completion 

Estimate number 
of residents of 
the Labor 
Market Area in 
which the 
Project is located 
that will fill the 
retained and 
created FTE and 
PTE jobs Two 
years after 
Project 
completion** 

Present Full Time     
Present Part Time     
First Year Full Time     
First Year Part Time     
Second Year Full Time     
Second Year Part Time     
Total:     
 

**For purposes of the question, please estimate in the fourth column the number of FTE and PTE 

jobs, as indicated in the second and third columns, that will be filled by residents of the Labor 

Market Area.  The Labor Market Area includes Cortland County as well as the counties of Cayuga, 

Onondaga, Tompkins, Broome and Chenango. 

 

  

100

0 0 00
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Category of Jobs to be 
Retained and Created 

Estimated Average Salary 
or Range of Salary 

Estimated Average Fringe 
Benefits or Range of Fringe 
Benefits 

Management   
Professional   
Administrative   
Production   
Independent Contractors   
Other   
 
 B. Please state the anticipated date of completion of the Project site and the 

anticipated date of occupancy of the Project site: 
  Project Site Completion Date: ______________________________________________________ 
  Project Site Occupancy Date:________________________________________________________ 
 
V. PROJECT COST 
 
 A. State the costs reasonably necessary for the acquisition of the Project site, the 

construction of the proposed buildings and the acquisition and installation of 
any machinery and equipment necessary or convenient in connection 
therewith, and including any utilities, access roads or appurtenant facilities, 
using the following categories: 

 
Description of Cost: Amount: 
 
Land Acquisition $_______________________ 
Building Construction $_______________________ 
Building Renovation $_______________________ 
Machinery and equipment costs $_______________________ 
Utilities, roads and appurtenant costs $_______________________ 
Architects and engineering fees $_______________________ 
Costs of Bond issue (legal, financial and printing) $_______________________ 
Construction loan fees and interest (if applicable) $_______________________ 
Other (specify) 
__________________________________ $_______________________ 
__________________________________ $_______________________ 
__________________________________ $_______________________ 
__________________________________ $_______________________ 
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS: $_______________________ 
 

 B. Have any of the above expenditures already been made by the Applicant? 
  Yes_______  No________. If yes, indicate particulars: 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 

Q1 2027
Q1 2027

X
A portion of engineering, legal and utilities fees

1,050,000
11,615,737
0
0
850,494
200,000
500,000
306,410

14,552,641
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VI. FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE EXPECTED FROM THE AGENCY 
 
 A. Tax Benefits: 
 1. Is the Applicant requesting a real property tax exemption in 

connection with the Project from the Agency?  Yes_______  No_______. 
 
 2. Is the Applicant expecting to be appointed agent of the Agency for 

purposes of receiving an exemption from N.Y.S. Sales Tax or 
Compensating Use Tax?  Yes_______  No_______.   

 
 3. Is the Applicant requesting a mortgage recording tax exemption in 

connection with the Project from the Agency?  Yes_______  No_______. 
 
 4. What is the estimated value of each type of tax exemption being 

sought in connection with the Project?  Please detail the type of tax 
exemption and value of each exemption: 
a. N.Y.S. Sales and Compensating Use Taxes: $_________________ 
b. Mortgage Recording Taxes: $_________________ 
c. Real Property Taxes: $_________________ 
 (Please consult with the Agency in 
 calculating the estimated value of the 
 real property tax exemption) 
d. Other (please specify): 
 ___________________________________ $_________________ 
 ___________________________________ $_________________ 
 ___________________________________ $_________________ 
 

 5. Are any of the tax-exemptions being sought in connection with the 
Project inconsistent with the Agency’s Uniform Tax-exemption Policy? 

  Yes _______  No_______.  If yes, please explain how the request of the 
Applicant differs from the Agency’s Uniform Tax-Exemption Policy: 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 B. Financing: 
 
 1. Is the Applicant requesting that the Agency issue bonds to assist in 

financing the Project?  Yes________  No________.  If yes, indicate: 
 a. Principal Amount of Bonds Requested $_________________ 
 b. Maturity Requested _________________ Years 
 c. Is the Interest on such bonds intended to be exempt from 

federal income taxation?  Yes________ No_________. 

498,649
138,649
835,092

x

x

x

x

x
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 2. What is the approximate amount of private sector financing to be 

obtained?  $_________________________.  Is the Applicant expecting that 
the private sector financing of the Project will be secured by one or 
more mortgages?  Yes______  No_______. 

  If yes, what is the approximate amount of private sector financing to 
be secured?  $_________________________. 

 
 3. Is the Applicant expecting that any of the financing of the Project 

will come from public sector sources?  Yes______  No_______. 
  What is the approximate amount of public sector financing to be 

obtained?  $_________________________. 
  If yes, is the Company expecting that the public sector financing of 

the Project will be secured by one or more mortgages or grant 
agreements?  Yes______  No_______. 

  If yes, what is the approximate amount of public sector financing to 
be secured?  $_________________________. 

   
 4. Please state the approximate amount to be invested in the Project 

(not borrowed or the subject of a grant) by the Applicant 
$_________________________. 

 
 5. Please state the approximate total amount of borrowed funds to be 

invested in the Project $__________________. 
 
VII. REPRESENTATIONS BY THE APPLICANT 
 The Applicant understands and agrees with the Agency as follows: 
 
 A. Job Listings:  In accordance with Section 858-b (2) of the New York General 

Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project 
receives any Financial Assistance from the Agency, except as otherwise 
provided by collective bargaining agreements, new employment 
opportunities created as a result of the Project will be listed with the New York 
State Department of Labor Community Services Division (the "DOL") and with 
the administrative entity (collectively with the DOL, the "JTPA Entities") of the 
service delivery area created by the Federal Job Training Partnership Act 
(Public Law 97-300) ("JTPA") in which the Project is located. 

 
 B. First Consideration for Employment:  In accordance with Section 858-b (2) 

of the New York General Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees 
that, if the Project receives any Financial Assistance from the Agency, except 
as otherwise provided by collective bargaining agreements, where 
practicable, the Applicant will first consider persons eligible to participate in 
JTPA programs who shall be referred by the JTPA Entities for new employment 
opportunities created as a result of the Project. 

 

*Typically, we front all the development costs from our own capital, and then pursue construction loans
that usually cover 80% of the costs and then turns into a permanent loan once the project is
complete

13,694,608*

X

X

13,694,608

X

13,694,608

858,033
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 C. Local Workforce Development: The Applicant understands and agrees that 
if the Project receives Financial Assistance from the Agency, except as 
provided by collective bargaining where practicable, the Applicant will 
increase the skill base of the local workforce through training, opportunities 
for professional development and career track advancement. 

 
 D. Annual Sales Tax Filings:  In accordance with Section 874(8) of the New York 

General Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the 
Project receives any sales tax exemptions as part of the Financial Assistance 
from the Agency, in accordance with Section 874(8) of the General Municipal 
Law, the Applicant agrees to file, or cause to be filed, with the New York State 
Department of Taxation and Finance, the annual form prescribed by the 
Department of Taxation and Finance, describing the value of all sales tax 
exemptions claimed by the Applicant and all consultants or subcontractors 
retained by the Applicant. 

 
 E. Annual Employment Reports:  The Applicant understands and agrees that, 

if the Project receives any Financial Assistance from the Agency, the Applicant 
will file, or cause to be filed, with the Agency, on an annual basis, reports 
regarding the number of people employed at the Project site. 

 
 F. Absence of Conflicts of Interest:  The Applicant has received from the Agency 

a list of the members, officers and employees of the Agency.  No member, 
officer or employee of the Agency has an interest, whether direct or indirect, 
in any transaction contemplated by this Application, except as hereinafter 
described: 

  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 G. Federal, State and Local Laws:  The Applicant/Owner/Occupant/Operator 

receiving the Financial Assistance understands and agrees that it must be, at 
all times, in compliance with applicable local, state and federal tax, worker 
protection and environmental laws, rules and regulations. 

 
 H. Environmental Matters: The Applicant acknowledges that certain 

environmental representations will be required at closing.  The Applicant shall 
provide copies of any known environmental reports, including any existing 
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Report(s) and/or Phase II 
Environmental Investigations.  The Agency may require the Company and/or 
Owner of the Premises to prepare and submit an environmental assessment 
and audit report including, but not limited to, a Phase I Environmental Site 
Assessment Report and a Phase II Environmental Investigation, with respect 
to the Premises at the sole cost and expense of the Owner and/or the Applicant.  
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All environmental assessment and audit reports shall be completed in 
accordance with ASTM Standard Practice E1527-13, and shall be conformed 
over to the Agency so that the Agency is authorized to use and rely on the 
reports.  The Agency, however, does not adopt, ratify, confirm or assume any 
representation made with reports required herein. 

 
 I. Release: The Applicant and/or Owner, and their successors and assigns, 

hereby release, defend and indemnify the Agency from any and all suits, causes 
of action, litigations, damages, losses, liabilities, obligations, penalties, claims, 
demands, judgments, costs, disbursements, fees or expenses of any kind or 
nature whatsoever (including, without limitation, attorneys', consultants' and 
experts' fees) which may at any time be imposed upon, incurred by or asserted 
or awarded against the Agency resulting from or arising out of any inquiries 
and/or environmental assessments, investigations and audits performed on 
behalf of the Applicant and/or Owner pursuant hereto, including the scope, 
level of detail, contents or accuracy of any environmental assessment, audit, 
inspection or investigation report completed hereunder and/or the selection 
of the environmental consultant, engineer or other qualified person to perform 
such assessments, investigations and audits. 

 
 J. Hold Harmless Provision:  The Applicant acknowledges and agrees that the 

Applicant shall be and is responsible for all costs of the Agency incurred in 
connection with any actions required to be taken by the Agency in furtherance 
of the Application including the Agency's costs of general counsel and/or the 
Agency's bond/transaction counsel whether or not the Application, the 
proposed Project it describes, the attendant negotiations, or the issue of bonds 
or other transaction or agreement are ultimately ever carried to successful 
conclusion and agrees that the Agency shall not be liable for and agrees to 
indemnify, defend and hold the Agency harmless from and against any and all 
liability arising from or expense incurred by: (i) the Agency's examination and 
processing of, and action pursuant to or upon, the Application, regardless of 
whether or not the Application or the proposed Project described herein or the 
tax exemptions and other assistance requested herein are favorably acted 
upon by the Agency; (ii) the Agency's acquisition, construction and/or 
installation of the proposed Project described herein; and (iii) any further 
action taken by the Agency with respect to the proposed Project including, 
without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all causes of action and 
attorneys' fees and any other expenses incurred in defending any suit or 
actions which may arise as a result of any of the foregoing.  Applicant hereby 
understands and agrees, in accordance with Section 875(3) of the New York 
General Municipal Law and the policies of the Agency that any New York State 
and local sales and use tax exemption claimed by the Applicant and approved 
by the Agency, any mortgage recording tax exemption claimed by the Applicant 
and approved by the Agency, and/or any real property tax abatement claimed 
by the Applicant and approved by the Agency in connection with the Project, 
may be subject to recapture and/or termination by the Agency under such 
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terms and conditions as will be established by the Agency and set forth in 
transaction documents to be entered into by and between the Agency and the 
Applicant.  The Applicant further represents and warrants that the information 
contained in this Application including, without limitation, information 
regarding the amount of the New York State and local sales and use tax 
exemption benefit, the amount of the mortgage recording tax exemption 
benefit, and the amount of the real property tax abatement, if and as applicable, 
to the best of the Applicant's knowledge, is true, accurate and complete. 

 
 K. False or Misleading Information.  The submission of any knowingly false or 

misleading information by the applicant may lead to the immediate 
termination of any Financial Assistance and the reimbursement of an amount 
equal to all or part of any tax exemptions claimed by reason of Agency 
involvement in the Project. 
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Cortland County IDA 
Solar Development Project Rationale 

Crown City Solar 1 LLC 
March 9, 2026 

 
Crown City Solar 1 LLC proposes $9.8 million, five (5) Megawatt solar floating photovoltaic system 

Overview & Capacity 

• Name: Crown City Solar 1 LLC  

• Owner/Developer: 100% owned by TPSR Operating, LLC 

• Type: Floating photovoltaic solar  

• Capacity: 5 megawatts (MW). 

Location & Size 

• Situated at 3779 US Route 11 in the Town of Cortlandville in Cortland County, New York 

• The solar arrays are spread over approximately 665,000 sq ft (15.3 acres) of water. The 665,000 
sq ft is within 3 tax parcels with a total of 56.5 acres that will be leased by the developer. 

Project Timeline 

• Development & Permitting: Began in June 2025 with environmental studies and a land 
agreement. 

• Construction & Operation: Construction is expected to start in 2026 with commercial operation 
targeted for early 2027 

Crown City Solar 1 LLC is seeking a 15-year PILOT from the CCIDA to incentivize the project, which will provide: 

• New PILOT revenues of $250/MW per year with 2% escalator to affected taxing entities totaling 
$21,617 over the next 15 years (pro rata to the town, county, and school district) 

• The project’s host communities (“HCA”) will be paid over the 15 years as follows: 
• $181,581 to the town of Cortlandville ($2,100/MW per year with 2% escalator) 
• $155,641 to Cortland County ($1,800/MW per year with 2% escalator) 

• Maintain current tax obligations on the underlying property and generate an additional $87,637 over the 
term of the PILOT as the assessment basis moves from agricultural/mining to industrial 

• Fire district taxes over 15 years will total $18,546 
• Employ a base of local construction workers to assemble the site- with payroll estimated at approximately 

$4 million 
• Reduce New York State's reliance on fossil fuels following the Climate Leadership and Community 

Protection Act (CLCPA) 
 

The town of Cortlandville conducted the environmental review, was involved in the host community agreement 
negotiation, and is supportive of this project. Staff are recommending approval of CCIDA incentives for this 
project as further detailed in the project summary. 



Project Costs Value

Total construction project costs: $9,082,333 <- as defined by NYS Labor Law 224-a

Industry NAICS % of Total Investment Investment by 
Type

237130 100% $9,082,333
Must be 100%----> 100% $9,082,333 ERROR

Escalation Factor 2%
% Value PILOT Term (Years) 15

Sales Tax Exemption $0

Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption $0
Total Costs $496,849 Includes PILOT exemption, calculated below.

Year # Year
Property Tax WITHOUT 

Project
 PILOT $250/MW

Property Tax on Full 
Project Assessment

Difference in 
Current vs. PILOT

Difference PILOT vs 
Full Taxes

1 2026 $18,818 $1,250 $67,802 -$17,568 -$66,552
2 2027 $19,194 $1,275 $63,357 -$17,919 -$62,082
3 2028 $19,578 $1,301 $57,943 -$18,278 -$56,642
4 2029 $19,970 $1,327 $53,114 -$18,643 -$51,787
5 2030 $20,369 $1,353 $48,469 -$19,016 -$47,116
6 2031 $20,777 $1,380 $44,267 -$19,396 -$42,887
7 2032 $21,192 $1,408 $39,316 -$19,784 -$37,909
8 2033 $21,616 $1,436 $34,264 -$20,180 -$32,828
9 2034 $22,048 $1,465 $28,987 -$20,584 -$27,522

10 2035 $22,489 $1,494 $24,016 -$20,995 -$22,522
11 2036 $22,939 $1,524 $19,214 -$21,415 -$17,690
12 2037 $23,398 $1,554 $15,470 -$21,844 -$13,916
13 2038 $23,866 $1,585 $11,594 -$22,280 -$10,009
14 2039 $24,343 $1,617 $7,425 -$22,726 -$5,808
15 2040 $24,830 $1,649 $3,228 -$23,181 -$1,579

Total $325,428 $21,617 $518,466 -$303,811 -$496,849

Year # Year
HCA for Towns 

$2,100/MW
HCA for County 

$1,800/MW

1 2026 $10,500 $9,000  - 
2 2027 $10,710 $9,180  - 
3 2028 $10,924 $9,364  - 
4 2029 $11,143 $9,551  - 
5 2030 $11,366 $9,742  - 
6 2031 $11,593 $9,937  - 
7 2032 $11,825 $10,135  - 
8 2033 $12,061 $10,338  - 
9 2034 $12,302 $10,545  - 

10 2035 $12,548 $10,756  - 
11 2036 $12,799 $10,971  - 
12 2037 $13,055 $11,190  - 
13 2038 $13,317 $11,414  - 
14 2039 $13,583 $11,642  - 
15 2040 $13,855 $11,875  - 

Total $181,581 $155,641

This proposal varies from the agency's Uniform Tax Policy (UTEP), which calls for an overall reduction of 65% of property taxes over a 10-year 
period. This request is for a 90% reduction over a 15-year period. This deviation is primarily due to Host Community Agreements with 
Cortlandville and Cortland County. Additionally, this proposal also departs from the UTEP in that payments will be made to the taxing 

jurisdictions in each year of the agreement; there are no "zero" years.

Cortland County Industrial Development Agency
Crown City Solar 1, LLC

Route 11, Cortlandville NY

Project Summary

Monday, March 9, 2026

Property Tax Exemption

Fiscal Impact Assumptions

Estimated Costs of Incentives

Project Costs

Construction Economic Impacts

Power and Communication Line and Related Structures Construction

Additional Comments from the IDA
The underlying land taxes are not subject to this request  and will remain on the tax rolls. Prior to the sale/lease of this property for this project, the land tax 
was primarily assessed as mining. Therefore, the current underlying land will be reassessed at an industrial rate for those acres with arrays. Fire district tax 
is a special district tax and is not exempt under the PILOT.  Crown City 1, LLC will continue to pay a Fire District Tax on the underlying land as well as a new 
tax on the assessed value of the infrastructure (solar array).  The fire district tax revenue generated for the 15 year period is approximately $18,546.

Does the IDA believe that the project can be accomplished in a timely fashion?   Yes
Does this project provide onsite childcare facilities?  No



  

A regular meeting of Cortland County Industrial Development Agency (the 
"Agency") was convened in public session at the offices of the Agency located at 40 
Main Street, Suite A, in the City of Cortland, Cortland County, New York on March 9, 
2026 at 12:00 o'clock p.m., local time. 
 
 The meeting was called to order by the Chair and, upon roll being called, the 
following members of the Agency were: 
 
 PRESENT: 
 

Michael McMahon   Chairman 
Stephen Compagni   Vice Chairman 
Clinton Brooks   Secretary 
Deborah Hayden   Treasurer 
Kathleen Burke   Member 
William McGovern   Member 
Jason Hage    Member  

 
 ABSENT: 
 
 
FOLLOWING PERSONS WERE ALSO PRESENT: 
 

Melanie Vilardi   Executive Director  
Andrea Skeels   Director of Finance and Project Development 
Ashley Riehlman   Community Relations Specialist 
John P. Sidd, Esq.   Agency Counsel 

 
 
 The following resolution was offered by _________________, seconded by 
_____________, to wit: 
 

Resolution No. ______________ 
 

RESOLUTION DETERMINING THAT A PROJECT FOR 
CROWN CITY SOLAR 1, LLC TO CONSTRUCT A 4.9 
MEGAWATT COMMUNITY SOLAR PROJECT WILL 
REQUIRE NO DETERMINATION OF SIGNIFICANCE OR 
ADDITIONAL SEQRA REVIEW. 

 
 WHEREAS, Cortland County Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency") is 
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New 
York, constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the 
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "Enabling Act") and Chapter 77 of 
the 1974 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 902 of said General 
Municipal Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred 



 2 
 
 

to as the "Act") to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, 
constructing, reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of 
commercial facilities, among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and 
developing economically sound commerce and industry to advance the job 
opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the 
State of New York, to improve their prosperity and standard of living, and to prevent 
unemployment and economic deterioration; and 
 
 WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and 
empowered under the Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more 
"projects" (as defined in the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed, 
reconstructed and installed, and to convey said projects or to lease said projects with 
the obligation to purchase; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Crown City Solar 1, LLC (the "Company") has presented an 
application (the "Application") to the Agency, a copy of which was presented at this 
meeting and copies of which are on file at the office of the Agency, requesting that the 
Agency consider undertaking a project (the "Project") consisting of the following: (A) (1) 
the acquisition of an interest in a ± 15 acre portion of certain parcels of land, including a 
pond, consisting of ± 56.48 acres (the "Land") located at 3911 US Route 11, in the 
Town of Cortlandville, Cortland County, New York (2) construction of a 4.9 MW AC 
floating solar photovoltaic facility and related infrastructure on the Land (the "Facility") 
and (3) the acquisition and installation therein and thereon of fixtures and equipment 
comprising the Facility (the "Equipment"), all of the foregoing to constitute a solar 
photovoltaic facility to be operated by the Company (the Land, Facility and Equipment 
being collectively referred to as the "Project Facility"); (B) the granting of certain 
"financial assistance" (within the meaning of Section 854(14) of the Act) with respect to 
the foregoing, including potential exemptions from certain sales taxes, real estate 
transfer taxes, mortgage recording taxes and real property taxes (collectively, the 
"Financial Assistance"); and (C) the lease (with an obligation to purchase) or sale of the 
Project Facility to the Company or such other person as may be designated by the 
Company and agreed upon by the Agency; and 
 
  WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, 
Chapter 43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended ("SEQRA") and the 
regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the New York State Department of 
Environmental Conservation (the “SEQRA Regulations”), no agency involved in an 
action may undertake, fund or approve the action until the requirements of SEQRA have 
been complied with; and  
 
 WHEREAS, a coordinated SEQRA review of the Project was undertaken by the 
Town of Cortlandville Planning Board (the “Planning Board”) acting as lead agency; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on or about July 26, 2025, the Planning Board determined that the 
Project would not cause a significant adverse environmental impact (a “Negative 
Declaration”); and 
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 WHEREAS, Section 617.6(b)(3) of the SEQRA Regulations provides that if a 
lead agency exercises due diligence in identifying all other involved agencies and 
provides written notice of its determination of significance to the identified involved 
agencies, then no involved agency may later require the preparation of an EAF, a 
negative declaration or an EIS in connection with the action, and the determination of 
significance issued by the lead agency following coordinated review is binding on all 
other involved agencies; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Board duly identified the Agency as an involved agency 
and provided the Agency with written notice of its Negative Declaration.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF CORTLAND 
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  The Planning Board duly recognized the Agency as an involved 
agency while conducting a coordinated SEQRA review of the Project and provided 
written notice to the Agency that it had issued a Negative Declaration.   
   
 Section 2.   The Planning Board’s Negative Declaration stands in full force and 
effect and is binding upon the Agency. 
  

Section 3.   Based upon the foregoing, no determination of significance will be 
issued by the Agency and no further SEQRA review of the Project is required by the 
Agency.   
 
 Section 4.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 
 The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote 
on roll call, which resulted as follows: 
 

Michael McMahon   VOTING ______________ 
 Stephen Compagni   VOTING ______________ 
 Clinton Brooks   VOTING ______________ 
 Deborah Hayden   VOTING ______________ 
 Kathleen Burke   VOTING ______________ 
 William McGovern   VOTING ______________ 

Jason Hage    VOTING ______________ 
  
 The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared and duly adopted. 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
COUNTY OF CORTLAND )  ss.: 
 
 I, the undersigned Secretary of Cortland County Industrial Development Agency 
(the "Agency"), DO HEREBY CERTIFY, that I have compared the foregoing extract of 
the minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the Resolution 
contained therein, held on March 9, 2026 with the original thereof on file in my office, 
and that the same is a true and correct copy of such proceedings of the Agency and of 
such Resolution set forth therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same 
related to the subject matters therein referred to. 
 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 
meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respect duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the 
Public Officers Law (the "Open Meetings Law"), said meeting was open to the general 
public and due notice of the time and place of said meeting was given in accordance 
with such Open Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the 
Agency present through said meeting. 
 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in 
full force and effect and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of 
the Agency this 9th day of March, 2026. 
 
        __________________________ 
        Clinton Brooks, Secretary 



A regular meeting of Cortland County Industrial Development Agency (the 
"Agency") was convened in public session at the offices of the Agency located at 40 Main 
Street, Suite A, in the City of Cortland, Cortland County, New York on March 9, 2026 at 
12:00 o'clock p.m., local time. 
 
 The meeting was called to order by the Chair and, upon roll being called, the 
following members of the Agency were: 
 
 PRESENT: 
 

Michael McMahon   Chairman 
Stephen Compagni   Vice Chairman 
Clinton Brooks   Secretary 
Deborah Hayden   Treasurer 
Kathleen Burke   Member 
William McGovern   Member 
Jason Hage    Member  

 
 ABSENT: 
 
 
FOLLOWING PERSONS WERE ALSO PRESENT: 
 

Melanie Vilardi   Executive Director  
Andrea Skeels   Director of Finance and Project Development 
Ashley Riehlman   Community Relations Specialist 
John P. Sidd, Esq.   Agency Counsel 

 
 
 The following resolution was offered by _________________, seconded by 
_____________, to wit: 
 

Resolution No. ______________ 
 

RESOLUTION TAKING PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL ACTION 
TOWARD THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, 
INSTALLATION AND LEASING OF A CERTAIN 
COMMERCIAL PROJECT FOR CROWN CITY SOLAR 1, 
LLC 

 
WHEREAS, Cortland County Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency") is 

authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New 
York, constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the 
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "Enabling Act") and Chapter 77 of the 
1974 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 902 of said General Municipal 
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Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the 
"Act") to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, 
reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of commercial facilities, 
among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing economically 
sound commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity 
and economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their prosperity 
and standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and 

 
WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and 

empowered under the Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more 
"projects" (as defined in the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed, 
reconstructed and installed, and to convey said projects or to lease said projects with the 
obligation to purchase; and 

 
WHEREAS, Crown City Solar 1, LLC (the "Company") has presented an 

application (the "Application") to the Agency, a copy of which was presented at this 
meeting and copies of which are on file at the office of the Agency, requesting that the 
Agency consider undertaking a project (the "Project") consisting of the following: (A) (1) 
the acquisition of an interest in a ± 15 acre portion of certain parcels of land, including a 
pond, consisting of ± 56.48 acres (the "Land") located at 3911 US Route 11, in the Town 
of Cortlandville, Cortland County, New York (2) construction of a 4.9 MW AC floating solar 
photovoltaic facility and related infrastructure on the Land (the "Facility") and (3) the 
acquisition and installation therein and thereon of fixtures and equipment comprising the 
Facility (the "Equipment"), all of the foregoing to constitute a solar photovoltaic facility to 
be operated by the Company (the Land, Facility and Equipment being collectively referred 
to as the "Project Facility"); (B) the granting of certain "financial assistance" (within the 
meaning of Section 854(14) of the Act) with respect to the foregoing, including potential 
exemptions from certain sales taxes, real estate transfer taxes, mortgage recording taxes 
and real property taxes (collectively, the "Financial Assistance"); and (C) the lease (with 
an obligation to purchase) or sale of the Project Facility to the Company or such other 
person as may be designated by the Company and agreed upon by the Agency; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency has given due consideration to the Application and to 

representations by the Company that (A) the granting by the Agency of the Financial 
Assistance with respect to the Project will be an inducement to the Company to undertake 
the Project in Cortland County, New York, and (B) the completion of the Project Facility 
will not result in the removal of an industrial or manufacturing plant of the Company or 
any other proposed occupant of the Project Facility from one area of the State of New 
York to another area of the State of New York or in the abandonment of a plant or facility 
of the Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project Facility located in the State 
of New York; and 
   

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to encourage the Company to preserve and 
advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the 
people of Cortland County, New York by undertaking the Project in Cortland County, New 
York; and 
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WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter 

43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "SEQR Act"), and the 
regulations (the "Regulations") adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of 
Environmental Conservation of the State of New York (collectively with the SEQR Act, 
"SEQRA"), by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on March 9, 2026 (the 
"SEQR Resolution"), the Agency has determined that it was an involved agency in a 
coordinated SEQRA review of the Project undertaken by the Town of Cortlandville 
Planning Board (the “Planning Board”) acting as lead agency and that the negative 
declaration issued by the Planning Board following the coordinated review is binding on 
the Agency; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, any approval of the Project contained herein is 

contingent upon a determination by the members of the Agency to proceed with the 
Project following satisfaction of the public hearing and notice requirements and other 
procedural requirements contained in Section 859-a of the Act that relate to the Project;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF CORTLAND 

COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The Agency has reviewed the Application and based upon the 

representations made by the Company to the Agency in the Application and at this 
meeting and, based thereon, the Agency hereby makes the following findings and 
determinations with respect to the Project: 

 
(A) The Project constitutes a "project" within the meaning of the Act; and 
 
(B) The completion of the Project Facility will not result in the removal of an 

industrial or manufacturing plant of the Company or any other proposed occupant of the 
Project Facility from one area of the State of New York to another area of the State of 
New York and the completion of the Project Facility will not result in the abandonment of 
a plant or facility of a proposed occupant of the Project Facility located in the State of New 
York. 

 
(C) The Project Facility will not constitute a project where facilities or property 

that are primarily used in making retail sales of goods or services to customers who 
personally visit such facilities constitute more than one-third of the total cost of the Project; 
and 

 
(D) The granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency with respect to the 

Project, through the granting of the various tax exemptions described in Section 2(D) of 
this Resolution, will promote the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and 
economic welfare of the inhabitants of Cortland County, New York and the State of New 
York and improve their standard of living, and thereby serve the public purposes of the 
Act. 
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Section 2. If, following full compliance with the Act, including the public hearing 
requirements set forth in Section 859-a of the Act, the Agency adopts a future resolution 
(the "Future Resolution") determining to proceed with the Project and to grant the 
Financial Assistance with respect thereto and the Company complies with all conditions 
set forth in the Future Resolution, then the Agency will (A) acquire an interest in the 
Project Facility from the Company pursuant to a deed, lease agreement or other 
documentation to be negotiated between the Agency and the Company (the "Acquisition 
Agreement"); (B) construct the Facility and acquire and install the Equipment in the 
Facility or elsewhere on the Land; (C) lease (with the obligation to purchase) or sell the 
Project Facility to the Company pursuant to a lease agreement or an installment sale 
agreement (hereinafter the "Project Agreement") between the Agency and the Company 
whereby the Company will be obligated, among other things, (1) to make payments to the 
Agency in amounts and at times so that such payments will be adequate to enable the 
Agency to timely pay all amounts due on the Acquisition Agreement and (2) to pay all 
costs incurred by the Agency with respect to the Project and/or the Project Facility, 
including all costs of operation and maintenance, all taxes and other governmental 
charges, any required payments in lieu of taxes and the reasonable fees and expenses 
incurred by the Agency with respect to or in connection with the Project and/or the Project 
Facility, and (D) provide the Financial Assistance with respect to the Project, in 
accordance with the Agency's uniform tax exemption policy, including (1) exemption from 
mortgage recording taxes with respect to any documents recorded by the Agency with 
respect to the Project in the Office of the County Clerk of Cortland County, New York or 
elsewhere, (2) exemption from sales taxes relating to the acquisition, construction and 
installation of the Project Facility, (3) exemption from deed transfer taxes and real estate 
transfer gains taxes on real estate transfers to and from the Agency with respect to the 
Project, and (4) exemption from real estate taxes (but not including special assessments 
and special ad valorem levies) relating to the Project Facility, subject to the obligation of 
the Company to make payments in lieu of taxes with respect to the Project Facility. 

 
Section 3. If the Agency adopts the Future Resolution, the undertaking and 

completing of the Project by the Agency, and the granting of the Financial Assistance with 
respect to the Project as contemplated by Section 2 of this Resolution, shall be subject 
to: (A) the determination by the members of the Agency to proceed with the Project 
following a determination by the members of the Agency that all requirements of SEQRA 
that relate to the Project have been fulfilled; (B) agreement by the Agency and the 
Company on mutually acceptable terms for the conveyance of the Land to the Agency; 
(C) agreement between the Company and the Agency as to payment by the Company of 
payments in lieu of taxes with respect to the Project Facility, together with the 
administrative fee of the Agency with respect to the Project; (D) a determination by the 
members of the Agency to proceed with the granting of the Financial Assistance with 
respect to the Project following a determination by the members of the Agency that the 
public hearing and notice requirements and other procedural requirements contained in 
Section 859-a of the Act have been complied with; (E) the Agency's uniform tax exemption 
policy or if any portion of the Financial Assistance to be granted by the Agency with 
respect to the Project is not consistent with the Agency's uniform tax exemption policy, 
the Agency must follow the procedures for deviation from such policy set forth in Section 
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874(b) of the Act prior to granting such portion of the Financial Assistance; and (F) the 
following additional condition(s): the Company entering Host Community Agreements 
with Cortland County and the Town of Cortlandville in form and substance approved by 
the Agency. 

 
Section 4. The officers, agents and employees of the Agency are hereby 

authorized, empowered and directed to proceed with the undertakings provided for herein 
on the part of the Agency and are further authorized to do all such acts and things and to 
execute all such documents as may be necessary or convenient to carry out and comply 
with the terms and provisions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 5. John P. Sidd, Esq., of the law firm of Hancock Estabrook LLP is hereby 

appointed Special Counsel to the Agency with respect to all matters in connection with 
the Project. Special Counsel for the Agency is hereby authorized, at the expense of the 
Company, to work with the Company, counsel to the Company and others to prepare for 
submission to the Agency, all documents necessary to effect the transactions 
contemplated by this Resolution. 

 
Section 6. Pursuant to Section 875(3) of the Act, the Agency shall recover, 

recapture, receive, or otherwise obtain from the Company that portion of the Financial 
Assistance which constitutes state sales and use tax exemptions taken or purported to 
be taken by the Company to which the Company is not entitled or which are in excess of 
the amount authorized by the Agency or which are for property or services not authorized 
by the Agency as part of the Project or were taken by the Company when the Company 
failed to comply with a material term or condition to use property or services in the manner 
required by the Agency. The Company shall cooperate with the Agency in its efforts to 
recover, recapture, receive, or otherwise obtain such state sales and use tax exemptions 
and shall promptly pay over any such amounts to the Agency. The failure to pay over such 
amounts to the Agency shall be grounds for the New York State Commissioner of Taxation 
and Finance to assess and determine state sales and use taxes due from the Company 
under Article 28 of the Tax Law of the State of New York, together with any relevant 
penalties and interest due on such amounts. 

 
Section 7. The Executive Director of the Agency, prior to the granting of any 

Financial Assistance with respect to the Project, after consultation with Special Counsel, 
is authorized (A) to establish a time, date and place for a public hearing of the Agency to 
hear all persons interested in the location and nature of the Project Facility and the 
proposed Financial Assistance being contemplated by the Agency with respect to the 
Project, said public hearing to be held in the city, town or village where the Project Facility 
will be located; (B) to cause notice of such public hearing to be given to the public by 
publishing a notice of such hearing in a newspaper of general circulation available to 
residents of the governmental units where the Project Facility is to be located, such notice 
to comply with the requirements of Section 859-a of the Act and to be published no fewer 
than ten (10) days prior to the date established for such public hearing; (C) to cause notice 
of said public hearing to be given to the chief executive officer of the county and each city, 
town, village and school district in which the Project Facility is or is to be located no fewer 
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than ten (10) days prior to the date established for said public hearing; (D) to conduct 
such public hearing; and (E) to cause a report of said public hearing fairly summarizing 
the views presented at said public hearing to be promptly prepared. 

 
Section 8. The Chairman, Vice Chairman and Executive Director of the Agency are 

each hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the 
Company and to do such further things or perform such acts as may be necessary or 
convenient to implement the provisions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 9. This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll 
call, which resulted as follows: 
 

Michael McMahon   VOTING ______________ 
 Stephen Compagni   VOTING ______________ 
 Clinton Brooks   VOTING ______________ 
 Deborah Hayden   VOTING ______________ 
 Kathleen Burke   VOTING ______________ 
 William McGovern   VOTING ______________ 

Jason Hage    VOTING ______________ 
  
 The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared and duly adopted. 
 
STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
COUNTY OF CORTLAND )  ss.: 
 
 I, the undersigned Secretary of Cortland County Industrial Development Agency 
(the "Agency"), DO HEREBY CERTIFY, that I have compared the foregoing extract of the 
minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the Resolution contained 
therein, held on March 9, 2026 with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the 
same is a true and correct copy of such proceedings of the Agency and of such Resolution 
set forth therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same related to the subject 
matters therein referred to. 
 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 
meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respect duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the 
Public Officers Law (the "Open Meetings Law"), said meeting was open to the general 
public and due notice of the time and place of said meeting was given in accordance with 
such Open Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency 
present through said meeting. 
 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in full 
force and effect and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded. 
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 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the 
Agency this 9th day of March, 2026. 
 
        __________________________ 
        Clinton Brooks, Secretary 
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CORTLAND COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

IMPORTANT NOTICE: The answers to the questions contained in this application are necessary to 
determine the applicant’s eligibility for financial assistance from the Cortland County Industrial 
Development Agency. The answers will also be used in the preparation of papers in  this transaction. 
Accordingly, an officer or other employee of the applicant who is thoroughly familiar with the business 
and affairs of the applicant and who is also thoroughly familiar with the proposed project should answer 
all questions accurately and completely. This application is subject to acceptance by the Agency.  

TO: CORTLAND COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
37 CHURCH STREET 
CORTLAND, NEW YORK 13045 

APPLICANT:__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

APPLICANT'S STREET ADDRESS:__________________________________________________________________ 

CITY:_________________________________ STATE:__________________PHONE NO.:______________________ 

E-MAIL ADDRESS:___________________________________________________________________________________

NAME OF PERSON(S) AUTHORIZED TO SPEAK FOR APPLICANT WITH RESPECT TO THIS 
APPLICATION:_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

IF APPLICANT IS REPRESENTED BY AN ATTORNEY, COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING: 

NAME OF FIRM:_____________________________________________________________________________  

NAME OF ATTORNEY:_________________________________________________________________________ 

ATTORNEY’S STREET ADDRESS:______________________________________________________________ 

CITY:_________________________________ STATE:__________________PHONE NO.:______________________ 

E-MAIL ADDRESS:___________________________________________________________________________________

 ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  
NOTE: PLEASE READ THE INSTRUCTIONS ON PAGE 2 BEFORE FILLING OUT THIS 
APPLICATION 
 ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  

INSTRUCTIONS 

Crown City Solar 1 LLC 
4201 Main Street STE 200-206

Houston TX (203) 482-7817

dg@thirdpillarsolar.com

Edward Horneffer
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1. The Agency will not approve any applications unless, in the judgment of the Agency, said application contains sufficient 
information upon which to base a decision whether to approve or tentatively approve an action. 

2. Fill in all blanks, using "none" or "not applicable" or "N/A" where the question is not appropriate to the project which is the 
subject of this application (the “Project”). 

3. If an estimate is given as the answer to a question, put "(est)" after the figure or answer, which is estimated. 

4. If more space is needed to answer any specific question, attach a separate sheet. 

5. When completed, return two (2) copies of this application to the Agency at the address indicated on the first page of this 
application. 

6. The Agency will not give final approval to this application until the Agency receives a completed environmental assessment 
form concerning the Project, which is the subject of this application. 

7. Please note that Article 6 of the Public Officers Law declares that all records in the possession of the Agency (with certain 
limited exceptions) are open to public inspection and copying.  If the applicant feels that there are elements of the Project 
which are in the nature of trade secrets or information, the nature of which is such that if disclosed to the public or otherwise 
widely disseminated would cause substantial injury to the applicant’s competitive position, the applicant may identify such 
elements in writing and request that such elements be kept confidential in accordance with Article 6 of Public Officers Law. 

8. The applicant will be required to pay to the Agency all actual costs incurred in connection with this application and the Project 
contemplated herein (to the extent such expenses are not paid out of the proceeds of the Agency’s bonds issued to finance the 
project).  The applicant will also be expected to pay all costs incurred by general counsel and bond counsel to the Agency.  The 
costs incurred by the Agency, including the Agency’s general counsel and bond counsel, may be considered as a part of the 
project and included as a part of the resultant bond issue. 

9. The Agency has established an application fee of Five Hundred Dollars ($500) to cover the anticipated costs of the Agency in 
processing this application. A check or money order made payable to the Agency must accompany each application.  THIS 
APPLICATION WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED BY THE AGENCY UNLESS ACCOMPANIED BY THE APPLICATION FEE. 

10. The Agency has established a project fee for each project in which the Agency participates.  UNLESS THE AGENCY AGREES IN 
WRITING TO THE CONTRARY, THIS PROJECT FEE IS REQUIRED TO BE PAID BY THE APPLICANT AT OR PRIOR TO THE 
GRANTING OF ANY FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE BY THE AGENCY. 

FOR AGENCY USE ONLY 

1. Project Name or Number _________________________________________________ 

2. Date Application Received by Agency ________________________________________, 20____ 

3. Date Application Referred to Attorney for Review ________________________________________, 20____ 

4. Date Copy of Application Mailed to Members ________________________________________, 20____ 

5. Date Notice of Agency Meeting on Application Posted ________________________________________, 20____ 

6. Date Notice of Agency Meeting on Application Mailed ________________________________________, 20____ 

7. Date of Agency Meeting on Application ________________________________________, 20____ 

8. Date Agency Conditionally Approved Application ________________________________________, 20____ 

9. Date Scheduled for Public Hearing ________________________________________, 20____ 

10. Date Environmental Assessment Form ("EAF") Received ________________________________________, 20____ 

11. Date Agency Completed Environmental Review ________________________________________, 20____ 

12. Date of Final Approval of Application ________________________________________, 20____ 

I. APPLICANT INFORMATION-COMPANY TO RECEIVE BENEFITS (the “COMPANY”) 



Page ~3~ 

A. Identity of Company: 
 1. Company Name: _____________________________________________________________ 
  Present Address: ____________________________________________________________ 
  Zip Code: ___________________ Employer ID No.: __________________________ 
 
 2. Indicate type of business organization of Company: 
 
 a.  Corporation.  Incorporated in what country?___________________; 
   State:__________________;  Date Incorporated: _____________________; 
   Authorized to do business in New York State?  Yes _______  No_______ 
  i. Is the Corporation Publicly Held?  Yes____  No____.  If yes, please list 

exchanges where stock is traded:______________________________________ 
   ____________________________________________________________________________ 
  ii. If no, list all Stockholders having a 5% or more interest in the 

Company: 
 

Name Address Percentage of Holding 
   
   
   
   
   

 
 b.  Partnership.  General or Limited partnership?_____________________ 
                                               Name all partners below: 

 
Name Address General 

Partner 
Limited 
Partner 

    
    
    
    
    

 

Crown City Solar 1 LLC

4201 Main St STE 200-206, Houston TX
77002 994817383
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c.  Limited Liability Company.  Formed in what country _______________; 
State:______________;  Date of Formation:________________________________; 
Authorized to do business in New York State?  Yes_______  No_______; 
Name all members below: 

Name Address Membership Percentage 

d.  Sole proprietorship.  Name of Sole Proprietor:________________________ 

3. Is the Company a subsidiary or direct or indirect affiliate of any other
organization(s)? If so, indicate name of related organization(s) and
relationship:_________________________________________________________________

B. Management of Company:
List all officers/directors/managers (complete all columns for each person):

Name and Home Address Office Held 

C. Company/Management History:
1. Is the Company or management of the Company now a plaintiff or a

defendant in any civil or criminal litigation?  Yes______  No______.
2. Has any person listed above ever been convicted of a criminal offense

(other than a minor traffic violation)?  Yes______  No______.
3. Has any person listed above or any concern with whom such person

has been connected ever been in receivership or been adjudicated a
bankrupt?  Yes______  No______.

If the answer to any of questions 1 through 3 is yes, please furnish details in a separate 
attachment. 

USA

Delaware 08/16/2024

 X

TPSR Operating LLC 4201 Main Street Ste 200-206 Houston, TX 77002 100%

see below

Jaimeet Gulati President

James Bookout Vice President

Edward Horneffer Vice President

Darian Ghorbi Secretary

X

 X

 X
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II. PROPOSED PROJECT DATA 
 A. Description of the Project: 
 1. Please provide a narrative of the Project and the purpose of the 

Project (acquisition, construction, renovations and/or equipment 
purchases).  Identify specific uses occurring with the Project.  Describe 
any and all tenants and any/all end users (attach additional pages): 

  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 2. Describe the reasons why the Agency's Financial Assistance is 

necessary and the effect the Project will have on the Company's 
business or operations and any corresponding benefit to the Cortland 
County community (attach additional pages): 

  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 3. Is there a likelihood that the Project would not be undertaken but for 

the Financial Assistance provided by the Agency: 
 
    Yes     No 
 
 4. If the Project could be undertaken without the Financial Assistance 

provided by the Agency, then provide a statement indicating why the 
Project should be undertaken by the Agency (attach additional pages): 

  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 B. Location of Project: 
 
  1. Street Address: _______________________________________________________________ 
  2. City: ________________________________________________________________________  
  3. Town: ______________________________________________________________________  
  4. Village: _____________________________________________________________________  

5. Is any portion of the Project located outside of Cortland County?  If 
so, identify the other county: _____________________________________________  

  6. School District: ____________________________________________________________ 
  7. Tax Parcel Nos.: ___________________________________________________________  
  

The Project is a 4.9MWac floating photovoltaic system that will generate electricity for the town of Cortlandville.

The property is an existing mine pit at Suit-Kote Corporation's Polkville Crushed Stone facility.

Floating solar has higher up front cost than standard ground mount sysytems, and project economics are challenging 

due to relatively low irradiance that reduces energy output and revenue.  The project will benefit the cortland county community 

by adding local, clean generation. 

N/A

3911 US Route 11

Cortland

Town of Cortlandville

N/A

No

Mcgraw School District

87.00-03-16.110, 87.00-03-16.121, 97.00-01-04.100
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Description of the Project site:

Approximate size (in acres or square feet) of the Project site:___________
Attach a map, survey or sketch of the Project site.

Are there existing buildings on the Project Site?
Yes_______ No_______. If yes,

Indicate each existing building and indicate the approximate
size (in square feet) of each building:
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________

Are the existing buildings in operation? Yes_______ No_______. If
yes, describe the present use of each building in operation:
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________

Are the existing buildings abandoned? Yes_______ No_______;
About to be abandoned? Yes_______ No_______. If yes, describe:
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________

Attach photographs of existing buildings.

Utilities Serving the Project Site:

Water: Municipal ___ , Other ___.  If other, describe ________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
Sewer: Municipal___ , Other ___.  If other, describe _________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
Electric Utility Co.:____________________________________________________ 

Natural Gas Utility Co.: _______________________________________________ 

Other Utility Sources: _________________________________________________ 

4. Present Legal Owner of the Project Site:
a. If the Company owns the Project site, indicate:

Date of Purchase:______________________________________________

4.

665000 sq ft

X

 x

x
x

National Grid
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Purchase Price:________________________________________________ 

b. If the Company does not own the Project site, does the Company
have the contractual right to purchase the Project site?
Yes_______  No_______.  If yes, indicate:
Date Contract Signed:___________________________________________
Date Ability to Purchase Expires:______________________________

c. If the Company does not own the Project site, is there a
relationship legally or by common control between the
Company and present owner of the Project site?
Yes_________  No_________.  If yes, describe:
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________

5. Zoning District in which the Project is located:_________________________

6. Are there any variances or special permits affecting the Project site
now or which need to be obtained to complete the Project?
Yes_______  No_______.  If yes, list below and attach copies of all
variances or special permits:
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________

D. Description of the Proposed Construction:
1. Does part of the Project consist of the acquisition or construction of a

new building or buildings?  Yes _____  No _____.  If yes, indicate number of
and size of new buildings:
_______________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________

2. Does part of the Project consist of additions and/or renovations to
existing buildings located on the Project site?  Yes_______ No ______. If
yes, indicate:
a. The number of buildings to be expanded or renovated:_________
b. The size of any expansions:________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________
c. The nature of expansion and/or renovation:

_______________________________________________________________________

6.

 X

 X

Lease Agreement

Industrial and Agricultural

X

Site Plan Approval (Conditional Permit), SEQR Negative Declaration and Aquifer Protection District Permit

x

x
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   _______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 3. Describe the principal uses to be made by the Company of the building 

or buildings to be acquired, constructed or expanded: 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 E. Description of the Equipment: 
 1. Does part of the Project consist of the acquisition or installation of 

machinery, equipment or other personal property (the “Equipment”)? 
  Yes_______  No _______.  If yes, describe the Equipment: 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 2. With respect to the Equipment to be acquired, will any of the 

Equipment be previously used Equipment? 
  Yes_______  No_______. If yes, please provide detail below: 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 3. Describe the principal uses to be made by the Company of the 

Equipment to be acquired or installed: 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 F. Project Use: 
 
  1. What are the principal products to be produced at the Project site? 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 2. What are the principal activities to be conducted at the Project? 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 X 
12,292 Modules, 1 DC/AC converter/1 Transformer

 X

The project will generate renewable energy by converting
sunlight into electricity to be delivered onto the local distribution
system and available for purchase by local residents and businesses.

A 4.9MWac community solar project.  The project is being developed 
in accordance with the NYSERDA NYSUN guidelines for the 
Community Distributed Generation Program. 

The conversion of sunlight into electricity. 



Page ~9~ 

 
 3. Does the Project include facilities or property that are primarily used in 

making retail sales of goods or services to customers who personally 
visit such facilities? 

  Yes______  No______.  If yes please provide detail: 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 4. If the answer to question 3 is yes, what percentage of the cost of the 

Project will be expended on such facilities or property primarily used 
in making retail sales of goods or services to customers who 
personally visit the Project?  ________% 

 
 5. If the answer to question 3 is yes, and the answer to question 4 is 

more than 33.33%, indicate whether any of the following apply to the 
Project: 

 
 a. Will the Project be operated by a not-for-profit corporation? 

Yes_______  No_______. If yes, please explain: 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 b. Is the Project likely to attract a significant number of visitors 

from outside the economic development region (as established 
by Section 230 of the Economic Development Law) in which 
the Project will be located? 

  Yes ______  No ______.  If yes, please explain: 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 c. Would the Project occupant, but for the contemplated Financial 

Assistance from the Agency, locate the related jobs outside of 
New York State? 

  Yes _______  No _______. If yes, please explain: 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 d. Is the predominant purpose of the Project to make available 

goods or services which would not, but for the Project, be 

  x

N/A

 X

N/A

 X
N/A

 X
N/A
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reasonably accessible to the residents of the city, town or 
village within which the Project will be located because of a 
lack of reasonably accessible retail trade facilities offering such 
goods or services? 

  Yes______  No_______.  If yes, please provide detail: 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 e. Will the Project be located in one of the following: (i) an area 

which was designed as an empire zone pursuant to Article 18-B 
of the General Municipal Law; or (ii) a census tract or block 
numbering area (or census tract or block numbering area 
contiguous thereto) which, according to the most recent census 
data, has (a) a poverty rate of at least 20% for the year in which 
the data relates, or at least 20% of households receiving public 
assistance, and (b) an unemployment rate of at least 1.25 times 
the statewide unemployment rate for the year to which the data 
relates? 

  Yes______; No_______. If yes, please explain: 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 6. If the answers to any of subdivisions c. through e. of question 5 are 

yes, will the Project preserve permanent, private sector jobs or 
increase the overall number of permanent, private sector jobs in the 
State of New York? 

  Yes ______  No______. If yes, please explain: 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 7. Will the completion of the Project result in the removal of an industrial 

or manufacturing plant of the Company or another proposed occupant 
of the Project (a “Project Occupant”) from one area of the State of New 
York to another area of the State of New York? 

  Yes_______  No _______. If yes, please explain: 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 8. Will the completion of the Project result in the abandonment of one or 

more plants or facilities of the Company or a Project Occupant located in 

X
N/A

 X
 N/A

 X
N/A

 X
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the State of York? 
  Yes_______  No______. If yes, provide detail: 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 9. If the answer to either question 7 or question 8 is yes, indicate whether 

any of the following apply to the Project: 
 
 a. Is the Project reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive 

position of the Company or such Project Occupant in its 
industry? 

  Yes_______; No______.  If yes, please provide detail: 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 b. Is the Project reasonably necessary to discourage the Company 

or such Project Occupant from removing such other plant or 
facility to a location outside the State of New York? 

  Yes_______  No_______.  If yes, please provide detail: 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 G. Project Status: 
 
 1. If the Project includes the acquisition of any land or buildings, have 

any steps been taken toward acquiring same? 
  Yes_____  No_____.  If yes, please discuss in detail the approximate stage 

of such acquisition: 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 2. If the Project includes the acquisition of any Equipment, have any steps 

been taken toward acquiring same? 
  Yes_______  No______.  If yes, please discuss in detail the approximate 

stage of such acquisition: 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 X

N/A

N/A

 X

N/A

 X

Deposits being completed by mid February
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 3. If the Project involves the construction or reconstruction of any 

building or other improvement, has construction work on any such 
building or improvement begun?  Yes ______  No_______.  If yes, please 
discuss in detail the approximate extent of construction and the extent 
of completion.  Indicate in your answer whether such specific steps 
have been completed as site clearance and preparation; completion of 
foundations; installation of footings; etc.: 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 4. Please indicate the amount of funds expended on the Project by the 

Applicant in the past three (3) years and the purpose of such 
expenditures: 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
III. INFORMATION CONCERNING LEASES OR SUBLEASES OF THE PROJECT 
 (PLEASE COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING SECTION IF THE APPLICANT INTENDS 

TO LEASE OR SUBLEASE ANY PORTION OF THE PROJECT) 
 A. Does the Company intend to lease or sublease more than 10% (by area or fair 

market value) of the Project?  Yes_______  No _______.  If yes, please complete 
the following for each existing or proposed tenant or subtenant: 

 
  Sublessee Name:_____________________________________________________________ 

Present Address: ________________________________________________________  
City: _________________________ State: __________________ Zip: _______________  
Employer’s ID No.: __________________________________________________________  
Sublessee is: ______Corporation; ______Partnership; ______; Limited 
Liability Company; ______Sole Proprietor 
Relationship to Company: _______________________________________________  
Percentage of Project to be leased or subleased: ________________________  
Use of Project intended by Sublessee: __________________________________  
Date of lease or sublease to Sublessee: ___________________________________  
Term of lease or sublease to Sublessee: ________________________________  
Will any portion of the space leased by this sublessee be primarily used 
in making retail sales of goods or services to customers who personally 
visit the Project?  Yes_______  No______. 
If yes, please provide on a separate attachment 

 x

N/A

 X
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 a. details; and 
 b. the answers to questions II (F) (4) through (6) with 

respect to such sublessee. 
 

B.         What percentage of the space intended to be leased or subleased is now 
subject to a binding written lease or sublease? _______________% 

 
IV. EMPLOYMENT IMPACT 

 A. Indicate below the number of people presently employed at the Project Site 
and the number that will be employed at the Project site at the end of the first 
and second years after the Project has been completed (Do not include 
construction workers).  Also indicate below the number of workers employed 
at the Project site representing newly created positions as opposed to 
positions relocated from other project sites of the Applicant. 

 
 Current # of 

Jobs at 
proposed 
Project location 
or to be 
relocated to 
Project location 

If Financial 
Assistance is 
granted, 
estimate the 
number of 
FTE and PTE 
jobs to be 
Retained 

If Financial 
Assistance is 
granted, 
estimate the 
number of FTE 
and PTE jobs to 
be Created by 
Two years after 
Project 
completion 

Estimate number 
of residents of 
the Labor 
Market Area in 
which the 
Project is located 
that will fill the 
retained and 
created FTE and 
PTE jobs Two 
years after 
Project 
completion** 

Present Full Time     
Present Part Time     
First Year Full Time     
First Year Part Time     
Second Year Full Time     
Second Year Part Time     
Total:     

**For purposes of the question, please estimate in the fourth column the number of FTE and PTE 
jobs, as indicated in the second and third columns, that will be filled by residents of the Labor 
Market Area.  The Labor Market Area includes Cortland County as well as the counties of Cayuga, 
Onondaga, Tompkins, Broome and Chenango. 

0 0 0
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Category of Jobs to be 
Retained and Created 

Estimated Average Salary 
or Range of Salary 

Estimated Average Fringe 
Benefits or Range of Fringe 
Benefits 

Management   
Professional   
Administrative   
Production   
Independent Contractors   
Other   
 
 B. Please state the anticipated date of completion of the Project site and the 

anticipated date of occupancy of the Project site: 
  Project Site Completion Date: ______________________________________________________ 
  Project Site Occupancy Date:________________________________________________________ 
 
V. PROJECT COST 
 
 A. State the costs reasonably necessary for the acquisition of the Project site, the 

construction of the proposed buildings and the acquisition and installation of 
any machinery and equipment necessary or convenient in connection 
therewith, and including any utilities, access roads or appurtenant facilities, 
using the following categories: 

 
Description of Cost: Amount: 
 
Land Acquisition $_______________________ 
Building Construction $_______________________ 
Building Renovation $_______________________ 
Machinery and equipment costs $_______________________ 
Utilities, roads and appurtenant costs $_______________________ 
Architects and engineering fees $_______________________ 
Costs of Bond issue (legal, financial and printing) $_______________________ 
Construction loan fees and interest (if applicable) $_______________________ 
Other (specify) 
__________________________________ $_______________________ 
__________________________________ $_______________________ 
__________________________________ $_______________________ 
__________________________________ $_______________________ 
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS: $_______________________ 
 

 B. Have any of the above expenditures already been made by the Applicant? 
  Yes_______  No________. If yes, indicate particulars: 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 

12/31/2026

12/31/2026

8,874,000
121,000
87,333

9,082,333

X

permitting, design, and engineering spend (Architects and Engineering fees)
TPS has invested significant amounts in lease option expenses (Land Acquisition),
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VI. FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE EXPECTED FROM THE AGENCY 
 
 A. Tax Benefits: 
 1. Is the Applicant requesting a real property tax exemption in 

connection with the Project from the Agency?  Yes_______  No_______. 
 
 2. Is the Applicant expecting to be appointed agent of the Agency for 

purposes of receiving an exemption from N.Y.S. Sales Tax or 
Compensating Use Tax?  Yes_______  No_______.   

 
 3. Is the Applicant requesting a mortgage recording tax exemption in 

connection with the Project from the Agency?  Yes_______  No_______. 
 
 4. What is the estimated value of each type of tax exemption being 

sought in connection with the Project?  Please detail the type of tax 
exemption and value of each exemption: 
a. N.Y.S. Sales and Compensating Use Taxes: $_________________ 
b. Mortgage Recording Taxes: $_________________ 
c. Real Property Taxes: $_________________ 
 (Please consult with the Agency in 
 calculating the estimated value of the 
 real property tax exemption) 
d. Other (please specify): 
 ___________________________________ $_________________ 
 ___________________________________ $_________________ 
 ___________________________________ $_________________ 
 

 5. Are any of the tax-exemptions being sought in connection with the 
Project inconsistent with the Agency’s Uniform Tax-exemption Policy? 

  Yes _______  No_______.  If yes, please explain how the request of the 
Applicant differs from the Agency’s Uniform Tax-Exemption Policy: 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 B. Financing: 
 
 1. Is the Applicant requesting that the Agency issue bonds to assist in 

financing the Project?  Yes________  No________.  If yes, indicate: 
 a. Principal Amount of Bonds Requested $_________________ 
 b. Maturity Requested _________________ Years 
 c. Is the Interest on such bonds intended to be exempt from 

federal income taxation?  Yes________ No_________. 

X

X

X

0

496,849

 X

The developer and long term owner & operator of the project is requesting a

15-year PILOT payment based on $250/MW, escalating at 2% per year.

This term is longer than the uniform Tax Exemption Policy allows.

There will also be HCA agreements of $2,100/MW, 2% annual escalation with the Town of

Cortlandville and $1,800/MW, 2% annual escalation to Cortland County for 15 years.

X
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 2. What is the approximate amount of private sector financing to be 

obtained?  $_________________________.  Is the Applicant expecting that 
the private sector financing of the Project will be secured by one or 
more mortgages?  Yes______  No_______. 

  If yes, what is the approximate amount of private sector financing to 
be secured?  $_________________________. 

 
 3. Is the Applicant expecting that any of the financing of the Project 

will come from public sector sources?  Yes______  No_______. 
  What is the approximate amount of public sector financing to be 

obtained?  $_________________________. 
  If yes, is the Company expecting that the public sector financing of 

the Project will be secured by one or more mortgages or grant 
agreements?  Yes______  No_______. 

  If yes, what is the approximate amount of public sector financing to 
be secured?  $_________________________. 

   
 4. Please state the approximate amount to be invested in the Project 

(not borrowed or the subject of a grant) by the Applicant 
$_________________________. 

 
 5. Please state the approximate total amount of borrowed funds to be 

invested in the Project $__________________. 
 
VII. REPRESENTATIONS BY THE APPLICANT 
 The Applicant understands and agrees with the Agency as follows: 
 
 A. Job Listings:  In accordance with Section 858-b (2) of the New York General 

Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project 
receives any Financial Assistance from the Agency, except as otherwise 
provided by collective bargaining agreements, new employment 
opportunities created as a result of the Project will be listed with the New York 
State Department of Labor Community Services Division (the "DOL") and with 
the administrative entity (collectively with the DOL, the "JTPA Entities") of the 
service delivery area created by the Federal Job Training Partnership Act 
(Public Law 97-300) ("JTPA") in which the Project is located. 

 
 B. First Consideration for Employment:  In accordance with Section 858-b (2) 

of the New York General Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees 
that, if the Project receives any Financial Assistance from the Agency, except 
as otherwise provided by collective bargaining agreements, where 
practicable, the Applicant will first consider persons eligible to participate in 
JTPA programs who shall be referred by the JTPA Entities for new employment 
opportunities created as a result of the Project. 

 

 9,080,000

X

X

0

X

0

0

9,080,000
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 C. Local Workforce Development: The Applicant understands and agrees that 
if the Project receives Financial Assistance from the Agency, except as 
provided by collective bargaining where practicable, the Applicant will 
increase the skill base of the local workforce through training, opportunities 
for professional development and career track advancement. 

 
 D. Annual Sales Tax Filings:  In accordance with Section 874(8) of the New York 

General Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the 
Project receives any sales tax exemptions as part of the Financial Assistance 
from the Agency, in accordance with Section 874(8) of the General Municipal 
Law, the Applicant agrees to file, or cause to be filed, with the New York State 
Department of Taxation and Finance, the annual form prescribed by the 
Department of Taxation and Finance, describing the value of all sales tax 
exemptions claimed by the Applicant and all consultants or subcontractors 
retained by the Applicant. 

 
 E. Annual Employment Reports:  The Applicant understands and agrees that, 

if the Project receives any Financial Assistance from the Agency, the Applicant 
will file, or cause to be filed, with the Agency, on an annual basis, reports 
regarding the number of people employed at the Project site. 

 
 F. Absence of Conflicts of Interest:  The Applicant has received from the Agency 

a list of the members, officers and employees of the Agency.  No member, 
officer or employee of the Agency has an interest, whether direct or indirect, 
in any transaction contemplated by this Application, except as hereinafter 
described: 

  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 G. Federal, State and Local Laws:  The Applicant/Owner/Occupant/Operator 

receiving the Financial Assistance understands and agrees that it must be, at 
all times, in compliance with applicable local, state and federal tax, worker 
protection and environmental laws, rules and regulations. 

 
 H. Environmental Matters: The Applicant acknowledges that certain 

environmental representations will be required at closing.  The Applicant shall 
provide copies of any known environmental reports, including any existing 
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Report(s) and/or Phase II 
Environmental Investigations.  The Agency may require the Company and/or 
Owner of the Premises to prepare and submit an environmental assessment 
and audit report including, but not limited to, a Phase I Environmental Site 
Assessment Report and a Phase II Environmental Investigation, with respect 
to the Premises at the sole cost and expense of the Owner and/or the Applicant.  
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All environmental assessment and audit reports shall be completed in 
accordance with ASTM Standard Practice E1527-13, and shall be conformed 
over to the Agency so that the Agency is authorized to use and rely on the 
reports.  The Agency, however, does not adopt, ratify, confirm or assume any 
representation made with reports required herein. 

I. Release: The Applicant and/or Owner, and their successors and assigns,
hereby release, defend and indemnify the Agency from any and all suits, causes
of action, litigations, damages, losses, liabilities, obligations, penalties, claims,
demands, judgments, costs, disbursements, fees or expenses of any kind or
nature whatsoever (including, without limitation, attorneys', consultants' and
experts' fees) which may at any time be imposed upon, incurred by or asserted
or awarded against the Agency resulting from or arising out of any inquiries
and/or environmental assessments, investigations and audits performed on
behalf of the Applicant and/or Owner pursuant hereto, including the scope,
level of detail, contents or accuracy of any environmental assessment, audit,
inspection or investigation report completed hereunder and/or the selection
of the environmental consultant, engineer or other qualified person to perform
such assessments, investigations and audits.

J. Hold Harmless Provision:  The Applicant acknowledges and agrees that the
Applicant shall be and is responsible for all costs of the Agency incurred in
connection with any actions required to be taken by the Agency in furtherance
of the Application including the Agency's costs of general counsel and/or the
Agency's bond/transaction counsel whether or not the Application, the
proposed Project it describes, the attendant negotiations, or the issue of bonds
or other transaction or agreement are ultimately ever carried to successful
conclusion and agrees that the Agency shall not be liable for and agrees to
indemnify, defend and hold the Agency harmless from and against any and all
liability arising from or expense incurred by: (i) the Agency's examination and
processing of, and action pursuant to or upon, the Application, regardless of
whether or not the Application or the proposed Project described herein or the
tax exemptions and other assistance requested herein are favorably acted
upon by the Agency; (ii) the Agency's acquisition, construction and/or
installation of the proposed Project described herein; and (iii) any further
action taken by the Agency with respect to the proposed Project including,
without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all causes of action and
attorneys' fees and any other expenses incurred in defending any suit or
actions which may arise as a result of any of the foregoing.  Applicant hereby
understands and agrees, in accordance with Section 875(3) of the New York
General Municipal Law and the policies of the Agency that any New York State
and local sales and use tax exemption claimed by the Applicant and approved
by the Agency, any mortgage recording tax exemption claimed by the Applicant
and approved by the Agency, and/or any real property tax abatement claimed
by the Applicant and approved by the Agency in connection with the Project,
may be subject to recapture and/or termination by the Agency under such
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terms and conditions as will be established by the Agency and set forth in 
transaction documents to be entered into by and between the Agency and the 
Applicant.  The Applicant further represents and warrants that the information 
contained in this Application including, without limitation, information 
regarding the amount of the New York State and local sales and use tax 
exemption benefit, the amount of the mortgage recording tax exemption 
benefit, and the amount of the real property tax abatement, if and as applicable, 
to the best of the Applicant's knowledge, is true, accurate and complete. 

K. False or Misleading Information.  The submission of any knowingly false or
misleading information by the applicant may lead to the immediate
termination of any Financial Assistance and the reimbursement of an amount
equal to all or part of any tax exemptions claimed by reason of Agency
involvement in the Project.

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
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Cortland County IDA 
Solar Development Project Rationale 

Crown City Solar 2 LLC 
March 9, 2026 

 
Crown City Solar 2 LLC proposes $9.8 million, five (5) Megawatt solar floating photovoltaic system 

Overview & Capacity 

• Name: Crown City Solar 2 LLC  

• Owner/Developer: 100% owned by TPSR Operating, LLC 

• Type: Floating photovoltaic solar  

• Capacity: 5 megawatts (MW). 

Location & Size 

• Situated at 3779 US Route 11 in the Town of Cortlandville in Cortland County, New York 

• The solar arrays are spread over approximately 665,000 sq ft (15.3 acres) of water. The 665,000 
sq ft is within 2 tax parcels with a total of 58.7 acres that will be leased by the developer. 

Project Timeline 

• Development & Permitting: Began in June 2025 with environmental studies and a land 
agreement. 

• Construction & Operation: Construction is expected to start in 2026 with commercial operation 
targeted for early 2027 

Crown City Solar 2 LLC is seeking a 15-year PILOT from the CCIDA to incentivize the project, which will provide: 

• New PILOT revenues of $250/MW per year with a 2% escalator to affected taxing entities 
totaling $21,617 over the next 15 years (pro rata to the town, county, and school district) 

• The project’s host communities (“HCA”) will be paid over the 15 years as follows: 
• $181,581 to the town of Cortlandville ($2,100/MW per year with 2% escalator) 
• $155,641 to Cortland County ($1,800/MW per year with 2% escalator) 

• Maintain current tax obligations on the underlying property and generate an additional $87,637 over the 
term of the PILOT as the assessment basis moves from agricultural/mining to industrial 

• Fire district taxes over 15 years will total $18,546 
• Employ a base of local construction workers to assemble the site- with payroll estimated at approximately 

$4 million 
• Reduce New York State's reliance on fossil fuels following the Climate Leadership and Community 

Protection Act (CLCPA) 
 

The town of Cortlandville conducted the environmental review, was involved in the host community agreement 
negotiation, and is supportive of this project. Staff are recommending approval of CCIDA incentives for this 
project as further detailed in the project summary. 



Project Costs Value

Total construction project costs: $9,082,333 <- as defined by NYS Labor Law 224-a

Industry NAICS % of Total Investment Investment by 
Type

237130 100% $9,082,333
Must be 100%----> 100% $9,082,333 ERROR

Escalation Factor 2%
% Value PILOT Term (Years) 15

Sales Tax Exemption $0

Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption $0
Total Costs $496,849 Includes PILOT exemption, calculated below.

Year # Year
Property Tax WITHOUT 

Project
 PILOT $250/MW

Property Tax on Full 
Project Assessment

Difference in 
Current vs. PILOT

Difference PILOT vs 
Full Taxes

1 2026 $19,225 $1,250 $67,802 -$17,975 -$66,552
2 2027 $19,610 $1,275 $63,357 -$18,335 -$62,082
3 2028 $20,002 $1,301 $57,943 -$18,701 -$56,642
4 2029 $20,402 $1,327 $53,114 -$19,075 -$51,787
5 2030 $20,810 $1,353 $48,469 -$19,457 -$47,116
6 2031 $21,226 $1,380 $44,267 -$19,846 -$42,887
7 2032 $21,650 $1,408 $39,316 -$20,243 -$37,909
8 2033 $22,083 $1,436 $34,264 -$20,648 -$32,828
9 2034 $22,525 $1,465 $28,987 -$21,061 -$27,522

10 2035 $22,976 $1,494 $24,016 -$21,482 -$22,522
11 2036 $23,435 $1,524 $19,214 -$21,911 -$17,690
12 2037 $23,904 $1,554 $15,470 -$22,350 -$13,916
13 2038 $24,382 $1,585 $11,594 -$22,797 -$10,009
14 2039 $24,870 $1,617 $7,425 -$23,253 -$5,808
15 2040 $25,367 $1,649 $3,228 -$23,718 -$1,579

Total $332,466 $21,617 $518,466 -$310,849 -$496,849

Year # Year
HCA for Towns 

$2,100/MW
HCA for County 

$1,800/MW

1 2026 $10,500 $9,000  - 
2 2027 $10,710 $9,180  - 
3 2028 $10,924 $9,364  - 
4 2029 $11,143 $9,551  - 
5 2030 $11,366 $9,742  - 
6 2031 $11,593 $9,937  - 
7 2032 $11,825 $10,135  - 
8 2033 $12,061 $10,338  - 
9 2034 $12,302 $10,545  - 

10 2035 $12,548 $10,756  - 
11 2036 $12,799 $10,971  - 
12 2037 $13,055 $11,190  - 
13 2038 $13,317 $11,414  - 
14 2039 $13,583 $11,642  - 
15 2040 $13,855 $11,875  - 

Total $181,581 $155,641

Project Summary

Cortland County Industrial Development Agency
Crown City Solar 2, LLC

Route 11, Cortlandville NY
Monday, March 9, 2026

This proposal varies from the agency's Uniform Tax Policy (UTEP), which calls for an overall reduction of 65% of property taxes over a 10-year 
period. This request is for a 90% reduction over a 15-year period. This deviation is primarily due to Host Community Agreements with 
Cortlandville and Cortland County. Additionally, this proposal also departs from the UTEP in that payments will be made to the taxing 

jurisdictions in each year of the agreement; there are no "zero" years.

Estimated Costs of Incentives

Property Tax Exemption

Project Costs

Construction Economic Impacts

Power and Communication Line and Related Structures Construction

Fiscal Impact Assumptions

Additional Comments from the IDA
The underlying land taxes are not subject to this request  and will remain on the tax rolls. Prior to the sale/lease of this property for this project, the land 
tax was primarily assessed as mining. Therefore, the current underlying land will be reassessed at an industrial rate for those acres with arrays. Fire 
district tax is a special district tax and is not exempt under the PILOT.  Crown City 2, LLC will continue to pay a Fire District Tax on the underlying land as 
well as a new tax on the assessed value of the infrastructure (solar array).  The fire district tax revenue generated for the 15 year period is approximately 
$18,546.

Does the IDA believe that the project can be accomplished in a timely fashion?   Yes
Does this project provide onsite childcare facilities?  No



  

A regular meeting of Cortland County Industrial Development Agency (the 
"Agency") was convened in public session at the offices of the Agency located at 40 
Main Street, Suite A, in the City of Cortland, Cortland County, New York on March 9, 
2026 at 12:00 o'clock p.m., local time. 
 
 The meeting was called to order by the Chair and, upon roll being called, the 
following members of the Agency were: 
 
 PRESENT: 
 

Michael McMahon   Chairman 
Stephen Compagni   Vice Chairman 
Clinton Brooks   Secretary 
Deborah Hayden   Treasurer 
Kathleen Burke   Member 
William McGovern   Member 
Jason Hage    Member  

 
 ABSENT: 
 
 
FOLLOWING PERSONS WERE ALSO PRESENT: 
 

Melanie Vilardi   Executive Director  
Andrea Skeels   Director of Finance and Project Development 
Ashley Riehlman   Community Relations Specialist 
John P. Sidd, Esq.   Agency Counsel 

 
 
 The following resolution was offered by _________________, seconded by 
_____________, to wit: 
 

Resolution No. ______________ 
 

RESOLUTION DETERMINING THAT A PROJECT FOR 
CROWN CITY SOLAR 2, LLC TO CONSTRUCT A 4.9 
MEGAWATT COMMUNITY SOLAR PROJECT WILL 
REQUIRE NO DETERMINATION OF SIGNIFICANCE OR 
ADDITIONAL SEQRA REVIEW. 

 
 WHEREAS, Cortland County Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency") is 
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New 
York, constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the 
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "Enabling Act") and Chapter 77 of 
the 1974 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 902 of said General 
Municipal Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred 
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to as the "Act") to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, 
constructing, reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of 
commercial facilities, among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and 
developing economically sound commerce and industry to advance the job 
opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the 
State of New York, to improve their prosperity and standard of living, and to prevent 
unemployment and economic deterioration; and 
 
 WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and 
empowered under the Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more 
"projects" (as defined in the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed, 
reconstructed and installed, and to convey said projects or to lease said projects with 
the obligation to purchase; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Crown City Solar 2, LLC (the "Company") has presented an 
application (the "Application") to the Agency, a copy of which was presented at this 
meeting and copies of which are on file at the office of the Agency, requesting that the 
Agency consider undertaking a project (the "Project") consisting of the following: (A) (1) 
the acquisition of an interest in a ± 15 acre portion of certain parcels of land, including a 
pond, consisting of ± 58.72 acres (the "Land") located at 3911 US Route 11, in the 
Town of Cortlandville, Cortland County, New York (2) construction of a 4.9 MW AC 
floating solar photovoltaic facility and related infrastructure on the Land (the "Facility") 
and (3) the acquisition and installation therein and thereon of fixtures and equipment 
comprising the Facility (the "Equipment"), all of the foregoing to constitute a solar 
photovoltaic facility to be operated by the Company (the Land, Facility and Equipment 
being collectively referred to as the "Project Facility"); (B) the granting of certain 
"financial assistance" (within the meaning of Section 854(14) of the Act) with respect to 
the foregoing, including potential exemptions from certain sales taxes, real estate 
transfer taxes, mortgage recording taxes and real property taxes (collectively, the 
"Financial Assistance"); and (C) the lease (with an obligation to purchase) or sale of the 
Project Facility to the Company or such other person as may be designated by the 
Company and agreed upon by the Agency; and 
 
  WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, 
Chapter 43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended ("SEQRA") and the 
regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the New York State Department of 
Environmental Conservation (the “SEQRA Regulations”), no agency involved in an 
action may undertake, fund or approve the action until the requirements of SEQRA have 
been complied with; and  
 
 WHEREAS, a coordinated SEQRA review of the Project was undertaken by the 
Town of Cortlandville Planning Board (the “Planning Board”) acting as lead agency; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on or about July 26, 2025, the Planning Board determined that the 
Project would not cause a significant adverse environmental impact (a “Negative 
Declaration”); and 
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 WHEREAS, Section 617.6(b)(3) of the SEQRA Regulations provides that if a 
lead agency exercises due diligence in identifying all other involved agencies and 
provides written notice of its determination of significance to the identified involved 
agencies, then no involved agency may later require the preparation of an EAF, a 
negative declaration or an EIS in connection with the action, and the determination of 
significance issued by the lead agency following coordinated review is binding on all 
other involved agencies; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Board duly identified the Agency as an involved agency 
and provided the Agency with written notice of its Negative Declaration.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF CORTLAND 
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  The Planning Board duly recognized the Agency as an involved 
agency while conducting a coordinated SEQRA review of the Project and provided 
written notice to the Agency that it had issued a Negative Declaration.   
   
 Section 2.   The Planning Board’s Negative Declaration stands in full force and 
effect and is binding upon the Agency. 
  

Section 3.   Based upon the foregoing, no determination of significance will be 
issued by the Agency and no further SEQRA review of the Project is required by the 
Agency.   
 
 Section 4.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 
 The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote 
on roll call, which resulted as follows: 
 

Michael McMahon   VOTING ______________ 
 Stephen Compagni   VOTING ______________ 
 Clinton Brooks   VOTING ______________ 
 Deborah Hayden   VOTING ______________ 
 Kathleen Burke   VOTING ______________ 
 William McGovern   VOTING ______________ 

Jason Hage    VOTING ______________ 
  
 The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared and duly adopted. 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
COUNTY OF CORTLAND )  ss.: 
 
 I, the undersigned Secretary of Cortland County Industrial Development Agency 
(the "Agency"), DO HEREBY CERTIFY, that I have compared the foregoing extract of 
the minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the Resolution 
contained therein, held on March 9, 2026 with the original thereof on file in my office, 
and that the same is a true and correct copy of such proceedings of the Agency and of 
such Resolution set forth therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same 
related to the subject matters therein referred to. 
 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 
meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respect duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the 
Public Officers Law (the "Open Meetings Law"), said meeting was open to the general 
public and due notice of the time and place of said meeting was given in accordance 
with such Open Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the 
Agency present through said meeting. 
 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in 
full force and effect and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of 
the Agency this 9th day of March, 2026. 
 
        __________________________ 
        Clinton Brooks, Secretary 



A regular meeting of Cortland County Industrial Development Agency (the 
"Agency") was convened in public session at the offices of the Agency located at 40 Main 
Street, Suite A, in the City of Cortland, Cortland County, New York on March 9, 2026 at 
12:00 o'clock p.m., local time. 
 
 The meeting was called to order by the Chair and, upon roll being called, the 
following members of the Agency were: 
 
 PRESENT: 
 

Michael McMahon   Chairman 
Stephen Compagni   Vice Chairman 
Clinton Brooks   Secretary 
Deborah Hayden   Treasurer 
Kathleen Burke   Member 
William McGovern   Member 
Jason Hage    Member  

 
 ABSENT: 
 
 
FOLLOWING PERSONS WERE ALSO PRESENT: 
 

Melanie Vilardi   Executive Director  
Andrea Skeels   Director of Finance and Project Development 
Ashley Riehlman   Community Relations Specialist 
John P. Sidd, Esq.   Agency Counsel 

 
 
 The following resolution was offered by _________________, seconded by 
_____________, to wit: 
 

Resolution No. ______________ 
 

RESOLUTION TAKING PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL ACTION 
TOWARD THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, 
INSTALLATION AND LEASING OF A CERTAIN 
COMMERCIAL PROJECT FOR CROWN CITY SOLAR 2, 
LLC 

 
WHEREAS, Cortland County Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency") is 

authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New 
York, constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the 
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "Enabling Act") and Chapter 77 of the 
1974 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 902 of said General Municipal 
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Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the 
"Act") to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, 
reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of commercial facilities, 
among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing economically 
sound commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity 
and economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their prosperity 
and standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and 

 
WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and 

empowered under the Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more 
"projects" (as defined in the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed, 
reconstructed and installed, and to convey said projects or to lease said projects with the 
obligation to purchase; and 

 
WHEREAS, Crown City Solar 2, LLC (the "Company") has presented an 

application (the "Application") to the Agency, a copy of which was presented at this 
meeting and copies of which are on file at the office of the Agency, requesting that the 
Agency consider undertaking a project (the "Project") consisting of the following: (A) (1) 
the acquisition of an interest in a ± 15 acre portion of certain parcels of land, including a 
pond, consisting of ± 58.72 acres (the "Land") located at 3911 US Route 11, in the Town 
of Cortlandville, Cortland County, New York (2) construction of a 4.9 MW AC floating solar 
photovoltaic facility and related infrastructure on the Land (the "Facility") and (3) the 
acquisition and installation therein and thereon of fixtures and equipment comprising the 
Facility (the "Equipment"), all of the foregoing to constitute a solar photovoltaic facility to 
be operated by the Company (the Land, Facility and Equipment being collectively referred 
to as the "Project Facility"); (B) the granting of certain "financial assistance" (within the 
meaning of Section 854(14) of the Act) with respect to the foregoing, including potential 
exemptions from certain sales taxes, real estate transfer taxes, mortgage recording taxes 
and real property taxes (collectively, the "Financial Assistance"); and (C) the lease (with 
an obligation to purchase) or sale of the Project Facility to the Company or such other 
person as may be designated by the Company and agreed upon by the Agency; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency has given due consideration to the Application and to 

representations by the Company that (A) the granting by the Agency of the Financial 
Assistance with respect to the Project will be an inducement to the Company to undertake 
the Project in Cortland County, New York, and (B) the completion of the Project Facility 
will not result in the removal of an industrial or manufacturing plant of the Company or 
any other proposed occupant of the Project Facility from one area of the State of New 
York to another area of the State of New York or in the abandonment of a plant or facility 
of the Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project Facility located in the State 
of New York; and 
   

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to encourage the Company to preserve and 
advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the 
people of Cortland County, New York by undertaking the Project in Cortland County, New 
York; and 
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WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter 

43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "SEQR Act"), and the 
regulations (the "Regulations") adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of 
Environmental Conservation of the State of New York (collectively with the SEQR Act, 
"SEQRA"), by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on March 9, 2026 (the 
"SEQR Resolution"), the Agency has determined that it was an involved agency in a 
coordinated SEQRA review of the Project undertaken by the Town of Cortlandville 
Planning Board (the “Planning Board”) acting as lead agency and that the negative 
declaration issued by the Planning Board following the coordinated review is binding on 
the Agency; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, any approval of the Project contained herein is 

contingent upon a determination by the members of the Agency to proceed with the 
Project following satisfaction of the public hearing and notice requirements and other 
procedural requirements contained in Section 859-a of the Act that relate to the Project;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF CORTLAND 

COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The Agency has reviewed the Application and based upon the 

representations made by the Company to the Agency in the Application and at this 
meeting and, based thereon, the Agency hereby makes the following findings and 
determinations with respect to the Project: 

 
(A) The Project constitutes a "project" within the meaning of the Act; and 
 
(B) The completion of the Project Facility will not result in the removal of an 

industrial or manufacturing plant of the Company or any other proposed occupant of the 
Project Facility from one area of the State of New York to another area of the State of 
New York and the completion of the Project Facility will not result in the abandonment of 
a plant or facility of a proposed occupant of the Project Facility located in the State of New 
York. 

 
(C) The Project Facility will not constitute a project where facilities or property 

that are primarily used in making retail sales of goods or services to customers who 
personally visit such facilities constitute more than one-third of the total cost of the Project; 
and 

 
(D) The granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency with respect to the 

Project, through the granting of the various tax exemptions described in Section 2(D) of 
this Resolution, will promote the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and 
economic welfare of the inhabitants of Cortland County, New York and the State of New 
York and improve their standard of living, and thereby serve the public purposes of the 
Act. 
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Section 2. If, following full compliance with the Act, including the public hearing 
requirements set forth in Section 859-a of the Act, the Agency adopts a future resolution 
(the "Future Resolution") determining to proceed with the Project and to grant the 
Financial Assistance with respect thereto and the Company complies with all conditions 
set forth in the Future Resolution, then the Agency will (A) acquire an interest in the 
Project Facility from the Company pursuant to a deed, lease agreement or other 
documentation to be negotiated between the Agency and the Company (the "Acquisition 
Agreement"); (B) construct the Facility and acquire and install the Equipment in the 
Facility or elsewhere on the Land; (C) lease (with the obligation to purchase) or sell the 
Project Facility to the Company pursuant to a lease agreement or an installment sale 
agreement (hereinafter the "Project Agreement") between the Agency and the Company 
whereby the Company will be obligated, among other things, (1) to make payments to the 
Agency in amounts and at times so that such payments will be adequate to enable the 
Agency to timely pay all amounts due on the Acquisition Agreement and (2) to pay all 
costs incurred by the Agency with respect to the Project and/or the Project Facility, 
including all costs of operation and maintenance, all taxes and other governmental 
charges, any required payments in lieu of taxes and the reasonable fees and expenses 
incurred by the Agency with respect to or in connection with the Project and/or the Project 
Facility, and (D) provide the Financial Assistance with respect to the Project, in 
accordance with the Agency's uniform tax exemption policy, including (1) exemption from 
mortgage recording taxes with respect to any documents recorded by the Agency with 
respect to the Project in the Office of the County Clerk of Cortland County, New York or 
elsewhere, (2) exemption from sales taxes relating to the acquisition, construction and 
installation of the Project Facility, (3) exemption from deed transfer taxes and real estate 
transfer gains taxes on real estate transfers to and from the Agency with respect to the 
Project, and (4) exemption from real estate taxes (but not including special assessments 
and special ad valorem levies) relating to the Project Facility, subject to the obligation of 
the Company to make payments in lieu of taxes with respect to the Project Facility. 

 
Section 3. If the Agency adopts the Future Resolution, the undertaking and 

completing of the Project by the Agency, and the granting of the Financial Assistance with 
respect to the Project as contemplated by Section 2 of this Resolution, shall be subject 
to: (A) the determination by the members of the Agency to proceed with the Project 
following a determination by the members of the Agency that all requirements of SEQRA 
that relate to the Project have been fulfilled; (B) agreement by the Agency and the 
Company on mutually acceptable terms for the conveyance of the Land to the Agency; 
(C) agreement between the Company and the Agency as to payment by the Company of 
payments in lieu of taxes with respect to the Project Facility, together with the 
administrative fee of the Agency with respect to the Project; (D) a determination by the 
members of the Agency to proceed with the granting of the Financial Assistance with 
respect to the Project following a determination by the members of the Agency that the 
public hearing and notice requirements and other procedural requirements contained in 
Section 859-a of the Act have been complied with; (E) the Agency's uniform tax exemption 
policy or if any portion of the Financial Assistance to be granted by the Agency with 
respect to the Project is not consistent with the Agency's uniform tax exemption policy, 
the Agency must follow the procedures for deviation from such policy set forth in Section 
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874(b) of the Act prior to granting such portion of the Financial Assistance; and (F) the 
following additional condition(s): the Company entering Host Community Agreements 
with Cortland County and the Town of Cortlandville in form and substance approved by 
the Agency. 

 
Section 4. The officers, agents and employees of the Agency are hereby 

authorized, empowered and directed to proceed with the undertakings provided for herein 
on the part of the Agency and are further authorized to do all such acts and things and to 
execute all such documents as may be necessary or convenient to carry out and comply 
with the terms and provisions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 5. John P. Sidd, Esq., of the law firm of Hancock Estabrook LLP is hereby 

appointed Special Counsel to the Agency with respect to all matters in connection with 
the Project. Special Counsel for the Agency is hereby authorized, at the expense of the 
Company, to work with the Company, counsel to the Company and others to prepare for 
submission to the Agency, all documents necessary to effect the transactions 
contemplated by this Resolution. 

 
Section 6. Pursuant to Section 875(3) of the Act, the Agency shall recover, 

recapture, receive, or otherwise obtain from the Company that portion of the Financial 
Assistance which constitutes state sales and use tax exemptions taken or purported to 
be taken by the Company to which the Company is not entitled or which are in excess of 
the amount authorized by the Agency or which are for property or services not authorized 
by the Agency as part of the Project or were taken by the Company when the Company 
failed to comply with a material term or condition to use property or services in the manner 
required by the Agency. The Company shall cooperate with the Agency in its efforts to 
recover, recapture, receive, or otherwise obtain such state sales and use tax exemptions 
and shall promptly pay over any such amounts to the Agency. The failure to pay over such 
amounts to the Agency shall be grounds for the New York State Commissioner of Taxation 
and Finance to assess and determine state sales and use taxes due from the Company 
under Article 28 of the Tax Law of the State of New York, together with any relevant 
penalties and interest due on such amounts. 

 
Section 7. The Executive Director of the Agency, prior to the granting of any 

Financial Assistance with respect to the Project, after consultation with Special Counsel, 
is authorized (A) to establish a time, date and place for a public hearing of the Agency to 
hear all persons interested in the location and nature of the Project Facility and the 
proposed Financial Assistance being contemplated by the Agency with respect to the 
Project, said public hearing to be held in the city, town or village where the Project Facility 
will be located; (B) to cause notice of such public hearing to be given to the public by 
publishing a notice of such hearing in a newspaper of general circulation available to 
residents of the governmental units where the Project Facility is to be located, such notice 
to comply with the requirements of Section 859-a of the Act and to be published no fewer 
than ten (10) days prior to the date established for such public hearing; (C) to cause notice 
of said public hearing to be given to the chief executive officer of the county and each city, 
town, village and school district in which the Project Facility is or is to be located no fewer 
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than ten (10) days prior to the date established for said public hearing; (D) to conduct 
such public hearing; and (E) to cause a report of said public hearing fairly summarizing 
the views presented at said public hearing to be promptly prepared. 

 
Section 8. The Chairman, Vice Chairman and Executive Director of the Agency are 

each hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the 
Company and to do such further things or perform such acts as may be necessary or 
convenient to implement the provisions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 9. This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll 
call, which resulted as follows: 
 

Michael McMahon   VOTING ______________ 
 Stephen Compagni   VOTING ______________ 
 Clinton Brooks   VOTING ______________ 
 Deborah Hayden   VOTING ______________ 
 Kathleen Burke   VOTING ______________ 
 William McGovern   VOTING ______________ 

Jason Hage    VOTING ______________ 
  
 The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared and duly adopted. 
 
STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
COUNTY OF CORTLAND )  ss.: 
 
 I, the undersigned Secretary of Cortland County Industrial Development Agency 
(the "Agency"), DO HEREBY CERTIFY, that I have compared the foregoing extract of the 
minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the Resolution contained 
therein, held on March 9, 2026 with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the 
same is a true and correct copy of such proceedings of the Agency and of such Resolution 
set forth therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same related to the subject 
matters therein referred to. 
 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 
meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respect duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the 
Public Officers Law (the "Open Meetings Law"), said meeting was open to the general 
public and due notice of the time and place of said meeting was given in accordance with 
such Open Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency 
present through said meeting. 
 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in full 
force and effect and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded. 
 



7 
 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the 
Agency this 9th day of March, 2026. 
 
        __________________________ 
        Clinton Brooks, Secretary 
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CORTLAND COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

IMPORTANT NOTICE: The answers to the questions contained in this application are necessary to 
determine the applicant’s eligibility for financial assistance from the Cortland County Industrial 
Development Agency. The answers will also be used in the preparation of papers in  this transaction. 
Accordingly, an officer or other employee of the applicant who is thoroughly familiar with the business 
and affairs of the applicant and who is also thoroughly familiar with the proposed project should answer 
all questions accurately and completely. This application is subject to acceptance by the Agency.  

TO: CORTLAND COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
37 CHURCH STREET 
CORTLAND, NEW YORK 13045 

APPLICANT:__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

APPLICANT'S STREET ADDRESS:__________________________________________________________________ 

CITY:_________________________________ STATE:__________________PHONE NO.:______________________ 

E-MAIL ADDRESS:___________________________________________________________________________________

NAME OF PERSON(S) AUTHORIZED TO SPEAK FOR APPLICANT WITH RESPECT TO THIS 
APPLICATION:_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

IF APPLICANT IS REPRESENTED BY AN ATTORNEY, COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING: 

NAME OF FIRM:_____________________________________________________________________________  

NAME OF ATTORNEY:_________________________________________________________________________ 

ATTORNEY’S STREET ADDRESS:______________________________________________________________ 

CITY:_________________________________ STATE:__________________PHONE NO.:______________________ 

E-MAIL ADDRESS:___________________________________________________________________________________

 ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  
NOTE: PLEASE READ THE INSTRUCTIONS ON PAGE 2 BEFORE FILLING OUT THIS 
APPLICATION 
 ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  

INSTRUCTIONS 

Crown City Solar 2 LLC 
4201 Main Street STE 200-206

Houston TX (203) 482-7817

dg@thirdpillarsolar.com

Edward Horneffer
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1. The Agency will not approve any applications unless, in the judgment of the Agency, said application contains sufficient 
information upon which to base a decision whether to approve or tentatively approve an action. 

2. Fill in all blanks, using "none" or "not applicable" or "N/A" where the question is not appropriate to the project which is the 
subject of this application (the “Project”). 

3. If an estimate is given as the answer to a question, put "(est)" after the figure or answer, which is estimated. 

4. If more space is needed to answer any specific question, attach a separate sheet. 

5. When completed, return two (2) copies of this application to the Agency at the address indicated on the first page of this 
application. 

6. The Agency will not give final approval to this application until the Agency receives a completed environmental assessment 
form concerning the Project, which is the subject of this application. 

7. Please note that Article 6 of the Public Officers Law declares that all records in the possession of the Agency (with certain 
limited exceptions) are open to public inspection and copying.  If the applicant feels that there are elements of the Project 
which are in the nature of trade secrets or information, the nature of which is such that if disclosed to the public or otherwise 
widely disseminated would cause substantial injury to the applicant’s competitive position, the applicant may identify such 
elements in writing and request that such elements be kept confidential in accordance with Article 6 of Public Officers Law. 

8. The applicant will be required to pay to the Agency all actual costs incurred in connection with this application and the Project 
contemplated herein (to the extent such expenses are not paid out of the proceeds of the Agency’s bonds issued to finance the 
project).  The applicant will also be expected to pay all costs incurred by general counsel and bond counsel to the Agency.  The 
costs incurred by the Agency, including the Agency’s general counsel and bond counsel, may be considered as a part of the 
project and included as a part of the resultant bond issue. 

9. The Agency has established an application fee of Five Hundred Dollars ($500) to cover the anticipated costs of the Agency in 
processing this application. A check or money order made payable to the Agency must accompany each application.  THIS 
APPLICATION WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED BY THE AGENCY UNLESS ACCOMPANIED BY THE APPLICATION FEE. 

10. The Agency has established a project fee for each project in which the Agency participates.  UNLESS THE AGENCY AGREES IN 
WRITING TO THE CONTRARY, THIS PROJECT FEE IS REQUIRED TO BE PAID BY THE APPLICANT AT OR PRIOR TO THE 
GRANTING OF ANY FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE BY THE AGENCY. 

FOR AGENCY USE ONLY 

1. Project Name or Number _________________________________________________ 

2. Date Application Received by Agency ________________________________________, 20____ 

3. Date Application Referred to Attorney for Review ________________________________________, 20____ 

4. Date Copy of Application Mailed to Members ________________________________________, 20____ 

5. Date Notice of Agency Meeting on Application Posted ________________________________________, 20____ 

6. Date Notice of Agency Meeting on Application Mailed ________________________________________, 20____ 

7. Date of Agency Meeting on Application ________________________________________, 20____ 

8. Date Agency Conditionally Approved Application ________________________________________, 20____ 

9. Date Scheduled for Public Hearing ________________________________________, 20____ 

10. Date Environmental Assessment Form ("EAF") Received ________________________________________, 20____ 

11. Date Agency Completed Environmental Review ________________________________________, 20____ 

12. Date of Final Approval of Application ________________________________________, 20____ 

I. APPLICANT INFORMATION-COMPANY TO RECEIVE BENEFITS (the “COMPANY”) 
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A. Identity of Company: 
 1. Company Name: _____________________________________________________________ 
  Present Address: ____________________________________________________________ 
  Zip Code: ___________________ Employer ID No.: __________________________ 
 
 2. Indicate type of business organization of Company: 
 
 a.  Corporation.  Incorporated in what country?___________________; 
   State:__________________;  Date Incorporated: _____________________; 
   Authorized to do business in New York State?  Yes _______  No_______ 
  i. Is the Corporation Publicly Held?  Yes____  No____.  If yes, please list 

exchanges where stock is traded:______________________________________ 
   ____________________________________________________________________________ 
  ii. If no, list all Stockholders having a 5% or more interest in the 

Company: 
 

Name Address Percentage of Holding 
   
   
   
   
   

 
 b.  Partnership.  General or Limited partnership?_____________________ 
                                               Name all partners below: 

 
Name Address General 

Partner 
Limited 
Partner 

    
    
    
    
    

 

Crown City Solar 2 LLC
4201 Main St STE 200-206, Houston TX

77002 994839023
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c.  Limited Liability Company.  Formed in what country _______________; 
State:______________;  Date of Formation:________________________________; 
Authorized to do business in New York State?  Yes_______  No_______; 
Name all members below: 

Name Address Membership Percentage 

d.  Sole proprietorship.  Name of Sole Proprietor:________________________ 

3. Is the Company a subsidiary or direct or indirect affiliate of any other
organization(s)? If so, indicate name of related organization(s) and
relationship:________________________________________________________________

B. Management of Company:
List all officers/directors/managers (complete all columns for each person):

Name and Home Address Office Held 

C. Company/Management History:
1. Is the Company or management of the Company now a plaintiff or a

defendant in any civil or criminal litigation?  Yes______  No______.
2. Has any person listed above ever been convicted of a criminal offense

(other than a minor traffic violation)?  Yes______  No______.
3. Has any person listed above or any concern with whom such person

has been connected ever been in receivership or been adjudicated a
bankrupt?  Yes______  No______.

If the answer to any of questions 1 through 3 is yes, please furnish details in a separate 
attachment. 

USA

Delaware 08/16/2024

 X

TPSR Operating LLC 4201 Main Street Ste 200-206 Houston, TX 77002 100%

see below

Jaimeet Gulati President

James Bookout Vice President

Edward Horneffer Vice President

Darian Ghorbi Secretary

X

 X

 X
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II. PROPOSED PROJECT DATA 
 A. Description of the Project: 
 1. Please provide a narrative of the Project and the purpose of the 

Project (acquisition, construction, renovations and/or equipment 
purchases).  Identify specific uses occurring with the Project.  Describe 
any and all tenants and any/all end users (attach additional pages): 

  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 2. Describe the reasons why the Agency's Financial Assistance is 

necessary and the effect the Project will have on the Company's 
business or operations and any corresponding benefit to the Cortland 
County community (attach additional pages): 

  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 3. Is there a likelihood that the Project would not be undertaken but for 

the Financial Assistance provided by the Agency: 
 
    Yes     No 
 
 4. If the Project could be undertaken without the Financial Assistance 

provided by the Agency, then provide a statement indicating why the 
Project should be undertaken by the Agency (attach additional pages): 

  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 B. Location of Project: 
 
  1. Street Address: _______________________________________________________________ 
  2. City: ________________________________________________________________________  
  3. Town: ______________________________________________________________________  
  4. Village: _____________________________________________________________________  

5. Is any portion of the Project located outside of Cortland County?  If 
so, identify the other county: _____________________________________________  

  6. School District: ____________________________________________________________ 
  7. Tax Parcel Nos.: ___________________________________________________________  
  

The Project is a 4.9MWac floating photovoltaic system that will generate electricity for the town of Cortlandville.

The property is an existing mine pit at Suit-Kote Corporation's Polkville Crushed Stone facility.

Floating solar has higher up front cost than standard ground mount sysytems, and project economics are challenging 

due to relatively low irradiance that reduces energy output and revenue.  The project will benefit the cortland county community 

by adding local, clean generation. 

N/A

3911 US Route 11

Cortland

Town of Cortlandville

N/A

No

Mcgraw School District

97.00-01-06.100, 97.00-01-60.100
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Description of the Project site:

Approximate size (in acres or square feet) of the Project site:___________
Attach a map, survey or sketch of the Project site.

Are there existing buildings on the Project Site?
Yes_______ No_______. If yes,

Indicate each existing building and indicate the approximate
size (in square feet) of each building:
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________

Are the existing buildings in operation? Yes_______ No_______. If
yes, describe the present use of each building in operation:
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________

Are the existing buildings abandoned? Yes_______ No_______;
About to be abandoned? Yes_______ No_______. If yes, describe:
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________

Attach photographs of existing buildings.

Utilities Serving the Project Site:

Water: Municipal ___ , Other ___.  If other, describe ________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
Sewer: Municipal___ , Other ___.  If other, describe _________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
Electric Utility Co.:____________________________________________________ 

Natural Gas Utility Co.: _______________________________________________ 

Other Utility Sources: _________________________________________________ 

4. Present Legal Owner of the Project Site:
a. If the Company owns the Project site, indicate:

Date of Purchase:______________________________________________

4.

665000 sq ft

X

 x

x
x

National Grid
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 Purchase Price:________________________________________________ 

b. If the Company does not own the Project site, does the Company 
have the contractual right to purchase the Project site?  
Yes_______  No_______.  If yes, indicate: 

 Date Contract Signed:___________________________________________ 
 Date Ability to Purchase Expires:______________________________ 

c. If the Company does not own the Project site, is there a 
relationship legally or by common control between the 
Company and present owner of the Project site? 

 Yes_________  No_________.  If yes, describe: 
______________________________________________________________________  
______________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________ 

  5. Zoning District in which the Project is located:_________________________  

6. Are there any variances or special permits affecting the Project site  
now or which need to be obtained to complete the Project? 
Yes_______  No_______.  If yes, list below and attach copies of all 
variances or special permits: 
______________________________________________________________________________  
______________________________________________________________________________  
______________________________________________________________________________ 

D. Description of the Proposed Construction:
1. Does part of the Project consist of the acquisition or construction of a 

new building or buildings?  Yes _____  No _____.  If yes, indicate number of
and size of new buildings: 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

2. Does part of the Project consist of additions and/or renovations to 
existing buildings located on the Project site?  Yes_______ No ______. If 
yes, indicate: 
a. The number of buildings to be expanded or renovated:_________ 
b. The size of any expansions:________________________________________ 

  _______________________________________________________________________
c. The nature of expansion and/or renovation: 

  _______________________________________________________________________

6.

 X

 X

Lease Agreement

Industrial

X

Site Plan Approval (Conditional Permit), SEQR Negative Declaration and Aquifer Protection District Permit

x

x
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   _______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 3. Describe the principal uses to be made by the Company of the building 

or buildings to be acquired, constructed or expanded: 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 E. Description of the Equipment: 
 1. Does part of the Project consist of the acquisition or installation of 

machinery, equipment or other personal property (the “Equipment”)? 
  Yes_______  No _______.  If yes, describe the Equipment: 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 2. With respect to the Equipment to be acquired, will any of the 

Equipment be previously used Equipment? 
  Yes_______  No_______. If yes, please provide detail below: 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 3. Describe the principal uses to be made by the Company of the 

Equipment to be acquired or installed: 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 F. Project Use: 
 
  1. What are the principal products to be produced at the Project site? 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 2. What are the principal activities to be conducted at the Project? 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 X 
12,292 Modules, 1 DC/AC converter/1 Transformer

 X

The project will generate renewable energy by converting
sunlight into electricity to be delivered onto the local distribution
system and available for purchase by local residents and businesses.

A 4.9MWac community solar project.  The project is being developed 
in accordance with the NYSERDA NYSUN guidelines for the 
Community Distributed Generation Program. 

The conversion of sunlight into electricity. 



Page ~9~ 

 
 3. Does the Project include facilities or property that are primarily used in 

making retail sales of goods or services to customers who personally 
visit such facilities? 

  Yes______  No______.  If yes please provide detail: 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 4. If the answer to question 3 is yes, what percentage of the cost of the 

Project will be expended on such facilities or property primarily used 
in making retail sales of goods or services to customers who 
personally visit the Project?  ________% 

 
 5. If the answer to question 3 is yes, and the answer to question 4 is 

more than 33.33%, indicate whether any of the following apply to the 
Project: 

 
 a. Will the Project be operated by a not-for-profit corporation? 

Yes_______  No_______. If yes, please explain: 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 b. Is the Project likely to attract a significant number of visitors 

from outside the economic development region (as established 
by Section 230 of the Economic Development Law) in which 
the Project will be located? 

  Yes ______  No ______.  If yes, please explain: 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 c. Would the Project occupant, but for the contemplated Financial 

Assistance from the Agency, locate the related jobs outside of 
New York State? 

  Yes _______  No _______. If yes, please explain: 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 d. Is the predominant purpose of the Project to make available 

goods or services which would not, but for the Project, be 

  x

N/A

 X

N/A

 X
N/A

 X
N/A



Page ~10~ 

reasonably accessible to the residents of the city, town or 
village within which the Project will be located because of a 
lack of reasonably accessible retail trade facilities offering such 
goods or services? 

  Yes______  No_______.  If yes, please provide detail: 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 e. Will the Project be located in one of the following: (i) an area 

which was designed as an empire zone pursuant to Article 18-B 
of the General Municipal Law; or (ii) a census tract or block 
numbering area (or census tract or block numbering area 
contiguous thereto) which, according to the most recent census 
data, has (a) a poverty rate of at least 20% for the year in which 
the data relates, or at least 20% of households receiving public 
assistance, and (b) an unemployment rate of at least 1.25 times 
the statewide unemployment rate for the year to which the data 
relates? 

  Yes______; No_______. If yes, please explain: 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 6. If the answers to any of subdivisions c. through e. of question 5 are 

yes, will the Project preserve permanent, private sector jobs or 
increase the overall number of permanent, private sector jobs in the 
State of New York? 

  Yes ______  No______. If yes, please explain: 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 7. Will the completion of the Project result in the removal of an industrial 

or manufacturing plant of the Company or another proposed occupant 
of the Project (a “Project Occupant”) from one area of the State of New 
York to another area of the State of New York? 

  Yes_______  No _______. If yes, please explain: 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 8. Will the completion of the Project result in the abandonment of one or 

more plants or facilities of the Company or a Project Occupant located in 

X
N/A

 X
 N/A

 X
N/A

 X
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the State of York? 
  Yes_______  No______. If yes, provide detail: 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 9. If the answer to either question 7 or question 8 is yes, indicate whether 

any of the following apply to the Project: 
 
 a. Is the Project reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive 

position of the Company or such Project Occupant in its 
industry? 

  Yes_______; No______.  If yes, please provide detail: 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 b. Is the Project reasonably necessary to discourage the Company 

or such Project Occupant from removing such other plant or 
facility to a location outside the State of New York? 

  Yes_______  No_______.  If yes, please provide detail: 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 G. Project Status: 
 
 1. If the Project includes the acquisition of any land or buildings, have 

any steps been taken toward acquiring same? 
  Yes_____  No_____.  If yes, please discuss in detail the approximate stage 

of such acquisition: 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 2. If the Project includes the acquisition of any Equipment, have any steps 

been taken toward acquiring same? 
  Yes_______  No______.  If yes, please discuss in detail the approximate 

stage of such acquisition: 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 X

N/A

N/A

 X

N/A

 X

Deposits being completed by mid February
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 3. If the Project involves the construction or reconstruction of any 

building or other improvement, has construction work on any such 
building or improvement begun?  Yes ______  No_______.  If yes, please 
discuss in detail the approximate extent of construction and the extent 
of completion.  Indicate in your answer whether such specific steps 
have been completed as site clearance and preparation; completion of 
foundations; installation of footings; etc.: 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 4. Please indicate the amount of funds expended on the Project by the 

Applicant in the past three (3) years and the purpose of such 
expenditures: 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
III. INFORMATION CONCERNING LEASES OR SUBLEASES OF THE PROJECT 
 (PLEASE COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING SECTION IF THE APPLICANT INTENDS 

TO LEASE OR SUBLEASE ANY PORTION OF THE PROJECT) 
 A. Does the Company intend to lease or sublease more than 10% (by area or fair 

market value) of the Project?  Yes_______  No _______.  If yes, please complete 
the following for each existing or proposed tenant or subtenant: 

 
  Sublessee Name:_____________________________________________________________ 

Present Address: ________________________________________________________  
City: _________________________ State: __________________ Zip: _______________  
Employer’s ID No.: __________________________________________________________  
Sublessee is: ______Corporation; ______Partnership; ______; Limited 
Liability Company; ______Sole Proprietor 
Relationship to Company: _______________________________________________  
Percentage of Project to be leased or subleased: ________________________  
Use of Project intended by Sublessee: __________________________________  
Date of lease or sublease to Sublessee: ___________________________________  
Term of lease or sublease to Sublessee: ________________________________  
Will any portion of the space leased by this sublessee be primarily used 
in making retail sales of goods or services to customers who personally 
visit the Project?  Yes_______  No______. 
If yes, please provide on a separate attachment 

 x

N/A

 X
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 a. details; and 
 b. the answers to questions II (F) (4) through (6) with 

respect to such sublessee. 
 

B.         What percentage of the space intended to be leased or subleased is now 
subject to a binding written lease or sublease? _______________% 

 
IV. EMPLOYMENT IMPACT 

 A. Indicate below the number of people presently employed at the Project Site 
and the number that will be employed at the Project site at the end of the first 
and second years after the Project has been completed (Do not include 
construction workers).  Also indicate below the number of workers employed 
at the Project site representing newly created positions as opposed to 
positions relocated from other project sites of the Applicant. 

 
 Current # of 

Jobs at 
proposed 
Project location 
or to be 
relocated to 
Project location 

If Financial 
Assistance is 
granted, 
estimate the 
number of 
FTE and PTE 
jobs to be 
Retained 

If Financial 
Assistance is 
granted, 
estimate the 
number of FTE 
and PTE jobs to 
be Created by 
Two years after 
Project 
completion 

Estimate number 
of residents of 
the Labor 
Market Area in 
which the 
Project is located 
that will fill the 
retained and 
created FTE and 
PTE jobs Two 
years after 
Project 
completion** 

Present Full Time     
Present Part Time     
First Year Full Time     
First Year Part Time     
Second Year Full Time     
Second Year Part Time     
Total:     

**For purposes of the question, please estimate in the fourth column the number of FTE and PTE 
jobs, as indicated in the second and third columns, that will be filled by residents of the Labor 
Market Area.  The Labor Market Area includes Cortland County as well as the counties of Cayuga, 
Onondaga, Tompkins, Broome and Chenango. 

0 0 0
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Category of Jobs to be 
Retained and Created 

Estimated Average Salary 
or Range of Salary 

Estimated Average Fringe 
Benefits or Range of Fringe 
Benefits 

Management   
Professional   
Administrative   
Production   
Independent Contractors   
Other   
 
 B. Please state the anticipated date of completion of the Project site and the 

anticipated date of occupancy of the Project site: 
  Project Site Completion Date: ______________________________________________________ 
  Project Site Occupancy Date:________________________________________________________ 
 
V. PROJECT COST 
 
 A. State the costs reasonably necessary for the acquisition of the Project site, the 

construction of the proposed buildings and the acquisition and installation of 
any machinery and equipment necessary or convenient in connection 
therewith, and including any utilities, access roads or appurtenant facilities, 
using the following categories: 

 
Description of Cost: Amount: 
 
Land Acquisition $_______________________ 
Building Construction $_______________________ 
Building Renovation $_______________________ 
Machinery and equipment costs $_______________________ 
Utilities, roads and appurtenant costs $_______________________ 
Architects and engineering fees $_______________________ 
Costs of Bond issue (legal, financial and printing) $_______________________ 
Construction loan fees and interest (if applicable) $_______________________ 
Other (specify) 
__________________________________ $_______________________ 
__________________________________ $_______________________ 
__________________________________ $_______________________ 
__________________________________ $_______________________ 
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS: $_______________________ 
 

 B. Have any of the above expenditures already been made by the Applicant? 
  Yes_______  No________. If yes, indicate particulars: 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 

12/31/2026

12/31/2026

8,874,000
121,000
87,333

9,082,333

X

permitting, design, and engineering spend (Architects and Engineering fees)
TPS has invested significant amounts in lease option expenses (Land Acquisition),
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VI. FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE EXPECTED FROM THE AGENCY 
 
 A. Tax Benefits: 
 1. Is the Applicant requesting a real property tax exemption in 

connection with the Project from the Agency?  Yes_______  No_______. 
 
 2. Is the Applicant expecting to be appointed agent of the Agency for 

purposes of receiving an exemption from N.Y.S. Sales Tax or 
Compensating Use Tax?  Yes_______  No_______.   

 
 3. Is the Applicant requesting a mortgage recording tax exemption in 

connection with the Project from the Agency?  Yes_______  No_______. 
 
 4. What is the estimated value of each type of tax exemption being 

sought in connection with the Project?  Please detail the type of tax 
exemption and value of each exemption: 
a. N.Y.S. Sales and Compensating Use Taxes: $_________________ 
b. Mortgage Recording Taxes: $_________________ 
c. Real Property Taxes: $_________________ 
 (Please consult with the Agency in 
 calculating the estimated value of the 
 real property tax exemption) 
d. Other (please specify): 
 ___________________________________ $_________________ 
 ___________________________________ $_________________ 
 ___________________________________ $_________________ 
 

 5. Are any of the tax-exemptions being sought in connection with the 
Project inconsistent with the Agency’s Uniform Tax-exemption Policy? 

  Yes _______  No_______.  If yes, please explain how the request of the 
Applicant differs from the Agency’s Uniform Tax-Exemption Policy: 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 B. Financing: 
 
 1. Is the Applicant requesting that the Agency issue bonds to assist in 

financing the Project?  Yes________  No________.  If yes, indicate: 
 a. Principal Amount of Bonds Requested $_________________ 
 b. Maturity Requested _________________ Years 
 c. Is the Interest on such bonds intended to be exempt from 

federal income taxation?  Yes________ No_________. 

X

X

X

0

496,849

 X

The developer and long term owner & operator of the project is requesting a

15-year PILOT payment based on $250/MW, escalating at 2% per year.

This term is longer than the uniform Tax Exemption Policy allows.

There will also be HCA agreements of $2,100/MW, 2% annual escalation with the Town of

Cortlandville and $1,800/MW, 2% annual escalation to Cortland County for 15 years.

X
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 2. What is the approximate amount of private sector financing to be 

obtained?  $_________________________.  Is the Applicant expecting that 
the private sector financing of the Project will be secured by one or 
more mortgages?  Yes______  No_______. 

  If yes, what is the approximate amount of private sector financing to 
be secured?  $_________________________. 

 
 3. Is the Applicant expecting that any of the financing of the Project 

will come from public sector sources?  Yes______  No_______. 
  What is the approximate amount of public sector financing to be 

obtained?  $_________________________. 
  If yes, is the Company expecting that the public sector financing of 

the Project will be secured by one or more mortgages or grant 
agreements?  Yes______  No_______. 

  If yes, what is the approximate amount of public sector financing to 
be secured?  $_________________________. 

   
 4. Please state the approximate amount to be invested in the Project 

(not borrowed or the subject of a grant) by the Applicant 
$_________________________. 

 
 5. Please state the approximate total amount of borrowed funds to be 

invested in the Project $__________________. 
 
VII. REPRESENTATIONS BY THE APPLICANT 
 The Applicant understands and agrees with the Agency as follows: 
 
 A. Job Listings:  In accordance with Section 858-b (2) of the New York General 

Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project 
receives any Financial Assistance from the Agency, except as otherwise 
provided by collective bargaining agreements, new employment 
opportunities created as a result of the Project will be listed with the New York 
State Department of Labor Community Services Division (the "DOL") and with 
the administrative entity (collectively with the DOL, the "JTPA Entities") of the 
service delivery area created by the Federal Job Training Partnership Act 
(Public Law 97-300) ("JTPA") in which the Project is located. 

 
 B. First Consideration for Employment:  In accordance with Section 858-b (2) 

of the New York General Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees 
that, if the Project receives any Financial Assistance from the Agency, except 
as otherwise provided by collective bargaining agreements, where 
practicable, the Applicant will first consider persons eligible to participate in 
JTPA programs who shall be referred by the JTPA Entities for new employment 
opportunities created as a result of the Project. 

 

9,087,000

X

X

0

X

0

0

9,087,000
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 C. Local Workforce Development: The Applicant understands and agrees that 
if the Project receives Financial Assistance from the Agency, except as 
provided by collective bargaining where practicable, the Applicant will 
increase the skill base of the local workforce through training, opportunities 
for professional development and career track advancement. 

 
 D. Annual Sales Tax Filings:  In accordance with Section 874(8) of the New York 

General Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the 
Project receives any sales tax exemptions as part of the Financial Assistance 
from the Agency, in accordance with Section 874(8) of the General Municipal 
Law, the Applicant agrees to file, or cause to be filed, with the New York State 
Department of Taxation and Finance, the annual form prescribed by the 
Department of Taxation and Finance, describing the value of all sales tax 
exemptions claimed by the Applicant and all consultants or subcontractors 
retained by the Applicant. 

 
 E. Annual Employment Reports:  The Applicant understands and agrees that, 

if the Project receives any Financial Assistance from the Agency, the Applicant 
will file, or cause to be filed, with the Agency, on an annual basis, reports 
regarding the number of people employed at the Project site. 

 
 F. Absence of Conflicts of Interest:  The Applicant has received from the Agency 

a list of the members, officers and employees of the Agency.  No member, 
officer or employee of the Agency has an interest, whether direct or indirect, 
in any transaction contemplated by this Application, except as hereinafter 
described: 

  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 G. Federal, State and Local Laws:  The Applicant/Owner/Occupant/Operator 

receiving the Financial Assistance understands and agrees that it must be, at 
all times, in compliance with applicable local, state and federal tax, worker 
protection and environmental laws, rules and regulations. 

 
 H. Environmental Matters: The Applicant acknowledges that certain 

environmental representations will be required at closing.  The Applicant shall 
provide copies of any known environmental reports, including any existing 
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Report(s) and/or Phase II 
Environmental Investigations.  The Agency may require the Company and/or 
Owner of the Premises to prepare and submit an environmental assessment 
and audit report including, but not limited to, a Phase I Environmental Site 
Assessment Report and a Phase II Environmental Investigation, with respect 
to the Premises at the sole cost and expense of the Owner and/or the Applicant.  
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All environmental assessment and audit reports shall be completed in 
accordance with ASTM Standard Practice E1527-13, and shall be conformed 
over to the Agency so that the Agency is authorized to use and rely on the 
reports.  The Agency, however, does not adopt, ratify, confirm or assume any 
representation made with reports required herein. 

 
 I. Release: The Applicant and/or Owner, and their successors and assigns, 

hereby release, defend and indemnify the Agency from any and all suits, causes 
of action, litigations, damages, losses, liabilities, obligations, penalties, claims, 
demands, judgments, costs, disbursements, fees or expenses of any kind or 
nature whatsoever (including, without limitation, attorneys', consultants' and 
experts' fees) which may at any time be imposed upon, incurred by or asserted 
or awarded against the Agency resulting from or arising out of any inquiries 
and/or environmental assessments, investigations and audits performed on 
behalf of the Applicant and/or Owner pursuant hereto, including the scope, 
level of detail, contents or accuracy of any environmental assessment, audit, 
inspection or investigation report completed hereunder and/or the selection 
of the environmental consultant, engineer or other qualified person to perform 
such assessments, investigations and audits. 

 
 J. Hold Harmless Provision:  The Applicant acknowledges and agrees that the 

Applicant shall be and is responsible for all costs of the Agency incurred in 
connection with any actions required to be taken by the Agency in furtherance 
of the Application including the Agency's costs of general counsel and/or the 
Agency's bond/transaction counsel whether or not the Application, the 
proposed Project it describes, the attendant negotiations, or the issue of bonds 
or other transaction or agreement are ultimately ever carried to successful 
conclusion and agrees that the Agency shall not be liable for and agrees to 
indemnify, defend and hold the Agency harmless from and against any and all 
liability arising from or expense incurred by: (i) the Agency's examination and 
processing of, and action pursuant to or upon, the Application, regardless of 
whether or not the Application or the proposed Project described herein or the 
tax exemptions and other assistance requested herein are favorably acted 
upon by the Agency; (ii) the Agency's acquisition, construction and/or 
installation of the proposed Project described herein; and (iii) any further 
action taken by the Agency with respect to the proposed Project including, 
without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all causes of action and 
attorneys' fees and any other expenses incurred in defending any suit or 
actions which may arise as a result of any of the foregoing.  Applicant hereby 
understands and agrees, in accordance with Section 875(3) of the New York 
General Municipal Law and the policies of the Agency that any New York State 
and local sales and use tax exemption claimed by the Applicant and approved 
by the Agency, any mortgage recording tax exemption claimed by the Applicant 
and approved by the Agency, and/or any real property tax abatement claimed 
by the Applicant and approved by the Agency in connection with the Project, 
may be subject to recapture and/or termination by the Agency under such 
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terms and conditions as will be established by the Agency and set forth in 
transaction documents to be entered into by and between the Agency and the 
Applicant.  The Applicant further represents and warrants that the information 
contained in this Application including, without limitation, information 
regarding the amount of the New York State and local sales and use tax 
exemption benefit, the amount of the mortgage recording tax exemption 
benefit, and the amount of the real property tax abatement, if and as applicable, 
to the best of the Applicant's knowledge, is true, accurate and complete. 

 
 K. False or Misleading Information.  The submission of any knowingly false or 

misleading information by the applicant may lead to the immediate 
termination of any Financial Assistance and the reimbursement of an amount 
equal to all or part of any tax exemptions claimed by reason of Agency 
involvement in the Project. 
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Cortland County IDA 
Solar Development Project Rationale 

Crown City Solar 3 LLC 
March 9, 2026 

Crown City Solar 3 LLC proposes $9.8 million, five (5) Megawatt solar floating photovoltaic system 

Overview & Capacity 

• Name: Crown City Solar 3 LLC

• Owner/Developer: 100% owned by TPSR Operating, LLC

• Type: Floating photovoltaic solar

• Capacity: 5 megawatts (MW).

Location & Size 

• Situated at 3779 US Route 11 in the Town of Cortlandville in Cortland County, New York

• The solar arrays are spread over approximately 665,000 sq ft (15.3 acres) of water. The 665,000
sq ft is within 2 tax parcels with a total of 131.1 acres that will be leased by the developer

Project Timeline 

• Development & Permitting: Began in June 2025 with environmental studies and a land
agreement.

• Construction & Operation: Construction is expected to start in 2026 with commercial operation
targeted for early 2027

Crown City Solar 3 LLC is seeking a 15-year PILOT from the CCIDA to incentivize the project, which will provide: 

• New PILOT revenues of $250/MW per year with a 2% escalator to affected taxing entities
totaling $21,617 over the next 15 years (pro rata to the town, county, and school district)

• The project’s host communities (“HCA”) will be paid over the 15 years as follows:
• $181,581 to the town of Cortlandville ($2,100/MW per year with 2% escalator)
• $155,641 to Cortland County ($1,800/MW per year with 2% escalator)

• Maintain current tax obligations on the underlying property and generate an additional $87,637 over the
term of the PILOT as the assessment basis moves from agricultural/mining to industrial

• Fire district taxes over 15 years will total $18,546
• Employ a base of local construction workers to assemble the site- with payroll estimated at approximately

$4 million
• Reduce New York State's reliance on fossil fuels following the Climate Leadership and Community

Protection Act (CLCPA)

The town of Cortlandville conducted the environmental review, was involved in the host community agreement 
negotiation, and is supportive of this project. Staff are recommending approval of CCIDA incentives for this 
project as further detailed in the project summary. 



Project Costs Value

Total construction project costs: $9,082,333 <- as defined by NYS Labor Law 224-a

Industry NAICS % of Total Investment Investment by 
Type

237130 100% $9,082,333
Must be 100%----> 100% $9,082,333 ERROR

Escalation Factor 2%
% Value PILOT Term (Years) 15

Sales Tax Exemption $0

Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption $0
Total Costs $496,849 Includes PILOT exemption, calculated below.

Year # Year
Property Tax WITHOUT 

Project
 PILOT $250/MW

Property Tax on Full 
Project Assessment

Difference in 
Current vs. PILOT

Difference PILOT vs 
Full Taxes

1 2026 $39,627 $1,250 $67,802 -$38,377 -$66,552
2 2027 $40,420 $1,275 $63,357 -$39,145 -$62,082
3 2028 $41,228 $1,301 $57,943 -$39,927 -$56,642
4 2029 $42,052 $1,327 $53,114 -$40,726 -$51,787
5 2030 $42,894 $1,353 $48,469 -$41,540 -$47,116
6 2031 $43,751 $1,380 $44,267 -$42,371 -$42,887
7 2032 $44,626 $1,408 $39,316 -$43,219 -$37,909
8 2033 $45,519 $1,436 $34,264 -$44,083 -$32,828
9 2034 $46,429 $1,465 $28,987 -$44,965 -$27,522

10 2035 $47,358 $1,494 $24,016 -$45,864 -$22,522
11 2036 $48,305 $1,524 $19,214 -$46,781 -$17,690
12 2037 $49,271 $1,554 $15,470 -$47,717 -$13,916
13 2038 $50,257 $1,585 $11,594 -$48,671 -$10,009
14 2039 $51,262 $1,617 $7,425 -$49,645 -$5,808
15 2040 $52,287 $1,649 $3,228 -$50,638 -$1,579

Total $685,286 $21,617 $518,466 -$663,669 -$496,849

Year # Year
HCA for Towns 

$2,100/MW
HCA for County 

$1,800/MW

1 2026 $10,500 $9,000  - 
2 2027 $10,710 $9,180  - 
3 2028 $10,924 $9,364  - 
4 2029 $11,143 $9,551  - 
5 2030 $11,366 $9,742  - 
6 2031 $11,593 $9,937  - 
7 2032 $11,825 $10,135  - 
8 2033 $12,061 $10,338  - 
9 2034 $12,302 $10,545  - 

10 2035 $12,548 $10,756  - 
11 2036 $12,799 $10,971  - 
12 2037 $13,055 $11,190  - 
13 2038 $13,317 $11,414  - 
14 2039 $13,583 $11,642  - 
15 2040 $13,855 $11,875  - 

Total $181,581 $155,641

This proposal varies from the agency's Uniform Tax Policy (UTEP), which calls for an overall reduction of 65% of property taxes over a 10-year 
period. This request is for a 90% reduction over a 15-year period. This deviation is primarily due to Host Community Agreements with 
Cortlandville and Cortland County. Additionally, this proposal also departs from the UTEP in that payments will be made to the taxing 

jurisdictions in each year of the agreement; there are no "zero" years.

Estimated Costs of Incentives

Property Tax Exemption

Project Costs

Construction Economic Impacts

Power and Communication Line and Related Structures Construction

Fiscal Impact Assumptions

Project Summary

Cortland County Industrial Development Agency
Crown City Solar 3, LLC

Route 11, Cortlandville NY
Monday, March 9, 2026

Additional Comments from the IDA
The underlying land taxes are not subject to this request  and will remain on the tax rolls. Prior to the sale/lease of this property for this project, the land tax 
was primarily assessed as mining. Therefore, the current underlying land will be reassessed at an industrial rate for those acres with arrays. Fire district 
tax is a special district tax and is not exempt under the PILOT.  Crown City 3, LLC will continue to pay a Fire District Tax on the underlying land as well as a 
new tax on the assessed value of the infrastructure (solar array).  The fire district tax revenue generated for the 15 year period is approximately $18,546.

Does the IDA believe that the project can be accomplished in a timely fashion?   Yes
Does this project provide onsite childcare facilities?  No



  

A regular meeting of Cortland County Industrial Development Agency (the 
"Agency") was convened in public session at the offices of the Agency located at 40 
Main Street, Suite A, in the City of Cortland, Cortland County, New York on March 9, 
2026 at 12:00 o'clock p.m., local time. 
 
 The meeting was called to order by the Chair and, upon roll being called, the 
following members of the Agency were: 
 
 PRESENT: 
 

Michael McMahon   Chairman 
Stephen Compagni   Vice Chairman 
Clinton Brooks   Secretary 
Deborah Hayden   Treasurer 
Kathleen Burke   Member 
William McGovern   Member 
Jason Hage    Member  

 
 ABSENT: 
 
 
FOLLOWING PERSONS WERE ALSO PRESENT: 
 

Melanie Vilardi   Executive Director  
Andrea Skeels   Director of Finance and Project Development 
Ashley Riehlman   Community Relations Specialist 
John P. Sidd, Esq.   Agency Counsel 

 
 
 The following resolution was offered by _________________, seconded by 
_____________, to wit: 
 

Resolution No. ______________ 
 

RESOLUTION DETERMINING THAT A PROJECT FOR 
CROWN CITY SOLAR 3, LLC TO CONSTRUCT A 4.9 
MEGAWATT COMMUNITY SOLAR PROJECT WILL 
REQUIRE NO DETERMINATION OF SIGNIFICANCE OR 
ADDITIONAL SEQRA REVIEW. 

 
 WHEREAS, Cortland County Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency") is 
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New 
York, constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the 
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "Enabling Act") and Chapter 77 of 
the 1974 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 902 of said General 
Municipal Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred 
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to as the "Act") to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, 
constructing, reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of 
commercial facilities, among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and 
developing economically sound commerce and industry to advance the job 
opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the 
State of New York, to improve their prosperity and standard of living, and to prevent 
unemployment and economic deterioration; and 
 
 WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and 
empowered under the Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more 
"projects" (as defined in the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed, 
reconstructed and installed, and to convey said projects or to lease said projects with 
the obligation to purchase; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Crown City Solar 3, LLC (the "Company") has presented an 
application (the "Application") to the Agency, a copy of which was presented at this 
meeting and copies of which are on file at the office of the Agency, requesting that the 
Agency consider undertaking a project (the "Project") consisting of the following: (A) (1) 
the acquisition of an interest in a ± 15 acre portion of certain parcels of land, including a 
pond, consisting of ±131.10 acres (the "Land") located at 3911 US Route 11, in the 
Town of Cortlandville, Cortland County, New York (2) construction of a 4.9 MW AC 
floating solar photovoltaic facility and related infrastructure on the Land (the "Facility") 
and (3) the acquisition and installation therein and thereon of fixtures and equipment 
comprising the Facility (the "Equipment"), all of the foregoing to constitute a solar 
photovoltaic facility to be operated by the Company (the Land, Facility and Equipment 
being collectively referred to as the "Project Facility"); (B) the granting of certain 
"financial assistance" (within the meaning of Section 854(14) of the Act) with respect to 
the foregoing, including potential exemptions from certain sales taxes, real estate 
transfer taxes, mortgage recording taxes and real property taxes (collectively, the 
"Financial Assistance"); and (C) the lease (with an obligation to purchase) or sale of the 
Project Facility to the Company or such other person as may be designated by the 
Company and agreed upon by the Agency; and 
 
  WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, 
Chapter 43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended ("SEQRA") and the 
regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the New York State Department of 
Environmental Conservation (the “SEQRA Regulations”), no agency involved in an 
action may undertake, fund or approve the action until the requirements of SEQRA have 
been complied with; and  
 
 WHEREAS, a coordinated SEQRA review of the Project was undertaken by the 
Town of Cortlandville Planning Board (the “Planning Board”) acting as lead agency; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on or about July 26, 2025, the Planning Board determined that the 
Project would not cause a significant adverse environmental impact (a “Negative 
Declaration”); and 
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 WHEREAS, Section 617.6(b)(3) of the SEQRA Regulations provides that if a 
lead agency exercises due diligence in identifying all other involved agencies and 
provides written notice of its determination of significance to the identified involved 
agencies, then no involved agency may later require the preparation of an EAF, a 
negative declaration or an EIS in connection with the action, and the determination of 
significance issued by the lead agency following coordinated review is binding on all 
other involved agencies; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Board duly identified the Agency as an involved agency 
and provided the Agency with written notice of its Negative Declaration.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF CORTLAND 
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  The Planning Board duly recognized the Agency as an involved 
agency while conducting a coordinated SEQRA review of the Project and provided 
written notice to the Agency that it had issued a Negative Declaration.   
   
 Section 2.   The Planning Board’s Negative Declaration stands in full force and 
effect and is binding upon the Agency. 
  

Section 3.   Based upon the foregoing, no determination of significance will be 
issued by the Agency and no further SEQRA review of the Project is required by the 
Agency.   
 
 Section 4.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 
 The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote 
on roll call, which resulted as follows: 
 

Michael McMahon   VOTING ______________ 
 Stephen Compagni   VOTING ______________ 
 Clinton Brooks   VOTING ______________ 
 Deborah Hayden   VOTING ______________ 
 Kathleen Burke   VOTING ______________ 
 William McGovern   VOTING ______________ 

Jason Hage    VOTING ______________ 
  
 The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared and duly adopted. 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
COUNTY OF CORTLAND )  ss.: 
 
 I, the undersigned Secretary of Cortland County Industrial Development Agency 
(the "Agency"), DO HEREBY CERTIFY, that I have compared the foregoing extract of 
the minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the Resolution 
contained therein, held on March 9, 2026 with the original thereof on file in my office, 
and that the same is a true and correct copy of such proceedings of the Agency and of 
such Resolution set forth therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same 
related to the subject matters therein referred to. 
 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 
meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respect duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the 
Public Officers Law (the "Open Meetings Law"), said meeting was open to the general 
public and due notice of the time and place of said meeting was given in accordance 
with such Open Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the 
Agency present through said meeting. 
 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in 
full force and effect and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of 
the Agency this 9th day of March, 2026. 
 
        __________________________ 
        Clinton Brooks, Secretary 



A regular meeting of Cortland County Industrial Development Agency (the 
"Agency") was convened in public session at the offices of the Agency located at 40 Main 
Street, Suite A, in the City of Cortland, Cortland County, New York on March 9, 2026 at 
12:00 o'clock p.m., local time. 
 
 The meeting was called to order by the Chair and, upon roll being called, the 
following members of the Agency were: 
 
 PRESENT: 
 

Michael McMahon   Chairman 
Stephen Compagni   Vice Chairman 
Clinton Brooks   Secretary 
Deborah Hayden   Treasurer 
Kathleen Burke   Member 
William McGovern   Member 
Jason Hage    Member  

 
 ABSENT: 
 
 
FOLLOWING PERSONS WERE ALSO PRESENT: 
 

Melanie Vilardi   Executive Director  
Andrea Skeels   Director of Finance and Project Development 
Ashley Riehlman   Community Relations Specialist 
John P. Sidd, Esq.   Agency Counsel 

 
 
 The following resolution was offered by _________________, seconded by 
_____________, to wit: 
 

Resolution No. ______________ 
 

RESOLUTION TAKING PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL ACTION 
TOWARD THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, 
INSTALLATION AND LEASING OF A CERTAIN 
COMMERCIAL PROJECT FOR CROWN CITY SOLAR 3, 
LLC 

 
WHEREAS, Cortland County Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency") is 

authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New 
York, constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the 
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "Enabling Act") and Chapter 77 of the 
1974 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 902 of said General Municipal 
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Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the 
"Act") to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, 
reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of commercial facilities, 
among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing economically 
sound commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity 
and economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their prosperity 
and standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and 

 
WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and 

empowered under the Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more 
"projects" (as defined in the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed, 
reconstructed and installed, and to convey said projects or to lease said projects with the 
obligation to purchase; and 

 
WHEREAS, Crown City Solar 3, LLC (the "Company") has presented an 

application (the "Application") to the Agency, a copy of which was presented at this 
meeting and copies of which are on file at the office of the Agency, requesting that the 
Agency consider undertaking a project (the "Project") consisting of the following: (A) (1) 
the acquisition of an interest in a ± 15 acre portion of certain parcels of land, including a 
pond, consisting of ± 131.10 acres (the "Land") located at 3911 US Route 11, in the Town 
of Cortlandville, Cortland County, New York (2) construction of a 4.9 MW AC floating solar 
photovoltaic facility and related infrastructure on the Land (the "Facility") and (3) the 
acquisition and installation therein and thereon of fixtures and equipment comprising the 
Facility (the "Equipment"), all of the foregoing to constitute a solar photovoltaic facility to 
be operated by the Company (the Land, Facility and Equipment being collectively referred 
to as the "Project Facility"); (B) the granting of certain "financial assistance" (within the 
meaning of Section 854(14) of the Act) with respect to the foregoing, including potential 
exemptions from certain sales taxes, real estate transfer taxes, mortgage recording taxes 
and real property taxes (collectively, the "Financial Assistance"); and (C) the lease (with 
an obligation to purchase) or sale of the Project Facility to the Company or such other 
person as may be designated by the Company and agreed upon by the Agency; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency has given due consideration to the Application and to 

representations by the Company that (A) the granting by the Agency of the Financial 
Assistance with respect to the Project will be an inducement to the Company to undertake 
the Project in Cortland County, New York, and (B) the completion of the Project Facility 
will not result in the removal of an industrial or manufacturing plant of the Company or 
any other proposed occupant of the Project Facility from one area of the State of New 
York to another area of the State of New York or in the abandonment of a plant or facility 
of the Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project Facility located in the State 
of New York; and 
   

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to encourage the Company to preserve and 
advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the 
people of Cortland County, New York by undertaking the Project in Cortland County, New 
York; and 
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WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter 

43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "SEQR Act"), and the 
regulations (the "Regulations") adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of 
Environmental Conservation of the State of New York (collectively with the SEQR Act, 
"SEQRA"), by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on March 9, 2026 (the 
"SEQR Resolution"), the Agency has determined that it was an involved agency in a 
coordinated SEQRA review of the Project undertaken by the Town of Cortlandville 
Planning Board (the “Planning Board”) acting as lead agency and that the negative 
declaration issued by the Planning Board following the coordinated review is binding on 
the Agency; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, any approval of the Project contained herein is 

contingent upon a determination by the members of the Agency to proceed with the 
Project following satisfaction of the public hearing and notice requirements and other 
procedural requirements contained in Section 859-a of the Act that relate to the Project;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF CORTLAND 

COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The Agency has reviewed the Application and based upon the 

representations made by the Company to the Agency in the Application and at this 
meeting and, based thereon, the Agency hereby makes the following findings and 
determinations with respect to the Project: 

 
(A) The Project constitutes a "project" within the meaning of the Act; and 
 
(B) The completion of the Project Facility will not result in the removal of an 

industrial or manufacturing plant of the Company or any other proposed occupant of the 
Project Facility from one area of the State of New York to another area of the State of 
New York and the completion of the Project Facility will not result in the abandonment of 
a plant or facility of a proposed occupant of the Project Facility located in the State of New 
York. 

 
(C) The Project Facility will not constitute a project where facilities or property 

that are primarily used in making retail sales of goods or services to customers who 
personally visit such facilities constitute more than one-third of the total cost of the Project; 
and 

 
(D) The granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency with respect to the 

Project, through the granting of the various tax exemptions described in Section 2(D) of 
this Resolution, will promote the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and 
economic welfare of the inhabitants of Cortland County, New York and the State of New 
York and improve their standard of living, and thereby serve the public purposes of the 
Act. 
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Section 2. If, following full compliance with the Act, including the public hearing 
requirements set forth in Section 859-a of the Act, the Agency adopts a future resolution 
(the "Future Resolution") determining to proceed with the Project and to grant the 
Financial Assistance with respect thereto and the Company complies with all conditions 
set forth in the Future Resolution, then the Agency will (A) acquire an interest in the 
Project Facility from the Company pursuant to a deed, lease agreement or other 
documentation to be negotiated between the Agency and the Company (the "Acquisition 
Agreement"); (B) construct the Facility and acquire and install the Equipment in the 
Facility or elsewhere on the Land; (C) lease (with the obligation to purchase) or sell the 
Project Facility to the Company pursuant to a lease agreement or an installment sale 
agreement (hereinafter the "Project Agreement") between the Agency and the Company 
whereby the Company will be obligated, among other things, (1) to make payments to the 
Agency in amounts and at times so that such payments will be adequate to enable the 
Agency to timely pay all amounts due on the Acquisition Agreement and (2) to pay all 
costs incurred by the Agency with respect to the Project and/or the Project Facility, 
including all costs of operation and maintenance, all taxes and other governmental 
charges, any required payments in lieu of taxes and the reasonable fees and expenses 
incurred by the Agency with respect to or in connection with the Project and/or the Project 
Facility, and (D) provide the Financial Assistance with respect to the Project, in 
accordance with the Agency's uniform tax exemption policy, including (1) exemption from 
mortgage recording taxes with respect to any documents recorded by the Agency with 
respect to the Project in the Office of the County Clerk of Cortland County, New York or 
elsewhere, (2) exemption from sales taxes relating to the acquisition, construction and 
installation of the Project Facility, (3) exemption from deed transfer taxes and real estate 
transfer gains taxes on real estate transfers to and from the Agency with respect to the 
Project, and (4) exemption from real estate taxes (but not including special assessments 
and special ad valorem levies) relating to the Project Facility, subject to the obligation of 
the Company to make payments in lieu of taxes with respect to the Project Facility. 

 
Section 3. If the Agency adopts the Future Resolution, the undertaking and 

completing of the Project by the Agency, and the granting of the Financial Assistance with 
respect to the Project as contemplated by Section 2 of this Resolution, shall be subject 
to: (A) the determination by the members of the Agency to proceed with the Project 
following a determination by the members of the Agency that all requirements of SEQRA 
that relate to the Project have been fulfilled; (B) agreement by the Agency and the 
Company on mutually acceptable terms for the conveyance of the Land to the Agency; 
(C) agreement between the Company and the Agency as to payment by the Company of 
payments in lieu of taxes with respect to the Project Facility, together with the 
administrative fee of the Agency with respect to the Project; (D) a determination by the 
members of the Agency to proceed with the granting of the Financial Assistance with 
respect to the Project following a determination by the members of the Agency that the 
public hearing and notice requirements and other procedural requirements contained in 
Section 859-a of the Act have been complied with; (E) the Agency's uniform tax exemption 
policy or if any portion of the Financial Assistance to be granted by the Agency with 
respect to the Project is not consistent with the Agency's uniform tax exemption policy, 
the Agency must follow the procedures for deviation from such policy set forth in Section 
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874(b) of the Act prior to granting such portion of the Financial Assistance; and (F) the 
following additional condition(s): the Company entering Host Community Agreements 
with Cortland County and the Town of Cortlandville in form and substance approved by 
the Agency. 

 
Section 4. The officers, agents and employees of the Agency are hereby 

authorized, empowered and directed to proceed with the undertakings provided for herein 
on the part of the Agency and are further authorized to do all such acts and things and to 
execute all such documents as may be necessary or convenient to carry out and comply 
with the terms and provisions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 5. John P. Sidd, Esq., of the law firm of Hancock Estabrook LLP is hereby 

appointed Special Counsel to the Agency with respect to all matters in connection with 
the Project. Special Counsel for the Agency is hereby authorized, at the expense of the 
Company, to work with the Company, counsel to the Company and others to prepare for 
submission to the Agency, all documents necessary to effect the transactions 
contemplated by this Resolution. 

 
Section 6. Pursuant to Section 875(3) of the Act, the Agency shall recover, 

recapture, receive, or otherwise obtain from the Company that portion of the Financial 
Assistance which constitutes state sales and use tax exemptions taken or purported to 
be taken by the Company to which the Company is not entitled or which are in excess of 
the amount authorized by the Agency or which are for property or services not authorized 
by the Agency as part of the Project or were taken by the Company when the Company 
failed to comply with a material term or condition to use property or services in the manner 
required by the Agency. The Company shall cooperate with the Agency in its efforts to 
recover, recapture, receive, or otherwise obtain such state sales and use tax exemptions 
and shall promptly pay over any such amounts to the Agency. The failure to pay over such 
amounts to the Agency shall be grounds for the New York State Commissioner of Taxation 
and Finance to assess and determine state sales and use taxes due from the Company 
under Article 28 of the Tax Law of the State of New York, together with any relevant 
penalties and interest due on such amounts. 

 
Section 7. The Executive Director of the Agency, prior to the granting of any 

Financial Assistance with respect to the Project, after consultation with Special Counsel, 
is authorized (A) to establish a time, date and place for a public hearing of the Agency to 
hear all persons interested in the location and nature of the Project Facility and the 
proposed Financial Assistance being contemplated by the Agency with respect to the 
Project, said public hearing to be held in the city, town or village where the Project Facility 
will be located; (B) to cause notice of such public hearing to be given to the public by 
publishing a notice of such hearing in a newspaper of general circulation available to 
residents of the governmental units where the Project Facility is to be located, such notice 
to comply with the requirements of Section 859-a of the Act and to be published no fewer 
than ten (10) days prior to the date established for such public hearing; (C) to cause notice 
of said public hearing to be given to the chief executive officer of the county and each city, 
town, village and school district in which the Project Facility is or is to be located no fewer 
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than ten (10) days prior to the date established for said public hearing; (D) to conduct 
such public hearing; and (E) to cause a report of said public hearing fairly summarizing 
the views presented at said public hearing to be promptly prepared. 

 
Section 8. The Chairman, Vice Chairman and Executive Director of the Agency are 

each hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the 
Company and to do such further things or perform such acts as may be necessary or 
convenient to implement the provisions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 9. This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll 
call, which resulted as follows: 
 

Michael McMahon   VOTING ______________ 
 Stephen Compagni   VOTING ______________ 
 Clinton Brooks   VOTING ______________ 
 Deborah Hayden   VOTING ______________ 
 Kathleen Burke   VOTING ______________ 
 William McGovern   VOTING ______________ 

Jason Hage    VOTING ______________ 
  
 The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared and duly adopted. 
 
STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
COUNTY OF CORTLAND )  ss.: 
 
 I, the undersigned Secretary of Cortland County Industrial Development Agency 
(the "Agency"), DO HEREBY CERTIFY, that I have compared the foregoing extract of the 
minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the Resolution contained 
therein, held on March 9, 2026 with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the 
same is a true and correct copy of such proceedings of the Agency and of such Resolution 
set forth therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same related to the subject 
matters therein referred to. 
 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 
meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respect duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the 
Public Officers Law (the "Open Meetings Law"), said meeting was open to the general 
public and due notice of the time and place of said meeting was given in accordance with 
such Open Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency 
present through said meeting. 
 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in full 
force and effect and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded. 
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 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the 
Agency this 9th day of March, 2026. 
 
        __________________________ 
        Clinton Brooks, Secretary 
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CORTLAND COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

IMPORTANT NOTICE: The answers to the questions contained in this application are necessary to 
determine the applicant’s eligibility for financial assistance from the Cortland County Industrial 
Development Agency. The answers will also be used in the preparation of papers in  this transaction. 
Accordingly, an officer or other employee of the applicant who is thoroughly familiar with the business 
and affairs of the applicant and who is also thoroughly familiar with the proposed project should answer 
all questions accurately and completely. This application is subject to acceptance by the Agency.  

TO: CORTLAND COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
37 CHURCH STREET 
CORTLAND, NEW YORK 13045 

APPLICANT:__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

APPLICANT'S STREET ADDRESS:__________________________________________________________________ 

CITY:_________________________________ STATE:__________________PHONE NO.:______________________ 

E-MAIL ADDRESS:___________________________________________________________________________________

NAME OF PERSON(S) AUTHORIZED TO SPEAK FOR APPLICANT WITH RESPECT TO THIS 
APPLICATION:_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

IF APPLICANT IS REPRESENTED BY AN ATTORNEY, COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING: 

NAME OF FIRM:_____________________________________________________________________________  

NAME OF ATTORNEY:_________________________________________________________________________ 

ATTORNEY’S STREET ADDRESS:______________________________________________________________ 

CITY:_________________________________ STATE:__________________PHONE NO.:______________________ 

E-MAIL ADDRESS:___________________________________________________________________________________

 ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  
NOTE: PLEASE READ THE INSTRUCTIONS ON PAGE 2 BEFORE FILLING OUT THIS 
APPLICATION 
 ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  

INSTRUCTIONS 

Crown City Solar 3 LLC 
4201 Main Street STE 200-206

Houston TX (203) 482-7817

dg@thirdpillarsolar.com

Edward Horneffer
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1. The Agency will not approve any applications unless, in the judgment of the Agency, said application contains sufficient 
information upon which to base a decision whether to approve or tentatively approve an action. 

2. Fill in all blanks, using "none" or "not applicable" or "N/A" where the question is not appropriate to the project which is the 
subject of this application (the “Project”). 

3. If an estimate is given as the answer to a question, put "(est)" after the figure or answer, which is estimated. 

4. If more space is needed to answer any specific question, attach a separate sheet. 

5. When completed, return two (2) copies of this application to the Agency at the address indicated on the first page of this 
application. 

6. The Agency will not give final approval to this application until the Agency receives a completed environmental assessment 
form concerning the Project, which is the subject of this application. 

7. Please note that Article 6 of the Public Officers Law declares that all records in the possession of the Agency (with certain 
limited exceptions) are open to public inspection and copying.  If the applicant feels that there are elements of the Project 
which are in the nature of trade secrets or information, the nature of which is such that if disclosed to the public or otherwise 
widely disseminated would cause substantial injury to the applicant’s competitive position, the applicant may identify such 
elements in writing and request that such elements be kept confidential in accordance with Article 6 of Public Officers Law. 

8. The applicant will be required to pay to the Agency all actual costs incurred in connection with this application and the Project 
contemplated herein (to the extent such expenses are not paid out of the proceeds of the Agency’s bonds issued to finance the 
project).  The applicant will also be expected to pay all costs incurred by general counsel and bond counsel to the Agency.  The 
costs incurred by the Agency, including the Agency’s general counsel and bond counsel, may be considered as a part of the 
project and included as a part of the resultant bond issue. 

9. The Agency has established an application fee of Five Hundred Dollars ($500) to cover the anticipated costs of the Agency in 
processing this application. A check or money order made payable to the Agency must accompany each application.  THIS 
APPLICATION WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED BY THE AGENCY UNLESS ACCOMPANIED BY THE APPLICATION FEE. 

10. The Agency has established a project fee for each project in which the Agency participates.  UNLESS THE AGENCY AGREES IN 
WRITING TO THE CONTRARY, THIS PROJECT FEE IS REQUIRED TO BE PAID BY THE APPLICANT AT OR PRIOR TO THE 
GRANTING OF ANY FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE BY THE AGENCY. 

FOR AGENCY USE ONLY 

1. Project Name or Number _________________________________________________ 

2. Date Application Received by Agency ________________________________________, 20____ 

3. Date Application Referred to Attorney for Review ________________________________________, 20____ 

4. Date Copy of Application Mailed to Members ________________________________________, 20____ 

5. Date Notice of Agency Meeting on Application Posted ________________________________________, 20____ 

6. Date Notice of Agency Meeting on Application Mailed ________________________________________, 20____ 

7. Date of Agency Meeting on Application ________________________________________, 20____ 

8. Date Agency Conditionally Approved Application ________________________________________, 20____ 

9. Date Scheduled for Public Hearing ________________________________________, 20____ 

10. Date Environmental Assessment Form ("EAF") Received ________________________________________, 20____ 

11. Date Agency Completed Environmental Review ________________________________________, 20____ 

12. Date of Final Approval of Application ________________________________________, 20____ 

I. APPLICANT INFORMATION-COMPANY TO RECEIVE BENEFITS (the “COMPANY”) 



Page ~3~ 

A. Identity of Company: 
 1. Company Name: _____________________________________________________________ 
  Present Address: ____________________________________________________________ 
  Zip Code: ___________________ Employer ID No.: __________________________ 
 
 2. Indicate type of business organization of Company: 
 
 a.  Corporation.  Incorporated in what country?___________________; 
   State:__________________;  Date Incorporated: _____________________; 
   Authorized to do business in New York State?  Yes _______  No_______ 
  i. Is the Corporation Publicly Held?  Yes____  No____.  If yes, please list 

exchanges where stock is traded:______________________________________ 
   ____________________________________________________________________________ 
  ii. If no, list all Stockholders having a 5% or more interest in the 

Company: 
 

Name Address Percentage of Holding 
   
   
   
   
   

 
 b.  Partnership.  General or Limited partnership?_____________________ 
                                               Name all partners below: 

 
Name Address General 

Partner 
Limited 
Partner 

    
    
    
    
    

 

Crown City Solar 3 LLC
4201 Main St STE 200-206, Houston TX

77002 994859479
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c.  Limited Liability Company.  Formed in what country _______________; 
State:______________;  Date of Formation:________________________________; 
Authorized to do business in New York State?  Yes_______  No_______; 
Name all members below: 

Name Address Membership Percentage 

d.  Sole proprietorship.  Name of Sole Proprietor:________________________ 

3. Is the Company a subsidiary or direct or indirect affiliate of any other
organization(s)? If so, indicate name of related organization(s) and
relationship:_________________________________________________________________

B. Management of Company:
List all officers/directors/managers (complete all columns for each person):

Name and Home Address Office Held 

C. Company/Management History:
1. Is the Company or management of the Company now a plaintiff or a

defendant in any civil or criminal litigation?  Yes______  No______.
2. Has any person listed above ever been convicted of a criminal offense

(other than a minor traffic violation)?  Yes______  No______.
3. Has any person listed above or any concern with whom such person

has been connected ever been in receivership or been adjudicated a
bankrupt?  Yes______  No______.

If the answer to any of questions 1 through 3 is yes, please furnish details in a separate 
attachment. 

USA

Delaware 08/16/2024

 X

TPSR Operating LLC 4201 Main Street Ste 200-206 Houston, TX 77002 100%

see below

Jaimeet Gulati President

James Bookout Vice President

Edward Horneffer Vice President

Darian Ghorbi Secretary

X

 X

 X
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II. PROPOSED PROJECT DATA 
 A. Description of the Project: 
 1. Please provide a narrative of the Project and the purpose of the 

Project (acquisition, construction, renovations and/or equipment 
purchases).  Identify specific uses occurring with the Project.  Describe 
any and all tenants and any/all end users (attach additional pages): 

  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 2. Describe the reasons why the Agency's Financial Assistance is 

necessary and the effect the Project will have on the Company's 
business or operations and any corresponding benefit to the Cortland 
County community (attach additional pages): 

  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 3. Is there a likelihood that the Project would not be undertaken but for 

the Financial Assistance provided by the Agency: 
 
    Yes     No 
 
 4. If the Project could be undertaken without the Financial Assistance 

provided by the Agency, then provide a statement indicating why the 
Project should be undertaken by the Agency (attach additional pages): 

  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 B. Location of Project: 
 
  1. Street Address: _______________________________________________________________ 
  2. City: ________________________________________________________________________  
  3. Town: ______________________________________________________________________  
  4. Village: _____________________________________________________________________  

5. Is any portion of the Project located outside of Cortland County?  If 
so, identify the other county: _____________________________________________  

  6. School District: ____________________________________________________________ 
  7. Tax Parcel Nos.: ___________________________________________________________  
  

The Project is a 4.9MWac floating photovoltaic system that will generate electricity for the town of Cortlandville.

The property is an existing mine pit at Suit-Kote Corporation's Polkville Crushed Stone facility.

Floating solar has higher up front cost than standard ground mount sysytems, and project economics are challenging 

due to relatively low irradiance that reduces energy output and revenue.  The project will benefit the cortland county community 

by adding local, clean generation. 

N/A

3779 US-11
Cortland

Town of Cortlandville

N/A

No

Mcgraw School District

97.00-01-05.000, 97.00-01-31.000
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Description of the Project site:

Approximate size (in acres or square feet) of the Project site:___________
Attach a map, survey or sketch of the Project site.

Are there existing buildings on the Project Site?
Yes_______ No_______. If yes,

Indicate each existing building and indicate the approximate
size (in square feet) of each building:
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________

Are the existing buildings in operation? Yes_______ No_______. If
yes, describe the present use of each building in operation:
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________

Are the existing buildings abandoned? Yes_______ No_______;
About to be abandoned? Yes_______ No_______. If yes, describe:
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________

Attach photographs of existing buildings.

Utilities Serving the Project Site:

Water: Municipal ___ , Other ___.  If other, describe ________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
Sewer: Municipal___ , Other ___.  If other, describe _________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
Electric Utility Co.:____________________________________________________ 

Natural Gas Utility Co.: _______________________________________________ 

Other Utility Sources: _________________________________________________ 

4. Present Legal Owner of the Project Site:
a. If the Company owns the Project site, indicate:

Date of Purchase:______________________________________________

4.

665000 sq ft

X

 x

x
x

National Grid

Note the project is leasing 
a portion of the parcels 
listed
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 Purchase Price:________________________________________________ 

b. If the Company does not own the Project site, does the Company 
have the contractual right to purchase the Project site?  
Yes_______  No_______.  If yes, indicate: 

 Date Contract Signed:___________________________________________ 
 Date Ability to Purchase Expires:______________________________ 

c. If the Company does not own the Project site, is there a 
relationship legally or by common control between the 
Company and present owner of the Project site? 

 Yes_________  No_________.  If yes, describe: 
______________________________________________________________________  
______________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________ 

  5. Zoning District in which the Project is located:_________________________  

6. Are there any variances or special permits affecting the Project site  
now or which need to be obtained to complete the Project? 
Yes_______  No_______.  If yes, list below and attach copies of all 
variances or special permits: 
______________________________________________________________________________  
______________________________________________________________________________  
______________________________________________________________________________ 

D. Description of the Proposed Construction:
1. Does part of the Project consist of the acquisition or construction of a 

new building or buildings?  Yes _____  No _____.  If yes, indicate number of
and size of new buildings: 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

2. Does part of the Project consist of additions and/or renovations to 
existing buildings located on the Project site?  Yes_______ No ______. If 
yes, indicate: 
a. The number of buildings to be expanded or renovated:_________ 
b. The size of any expansions:________________________________________ 

  _______________________________________________________________________
c. The nature of expansion and/or renovation: 

  _______________________________________________________________________

6.

 X

 X

Lease Agreement

Industrial

X

Site Plan Approval (Conditional Permit), SEQR Negative Declaration and Aquifer Protection District Permit

x

x
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   _______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 3. Describe the principal uses to be made by the Company of the building 

or buildings to be acquired, constructed or expanded: 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 E. Description of the Equipment: 
 1. Does part of the Project consist of the acquisition or installation of 

machinery, equipment or other personal property (the “Equipment”)? 
  Yes_______  No _______.  If yes, describe the Equipment: 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 2. With respect to the Equipment to be acquired, will any of the 

Equipment be previously used Equipment? 
  Yes_______  No_______. If yes, please provide detail below: 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 3. Describe the principal uses to be made by the Company of the 

Equipment to be acquired or installed: 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 F. Project Use: 
 
  1. What are the principal products to be produced at the Project site? 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 2. What are the principal activities to be conducted at the Project? 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 X 
12,292 Modules, 1 DC/AC converter/1 Transformer

 X

The project will generate renewable energy by converting
sunlight into electricity to be delivered onto the local distribution
system and available for purchase by local residents and businesses.

A 4.9MWac community solar project.  The project is being developed 
in accordance with the NYSERDA NYSUN guidelines for the 
Community Distributed Generation Program. 

The conversion of sunlight into electricity. 
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 3. Does the Project include facilities or property that are primarily used in 

making retail sales of goods or services to customers who personally 
visit such facilities? 

  Yes______  No______.  If yes please provide detail: 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
  _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 4. If the answer to question 3 is yes, what percentage of the cost of the 

Project will be expended on such facilities or property primarily used 
in making retail sales of goods or services to customers who 
personally visit the Project?  ________% 

 
 5. If the answer to question 3 is yes, and the answer to question 4 is 

more than 33.33%, indicate whether any of the following apply to the 
Project: 

 
 a. Will the Project be operated by a not-for-profit corporation? 

Yes_______  No_______. If yes, please explain: 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 b. Is the Project likely to attract a significant number of visitors 

from outside the economic development region (as established 
by Section 230 of the Economic Development Law) in which 
the Project will be located? 

  Yes ______  No ______.  If yes, please explain: 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 c. Would the Project occupant, but for the contemplated Financial 

Assistance from the Agency, locate the related jobs outside of 
New York State? 

  Yes _______  No _______. If yes, please explain: 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 d. Is the predominant purpose of the Project to make available 

goods or services which would not, but for the Project, be 

  x

N/A

 X

N/A

 X
N/A

 X
N/A



Page ~10~ 

reasonably accessible to the residents of the city, town or 
village within which the Project will be located because of a 
lack of reasonably accessible retail trade facilities offering such 
goods or services? 

  Yes______  No_______.  If yes, please provide detail: 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 e. Will the Project be located in one of the following: (i) an area 

which was designed as an empire zone pursuant to Article 18-B 
of the General Municipal Law; or (ii) a census tract or block 
numbering area (or census tract or block numbering area 
contiguous thereto) which, according to the most recent census 
data, has (a) a poverty rate of at least 20% for the year in which 
the data relates, or at least 20% of households receiving public 
assistance, and (b) an unemployment rate of at least 1.25 times 
the statewide unemployment rate for the year to which the data 
relates? 

  Yes______; No_______. If yes, please explain: 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 6. If the answers to any of subdivisions c. through e. of question 5 are 

yes, will the Project preserve permanent, private sector jobs or 
increase the overall number of permanent, private sector jobs in the 
State of New York? 

  Yes ______  No______. If yes, please explain: 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 7. Will the completion of the Project result in the removal of an industrial 

or manufacturing plant of the Company or another proposed occupant 
of the Project (a “Project Occupant”) from one area of the State of New 
York to another area of the State of New York? 

  Yes_______  No _______. If yes, please explain: 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 8. Will the completion of the Project result in the abandonment of one or 

more plants or facilities of the Company or a Project Occupant located in 

X
N/A

 X
 N/A

 X
N/A

 X
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the State of York? 
  Yes_______  No______. If yes, provide detail: 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 9. If the answer to either question 7 or question 8 is yes, indicate whether 

any of the following apply to the Project: 
 
 a. Is the Project reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive 

position of the Company or such Project Occupant in its 
industry? 

  Yes_______; No______.  If yes, please provide detail: 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 b. Is the Project reasonably necessary to discourage the Company 

or such Project Occupant from removing such other plant or 
facility to a location outside the State of New York? 

  Yes_______  No_______.  If yes, please provide detail: 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 G. Project Status: 
 
 1. If the Project includes the acquisition of any land or buildings, have 

any steps been taken toward acquiring same? 
  Yes_____  No_____.  If yes, please discuss in detail the approximate stage 

of such acquisition: 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 2. If the Project includes the acquisition of any Equipment, have any steps 

been taken toward acquiring same? 
  Yes_______  No______.  If yes, please discuss in detail the approximate 

stage of such acquisition: 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 X

N/A

N/A

 X

N/A

 X

Deposits being completed by mid February
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 3. If the Project involves the construction or reconstruction of any 

building or other improvement, has construction work on any such 
building or improvement begun?  Yes ______  No_______.  If yes, please 
discuss in detail the approximate extent of construction and the extent 
of completion.  Indicate in your answer whether such specific steps 
have been completed as site clearance and preparation; completion of 
foundations; installation of footings; etc.: 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 4. Please indicate the amount of funds expended on the Project by the 

Applicant in the past three (3) years and the purpose of such 
expenditures: 

 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
III. INFORMATION CONCERNING LEASES OR SUBLEASES OF THE PROJECT 
 (PLEASE COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING SECTION IF THE APPLICANT INTENDS 

TO LEASE OR SUBLEASE ANY PORTION OF THE PROJECT) 
 A. Does the Company intend to lease or sublease more than 10% (by area or fair 

market value) of the Project?  Yes_______  No _______.  If yes, please complete 
the following for each existing or proposed tenant or subtenant: 

 
  Sublessee Name:_____________________________________________________________ 

Present Address: ________________________________________________________  
City: _________________________ State: __________________ Zip: _______________  
Employer’s ID No.: __________________________________________________________  
Sublessee is: ______Corporation; ______Partnership; ______; Limited 
Liability Company; ______Sole Proprietor 
Relationship to Company: _______________________________________________  
Percentage of Project to be leased or subleased: ________________________  
Use of Project intended by Sublessee: __________________________________  
Date of lease or sublease to Sublessee: ___________________________________  
Term of lease or sublease to Sublessee: ________________________________  
Will any portion of the space leased by this sublessee be primarily used 
in making retail sales of goods or services to customers who personally 
visit the Project?  Yes_______  No______. 
If yes, please provide on a separate attachment 

 x

N/A

 X
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 a. details; and 
 b. the answers to questions II (F) (4) through (6) with 

respect to such sublessee. 
 

B.         What percentage of the space intended to be leased or subleased is now 
subject to a binding written lease or sublease? _______________% 

 
IV. EMPLOYMENT IMPACT 

 A. Indicate below the number of people presently employed at the Project Site 
and the number that will be employed at the Project site at the end of the first 
and second years after the Project has been completed (Do not include 
construction workers).  Also indicate below the number of workers employed 
at the Project site representing newly created positions as opposed to 
positions relocated from other project sites of the Applicant. 

 
 Current # of 

Jobs at 
proposed 
Project location 
or to be 
relocated to 
Project location 

If Financial 
Assistance is 
granted, 
estimate the 
number of 
FTE and PTE 
jobs to be 
Retained 

If Financial 
Assistance is 
granted, 
estimate the 
number of FTE 
and PTE jobs to 
be Created by 
Two years after 
Project 
completion 

Estimate number 
of residents of 
the Labor 
Market Area in 
which the 
Project is located 
that will fill the 
retained and 
created FTE and 
PTE jobs Two 
years after 
Project 
completion** 

Present Full Time     
Present Part Time     
First Year Full Time     
First Year Part Time     
Second Year Full Time     
Second Year Part Time     
Total:     

**For purposes of the question, please estimate in the fourth column the number of FTE and PTE 
jobs, as indicated in the second and third columns, that will be filled by residents of the Labor 
Market Area.  The Labor Market Area includes Cortland County as well as the counties of Cayuga, 
Onondaga, Tompkins, Broome and Chenango. 

0 0 0
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Category of Jobs to be 
Retained and Created 

Estimated Average Salary 
or Range of Salary 

Estimated Average Fringe 
Benefits or Range of Fringe 
Benefits 

Management   
Professional   
Administrative   
Production   
Independent Contractors   
Other   
 
 B. Please state the anticipated date of completion of the Project site and the 

anticipated date of occupancy of the Project site: 
  Project Site Completion Date: ______________________________________________________ 
  Project Site Occupancy Date:________________________________________________________ 
 
V. PROJECT COST 
 
 A. State the costs reasonably necessary for the acquisition of the Project site, the 

construction of the proposed buildings and the acquisition and installation of 
any machinery and equipment necessary or convenient in connection 
therewith, and including any utilities, access roads or appurtenant facilities, 
using the following categories: 

 
Description of Cost: Amount: 
 
Land Acquisition $_______________________ 
Building Construction $_______________________ 
Building Renovation $_______________________ 
Machinery and equipment costs $_______________________ 
Utilities, roads and appurtenant costs $_______________________ 
Architects and engineering fees $_______________________ 
Costs of Bond issue (legal, financial and printing) $_______________________ 
Construction loan fees and interest (if applicable) $_______________________ 
Other (specify) 
__________________________________ $_______________________ 
__________________________________ $_______________________ 
__________________________________ $_______________________ 
__________________________________ $_______________________ 
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS: $_______________________ 
 

 B. Have any of the above expenditures already been made by the Applicant? 
  Yes_______  No________. If yes, indicate particulars: 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 

12/31/2026

12/31/2026

8,874,000
121,000
87,333

9,082,333

X

permitting, design, and engineering spend (Architects and Engineering fees)
TPS has invested significant amounts in lease option expenses (Land Acquisition),
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VI. FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE EXPECTED FROM THE AGENCY

A. Tax Benefits:
1. Is the Applicant requesting a real property tax exemption in

connection with the Project from the Agency?  Yes_______  No_______.

2. Is the Applicant expecting to be appointed agent of the Agency for
purposes of receiving an exemption from N.Y.S. Sales Tax or
Compensating Use Tax?  Yes_______  No_______.

3. Is the Applicant requesting a mortgage recording tax exemption in
connection with the Project from the Agency?  Yes_______  No_______.

4. What is the estimated value of each type of tax exemption being
sought in connection with the Project?  Please detail the type of tax
exemption and value of each exemption:
a. N.Y.S. Sales and Compensating Use Taxes: $_________________ 
b. Mortgage Recording Taxes: $_________________ 
c. Real Property Taxes: $_________________ 

(Please consult with the Agency in
calculating the estimated value of the
real property tax exemption)

d. Other (please specify):
___________________________________ $_________________ 
___________________________________ $_________________ 
___________________________________ $_________________ 

5. Are any of the tax-exemptions being sought in connection with the
Project inconsistent with the Agency’s Uniform Tax-exemption Policy?
Yes _______  No_______.  If yes, please explain how the request of the
Applicant differs from the Agency’s Uniform Tax-Exemption Policy:
_______________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________

B. Financing:

1. Is the Applicant requesting that the Agency issue bonds to assist in
financing the Project?  Yes________  No________.  If yes, indicate:
a. Principal Amount of Bonds Requested $_________________
b. Maturity Requested _________________ Years
c. Is the Interest on such bonds intended to be exempt from

federal income taxation?  Yes________ No_________.

X

X

X

0

496,849

 X

The developer and long term owner & operator of the project is requesting a

15-year PILOT payment based on $250/MW, escalating at 2% per year.

This term is longer than the uniform Tax Exemption Policy allows.

There will also be HCA agreements of $2,100/MW, 2% annual escalation with the Town of

Cortlandville and $1,800/MW, 2% annual escalation to Cortland County for 15 years.

X
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 2. What is the approximate amount of private sector financing to be 

obtained?  $_________________________.  Is the Applicant expecting that 
the private sector financing of the Project will be secured by one or 
more mortgages?  Yes______  No_______. 

  If yes, what is the approximate amount of private sector financing to 
be secured?  $_________________________. 

 
 3. Is the Applicant expecting that any of the financing of the Project 

will come from public sector sources?  Yes______  No_______. 
  What is the approximate amount of public sector financing to be 

obtained?  $_________________________. 
  If yes, is the Company expecting that the public sector financing of 

the Project will be secured by one or more mortgages or grant 
agreements?  Yes______  No_______. 

  If yes, what is the approximate amount of public sector financing to 
be secured?  $_________________________. 

   
 4. Please state the approximate amount to be invested in the Project 

(not borrowed or the subject of a grant) by the Applicant 
$_________________________. 

 
 5. Please state the approximate total amount of borrowed funds to be 

invested in the Project $__________________. 
 
VII. REPRESENTATIONS BY THE APPLICANT 
 The Applicant understands and agrees with the Agency as follows: 
 
 A. Job Listings:  In accordance with Section 858-b (2) of the New York General 

Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project 
receives any Financial Assistance from the Agency, except as otherwise 
provided by collective bargaining agreements, new employment 
opportunities created as a result of the Project will be listed with the New York 
State Department of Labor Community Services Division (the "DOL") and with 
the administrative entity (collectively with the DOL, the "JTPA Entities") of the 
service delivery area created by the Federal Job Training Partnership Act 
(Public Law 97-300) ("JTPA") in which the Project is located. 

 
 B. First Consideration for Employment:  In accordance with Section 858-b (2) 

of the New York General Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees 
that, if the Project receives any Financial Assistance from the Agency, except 
as otherwise provided by collective bargaining agreements, where 
practicable, the Applicant will first consider persons eligible to participate in 
JTPA programs who shall be referred by the JTPA Entities for new employment 
opportunities created as a result of the Project. 

 

9,080,000

X

X

0

X

0

0

9,080,000
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 C. Local Workforce Development: The Applicant understands and agrees that 
if the Project receives Financial Assistance from the Agency, except as 
provided by collective bargaining where practicable, the Applicant will 
increase the skill base of the local workforce through training, opportunities 
for professional development and career track advancement. 

 
 D. Annual Sales Tax Filings:  In accordance with Section 874(8) of the New York 

General Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the 
Project receives any sales tax exemptions as part of the Financial Assistance 
from the Agency, in accordance with Section 874(8) of the General Municipal 
Law, the Applicant agrees to file, or cause to be filed, with the New York State 
Department of Taxation and Finance, the annual form prescribed by the 
Department of Taxation and Finance, describing the value of all sales tax 
exemptions claimed by the Applicant and all consultants or subcontractors 
retained by the Applicant. 

 
 E. Annual Employment Reports:  The Applicant understands and agrees that, 

if the Project receives any Financial Assistance from the Agency, the Applicant 
will file, or cause to be filed, with the Agency, on an annual basis, reports 
regarding the number of people employed at the Project site. 

 
 F. Absence of Conflicts of Interest:  The Applicant has received from the Agency 

a list of the members, officers and employees of the Agency.  No member, 
officer or employee of the Agency has an interest, whether direct or indirect, 
in any transaction contemplated by this Application, except as hereinafter 
described: 

  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 G. Federal, State and Local Laws:  The Applicant/Owner/Occupant/Operator 

receiving the Financial Assistance understands and agrees that it must be, at 
all times, in compliance with applicable local, state and federal tax, worker 
protection and environmental laws, rules and regulations. 

 
 H. Environmental Matters: The Applicant acknowledges that certain 

environmental representations will be required at closing.  The Applicant shall 
provide copies of any known environmental reports, including any existing 
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Report(s) and/or Phase II 
Environmental Investigations.  The Agency may require the Company and/or 
Owner of the Premises to prepare and submit an environmental assessment 
and audit report including, but not limited to, a Phase I Environmental Site 
Assessment Report and a Phase II Environmental Investigation, with respect 
to the Premises at the sole cost and expense of the Owner and/or the Applicant.  
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All environmental assessment and audit reports shall be completed in 
accordance with ASTM Standard Practice E1527-13, and shall be conformed 
over to the Agency so that the Agency is authorized to use and rely on the 
reports.  The Agency, however, does not adopt, ratify, confirm or assume any 
representation made with reports required herein. 

 
 I. Release: The Applicant and/or Owner, and their successors and assigns, 

hereby release, defend and indemnify the Agency from any and all suits, causes 
of action, litigations, damages, losses, liabilities, obligations, penalties, claims, 
demands, judgments, costs, disbursements, fees or expenses of any kind or 
nature whatsoever (including, without limitation, attorneys', consultants' and 
experts' fees) which may at any time be imposed upon, incurred by or asserted 
or awarded against the Agency resulting from or arising out of any inquiries 
and/or environmental assessments, investigations and audits performed on 
behalf of the Applicant and/or Owner pursuant hereto, including the scope, 
level of detail, contents or accuracy of any environmental assessment, audit, 
inspection or investigation report completed hereunder and/or the selection 
of the environmental consultant, engineer or other qualified person to perform 
such assessments, investigations and audits. 

 
 J. Hold Harmless Provision:  The Applicant acknowledges and agrees that the 

Applicant shall be and is responsible for all costs of the Agency incurred in 
connection with any actions required to be taken by the Agency in furtherance 
of the Application including the Agency's costs of general counsel and/or the 
Agency's bond/transaction counsel whether or not the Application, the 
proposed Project it describes, the attendant negotiations, or the issue of bonds 
or other transaction or agreement are ultimately ever carried to successful 
conclusion and agrees that the Agency shall not be liable for and agrees to 
indemnify, defend and hold the Agency harmless from and against any and all 
liability arising from or expense incurred by: (i) the Agency's examination and 
processing of, and action pursuant to or upon, the Application, regardless of 
whether or not the Application or the proposed Project described herein or the 
tax exemptions and other assistance requested herein are favorably acted 
upon by the Agency; (ii) the Agency's acquisition, construction and/or 
installation of the proposed Project described herein; and (iii) any further 
action taken by the Agency with respect to the proposed Project including, 
without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all causes of action and 
attorneys' fees and any other expenses incurred in defending any suit or 
actions which may arise as a result of any of the foregoing.  Applicant hereby 
understands and agrees, in accordance with Section 875(3) of the New York 
General Municipal Law and the policies of the Agency that any New York State 
and local sales and use tax exemption claimed by the Applicant and approved 
by the Agency, any mortgage recording tax exemption claimed by the Applicant 
and approved by the Agency, and/or any real property tax abatement claimed 
by the Applicant and approved by the Agency in connection with the Project, 
may be subject to recapture and/or termination by the Agency under such 
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terms and conditions as will be established by the Agency and set forth in 
transaction documents to be entered into by and between the Agency and the 
Applicant.  The Applicant further represents and warrants that the information 
contained in this Application including, without limitation, information 
regarding the amount of the New York State and local sales and use tax 
exemption benefit, the amount of the mortgage recording tax exemption 
benefit, and the amount of the real property tax abatement, if and as applicable, 
to the best of the Applicant's knowledge, is true, accurate and complete. 

 
 K. False or Misleading Information.  The submission of any knowingly false or 

misleading information by the applicant may lead to the immediate 
termination of any Financial Assistance and the reimbursement of an amount 
equal to all or part of any tax exemptions claimed by reason of Agency 
involvement in the Project. 
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Welcome 

1.1 About the IDA/BDC/CCDC 

The Cortland County Business Development Corporation (IDA/BDC/CCDC) is a nonprofit 

economic development organization serving Cortland County. It’s designated as a 501(c)(6) 

business league focused on improving local business conditions by supporting existing 

companies, attracting new investment, and encouraging job creation and expansion within the 

county.  

As the lead economic development agency for the county, the IDA/BDC/CCDC works closely 

with partners such as the Cortland County Industrial Development Agency (IDA) and other 

public and private stakeholders to identify challenges faced by local businesses, implement 

growth strategies, and promote programs that raise awareness of federal, state, and local 

assistance opportunities.  

The organization plans and executes marketing efforts both inside and outside the region to 

support business expansion, new business establishment, and broader economic investment. It 

also helps with planning, funding, and developing infrastructure and site improvements to 

facilitate business growth.  

Mission Statement 
The Cortland County Business Development Corporation seeks to improve the quality of 
life in Cortland County by retaining and expanding existing job opportunities, attracting 
new jobs, and stimulating the investment of capital in the county. 

List of Performance Goals 
Working with the Cortland County Industrial Development Agency the Business 
Development Corporation will: 

• Act as the county’s lead economic development agency; 

• Actively support and further the interests of county-based businesses; 

• Will meet regularly with county businesses to identify and mitigate obstacles for 

growth and to exploit opportunities for growth; 

• Will plan and implement programs to increase awareness of federal, state, and local 

business assistance programs; 

• Will plan and implement marketing efforts both inside and outside of Cortland 

County that target the expansion of existing businesses, the establishment of new 

business, and the attraction of new companies, people, and investment to the 

county; 
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• Will assist in the planning, funding, and development of sites, buildings, 

infrastructure, and other programs and activities to facilitate business 

development and expansion; 

• Will represent the interests of local governments with our federal and state elected 

officials with respect to economic development; and 

• Will maintain relationships with federal, state, and regional elected officials and 

economic development allies to further Cortland County’s economic development 

program objectives 

About the Industrial Development Agency (“IDA”) 

Public Authority’s Mission Statement (adopted February 2011) 

The Cortland County Industrial Development Agency seeks to improve the quality of life in 

Cortland County by retaining and expanding existing job opportunities, attracting new jobs, and 

stimulating the investment of capital in the county. 

List of Performance Goals 

Working with the Cortland County Business Development Corporation the 

Industrial Development Agency will: 

 

• Act as the county’s lead economic development agency; 

• Actively support and further the interests of county-based businesses; 

• Will meet regularly with county businesses to identify and mitigate obstacles 

for growth and to exploit opportunities for growth; 

• Will plan and implement programs to increase awareness of federal, state, and local 

business assistance programs; 

• Will plan and implement marketing efforts both inside and outside of Cortland 

County that target the expansion of existing businesses, the establishment of 

new business, and the attraction of new companies, people, and investment to 

the county; 

• Will assist in the planning, funding, and development of sites, buildings, 

infrastructure, and other programs and activities to facilitate business 

development and expansion; 

• Will represent the interests of local governments with our federal and state 

elected officials with respect to economic development; and 

• Will maintain relationships with federal, state, and regional elected officials and 

economic development allies to further Cortland County’s economic 

development program objectives 
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The Cortland County Industrial Development Corporation (IDA) is a nonprofit economic 

development organization serving Cortland County. It’s designated as a 501(c)(6) business 

league focused on improving local business conditions by supporting existing companies, 

attracting new investment, and encouraging job creation and expansion within the county.  

As the lead economic development agency for the county, the IDA works closely with partners 

such as the Cortland County Industrial Development Agency (IDA) and other public and private 

stakeholders to identify challenges faced by local businesses, implement growth strategies, and 

promote programs that raise awareness of federal, state, and local assistance opportunities.  

The organization plans and executes marketing efforts both inside and outside the region to 

support business expansion, new business establishment, and broader economic investment. It 

also helps with planning, funding, and developing infrastructure and site improvements to 

facilitate business growth.  

About the Cortland County Development Corporation (“CCDC”) 
 
Public Authority’s Mission Statement (adopted February 2011) 

To stimulate economic growth and to lessen the burdens of government through facilitating 

investments that will promote the creation and preservation of employment opportunities for the 

residents of Cortland County, improve the quality of life of Cortland County citizens and 

generate 

prosperity and encourage economic vibrancy for Cortland County as a whole by using available 

incentives including the issuance of negotiable bonds for Cortland County’s non-profit 

organizations, 

providing those organization with access to capital. 
 

List of Performance Goals 

Working with the Cortland County Business Development Corp and the Cortland County 

Industrial 

Development Agency, the Cortland County Development Corporation will: 

• Support the IDA/BDC as the county’s lead economic development agency; 

• Actively support and further the interests of county-based businesses; 

• Will meet regularly with cunty businesses to identify and mitigate obstacles for growth and to 

exploit opportunities for growth; 

• Will assist in the planning and implementation of marketing efforts both inside and outside of 

Cortland County that target the expansion of existing businesses, the establishment of new 

business, and the attraction of new companies, people, and investment to the county; 

• Will assist in the planning, funding, and development of sites, buildings, infrastructure, and 

other programs and activities to facilitate business development and expansion; 

• Will represent the interests of local governments with our federal and state elected officials 

with respect to economic development and maintain those relationships to further the County’s 

economic objectives 

1.2 Purpose of this Handbook 
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The Board of Directors shall be responsible for the implementation and administration of all 
personnel policies.  The Executive Director shall be responsible for the distribution of polices and 
day to day oversight of policy guidelines.  

The IDA/BDC/CCDC complies with all federal and state employment laws, and this handbook 
generally reflects those laws. The IDA/BDC/CCDC also complies with any applicable local laws, 
although there may not be an express written policy regarding those laws contained in the 
handbook. 

The employment policies and/or benefits summaries in this handbook are written for all Personnel, 
including full time administrative staff, interns and part time employees. In the event of a conflict 
between the benefit summaries in this handbook and the benefit plan documents or contracts, 
the benefit plan documents and contracts control. 

Please take the time now to read this handbook carefully. Sign the acknowledgment at the end to 
show that you have read, understand, and agree to the contents of this handbook, which sets out 
the basic rules and guidelines concerning your employment. This handbook supersedes any 
previously issued handbooks or policy statements dealing with the subjects discussed herein. The 
IDA/BDC/CCDC reserves the right to revise, add, suspend, revoke, terminate, change or delete 
from this handbook as we determine to be in the IDA/BDC/CCDC's best interest at any time. 
When changes are made to the policies and guidelines contained herein, we will endeavor to 
communicate them in a timely fashion. 

Neither this handbook nor any other communication from a director, officer, employee or other 
IDA/BDC/CCDC representative, whether oral or written, is intended in any way to create a 
contract of employment. Please understand that no employee handbook can address every 
situation in the workplace. 

If you have questions about your employment or any provisions in this handbook, contact the 
Executive Director.  

 

1.3 At-Will Employment 

Your employment with the IDA/BDC/CCDC is on an "at-will" basis. This means your employment 
may be terminated at any time, with or without notice and with or without cause. Likewise, we 
respect your right to leave the IDA/BDC/CCDC at any time, with or without notice and with or 
without cause. 

Nothing in this handbook or any other IDA/BDC/CCDC document, except for a written contract 
signed by the Executive Director or Chairman of the Board, should be understood as creating a 
contract, guaranteed or continued employment, a right to termination only "for cause," or any 
other guarantee of continued benefits or employment. 
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1.0 Workplace Commitments 

1.1 Mission Statement 

We are committed to strengthening the region’s economy through collaboration, innovation, and 
responsible stewardship of resources, creating opportunities that enhance prosperity and quality 
of life for residents and businesses throughout Cortland County. 

1.2 Code of Ethics  

The Cortland County Business Development Corporation (IDA/BDC/CCDC) is committed to 
fostering sustainable economic growth, supporting local businesses, and enhancing the quality 
of life in Cortland County. This Code of Ethics establishes the standards of conduct for all board 
members, officers, employees, contractors, and volunteers engaged with the organization. 

1.3 Conflicts of Interest 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC's Conflicts of Interest Policy provides for a systematic and ongoing method 
of assisting members of the Board of Directors and Employees (as defined in the Conflicts of 
Interest Policy) in disclosing and resolving potential conflicts of interest, thus assuring the 
community and the public at large of the good faith and integrity of the employees, officers and 
members of the Board of Directors in the management of the IDA/BDC/CCDC. The 
IDA/BDC/CCDC's Conflicts of Interest Policy is intended to supplement but not replace any 
applicable state laws governing conflicts of interest applicable to nonprofit and charitable 
corporations.  

1.4 Disability Accommodation 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC complies with all federal, state and local fair employment practices laws, 
and is committed to providing equal employment opportunities to qualified individuals with 
disabilities, including disabilities related to pregnancy, childbirth, and related conditions. 
Consistent with this commitment, the IDA/BDC/CCDC will provide reasonable accommodation to 
otherwise qualified individuals where appropriate to allow the individual to perform the essential 
functions of the job, unless doing so would create an undue hardship on the business. 

If you require an accommodation because of your disability, it is your responsibility to notify your 
Supervisor. You may be asked to include relevant information such as: 

A description of the proposed accommodation. 

The reason you need an accommodation. If you have a non-obvious disability, you may be asked 
to provide medical documentation. 

How the accommodation will help you perform the essential functions of your job. 

After receiving your request, the IDA/BDC/CCDC will engage in an interactive dialogue with you 
to determine the precise limitations of your disability and explore potential reasonable 
accommodations that could overcome those limitations. 

Where appropriate, we may need your permission to obtain additional information from your 
medical provider. All medical information received by the IDA/BDC/CCDC in connection with a 
request for accommodation will be treated as confidential. 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC encourages you to suggest specific reasonable accommodations that you 
believe would allow you to perform your job. However, the IDA/BDC/CCDC is not required to 
make the specific accommodation requested by you and may provide an alternative 
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accommodation, to the extent any reasonable accommodation can be made without imposing an 
undue hardship on the IDA/BDC/CCDC. 

If leave is provided as a reasonable accommodation, such leave may run concurrently with other 
leaves provided for by an applicable law, where permitted. 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC will not discriminate or retaliate against employees for requesting an 
accommodation. 

 

1.5 Equal Employment Opportunity 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC is committed to complying with all federal, state, and local equal employment 
laws. To that end, the IDA/BDC/CCDC is dedicated to maintaining a work environment that is free 
from harassment and discrimination on the basis of age, race, creed, color, national origin 
(including ancestry), religion, gender or sex, gender identity or expression, sexual orientation, 
pregnancy (including childbirth and related medical conditions), alienage or citizenship status 
(unless required by law), disability, marital status, partnership status, caregiver status, domestic 
violence victim status, familial status, military status, genetic information (including genetic 
characteristics), or any other protected status under federal, state, or local laws. The 
IDA/BDC/CCDC is dedicated to the fulfillment of this policy with respect to all aspects of 
employment, including, but not limited to, recruiting, hiring, placement, transfer, training, 
promotion, compensation, termination, and all other terms, conditions, and privileges of 
employment. 

We are all responsible for upholding this policy. You may discuss questions regarding equal 
employment opportunity with your Supervisor or any other member of management. 

1.6 Religious Accommodation 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC is dedicated to treating its employees with respect and recognizes the 
diversity of their religious beliefs. The IDA/BDC/CCDC makes reasonable accommodations (e.g., 
adjustments to the work environment or the IDA/BDC/CCDC's policies or practices) for employees 
whose sincerely held religious beliefs, practices or observances conflict with work requirements, 
unless the accommodation would create an undue hardship. 

If you require a religious accommodation, speak with the Executive Director. 

1.7 Harassment-Free Workplace Policy 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC maintains a policy on the prevention of Sexual Harassment and other forms 

of harassment as required by New York State Law. See Appendix **. 

1.8 Whistleblower Policy 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC requires directors, key volunteers, and employees to observe high 
standards of business and personal ethics in the conduct of their duties and responsibilities. 
Employees and representatives of the organization must practice honesty and integrity in fulfi lling 
their responsibilities and comply with all applicable laws and regulations. Each director, key 
volunteer, and employee of the IDA/BDC/CCDC has an obligation to report in accordance with 
the IDA/BDC/CCDC's Whistleblower Policy: (a) questionable or improper accounting or auditing 
matters, and (b) violations and suspected violations of the IDA/BDC/CCDC's Code of Ethics 
and/or Conflicts of Interest Policy. The IDA/BDC/CCDC's Whistleblower Policy establishes clear 
policies and procedures for raising concerns in good faith, how concerns are reviewed and 
confidentiality requirements. Please refer to the IDA/BDC/CCDC's Whistleblower Policy for more 
information. 
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1.9 Employment of Relatives 

We will not employ friends or relatives in circumstances where actual or potential conflicts may 
arise that could compromise supervision, safety, confidentiality, security, and morale at the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC. It is your obligation to inform the IDA/BDC/CCDC of any such potential conflict 
so the IDA/BDC/CCDC can determine how best to respond to the particular situation. Failure to 
inform the Executive Director of any such potential conflict may result in discipline, up to and 
including termination of employment. 

For the purposes of this policy a "relative" is defined as one of the following: spouse or significant 
other, parent/ stepparent, child/stepchild, grandparent, grandchild, brother/brother-in-law, 
sister/sister-in-law, uncle, aunt, nephew, niece, first cousin, in-laws (father, mother, son daughter). 

1.10 Substance-Free Workplace 

To help ensure a safe, healthy and productive work environment for our employees and others, 
to safeguard the IDA/BDC/CCDC's property, and to ensure efficient operations, the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC has adopted a policy of maintaining a workplace free of illegal drugs and alcohol. 

All employees are prohibited from using, selling, purchasing, dispensing, distributing, possessing 
or manufacturing alcohol or illegal drugs, or attempting to do any such act, on IDA/BDC/CCDC 
property, or during working hours, and from reporting to work or performing any work with alcohol 
or illegal drugs in their system. 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC may ask an employee to submit to a drug and/or alcohol test when there is 
reasonable suspicion that the employee may be under the influence of illegal drugs or alcohol, 
including, but not limited to, the following circumstances: evidence of drugs or alcohol on or about 
the employee's person or in the employee's vicinity, where there is reasonable suspicion to 
believe the employee is under the influence (such as unusual conduct on the employee's part that 
suggests impairment or influence of drugs or alcohol, negative performance patterns, or 
excessive and unexplained absenteeism, tardiness or abuses of break time), or the employee is 
involved in an accident under circumstances where alcohol or illegal drug use was likely to have 
contributed to the incident. 

Refusing to submit to a drug and/or alcohol test is considered insubordination. Violation of this 
policy will result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination. 

1.11 General Safety Policy 

It is the responsibility of all IDA/BDC/CCDC employees to maintain a healthy and safe work 
environment. Report all safety hazards and occupational illnesses or injuries to your Supervisor 
as soon as reasonably possible and complete an occupational illness or injury form as needed. 
Failure to follow the IDA/BDC/CCDC health and safety rules may result in disciplinary action, up 
to and including termination of employment. See your Supervisor if you have specific questions 
or safety concerns. 

1.12 Injury Reporting 

Employees have the right, and obligation to, report any work-related injuries and illnesses to the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC. An employee who suffers a work-related injury or illness must report such 
injuries and illnesses in accordance with the following procedure: 

Promptly notify your Supervisor or the Executive Director of any injury or illness at work, no matter 
how slight. 

The report shall be made as soon as practicable (generally no later than the same working day 
during which the injury or illness occurred). 
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The report shall accurately describe the circumstances of the injury or illness. 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC and the law prohibit discharging or discriminating against employees for 
reporting work-related injuries or illnesses. 

1.13 Policy Against Workplace Violence 

As the safety and security of our employees, vendors, contractors, and the general public is in 
the best interests of the IDA/BDC/CCDC, we are committed to working with our employees to 
provide a work environment free from violence, intimidation, and other disruptive behavior. 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC has a zero tolerance policy regarding workplace violence and will not 
tolerate acts or threats of violence, harassment, intimidation, and other disruptive behavior, either 
physical or verbal, which occurs in the workplace or other areas. This applies to management, 
co-workers, employees, and non-employees such as contractors, customers, and visitors. 

Workplace violence can include oral or written statements, gestures, or expressions that 
communicate a direct or indirect threat of physical harm, damage to property, or any intentional 
behavior that may cause a person to feel threatened. 

Prohibited conduct includes, but is not limited to: 

• Physically injuring another person. 

• Threatening to injure a person or damage property by any means, including verbal, written, 
direct, indirect, or electronic means. 

• Taking any action to place a person in reasonable fear of imminent harm or offensive 
contact. 

• Possessing, brandishing, or using a firearm on IDA/BDC/CCDC property or while 
performing IDA/BDC/CCDC business. 

• Violating a restraining order, order of protection, injunction against harassment, or other 
court order. 

Report to your Supervisor or the Executive Director, in accordance with this policy, any behavior 
that compromises our ability to maintain a safe work environment. All reports will be investigated 
immediately and kept confidential, except where there is a legitimate need to know. You are 
expected to cooperate in any investigation of workplace violence. 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC prohibits retaliation against an employee who in good faith reports a violation 
of this policy. If you believe you have been wrongfully retaliated against, immediately report the 
matter to the Executive Director or the Personnel Committee. 

Violating this policy may subject you to criminal charges as well as discipline up to and including 
immediate termination of employment. 

1.14 Grievance Procedures 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC strives to provide a comfortable, productive, legal, and ethical work 
environment. Employee disputes and grievances are best resolved informally directly between an 
employee and their Supervisor. However, the IDA/BDC/CCDC recognizes that there are 
situations when a formal procedure may be beneficial and additional perspectives may be needed 
to review a dispute. 

The purpose of this policy is to provide an opportunity for IDA/BDC/CCDC employees to internally 
resolve disputes arising out of conduct or activity concerning IDA/BDC/CCDC rules, regulations 
and policies. Employees utilizing this process in good faith will be protected from any retaliatory 



 11 of 52 

 

 

actions, such as reprimands or harassment. All concerns will be resolved as expeditiously and as 
confidentially as possible.  

Procedure 

1. If you believe there is inappropriate conduct or activity on the part of the IDA/BDC/CCDC, 
management, its employees, vendors, customers, or any other persons or entities related 
to the IDA/BDC/CCDC, bring your concerns to the attention of your Supervisor at a time 
and place that will allow the person to properly listen to your concern. 

2. If you have already brought this matter to the attention of your Supervisor before and do 
not believe you have received a sufficient response, or if you believe that person is the 
source of the problem, present your concerns to the Executive Director.  Describe the 
problem, those persons involved in the problem, efforts you have made to resolve the 
problem, and any suggested solution you may have. 

3. The Executive Director shall promptly report any grievance he or she receives  to the 
Personnel Committee for review.  Within ten days of the initial report, the Executive 
Director shall advise the Personnel Committee of actions taken to resolve the grievance.  

4. Concerns regarding the Executive Director should be first directed to the Personnel 
Committee.  

5. Employees who disagree with a determination issued by the Executive Director shall have 
the right to appeal the decision directly to the Personnel Committee within five days of 
being advised of the decision.  The decision by the Personnel Committee shall be final 
and binding.  

Notwithstanding procedures established in any of the IDA/BDC/CCDC's policies, employees are 
expected to follow the problem-solving procedures set forth in this policy.  An exception applies 
for harassment concerns which should be reported pursuant to that policy.  

2.0 Wage and Timekeeping Policies 

At the IDA/BDC/CCDC, pay may depend on a wide range of factors, including pay scale surveys, 
individual effort, performance, market forces, among other factors. If you have any questions 
about your compensation, including matters such as paid time off, overtime, benefits, or paycheck 
deductions, speak with your Supervisor. 

2.1 Attendance Policy 

Employees are expected to arrive on time and ready for work. If you know ahead of time that you 
will be absent or late, provide reasonable advance notice to your Supervisor. In every case of 
illness or emergency, a call must be made early on the first day of absence to notify the Executive 
Director, except in the case of pre-approved leaves of absence for a specified duration. You may 
be required to provide documentation of any medical or other excuse for being absent or late, 
where permitted by applicable law. 

2.2 Work Schedules 

Business office hours are to be set by the Executive Director in consultation with the board of 
directors to ensure that the administrative offices are accessible to the public during normal 
business hours. Typical office hours are 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday. 

Your Supervisor is responsible for providing you with your work schedule and your work schedule 
may change at the discretion of your Supervisor. You are expected to work the schedule provided 
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to you. Deviations from your standard work schedule are not permitted unless you receive written 
authorization from your Supervisor. 

Full-time employees are expected to work 40 hours per week. Non-exempt employees may not 
work more than 40 hours a week without prior written approval from their Supervisor. 

Failure to abide by your required work schedule may result in discipline, up to and including 
termination of employment. 

2.3 Timekeeping 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC is required by applicable federal, state, and local laws to keep accurate 
records of hours worked by certain employees. To ensure that the IDA/BDC/CCDC has complete 
and accurate time records and that employees are paid for all hours worked, non-exempt 
employees are required to record all working time using Outlook. No "off the clock" work is 
permitted at any time. Exempt employees may also be required to track days or time worked.  

Notify your Supervisor of any pay discrepancies, unrecorded or mis-recorded work hours, or any 
involuntarily missed meal or break periods. Falsifying time entries is strictly prohibited. Falsifying 
time entries includes working "off the clock." If you falsify your own time records, or the time 
records of co-workers, or if you work "off the clock," you will be subject to discipline up to and 
including termination.  

2.4 Overtime 

If you are non-exempt, you may qualify for overtime pay. All overtime work must be approved in 
advance, in writing, by your Supervisor. 

At certain times, the IDA/BDC/CCDC may require you to work overtime. We will attempt to give 
as much notice as possible in this instance. However, advance notice may not always be possible. 
Failure to work overtime when requested or working unauthorized overtime may result in 
discipline, up to and including termination. 

Unless otherwise required or exempted by law, overtime pay of one and one-half times your 
regular rate of pay is paid for any hours worked in excess of 40 hours in a workweek. Holidays, 
vacation days, and sick leave days do not count as time worked for computing overtime. 

2.5 Job Abandonment 

If you fail to show up for work or call in with an acceptable reason for the absence for a period of 
three consecutive days, you will be considered to have abandoned your job and voluntarily 
resigned from the IDA/BDC/CCDC. 

2.6 Pay Period 

At the IDA/BDC/CCDC, the standard pay period is bi-weekly. 

If you enroll in direct deposit, you can access your electronic pay stubs online. Ask the Executive 
Director for instructions on how to access online payroll records. You may view and print your 
paystub at the IDA/BDC/CCDC for no charge. Review your paycheck for accuracy. If you find an 
issue, report it to your Supervisor immediately. 

2.7 Direct Deposit 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC encourages all employees to enroll in direct deposit. If you would like to take 
advantage of direct deposit, ask the Director of Administration or the Executive Director for an 
application form. Typically, the IDA/BDC/CCDC will begin the direct deposit of your payroll within 
30 calendar days after you submit your completed application. 
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If you have selected the direct deposit payroll service, a written explanation of your deductions 
and digital pay stubs can be downloaded from the payroll provider's online portal at no cost to 
you. Contact your Supervisor for information on how to access these online records. 

2.8 Paycheck Deductions 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC is required by law to make certain deductions from your pay each pay period. 
This includes income and unemployment taxes, Federal Insurance Contributions Act (FICA) 
contributions (Social Security and Medicare), and any other deductions required under law or by 
court order for wage garnishments. The amount of your tax deductions will depend on your 
earnings and the number of exemptions you list on your federal Form W-4 and applicable state 
withholding form. You may also authorize voluntary deductions from your paycheck, including 
contributions for insurance premiums, retirement plans, spending accounts, or other services. 
Your deductions will be reflected in your wage statement. 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC will not make deductions to your pay that are prohibited by federal, state, or 
local law. If you have any questions about deductions from your pay, contact your Supervisor. 
You will be reimbursed in full for any isolated, inadvertent, or improper deductions, as defined by 
law. If an error is found, you will receive an immediate adjustment, which will be paid no later than 
your next regular payday. 

2.9 Accommodations for Nursing Mothers 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC will provide nursing mothers at least 30 minutes paid break time when the 
employee has reasonable need to  express milk for their infant child(ren) for up to three years 
following the child's birth. 

If you are nursing, the IDA/BDC/CCDC will make reasonable efforts to provide you a private room, 
other than a restroom, to express milk. The room will be clearly designated, in close proximity to 
your work area, contain a chair and small table or other flat surface, and either have a lock or a 
sign on the door to indicate when the room is in use. 

Expressed milk can be stored in IDA/BDC/CCDC refrigerators. Sufficiently mark or label your milk 
to avoid confusion for other employees who may share the refrigerator. 

You are encouraged to discuss the length and frequency of these breaks with your Supervisor. 

2.10 Meal and Rest Periods 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC strives to provide a safe and healthy work environment and complies with 
all federal and state regulations regarding meal and rest periods. Employees working a shift of 
more than six hours must take at least 30 unpaid minutes for a meal midway through the shift 
(i.e., between the hours of 11:00 a.m. and 2:00 p.m.). The meal break cannot be taken at the start 
or end of the shift. So long as the employee works the number of hours per week that is expected 
of him/her in accordance with his/her work schedule, the employee is permitted to take up to 60 
minutes for the meal period. Meal breaks of less than 30 minutes or greater than 60 minutes are 
not permitted.  

2.11 Travel Time Pay 

Some non-exempt positions within the IDA/BDC/CCDC require travel. The IDA/BDC/CCDC pays 
non-exempt employees for travel time in accordance with federal and state law. 

2.12 Inclement Weather 

In the event that weather or road conditions warrant closing the office, you will generally receive 
a call from your Supervisor. Leadership may also elect to start early or dismiss early. If the office 
is not closed and you elect not to come in, you may be required to use any available paid leave 
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time to cover the absence. Please use your best judgment when making this decision, as it will 
be up to you to determine whether you can make it to the office safely. 

3.0 Employee Conduct 

3.1 Standards of Conduct 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC wishes to create a work environment that promotes job satisfaction, respect, 
responsibility, integrity, and value for all our employees and other stakeholders. We all share in 
the responsibility of improving the quality of our work environment. By deciding to work here, you 
agree to follow our rules. 

While it is impossible to list everything that could be considered misconduct in the workplace, 
what is outlined here is a list of common-sense infractions that could result in discipline, up to and 
including immediate termination of employment. This policy is not intended to limit our right to 
discipline or discharge employees for any reason permitted by law. 

Examples of inappropriate conduct include: 

• Violation of the policies and procedures set forth in this handbook. 

• Possessing, using, distributing, selling, or negotiating the sale of illegal drugs or other 
controlled substances. 

• Being under the influence of alcohol during working hours on IDA/BDC/CCDC property 
(including in IDA/BDC/CCDC vehicles), or on IDA/BDC/CCDC business. 

• Inaccurate reporting of the hours worked by you or any other employees. 

• Providing knowingly inaccurate, incomplete, or misleading information when speaking on 
behalf of the IDA/BDC/CCDC or in the preparation of any employment-related documents 
including, but not limited to, job applications, personnel files, employment review 
documents, intra-company communications, or expense records. 

• Taking or destroying IDA/BDC/CCDC property. 

• Possession of potentially hazardous or dangerous property (where not permitted) such as 
firearms, weapons, chemicals, etc., without prior authorization. 

• Fighting with, or harassment of (as defined in our Harassment-Free Workplace policy), 
any fellow employee, vendor, or customer. 

• Disclosure of IDA/BDC/CCDC trade secrets and proprietary and confidential 
commercially-sensitive information (i.e., financial or sales records/reports, marketing or 
business strategies/plans, product development information, customer lists, patents, 
trademarks, etc.) of the IDA/BDC/CCDC or it suppliers or vendors. 

• Insubordination. 

• Refusal or failure to follow safety rules and procedures. 

• Excessive tardiness or absences. 

• Smoking in non-designated areas. 

• Working unauthorized overtime. 

• Solicitation of fellow employees on IDA/BDC/CCDC premises during working time. 

• Failure to dress according to IDA/BDC/CCDC policy. 
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• Use of obscene or harassing (as defined by our Harassment-Free Workplace policy) 
language in the workplace. 

• Engaging in outside employment that interferes with your ability to perform your job at the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC. 

• Gambling on IDA/BDC/CCDC premises. 

• Lending keys or keycards to IDA/BDC/CCDC property to unauthorized persons. 

Disciplinary action for violation of the IDA/BDC/CCDC's policies and procedures, including these 
Standards of Conduct, will be handled on a case-by-case basis. Disciplinary action is not 
necessarily progressive and one form of discipline is not guaranteed to precede another. The 
IDA/BDC/CCDC reserves the right to take appropriate disciplinary action in its discretion for 
violations of its policies and procedures, including immediate termination. 
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3.2 Personal Appearance 

Your personal appearance reflects on the reputation, integrity, and public image of the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC. All employees are required to report to work neatly groomed and dressed. 

Business casual attire is appropriate, as long as it projects a professional image. Employees must 
use common sense and good judgment in relation to their attire when working in the office, 
attending meetings or traveling on business.  

You are expected to maintain personal hygiene habits that are generally accepted in the 
community, including clean clothing, good grooming and personal hygiene, and appropriate attire 
for the workplace and the work being performed.  

3.3 Personal Data Changes 

It is your obligation to provide the IDA/BDC/CCDC with your current contact information, including 
current mailing address and telephone number. Inform the IDA/BDC/CCDC of any changes to 
your marital or tax withholding status. Failure to do so may result in loss of benefits or delayed 
receipt of W-2 and other mailings.  

3.4 Use of Personal Vehicle and Maintenance of Valid Driver's License 

All employees required to operate a motor vehicle as part of their employment duties must 
maintain a valid driver's license, acceptable driving record, and appropriate insurance coverage. 
All employees required to operate a motor vehicle as part of their employment duties must provide 
notice to the Executive Director if the employee's license has been suspended or revoked at any 
point during employment at the IDA/BDC/CCDC, this may be grounds for termination. It is your 
responsibility to maintain coverage for your automobile. Any changes in your driving record, 
including, but not limited to, driving infractions, must be reported to the IDA/BDC/CCDC as soon 
as you become aware of them. 

State law requires all motorists to carry auto liability insurance. It is against the law to drive without 
insurance. If you use your own vehicle as a part of your employment duties, you must carry current 
proof of insurance statement or card in your automobile. New proof of insurance is required every 
time your policy expires and renews. 

If you use your personal vehicle in the course and scope of employment, you may not operate 
such vehicle while: 

Under the influence of drugs, alcohol, or any other substance that might impair your judgment or 
ability to drive; or 

Texting, emailing, or otherwise using a cell phone or other handheld device without utilizing a 
hands-free device. 

3.5 Criminal Activity/Arrests 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC will individually analyze  all criminal activity on a case-by-case basis,  in 
accordance with applicable NYS law. Involvement in criminal activity while employed by the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC, whether on or off IDA/BDC/CCDC property, may result in disciplinary action 
including suspension or termination of employment. 

 

 

3.6 Computer Security and Copying of Software 

Software programs purchased and provided by the IDA/BDC/CCDC are to be used only for 
creating, researching, and processing materials for IDA/BDC/CCDC use. By using 
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IDA/BDC/CCDC hardware, software, and networking systems you assume personal responsibility 
for their use and agree to comply with this policy and other applicable IDA/BDC/CCDC policies, 
as well as city, state, and federal laws and regulations. 

All software acquired for or on behalf of the IDA/BDC/CCDC, or developed by IDA/BDC/CCDC 
employees or contract personnel on behalf of the IDA/BDC/CCDC, is and will be deemed 
IDA/BDC/CCDC property. It is the policy of the IDA/BDC/CCDC to respect all computer software 
rights and to adhere to the terms of all software licenses to which the IDA/BDC/CCDC is a party. 

You may not illegally duplicate any licensed software or related documentation. Unauthorized 
duplication of software may subject you and/or the IDA/BDC/CCDC to both civil and criminal 
penalties under the United States Copyright Act. To purchase software, obtain your Supervisor's 
approval. 

You may not duplicate, copy, or give software to any outsiders including contractors, customers, 
or others. You may use software on local area networks or on multiple machines only in 
accordance with applicable license agreements entered into by the IDA/BDC/CCDC. 

3.7 Employer-Provided Cell Phone/Mobile Device Policy 

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidance to employees regarding eligibility for the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC-provided cell phones and plans, and the appropriate use of the phone and plan. 

You must have a legitimate business need for a cell phone/mobile device and the issuance of 
same must be approved by your Supervisor. The typical legitimate reasons employees may need 
a cell phone/mobile device include: job responsibilities that dictate large amount of time in the 
field away from the office during which time the employee must be reachable, frequent business 
travel, or for key personnel who must be immediately reachable during an emergency. 

IDA/BDC/CCDC-provided cell phones are not to be used for personal use. 

If you drive a vehicle during your employment, you may not use any cell phone/mobile device or 
other communication device while driving unless the device is equipped or configured with a 
"hands-free" listening/speaking option, and you in fact utilize the hands-free device in accordance 
with applicable traffic laws. This option must be approved by your Supervisor. 

As IDA/BDC/CCDC-issued mobile devices are the property of the IDA/BDC/CCDC, employees 
should maintain no expectation of privacy with respect to messages or other data stored on or 
transmitted through the mobile device. 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC owns and remains entitled to all cell phone/mobile devices, including all 
passwords controlling access to them. You may not change those passwords except with 
permission. At the time of employment termination, all such equipment and passwords must be 
returned to the IDA/BDC/CCDC in operable condition. 

3.8 Use of Employer Credit Cards 

Credit cards may be issued to an employee by the Executive Director for the sole purposes of 
use in connection with official IDA/BDC/CCDC business.  All employees in the possession of a 
credit card issued by the IDA/BDC/CCDC must adhere to the strictest guidelines of responsibility 
for the protection and proper use of that card. Credit card purchases over $250 must receive prior 
approval from your Supervisor. Sales receipts for all purchases using IDA/BDC/CCDC credit 
cards must be obtained and saved by the employee. The employee must submit all sales receipts 
generated by use of the IDA/BDC/CCDC credit card weekly to the CFO. 

Your IDA/BDC/CCDC credit card may not be used for any personal purpose. Personal use 
prohibited under this policy includes temporary "holds" placed on the card for personal hotel 
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rooms, rental cars, or any other non-business expense. Use of the IDA/BDC/CCDC credit card is 
restricted to pre-approved, business-related expenses only. 

Immediately report lost or stolen IDA/BDC/CCDC cards to your Supervisor. Failure to follow this 
policy may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination. 

3.9 Personal Cell Phone/Mobile Device Use 

While the IDA/BDC/CCDC permits employees to bring personal cell phones and other mobile 
devices (i.e., smart phones, PDAs, tablets, laptops} into the workplace, you must not allow the 
use of such devices to interfere with your job duties or impact workplace safety and health. 

Use of personal cell phones and mobile devices at work can be distracting and disruptive and 
cause a loss of productivity. Thus, you should primarily use such personal devices during non-
working time, such as breaks and meal periods. During this time, use devices in a manner that is 
courteous to those around you. Outside of non-working time, use of such devices should be 
minimal and limited to emergency use only. 

You are expected to comply with IDA/BDC/CCDC policies regarding the protection of confidential 
and proprietary information when using personal devices. 

While operating a vehicle on work time, the IDA/BDC/CCDC requires that the driver's personal 
cell phone/mobile device be turned off. If you need to make or receive a phone call while driving, 
pull off the road to a safe location unless you have the correct hands-free equipment for the device 
that is in compliance with applicable state laws. 

You may connect your personal device to the IDA/BDC/CCDC public Wi-Fi network, but not to 
IDA/BDC/CCDC equipment (computers, printers, etc.). 

You may have the opportunity to use your personal devices for work purposes. Before using a 
personal device for work-related purposes, you must obtain written authorization from 
management. The use of personal devices is limited to certain employees and may be limited 
based on compatibility of technology. If you are authorized to use a personal device, you will 
receive a monthly stipend based on the estimated use of the device. If you obtain or currently 
have a plan that exceeds the monthly stipend, the IDA/BDC/CCDC will not be liable for the cost 
difference. 

You will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment for 
violation of this policy. 

3.10 Off-Duty Use of Employer Property or Premises 

You may not use IDA/BDC/CCDC property or equipment for personal use. This includes but is 
not limited to use of the IDA/BDC/CCDC's real property, copy machines, computers, phones, 
cameras, or office supplies for personal use without prior authorization. 

You are responsible for maintaining IDA/BDC/CCDC property in good condition and repairing or 
replacing any property damaged as the result of negligence. 

It is IDA/BDC/CCDC policy to control off-duty and nonworking hour use of IDA/BDC/CCDC 
property and facilities either for business or personal reasons. You are prohibited from using 
IDA/BDC/CCDC property and facilities during off-duty or nonworking hours without the written 
consent of your Supervisor. If you use IDA/BDC/CCDC property or facilities during your off-duty 
hours or IDA/BDC/CCDC off-hours, you may be required to sign a log-in and log-out sheet 
maintained by the IDA/BDC/CCDC or building manager. 
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3.11 Security 

All employees are responsible for helping to make the IDA/BDC/CCDC a secure work 
environment. Upon leaving work, lock all desks, lockers, and doors protecting valuable or 
sensitive material in your work area and report any lost or stolen keys, passes, or similar devices 
to your Supervisor immediately. Refrain from discussing specifics regarding IDA/BDC/CCDC 
security systems, alarms, passwords, etc. with those outside of the IDA/BDC/CCDC. 

Immediately advise your Supervisor of any known or potential security risks and/or suspicious 
conduct of employees, customers, or guests of the IDA/BDC/CCDC. Safety and security is the 
responsibility of all employees and we rely on you to help us keep our premises secure. 

3.12 Social Media Policy and Web Usage 

At the IDA/BDC/CCDC, we recognize the Internet provides unique opportunities to participate in 
interactive discussions and share information using a wide variety of social media. However, use 
of social media also presents certain risks and carries with it certain responsibilities. To minimize 
risks to the IDA/BDC/CCDC, you are expected to follow our guidelines for appropriate use of 
social media. 

Guidelines 

For purposes of this policy, "social media" includes all means of communicating or posting 
information or content of any sort on the Internet, including to your own or someone else's web 
log or blog, journal or diary, personal website, social networking or affinity website, web bulletin 
board or a chat room, whether associated or affiliated with the IDA/BDC/CCDC, as well as any 
other form of electronic communication. 

Ultimately, you are solely responsible for what you communicate in social media. IDA/BDC/CCDC 
principles, guidelines, and policies apply to online activities just as they apply to other areas of 
work. 

By way of example, postings that include unlawful discriminatory or defamatory remarks, 
harassment, and threats of violence or other unlawful conduct will not be tolerated and may 
subject you to disciplinary action up to and including termination. 

Maintain Accuracy and Confidentiality 

When posting information: 

Maintain the confidentiality of trade secrets, intellectual property, and confidential commercially-
sensitive information (i.e., financial or sales records/reports, marketing or business 
strategies/plans, product development, customer lists, patents, trademarks, etc.) related to the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC. 

Do not create a link from your personal blog, website, or other social networking site to a 
IDA/BDC/CCDC website that identifies you as speaking on behalf of the IDA/BDC/CCDC. 

Never represent yourself as a spokesperson for the IDA/BDC/CCDC. If the IDA/BDC/CCDC is a 
subject of the content you are creating, do not represent yourself as speaking on behalf of the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC. Make it clear in your social media activity that you are speaking on your own 
behalf. 

Respect copyright, trademark, third-party rights, and similar laws and use such protected 
information in compliance with applicable legal standards. 
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Using Social Media at Work 

Do not use social media while on your work time, unless it is work related or consistent with 
policies that cover equipment owned by the IDA/BDC/CCDC. 

3.13 Media Contacts 

If you are not authorized to speak on behalf of the IDA/BDC/CCDC, do not speak to the media on 
behalf of the IDA/BDC/CCDC. Direct all media inquiries for official IDA/BDC/CCDC responses to 
the Executive Director. 

3.14 Telecommuting 

Telecommuting is defined as regularly working a full or partial workday from home or some other 
alternate work site. 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC will make telecommuting available to employees when it benefits 
organizational and departmental needs. This option may not be available in some job 
classifications due to business needs. Each department manager will determine, in his or her 
discretion, the positions within the department that may be suitable for telecommuting. 

If you are granted a telecommuting arrangement, you will be subject to the same performance 
standards as prior to telecommuting. Telecommuting work areas may be evaluated to ensure that 
appropriate safety standards are met. Telecommuting may be a reasonable accommodation; 
consult the Executive Director if you are requesting telecommuting as a reasonable 
accommodation. 

3.15 Telephone Use 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC phones are principally for work-related communications. Unless there is an 
emergency, limit long distance telephone calls to business purposes only. Limit personal use of 
IDA/BDC/CCDC telephones to brief communications during breaks where possible. Casual 
conversation with friends and relatives during working hours is strongly discouraged. Telephone 
use is subject to the Voicemail/Email/lnternet Usage Policy. 

3.16 Voicemail, Email, and Internet Policy 

This Voicemail/Email/lnternet Policy is intended to provide IDA/BDC/CCDC employees with the 
guidelines associated with the use of the IDA/BDC/CCDC's voicemail/email/lnternet system (the 
system). This policy applies to all employees, contractors, vendors, partners, or associates, and 
any others accessing and/or using the system through onsite or remote terminals. 

General Provisions 

• The system is to be used for business purposes only. 

• The system, and all data transmitted or received through the system, is the exclusive 
property of the IDA/BDC/CCDC. You should not have any expectation of privacy in any 
communication over this system. If you are permitted to have access to the system, you 
will be given a voicemail, email, and/or Internet address and/or access code and will have 
use of the system consistent with this policy. 

• The IDA/BDC/CCDC reserves the right to monitor, intercept, and/or review all data 
transmitted, received, or downloaded over the system. Any individual who is given access 
to the system is hereby given notice that the IDA/BDC/CCDC will exercise this right 
periodically, without prior notice and without the prior consent. 

• The interests of the IDA/BDC/CCDC in monitoring and intercepting data include, but are 
not limited to: protection of IDA/BDC/CCDC trade secrets, proprietary, and similar 
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confidential commercially-sensitive information (i.e., financial or sales records/reports, 
marketing or business strategies/plans, product development, customer lists, patents, 
trademarks, etc.); managing the use of the computer system; and/or assisting employees 
in the management of electronic data during periods of absence. 

• You should not interpret the use of password protection as creating a right or expectation 
of privacy. To protect everyone involved, no one can have a right or expectation of privacy 
regarding the receipt, transmission, or storage of data on the IDA/BDC/CCDC 
voicemail/email/lnternet system. 

In order to ensure system security, employees are required to adhere to the following: 

• Refrain from downloading attachments sent by unknown parties, as they may contain 
viruses that could harm the system. 

• Refrain from attempting to evade an Internet firewall and/or proxy server by accessing the 
Internet directly, whether by modem or another service provider, unless the employee has 
prior approval from management 

• Immediately run computer protection programs when directed to do so by management. 

• Refrain from interfering or disabling any computer protection programs. 

• Immediately report any actual or potential security violations to management 

Any employees who violate this policy will be subject to corrective action, up to and including 
termination of employment. If necessary, the IDA/BDC/CCDC will also advise law enforcement 
officials of any illegal conduct. 

3.17 Third Party Disclosures 

From time to time, the IDA/BDC/CCDC may become involved in news stories or potential or actual 
legal proceedings of various kinds. When that happens, lawyers, former employees, newspapers, 
law enforcement agencies, and other outside persons may contact our employees to obtain 
information about the incident or the actual or potential lawsuit. 

If you receive such a contact, you should not speak on behalf of the IDA/BDC/CCDC and should 
refer any call requesting the position of the IDA/BDC/CCDC to the Executive Director. If you have 
any questions about this policy or are not certain what to do when such a contact is made, contact 
the Executive Director. 

3.18 Employer-Sponsored Social Events 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC may hold periodic social events for employees. Be advised that your 
attendance at these events is voluntary and does not constitute part of your work-related duties. 
Any exceptions to this policy must be in writing and signed by a Supervisor prior to the event. 

Alcoholic beverages may be available at these events. If you choose to drink alcoholic beverages, 
you must do so in a responsible manner. Do not drink and drive. Instead, please call a taxi or 
appoint a designated driver. 

3.19 Nonsmoking Policy 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC is concerned about the effect that smoking and secondhand smoke 
inhalation can have on its employees and clients. Smoking, including the use of e-cigarettes, in 
the office is prohibited. 
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3.20 Outside Employment 

Outside employment that creates a conflict of interest or that affects the quality or value of your 
work performance or availability at the IDA/BDC/CCDC is prohibited. The IDA/BDC/CCDC 
recognizes that you may seek additional employment during off hours, but in all cases expects 
that any outside employment will not affect job performance, work hours, or scheduling, or 
otherwise adversely affect your ability to effectively perform your duties. Any conflicts should be 
reported to your Supervisor. Failure to adhere to this policy may result in discipline up to and 
including termination. 

4.0 General Policies 

4.1 Workplace Privacy and Right to Inspect 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC property, including but not limited to lockers, phones, computers, tablets, 
desks, workplace areas, vehicles, or machinery, remains under the control of the IDA/BDC/CCDC 
and is subject to inspection at any time, without notice to any employees, and without their 
presence. 

You should have no expectation of privacy in any of these areas. We assume no responsibility 
for the loss of, or damage to, your property maintained on IDA/BDC/CCDC premises including 
that kept in lockers and desks. 

4.2 Travel and Business Expenses Policy 

As required by the NY Public Authorities Accountability Act, the IDA/BDC/CCDC maintains policy 
on travel and business expenses. See appendix **. 

4.3 Access to Personnel and Medical Records Files 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC maintains separate medical records files and personnel files for all 
employees. Files containing medical records are stored separate and apart from the personnel 
file and any business-related records in a safe, locked location. The medical file is the repository 
for sensitive and confidential information related to an individual's health, health benefits, health-
related leave and/or accommodations, and benefits selections and coverage. Medical records are 
kept confidential in compliance with applicable laws and access is on a "need-to-know" basis only. 

Personnel files are the property of the IDA/BDC/CCDC. Supervisors and others in management 
may have access to your personnel file for possible employment-related decisions. If you wish to 
review your personnel or medical records file, you must give the IDA/BDC/CCDC reasonable 
notice. Inspection must occur in the presence of a IDA/BDC/CCDC representative. 

All requests by an outside party for information contained in your personnel file will be directed to 
the Executive Director, who is the only person authorized to give out such information. In certain 
circumstances, a subpoena may be required.  

4.4 Inventions 

Any invention created, in whole or in part, during your work hours, or from the use of equipment 
or facilities belonging to the IDA/BDC/CCDC, is a "work for hire" and is the property of the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC. 

If you intend to develop and maintain property rights to any invention that relates in any way to 
products or services of the IDA/BDC/CCDC, you are required to obtain a written waiver of this 
policy, signed by both you and the Chairman of the Board. 

4.5 Employee Parking 
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The parking lot on-site at the IDA/BDC/CCDC's office is for guests, board members and 
employees of the building. The IDA/BDC/CCDC's prohibits IDA/BDC/CCDC employees from 
utilizing this parking lot on a regular basis for employee’s vehicles that are used to commute to 
and from work.   

5.0 Benefits 

5.1 401(k) Plan 

Eligible employees (as determined by the terms of the plan) may participate in the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC 40l(k) plan.The IDA/BDC/CCDC will match up to 10% of employee’s wages per 
year. 

 

Contact the Executive Director to find out if you are eligible to participate in the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC40l(k) plan. The IDA/BDC/CCDC is required to let you know if you are eligible. 

This benefit, as well as other benefits, may be canceled or changed at the discretion of the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC, unless otherwise required by law. 

5.2 Holidays 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC offers the following paid holidays each year:  

 New Year’s Day  Martin Luther King, Jr. Day 

 President’s Day  Memorial Day 

 Juneteenth Day 

 Independence Day  Labor Day 

 Columbus Day  Veteran’s Day 

 Thanksgiving Day  Friday after Thanksgiving 

 Christmas Day  (3) Floating Holidays 

 

When a holiday falls on a Saturday, it will be observed the preceding Friday. Holidays falling on 
a Sunday will be observed the following Monday. Employees have the option to take all holidays 
per theFederal Holiday schedule, or taking some of them on a floating basis, providing the office 
has adequate coverage to conduct business.  

If a holiday falls on your regular day off, ask your Supervisor how it affects you. 

Permanent part-time employees, who have been employed for more than 12 calendar months, 
will receive holiday pay equal to their average daily pay during the previous four-week period. 

5.3 Leave 

A. NYS Paid Sick Leave (PSL) 

All employees shall be entitled to up to five (5) paid sick days (40 hours) per year.  Sick leave is 
not paid out upon separation of employment for any reason. 

Requests for additional time may be submitted in connection with the Disability Accommodation 
policy, subject to the approval of the Executive Director and Personnel Committee.  

B. Personal  Time Off 
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Permanent full time and part-time employees may take up to ten (10) paid days off per calendar 
year for personal reasons.  Except in the case of emergencies, employees are expected to 
schedule personal time off in advance with the Executive Director. Personal time is not paid out 
upon separation of employment for any reason. Vacation 

Terms of employee vacation packages are subject to employment agreement and annual 
performance review, but in general are as follows:  

• One week after six months 

• Two weeks after a year of employment 

• Three weeks after five years of employment; and  

• Four weeks after ten years of employment 

Permanent part-time employees who have been employed for 12 calendar months are entitled 
to pro-rata vacation-with-pay based on the average hours worked on full-time work schedule 
during the previous six-month period. 

Vacations can be taken at any time during the year, with prior approval of the Executive 
Director.  Vacation schedules must meet the staffing requirements of the IDA/BDC/CCDC in 
order to assure orderly operation.   

Employees eligible for three weeks or more vacation should avoid taking three consecutive 
weeks. The Executive Director may approve exceptions.  Employees are encouraged to take at 
least one full week of consecutive days’ vacation per year. 

Employees are encouraged to use vacation time within the same calendar year as it is earned.  
However, employees will be allowed to carry up to ten (10) days of vacation accrued to the next 
calendar year.  If a holiday falls within an employee’s scheduled vacation period, holiday pay will 
be substituted for that vacation day.   

Pay in lieu of vacation time-off is not allowed. 

C. Paid Family Leave 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC provides eligible employees with paid leaves of absence for various family- 
and military-related reasons in accordance with the New York State Paid Family Leave 
Program. Such leaves of absence are referred to in this policy as "PFL." 

Eligibility 

In general, an employee whose regular employment schedule is 20 or more hours per week will 
become eligible to receive PFL benefits after 26 weeks of employment. An employee whose 
regular employment schedule is less than 20 hours per week will become eligible to receive PFL 
benefits after 175 days worked. Eligibility for PFL does not necessarily mean an employee is 
eligible for leave under the Family and Medical Leave Act ("FMLA"). 

Qualifying Reasons For Leave 

An eligible employee may be entitled to PFL: 

(1) To participate in providing care, including physical or psychological care for a family 
member {spouse, domestic partner, child, parent, parent-in-law, grandparent, or 
grandchild) of the employee made necessary by a serious health condition of the family 
member. 

(2) To bond with the employee's child during the first 12 months after the child's birth; during 
the first 12 months after the placement of the child for adoption or foster care; or before 
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the actual placement or adoption of a child if an absence from work is required for the 
placement for adoption or foster care to proceed. 
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(3) Due to any qualifying exigency arising out of active duty or an impending call or order to 
active duty in the Armed Forces of the United States for the spouse, domestic partner, 
child or parent of the employee. 

For the contribution rate ask the CFO. Employees may take up to twelve (12) weeks for leave at 
the maximum weekly benefit rate that may be obtained by the CFO.  

The 52-week consecutive period is computed retroactively to the first day for which benefits are 
claimed. The benefit rate for the employee's period of PFL is the rate that is in effect on the first 
day of PFL taken. 

Paid Time Off and Other Leaves 

An employee on PFL may use available paid time off concurrently with PFL to supplement PFL 
benefits in order to receive his or her full compensation during PFL. 

An employee who is eligible for both New York State short-term disability benefits and PFL 
benefits during the same period of 52 consecutive calendar weeks may not receive more than 26 
total weeks of combined New York State short-term disability benefits and PFL benefits during 
that period of time. Employees may not use PFL during periods of time when the employee is 
receiving workers' compensation benefits. 

When an employee simultaneously qualifies for both PFL and any other statutorily required leave 
of absence or any other leave of absence under the IDA/BDC/CCDC's policies, the employee's 
PFL and other leave run concurrently to the extent allowable by applicable law. 

Requesting PFL 

When an employee's need for PFL is foreseeable, the employee is required to provide the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC 30 days advance notice of his or her intention to use PFL. If the need for PFL is 
not foreseeable, the employee must notify the IDA/BDC/CCDC as soon as practical. In providing 
notice of the intention to use PFL, the employee must provide information sufficient to make the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC aware of the qualifying event and the anticipated timing and duration of the leave, 
including identifying the type of PFL as listed above. When filing a claim for PFL, the employee 
must submit supporting documentation, which may include medical documentation, depending 
on the nature of the requested PFL. The IDA/BDC/CCDC's insurance carrier receives and 
processes the employee's claim for PFL and makes the determination as to whether the claim is 
granted or denied. 

Continuation of Health Insurance 

During PFL, the IDA/BDC/CCDC maintains the employee's health coverage under its group 
health plan; provided, the employee continues to make his or her portion of the premium 
contribution. It is the employee's responsibility to tender payment to the IDA/BDC/CCDC his or 
her portion of the health insurance premium. 

Payroll Deductions and Waiver 

Deductions are made from the employee's pay for PFL premium payments in accordance with 
law. In limited circumstances, employees whose regular work schedules are temporary or 
seasonal may opt out of PFL. Employees who complete a waiver will not contribute to PFL through 
payroll deductions and will not be eligible to take PFL. If the employee's schedule changes and 
will be expected to qualify for PFL, the waiver is automatically revoked and the employee is 
responsible for paying any required PFL contributions from the first day of employment. 

Employees with questions concerning PFL should direct them to the Executive Director. 
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D. Voting Leave 

Employees who are registered voters are provided up to two hours of paid time off to vote if they 
do not have “sufficient time to vote” on election day.  An employee is deemed to have “sufficient 
time to vote” if an employee has four consecutive hours to vote either from the opening of the 
polls to the beginning of their work shift, or four consecutive hours between the end of a working 
shift and closing of the polls.  Any registered voter seeking time off to vote must notify his or her 
Supervisor at least two working days before the election. 

E. Jury Duty Leave 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC encourages employees to fulfill their civic duties related to jury duty. If you 
are summoned for jury duty, notify your Supervisor as soon as possible to make scheduling 
arrangements. Employees shall receive their regular pay for at least the first three days of jury 
service, less any compensation received by other sources.   

The IDA/BDC/CCDC reserves the right to require employees to provide proof of jury duty service 
to the extent authorized by law. 

F. Bereavement Leave 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC recognizes the importance of taking leave when there is a death in the 
family. Full-time employees are entitled to take up to five (5) days off with pay for the funeral of 
an immediate relative (spouse or significant other, parent, child, sibling.) A one (1) day paid leave 
will be granted if the employee attends the funeral of any other family member. Pay is at the 
employee's regular base rate of pay for the number of hours the employee would have been 
scheduled to work. Notify your Supervisor of your intention to take bereavement leave as soon 
as the need arises. The IDA/BDC/CCDC may request documentation to support absences for 
bereavement leave. 

G. Crime Victim and Witness Leave 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC will provide eligible employees with time off from work, without pay, for any 
of the following reasons in accordance with applicable law: 

• To comply with a subpoena to testify in a criminal proceeding (including time off to 
consult with the district attorney); 

• To give a victim impact statement at a pre-sentencing proceeding; 

• To give a statement at a sentencing proceeding; or 

• To give a statement at a parole board hearing. 

• You are eligible for time off under this policy if you are: 

• The victim of the crime at issue in the proceedings; 

• The victim's next of kin; 

• The victim's representative if the victim is deceased as a result of the offense; 

• A "Good Samaritan"; or 

• Pursuing an application or the enforcement of an order of protection as provided under 
relevant law. 

If you are required to attend a criminal proceeding either as a witness or as a crime victim (or a 
close family member of a crime victim), you must notify your Supervisor as soon as possible and 
at least one day before taking leave to make scheduling arrangements. The IDA/BDC/CCDC 
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reserves the right to require employees to provide proof of the need to attend the criminal 
proceedings to the extent authorized by law. 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC will not retaliate against employees who request or take leave in accordance 
with this policy. 

5.4 Health, Vision, and Dental Insurance (and COBRA) 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC offers a group health insurance plan to full-time employees. If you do not 
apply for health care coverage within thirty (30) days of your eligibility date but apply for coverage 
at a subsequent date, you must wait until the next open enrollment period, unless you have a 
qualifying event as defined by the applicable carrier. 

Eligible employees who “opt out” of the IDA/BDC/CCDC group plan are eligible for up to $5000 
reimbursement per 12 month period.   

Medical plan benefits for eligible employees and their dependents are described in detail in the 
Summary Plan Description {SPD) that is available to all eligible employees. 

5.5 Short-Term Disability Insurance 

If you are unable to work for more than seven consecutive days due to a non-work-related illness 
or injury, or pregnancy-related disability, you may be eligible for disability benefits. Disability 
benefits provide up to 26 weeks of partial wage replacement benefits during any 52-consecutive-
week period. Benefits are payable beginning on the eighth consecutive day of disability. 

The cost of your disability insurance coverage is paid by the IDA/BDC/CCDC. 

If you have been disabled for more than seven days, the IDA/BDC/CCDC will provide you with a 
Form DB-271S, Statement of Rights, within five days of learning that you are disabled. The 
Statement of Rights provides information on how to file a claim for benefits. You must file a claim 
within the first 30 days of your disability or all or part of your claim may be rejected. You must be 
under the care of a physician, chiropractor, podiatrist, psychologist, dentist, or certified nurse 
midwife to qualify for disability benefits. 

Disability benefits are a wage replacement benefit, not a protected leave benefit. 

To learn more about the New York Disability Benefits law, including eligibility requirements and 
benefits, or to obtain a claim form {Form DB-450), contact the New York State Workers' 
Compensation Board (www.wcb.ny.gov). 

5.6 Unemployment Compensation Insurance Policy 

Unemployment compensation insurance is paid for by the IDA/BDC/CCDC and provides 
temporary income for employees who have lost their job under certain circumstances. Your 
eligibility for unemployment compensation will, in part, be determined by the reasons for your 
separation from the IDA/BDC/CCDC. 

5.7 Workers' Compensation Insurance Policy 

Workers' compensation is a no-fault system designed to provide benefits to all employees for 
work-related injuries. Workers' compensation insurance coverage is paid for by employers and 
governed by state law. The workers' compensation system provides for coverage of medical 
treatment and expenses, occupational disability leave, and rehabilitation services, as well as 
payment for lost wages due to work related injuries. If you are injured on the job while working at 
the IDA/BDC/CCDC, no matter how slight, you are to report the incident immediately to your 
Supervisor. 

http://www.wcb.ny.gov/
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Consistent with applicable state law, failure to report an injury within a reasonable period of time 
could jeopardize your claim for benefits. 

To receive workers' compensation benefits, notify your Supervisor immediately of your claim. If 
your injury is the result of an on-the-job accident, you must fill out an accident report. You will be 
required to submit a medical release before you can return to work. 

6.0 Performance, Discipline, and Termination 

6.1 Performance Evaluations and Performance Improvement 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC will make efforts to periodically review your work performance. The first 
three (3) months of employment are considered a probationary period, following which suitability 
for continued employment will be reviewed. You may specifically request that your Supervisor 
assist you in developing a performance improvement plan at any time. An employee's job 
description serves as a general basis for evaluating employee performance. The Executive 
Director is responsible for implementing staff performance evaluations and making 
recommendations to the Personnel Committee on appropriate changes to job title and content, 
classification, performance and wage increases. Every employee's performance shall be 
reviewed and discussed with the employee by the Executive Director. 

The performance improvement process is a means for increasing the quality and value of your 
work performance. Your initiative, effort, attitude, job knowledge, and other factors will be 
addressed. You must understand that a positive job performance review does not guarantee a 
pay raise or continued employment. Pay raises and promotions are based on numerous factors, 
only one of which is job performance. 

6.2 Pay Raises 

Depending on the financial health of the IDA/BDC/CCDC and other business factors, efforts will 
be made to give pay raises consistent with job performance. Increases will typically be limited to 
the consumer price index, or two percent of the employee’s annual pay, whichever is greater. The 
IDA/BDC/CCDC may also make individual pay raises based on merit or due to a change of job 
position. Pay raises are not guaranteed. 

6.3 Disciplinary Process 

Violation of the IDA/BDC/CCDC policies or procedures may result in disciplinary action including 
verbal counseling, written warning, demotion, transfer, leave without pay, or termination of 
employment. Disciplinary action for violation of the IDA/BDC/CCDC's policies and procedures will 
be handled on a case-by-case basis. Disciplinary action is not necessarily progressive and one 
form of discipline is not guaranteed to precede another. The IDA/BDC/CCDC reserves the right 
to take appropriate disciplinary action in its discretion for violations of its policies and procedures, 
including immediate termination. 

Understand that while the IDA/BDC/CCDC is concerned with consistent enforcement of our 
policies, we are not obligated to follow any disciplinary or grievance procedure and that depending 
on the circumstances, you may be disciplined or terminated without any prior warning or 
procedure. 

6.4 Terminations 

All terminations, both voluntary and involuntary, are coordinated through the Board of Directors.  

Any employee contemplating resigning should discuss matters first with the Executive Director.  
Personnel who voluntarily leave the employment of the Corporation shall submit a written letter 
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of resignation at least two (2) weeks prior to their last day of work.  The Executive Director should 
give at least four (4) weeks’ notice to the board of directors. 

The decision to terminate an employee shall be reviewed by the Personnel and Executive 
committees and the Board of Directors.  

All IDA/BDC/CCDC property, including this Employee Handbook, must be returned at the end of 
employment. Otherwise, the IDA/BDC/CCDC may take action to recoup any replacement costs 
and/or seek the return of IDA/BDC/CCDC property through appropriate legal recourse. 

6.5 Exit Interview 

You may be asked to participate in an exit interview when you leave the IDA/BDC/CCDC. The 
purpose of the exit interview is to provide management with greater insight into your decision to 
leave employment; identify any trends requiring attention or opportunities for improvement; and 
to assist the IDA/BDC/CCDC in developing effective recruitment and retention strategies. Your 
cooperation in the exit interview process is appreciated. 

6.6 Post-Employment References 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC policy is to confirm dates of employment and job title only. With written 
authorization, the IDA/BDC/CCDC will confirm compensation. Forward any requests for 
employment verification to the Executive Director. 

7.0 Customer Relations 

7.1 Customer, Client, and Visitor Relations 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC strives to provide the best services possible to our customers and 
community residents. Our customers and local tax-payers support this organization and fund your 
wages. You are expected to treat every customer, client, or visitor with the utmost respect and 
courtesy during your working time. You should never argue or act in a disrespectful manner 
towards a visitr or customer during your working time. If you are having problems with a customer, 
client, or visitor, notify your Supervisor immediately. If a customer, client, or visitor voices a 
suggestion, complaint, or concern regarding our services, inform your Supervisor or a member of 
management. Lastly, make every effort to be prompt in following up on customer, client, or visitor 
orders or questions. Positive customer, client, and visitor relations will go a long way to 
establishing our IDA/BDC/CCDC as an asset to our community. 

7.2 Services Knowledge 

As a representative of the IDA/BDC/CCDC, you are expected to be familiar with the services we 
offer. Take every opportunity to learn the interrelationship between your department or division 
and the others of the IDA/BDC/CCDC. We consider our employees to be the best reflection of the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC's success. 

 

Acknowledgment of Receipt and Review 

By signing below, I acknowledge that I have received a copy of the IDA/BDC/CCDC Employee 
Handbook  and that I have read it, understand it, and agree to comply with it. I understand that 
the IDA/BDC/CCDC has the maximum discretion permitted by law to interpret, administer, 
change, modify, or delete the rules, regulations, procedures, and benefits contained in the 
handbook at any time with or without notice. No statement or representation by a supervisor, 
manager, or any other employee, whether oral or written, can supplement or modify this 
handbook. Changes can only be made if approved in writing by the Board of Directors of the 
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IDA/BDC/CCDC. I also understand that any delay or failure by the IDA/BDC/CCDC to enforce 
any rule, regulation, or procedure contained in the handbook does not constitute a waiver on 
behalf of the IDA/BDC/CCDC or effect the right of the IDA/BDC/CCDC to enforce such rule, 
regulation, or procedure in the future. 

I understand that neither this handbook nor any other communication by a management 
representative or other, whether oral or written, is intended in any way to create a contract of 
employment. I further understand that I am employed "at-will" and this handbook does not modify 
my "at-will" employment status. 

Violation of any policy in this Handbook, or any policy included as an addendum, may be grounds 
for discipline, up to and including termination and that I am not entitled to any particular sequence 
of disciplinary measures prior to termination. 

This Handbook does not include every process, policy, and expectation applicable to employees, 
or my position specifically; I may be counseled, disciplined, or terminated for poor behavior or 
performance even if the behavior or performance issue is not addressed in the Handbook. 

This handbook supersedes any previous handbook or policy statements, whether written or oral, 
issued by the IDA/BDC/CCDC. 

If I have any questions about the content or interpretation of this handbook, I will contact the 
Executive Director. 

 

 

             
Employee Signature      Date 

 

       
Print Name 
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APPENDICES 

 

The following appendices are adopted as stand-alone policies by the IDA/BDC/CCDC board of 
directors and are required by the ABO and/or state law. 

• Appendix A: Code of Ethics 

• Appendix B: Conflicts of Interest 

• Appendix C: Harassment-Free Workplace Policy (includes Sexual Harassment 
Complaint Form) 

• Appendix D: Whistleblower Policy 

• Appendix E: Travel and Discretionary Funds Policy 
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Appendix A Code of Ethics 

This Code of Ethics shall apply to all directors, officers and employees of the IDA/BDC/CCDC. 
These policies shall serve as a guide for official conduct and are intended to enhance the ethical 
and professional performance of the directors, officers and employees and to preserve public 
confidence in the IDA/BDC/CCDC's mission. This code is adopted pursuant to New York Public 
Authorities Law section 2824{1)(d). 

Responsibility of Directors and Employees 

1. Directors and employees shall perform their duties with transparency, without favor and 
refrain from engaging in outside matters of financial or personal interest, including other 
employment, which could impair independence of judgment, or prevent the proper 
exercise of one's official duties. 

2. Directors and employees shall not directly or indirectly make, advise, or assist any person 
to make any financial investment based upon information available through the director's 
or employee's official position that could create any conflict between their public duties 
and interests and their private interests. 

3. Directors and employees shall not accept or receive any gift or gratuities where the 
circumstances would permit the inference that: (a) the gift is intended to influence the 
individual in the performance of official business or 

4. (b) the gift constitutes a tip, reward, or sign of appreciation for any official act by the 
individual. This prohibition extends to any form of financial payments, services, loans, 
travel reimbursement, entertainment, hospitality, thing or promise from any entity doing 
business with or before the IDA/BDC/CCDC. 

5. Directors and employees shall not use or attempt to use their official position with the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC to secure unwarranted privileges for themselves, members of their family 
or others, including employment with the IDA/BDC/CCDC or contracts for materials or 
services with the IDA/BDC/CCDC. 

6. Directors and employees must conduct themselves at all times in a manner that avoids 
any appearance that they can be improperly or unduly influenced, that they could be 
affected by the position of or relationship with any other party, or that they are acting in 
violation of their public trust. 

7. Directors and employees may not engage in any official transaction with an outside entity 
in which they have a direct or indirect financial interest that may reasonably conflict with 
the proper discharge of their official duties. 

8. Directors and employees shall manage all matters within the scope of the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC's mission independent of any other affiliations or employment. Directors, 
and employees employed by more than entity shall strive to fulfill their professional 
responsibility to the IDA/BDC/CCDC without bias and shall support the IDA/BDC/CCDC's 
mission to the fullest. 

9. Directors and employees shall not use IDA/BDC/CCDC property, including equipment, 
telephones, vehicles, computers, or other resources, or disclose information acquired in 
the course of their official duties in a manner inconsistent with State or local law or policy 
and the IDA/BDC/CCDC's mission and goals. 

10. Directors and employees are prohibited from appearing or practicing before the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC for two (2) years following employment with the IDA/BDC/CCDC, 
consistent with the provisions of Public Officers Law. 
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Implementation of Code of Ethics 

This Code of Ethics shall be provided to all directors and employees upon commencement of 
employment or appointment and shall be reviewed annually by the Governance Committee. 

The board may designate an Ethics Officer, who shall report to the board and shall have the 
following duties: 

• Counsel in confidence IDA/BDC/CCDC directors and employees who seek advice about 
ethical behavior. 

• Receive and investigate complaints about possible ethics violations. 

• Dismiss complaints found to be without substance. 

• Prepare an investigative report of their findings for action by the Executive Director or the 
board. 

• Record the receipt of gifts or gratuities of any kind received by a director or employee, 
who shall notify the Ethics Officer within 48 hours of receipt of such gifts and gratuities. 

Penalties 

In addition to any penalty contained in any other provision of law, a IDA/BDC/CCDC director or 
employee who knowingly and intentionally violates any of the provisions of this code may be 
removed in the manner provided for in law, rules or regulations. 

Reporting Unethical Behavior 

Employees and directors are required to report possible unethical behavior by a director or 
employee of the IDA/BDC/CCDC to the Ethics Officer. Employees and directors may file ethics 
complaints anonymously. However, filing a complaint anonymously may impede the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC's ability to investigate a claim. The IDA/BDC/CCDC prohibits retaliation for filing 
a good faith complaint under this policy. 
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Appendix B Conflicts of Interest 

A conflict of interest is a situation in which the financial, familial, or personal interests of a director 
or employee come into actual or perceived conflict with their duties and responsibilities with the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC. Perceived conflicts of interest are situations where there is the appearance that 
a board member and/or employee can personally benefit from actions or decisions made in their 
official capacity, or where a board member or employee may be influenced to act in a manner 
that does not represent the best interests of the IDA/BDC/CCDC. The perception of a conflict may 
occur if circumstances would suggest to a reasonable person that a board member and/or 
employee may have a conflict. The appearance of a conflict and an actual conflict should be 
treated in the same manner for the purposes of this policy. 

Board members and employees must conduct themselves at all times in a manner that avoids 
any appearance that they can be improperly or unduly influenced, that they could be affected by 
the position of or relationship with any other party, or that they are acting in violation of their public 
trust. While it is not possible to describe or anticipate all the circumstances that might involve a 
conflict of interest, a conflict of interest typically arises whenever a director or employee has or 
will have: 

• A financial or personal interest in any person, firm, corporation or association that has or 
will have a transaction, agreement or any other arrangement in which the IDA/BDC/CCDC 
participates. 

• The ability to use his or her position, confidential information, or the assets of the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC, to his or her personal advantage. 

• Solicited or accepted a gift of any amount under circumstance in which it could reasonably 
be inferred that the gift was intended to influence him/her, or could reasonably be expected 
to influence him/her, in the performance of his/her official duties or was intended as a 
reward for any action on his/her part. 

• Any other circumstance that may or appear to make it difficult for the board member or 
employee to exercise independent judgment and properly exercise his or her official 
duties. 

PROCEDURES 

Duty to Disclose: All material facts related to the conflicts of interest (including the nature of the 
interest and information about the conflicting transaction) shall be disclosed in good faith and in 
writing to, when reasonably feasible, the Governance Committee, or otherwise to the directors at 
a meeting of the directors. Such written disclosure shall be made part of the official record of the 
proceedings of the IDA/BDC/CCDC. 

Determining Whether a Conflict of Interest Exists: The Governance Committee or the directors, 
as applicable, shall advise the individual who appears to have a conflict of interest how to proceed. 
The Governance Committee or the directors of the IDA/BDC/CCDC, as applicable, should seek 
guidance from counsel or New York State agencies, such as the Authorities Budget Office, State 
Inspector General or the Joint Commission on Public Ethics (JCOPE) when dealing with cases 
where they are unsure of what to do. 

Recusal and Abstention: No board member or employee may participate in any decision or take 
any official action with respect to any matter requiring the exercise of discretion, including 
discussing the matter and voting, when he or she knows or has reason to know that the action 
could confer a direct or indirect financial or material benefit on himself or herself, a relative, or any 
organization in which he or she is deemed to have an interest. Board members and employees 
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must recuse themselves from deliberations, votes, or internal discussion on matters relating to 
any organization, entity or individual where their impartiality in the deliberation or vote might be 
reasonably questioned, and are prohibited from attempting to influence other board members or 
employees in the deliberation and voting on the matter. 

Records of Conflicts of Interest: The minutes of the IDA/BDC/CCDC's meetings during which 
a perceived or actual conflict of interest is disclosed or discussed shall reflect the name of the 
interested person, the nature of the conflict, and a description of how the conflict was resolved. 

Reporting of Violations: Board members and employees should promptly report any violations 
of this policy in accordance with the IDA/BDC/CCDC's Whistleblower Policy. 

Penalties: Any director or employee that fails to comply with this policy may be penalized in the 
manner provided for in law, rules and regulations. 
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Appendix C Harassment-Free Workplace Policy 

Sexual Harassment 

The IDA/BDC/CCDC is committed to maintaining a work environment that is free of discrimination 
and harassment. Sexual harassment is a violation of the IDA/BDC/CCDC's policy and a violation 
of federal, state and local laws. 

Sexual harassment of any employee by another employee, manager, or non-employee (e.g., 
intern, volunteer, independent contractor, contract worker, vendor, client, customer or visitor), 
regardless of their sex or gender, is prohibited.1 Sexual harassment of non-employees by our 
employees is also prohibited. Further, any retaliation against an individual who has complained 
about sexual harassment or who has cooperated with a sexual harassment investigation is also 
unlawful and will not be tolerated. 

Any employee or individual covered by this policy who engages in sexual harassment or 
retaliation will be subject to remedial and/or disciplinary action, up to and including termination of 
employment. 

What is Sexual Harassment? 

Sexual harassment is a form of sex discrimination and is unlawful under federal, state, and {where 
applicable) local law. Sexual harassment includes harassment on the basis of sex, sexual 
orientation, self-identified or perceived sex, gender expression, gender identity, and the status of 
being transgender. 

Unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other physical or verbal conduct 
based on an individual's sex constitutes sexual harassment when: 

• Submission to the conduct is an explicit or implicit term or condition of employment; or 

• Submission to or rejection of the conduct is used as the basis for decisions affecting an 
individual's employment; or 

• The conduct has the purpose or effect of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive 
working environment. 

• Sexual harassment is not limited to the physical workplace. It can occur while employees 
are traveling for business or at employer sponsored events or parties. It can occur outside 
work hours. 

Examples of Sexual Harassment 

While it is not possible to list all acts which may constitute sexual harassment, it may include 
explicit sexual propositions or flirtations; sexual innuendo; suggestive comments; sexually 
oriented teasing; comments or jokes about gender-specific traits, sexual orientation, gender 
identity or gender expression; foul or obscene language or gestures; unwanted physical contact; 
the display or transmission of obscene, demeaning, insulting, intimidating, or sexually suggestive 
objects, pictures, or photographs; and hostile actions taken against an individual because of that 
individual's sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or the status of being transgender, such as 
interfering with the individual's ability to perform the job, bullying, or name-calling. 

While this policy specifically addresses sexual harassment, harassment because of and 
discrimination against persons of all protected classes is prohibited. In New York State, such 
classes include age, race, creed, color, national origin, sexual orientation, military status, sex, 
disability, marital status, domestic violence victim status, gender identity and criminal history. 
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Sexual harassment also occurs when a person in authority tries to trade job benefits for sexual 
favors. This can include hiring, promotion, continued employment or any other terms, conditions, 
or privileges of employment. This is also called "quid pro quo" harassment. 

Although one joke or comment may not be enough to constitute sexual harassment, a single 
incident of inappropriate conduct may be enough to rise to the level of sexual harassment 
depending on the severity of the incident. 

What is Retaliation? 

Retaliation is any action that would keep an individual from coming forward to make or support a 
sexual harassment claim. The action need not be job-related or occur in the workplace to 
constitute unlawful retaliation. 

Such retaliation is unlawful under federal, state, and (where applicable) local law. Both the New 
York State Human Rights Law and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 protect individuals who 
engage in "protected activity." Protected activity occurs when a person has: 

• made a complaint of sexual harassment, either internally or with any anti-discrimination 
agency; 

• testified or assisted in a proceeding involving sexual harassment under Title VII, the 
Human Rights Law, or other anti-discrimination law; 

• opposed sexual harassment by making a verbal or informal complaint to management, or 
by simply informing a supervisor or manager of harassment; 

• reported that another employee has been sexually harassed; or encouraged a fellow 
employee to report harassment. 

Retaliation against an employee who, in good faith, makes a complaint of sexual harassment will 
not be tolerated and will itself be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of 
employment. Furthermore, no adverse actions will be taken against employees who report 
violations of this policy in good faith or participate in the investigation of such violations. 

Even if the alleged harassment does not turn out to rise to the level of a violation of law, the 
individual is protected from retaliation if the person had a good faith belief that the practices were 
unlawful. However, the retaliation provision is not intended to protect persons making intentionally 
false charges of harassment. 

Reporting Sexual Harassment 

Sexual harassment is a form of employee misconduct. No employee is required to submit to, or 
accept, sexual harassment in order to maintain their position, promotional opportunities, benefits, 
or to meet any other condition of employment. 

Any employee or non-employee who believes they have been a target of sexual harassment or 
who believes the actions of another employee or non-employee constitute sexual harassment, is 
encouraged to immediately notify their Supervisor, the Executive Director, or Chairman of the 
Board. 

Reports of sexual harassment may be made verbally or in writing. A form for submission of a 
written complaint is available from the employee's Supervisor, Executive Director, or Chairman of 
the Board. Individuals reporting sexual harassment on behalf of someone else should also use 
the complaint form. 

Employees or non-employees who believe they have been a target of sexual harassment may 
also seek assistance in other available forums as explained below. 
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All supervisors and managers who receive a complaint or information about suspected sexual 
harassment, observe what may be sexually harassing behavior, become aware of sexual 
harassment, or for any reason suspect that sexual harassment is occurring, are required to report 
such suspected behavior to the Executive Director or the board of directors. In addition to being 
subject to discipline if they engage in sexually harassing conduct themselves, supervisors and 
managers will be subject to discipline for failing to report suspected sexual harassment or 
otherwise knowingly allowing sexual harassment to continue. 

Investigation of a Sexual Harassment Complaint 

ALL complaints of sexual harassment will be investigated whether the information was reported 
in verbal or written form. An investigation of any complaint, information, or knowledge of 
suspected sexual harassment will be prompt and thorough. The investigation will be confidential 
to the extent possible. Corrective action will be taken whenever sexual harassment is found to 
have occurred. 

All persons involved, including complainants, witnesses, and alleged perpetrators, will be 
accorded due process to protect their rights to a fair and impartial investigation. All employees 
are required to cooperate as needed in an investigation of suspected sexual harassment. 
Employees who participate in any investigation will not be retaliated against. 

While the process may vary from case to case, investigations should be done in accordance with 
the following steps:  

• Upon receipt of a complaint, the Executive Director, the Chairman of the Board or other 
appropriate member of management will conduct a review of the allegations, and take any 
interim actions, as appropriate. 

• Relevant documents, electronic communications, emails, or telephone records will be 
reviewed. All parties involved, including any relevant witnesses, will be interviewed. 

• Written documentation of the investigation (i.e., letter, memo, or email) will be created and 
kept in a secure and confidential location, which will include a list of all documents 
reviewed; the names of those interviewed; a timeline of events; and the basis for the 
decision and final resolution of the complaint, together with any corrective actions 
action(s). 

Upon conclusion of the investigation any identified corrective actions will be taken. The 
individual(s) who complained and the individual(s) accused will be notified about the final 
determination. 

Legal Protections and External Remedies 

Aside from the IDA/BDC/CCDC's internal process, employees may also choose to pursue legal 
remedies with several governmental entities. 

The Human Rights Law {"HRL") applies to employers in New York State with regard to sexual 
harassment. The HRL protects employees and non-employees, regardless of immigration status. 
A complaint alleging violations of the HRL may be filed either with the New York State Division of 
Human Rights or in New York State Supreme Court. 

The United States Equal Employment Opportunity Commission ("EEOC") enforces anti-
discrimination laws, including Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. Sexual harassment is 
unlawful under Title VII. If an employee believes s/he has been discriminated against at work, 
s/he can file a discrimination charge with the EEOC. 
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Many localities enforce laws protecting individuals from sexual harassment. An individual should 
contact the county, city, or town in which they live to find out if such a law exists. For example, 
individuals who work in New York City may file complaints of sexual harassment with the New 
York City Commission on Human Rights. 

Remedies available to a target of sexual harassment may include: reinstatement, back pay, front 
pay, compensatory damages, punitive damages, and attorneys' fees. 

Other Forms of Harassment 

It is the IDA/BDC/CCDC's policy to promote a productive work environment and not to tolerate 
verbal or physical conduct by any employee that harasses or interferes with another's work 
performance or that creates an intimidating, offensive, or hostile environment. 

All employees are expected to maintain a productive work environment that is free from harassing 
or disruptive activity. In addition to prohibiting sexual harassment, the IDA/BDC/CCDC also 
prohibits harassment on the basis of other legally protected statuses, including on the basis of: 
race; color; religion; creed; genetic information; national origin; sexual orientation; pregnancy, 
childbirth, or related medical conditions; age; disability; citizenship status; uniform service 
member status; military status; veteran status; predisposing genetic characteristics; domestic 
violence victim status; marital status; familial status; or any other protected class under federal, 
state, or local law. 

Examples of conduct prohibited under this policy include comments, jokes, foul or obscene 
language or gestures, or hostile actions taken against an individual because of that individual's 
protected status. 

All employees should understand that submission to, or acceptance of, any form of unlawful 
harassment is not a term or condition of employment. No employee is required to submit to, or 
accept, any form of unlawful harassment in order to maintain their position, promotional 
opportunities, benefits, or to meet any other condition of employment. 

Any employee or non-employee who believes they have been a target of harassment or who 
believes the actions of another employee or non-employee constitutes harassment, is 
encouraged to immediately notify your Supervisor, the Executive Director, or Chairman of the 
Board. All supervisors and managers who receive a complaint or information about suspected 
harassment, observe what may be harassing behavior, become aware of harassment, or for any 
reason suspect that harassment is occurring, are required to report such suspected behavior to 
the Executive Director or Chairman of the Board. 

ALL complaints of unlawful harassment will be investigated whether the information was reported 
in verbal or written form. An investigation of any complaint, information, or knowledge of 
suspected harassment will be prompt and thorough. Corrective action will be taken whenever 
harassment is found to have occurred. 

Retaliation against an employee who, in good faith, makes a complaint of unlawful harassment 
will not be tolerated and will itself be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination 
of employment. Furthermore, no adverse actions will be taken against employees who report 
violations of this policy in good faith or participate in the investigation of such violations. 



 

 

Sexual Harassment Complaint Report 

If you believe that you or another person has been subjected to sexual harassment, this form may 
be used to file a complaint. If you are unsure what sexual harassment is kindly refer to our sexual 
harassment policy. When completing the form, please provide as much detail as possible as the 
information will be used to assist in the investigation of your complaint. Submit the completed 
form to the Executive Director or the Chairman of the Board of Directors. 

 

 

Your Name:   

 

 

Your Contact Information (e.g., work phone or email):   

 

 

Name(s) of Alleged Victim(s)   

 

 

Name(s) of Alleged Harasser(s)   

 

 

Detailed statement of the incident(s) including dates, times, places, and names of witnesses. 
Attach additional sheets as needed. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

Are there documents, emails, text messages, etc. which contain information supporting the 
incident(s) described above? If so, please describe or attach a copy. 



 

 

To investigate this report, it will be necessary to interview you, the alleged victim(s), the alleged 
harasser(s), and any witnesses with knowledge of the allegation(s). To the extent possible, the 
investigation and any resulting management action will be handled in a confidential manner. 

 

Retaliation against an individual who has complained about sexual harassment or who has 
cooperated with a sexual harassment investigation is unlawful and will not be tolerated. 

 

The information provided in this report is true and correct to the best of my knowledge. I am willing 
to cooperate fully in the investigation of my report. 

 

 

 

Signature of Reporting Person       Date     
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Appendix D Whistleblower Policy 

It is the policy of the IDA/BDC/CCDC to afford certain protections to individuals who in good faith 
report violations of the IDA/BDC/CCDC's Code of Ethics or other instances of potential 
wrongdoing within the IDA/BDC/CCDC. This policy is adopted pursuant to New York Public 
Authorities Law section 2824(1)(e). 

The Whistleblower Policy and Procedures set forth below are intended to encourage and enable 
employees to raise concerns in good faith within the IDA/BDC/CCDC and without fear of 
retaliation or adverse employment action. 

Definitions 

"Good Faith": Information concerning potential wrongdoing is disclosed in "good faith" when the 
individual making the disclosure reasonably believes such information to be true and reasonably 
believes that it constitutes potential wrongdoing. 

"IDA/BDC/CCDC Employee": All board members, and officers and staff employed at the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC whether full-time, part-time, employed pursuant to contract, employees on 
probation and temporary employees. 

"Whistleblower": Any IDA/BDC/CCDC Employee who in good faith discloses information 
concerning wrongdoing by another IDA/BDC/CCDC Employee, or concerning the business of the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC itself. 

"Wrongdoing": Any alleged corruption, fraud, criminal or unethical activity, misconduct, waste, 
conflict of interest, intentional reporting of false or misleading information, or abuse of authority 
engaged in by a IDA/BDC/CCDC Employee that relates to the IDA/BDC/CCDC. 

"Personnel action": Any action affecting compensation, appointment, promotion, transfer, 
assignment, reassignment, reinstatement or evaluation of performance. 

Section I: Reporting Wrongdoing 

All IDA/BDC/CCDC Employees who discover or have knowledge of potential wrongdoing 
concerning board members, officers, or employees of the IDA/BDC/CCDC; or a person having 
business dealings with this IDA/BDC/CCDC; or concerning the IDA/BDC/CCDC itself, shall report 
such activity in accordance with the following procedures: 

a) The IDA/BDC/CCDC Employee shall disclose any information concerning wrongdoing 
either orally or in a written report to his or her supervisor, or to the IDA/BDC/CCDC's Ethics 
Officer (if one has been appointed), general counsel, human resources representative or 
to any Member of the Board. 

b) All IDA/BDC/CCDC Employees who discover or have knowledge of wrongdoing shall 
report such wrongdoing in a prompt and timely manner. 

c) The identity of the whistleblower and the substance of his or her allegations will be kept 
confidential to the best extent possible. 

d) The individual to whom the potential wrongdoing is reported shall investigate and handle 
the claim in a timely and reasonable manner, which may include referring such information 
to the Authorities Budget Office or an appropriate law enforcement IDA/BDC/CCDC where 
applicable. 

e) Should a IDA/BDC/CCDC Employee believe in good faith that disclosing information within 
the IDA/BDC/CCDC pursuant to Section l(a) above would likely subject him or her to 
adverse personnel action or be wholly ineffective, the IDA/BDC/CCDC Employee may 
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instead disclose the information to the Authorities Budget Office or an appropriate law 
enforcement IDA/BDC/CCDC, if applicable. The Authorities Budget Office's toll free 
number (1-800-560-1770} should be used in such circumstances. 
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Section II: No Retaliation or Interference 

No IDA/BDC/CCDC Employee shall retaliate against any Whistleblower for the disclosure of 
potential wrongdoing, whether through threat, coercion, or abuse of authority. 

No IDA/BDC/CCDC Employee shall interfere with the right of any other IDA/BDC/CCDC 
Employee by any improper means aimed at deterring disclosure of potential wrongdoing. 

Any attempts at retaliation or interference are strictly prohibited and: 

a) No IDA/BDC/CCDC Employee who in good faith discloses potential violations of the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC's Code of Ethics or other instances of potential wrongdoing, shall suffer 
harassment, retaliation or adverse personnel action. 

b) All allegations of retaliation against a Whistleblower or interference with an individual 
seeking to disclose potential wrongdoing will be thoroughly investigated by the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC. 

c) Any IDA/BDC/CCDC Employee who retaliates against or had attempted to interfere with 
any individual for having in good faith disclosed potential violations of the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC's Code of Ethics or other instances of potential wrongdoing is subject to 
discipline, which may include termination of employment. 

d) Any allegation of retaliation or interference will be taken and treated seriously and, 
irrespective of the outcome of the initial complaint, will be treated as a separate matter. 

Section Ill: Other Legal Rights Not Impaired 

The Whistleblower Policy and Procedures set forth herein are not intended to limit, diminish or 
impair any other rights or remedies that an individual may have under the law with respect to 
disclosing potential wrongdoing free from retaliation or adverse personnel action. 

a) Specifically, these Whistleblower Policy and Procedures are not intended to limit any rights 
or remedies that an individual may have under the laws of the State of New York. 

b) With respect to any rights or remedies that an individual may have pursuant to Civil Service 
Law§ 75-b or Labor Law § 740, any employee who wishes to preserve such rights shall 
prior to disclosing information to a government body, have made a good faith effort to 
provide the appointing authority or his or her designee the information to be disclosed and 
shall provide the appointing authority or designee a reasonable time to take appropriate 
action unless there is imminent and serious danger to public health or safety. (See Civil 
Service Law § 75-b[2][b]; Labor Law§ 740[3]). 
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SECTION 1. PURPOSE AND APPLICABILITY. This Travel and Discretionary Funds Policy (the 
"Policy") shall apply to every member of the Cortland County IDA/BDC/CCDC and all officers and 
employees thereof. The purpose of this Policy is to protect against the use of discretionary funds 
for purposes that do not advance the IDA/BDC/CCDC's mission and purpose. This Policy is 
adopted in accordance with Public Authorities Law §2824(l}{b), which requires the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC to adopt a policy governing travel, and the Authorities Budget Office 
Recommended Governance Practice encouraging all state and local authorities to adopt a policy 
on the proper use of discretionary funds that incorporates the legal principals set forth in Opinion 
No. 2007-F4 of the Office of the Attorney General. 

 

SECTION 2. USE OF DISCRETIONARY FUNDS. The expenditure of IDA/BDC/CCDC funds 
must relate to an enumerated power, duty or purpose of the IDA/BDC/CCDC. IDA/BDC/CCDC 
funds may not be spent in a manner that supports the private or personal interests of any 
member, officer or employee or benefits any member, officer or employee individually. 

 

SECTION 3. PRIOR APPROVAL. Any expenditure of discretionary funds in excess of Fifty 
Dollars ($50.00) and all official travel for which a reimbursement will be sought shall be approved 
by the Executive Director prior to such expenditure and shall fall within the IDA/BDC/CCDC's 
current budget allocations. Provided, however, in the instance where the Executive Director seeks 
an expenditure of discretionary funds, such expenditure must be pre-authorized by the Chairman. 
The Executive Director or the Chairman, as the case may be, shall review the proposed 
expenditure and approve such expenditure only if it (i) primarily benefits the IDA/BDC/CCDC as 
opposed to an individual member, officer or employee; (ii) advances a power, duty, or purpose of 
the IDA/BDC/CCDC; and (iii) is reasonable and necessary. 

 

SECTION 4.  TRAVEL. 

a) Payment of Travel. The IDA/BDC/CCDC will reimburse all reasonable expenses related 
to meals, travel and lodging that were incurred by any director, officer or employee as a 
result of the performance of their official duties. All official travel shall be properly 
authorized, reported and reimbursed. Under no circumstances shall expenses for personal 
travel be charged to, or temporarily funded by, the IDA/BDC/CCDC. It is the traveler's 
responsibility to report his or her travel expenses in a responsible and ethical manner, in 
accordance with this policy. 

b) Travel Expenses. Travelers may use their private vehicle for business purposes if it is 
less expensive than renting a car, taking a taxi or using alternative transportation. The 
traveler will be reimbursed at a standard mileage reimbursement rate as set by the Internal 
Revenue Service. Travelers will use due diligence to obtain the lowest cost for travel 
expenses. 

c) Documentation. 

i. Travel Expense Voucher. A travel expense voucher reporting all expenses 
pertaining to a particular approved trip must be submitted to the Treasurer of the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC within 45 days of the end of the trip. The travel expense voucher 
should include: 
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(1) Date and time of departure from and return to the office of the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC or traveler's residence; 

(2) Purpose of the travel or the nature of the business benefit derived as a 
result of the travel; 

(3) Whether or not the expenses incurred during the travel were pre-
approved; and 

(4) The amount of each expenditure, listed by date and location. 

ii. Receipts. The original of the following receipts must be submitted along with the 
travel expense voucher: 

(1) All travel tickets (i.e., airline tickets, train tickets, rental car agreement); 

(2) All meal receipts (i.e., signed credit card slips or payment stubs); and 

(3) All lodging receipts (i.e., hotel, motel receipts). 

iii. Final Approval. The Treasurer shall review each travel expense voucher in order 
to ensure that the traveler has provided adequate substantiation and to determine 
whether the expenses listed therein are reasonable. The Treasurer may require a 
traveler to submit additional substantiation and, if the Treasurer finds a particular 
expense to be unreasonable (either as to amount or purpose), the Treasurer may 
deny reimbursement of the expense or reduce the amount of the reimbursement 
for such expense. In instances where the Treasurer seeks approval for his or her 
own travel expenses, the Chairman shall review the travel expense voucher and 
make the determinations set forth in this subsection (iii) of section 4{c) 

 

SECTION 5. APPROPRIATE EXPENDITURE GUIDANCE. 

a) Membership Dues. Membership dues paid by the IDA/BDC/CCDC to belong to a 
professional peer organization are generally a permissible use of IDA/BDC/CCDC funds. 
However, individual membership costs for board members, officers and employees to 
belong to a professional, social, or fraternal organization is an impermissible use of 
IDA/BDC/CCDC funds. 

b) Charitable Contributions and Sponsorships. The appropriateness of any sponsorship 
or charitable contribution will depend on whether it relates to the powers, duties and 
purposes of the IDA/BDC/CCDC and whether such expenditure will advance the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC's core mission and public purposes. 

c) Food and Beverages. With the exception of food and beverage purchases during 
business travel as provided in the IDA/BDC/CCDC's Travel Policy, purchases of food and 
beverages for the personal consumption of members, officers or employees shall not be 
considered an appropriate use of IDA/BDC/CCDC discretionary funds. However, 
expenditures for food and beverages purchased for or during the conduct of 
IDA/BDC/CCDC meetings and conduct of business with persons that do, or may do, 
business with the IDA/BDC/CCDC may be an appropriate expenditure of IDA/BDC/CCDC 
discretionary funds, provided the expense is reasonable in light of the circumstances 
surrounding the IDA/BDC/CCDC activity and is approved as set forth herein. 

d) Professional Training and Conferences. Paying the costs to attend training or 
professional conferences may be an appropriate expenditure of IDA/BDC/CCDC 
discretionary funds, provided it is approved as set forth herein. 
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e) Marketing. Paying costs incurred in the course of marketing the IDA/BDC/CCDC's 
properties to potential buyers and maintaining relations with existing industries, 
businesses and supporting partners in furtherance of the IDA/BDC/CCDC's mission is an 
appropriate expenditure of IDA/BDC/CCDC discretionary funds, provided it is approved 
as set forth herein. 

 

SECTION 6. IMPROPER USES OF DISCRETIONARY FUNDS. IDA/BDC/CCDC discretionary 
funds shall not be used for any expense intended to personally benefit a member, employee, or 
officer. Examples of improper uses of discretionary funds include the following: (i) purchases of 
alcohol or tobacco products; (ii) renewal of professional licenses for IDA/BDC/CCDC employees; 
(iii) purchases of flowers, gifts, or cards for IDA/BDC/CCDC members, officers, or employees; (iv) 
celebrations for special occasions that do not directly relate to a public purpose of the 
IDA/BDC/CCDC; and (v) personal use of IDA/BDC/CCDC vehicles, unless properly documented 
for tax purposes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 55 of 52 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix E 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT PREVENTION POLICY 
 
Cortland County Business Development Corp. is committed to maintaining a workplace free 
from sexual harassment. Sexual harassment is a form of workplace discrimination. All 
employees are required to work in a manner that prevents sexual harassment in the 
workplace. This Policy is one component of Cortland County Business Development Corp. 
commitment to a discrimination-free work environment. Sexual harassment is against the 
law1 and all employees have a legal right to a workplace free from sexual harassment and 
employees are urged to report sexual harassment by filing a complaint internally with 
Cortland County Business Development Corp. Employees can also file a complaint with a 
government agency or in court under federal, state or local antidiscrimination laws. 
 
 
Policy: 
 

1. Cortland County Business Development Corp.’s policy applies to all employees, 
applicants for employment, interns, whether paid or unpaid, contractors and 
persons conducting business, regardless of immigration status, with Cortland 
County Business Development Corp. In the remainder of this document, the term 
“employees” refers to this collective group. 

 
2. Sexual harassment will not be tolerated. Any employee or individual covered by this 

policy who engages in sexual harassment or retaliation will be subject to remedial 
and/or disciplinary action (e.g., counseling, suspension, termination). 

 
3. Retaliation Prohibition: No person covered by this Policy shall be subject to adverse 

action because the employee reports an incident of sexual harassment, provides 
information, or otherwise assists in any investigation of a sexual harassment 
complaint. Cortland County Business Development Corp. will not tolerate such 
retaliation against anyone who, in good faith, reports or provides information about 
suspected sexual harassment. Any employee of Cortland County Business 
Development Corp. who retaliates against anyone involved in a sexual harassment 
investigation will be subjected to disciplinary action, up to and including 
termination. All employees, paid or unpaid interns, or non-employees2 working in 

 
1 While this policy specifically addresses sexual harassment, harassment because of and discrimination against persons of all 
protected classes is prohibited. In New York State, such classes includeage, race, creed, color, national origin, sexual orientation, 
military status, sex, disability, marital status, domestic violence victim status, gender identity and criminal history. 
2 A non-employee is someone who is (or is employed by) a contractor, subcontractor, vendor, consultant, or anyone providing 
services in the workplace. Protected non-employees include persons commonly referred to as independent contractors, “gig” 
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the workplace who believe they have been subject to such retaliation should inform 
a supervisor or manager. All employees, paid or unpaid interns or non-employees 
who believe they have been a target of such retaliation may also seek relief in other 
available forums, as explained below in the section on Legal Protections. 

 
 

4. Sexual harassment is offensive, is a violation of our policies, is unlawful, and may 
subject Cortland County Business Development Corp. to liability for harm to targets 
of sexual harassment. Harassers may also be individually subject to liability. 
Employees of every level who engage in sexual harassment, including managers and 
supervisors who engage in sexual harassment or who allow such behavior to 
continue, will be penalized for such misconduct. 
 

5. Cortland County Business Development Corp. will conduct a prompt and thorough 
investigation that ensures due process for all parties, whenever management 
receives a complaint about sexual harassment, or otherwise knows of possible 
sexual harassment occurring. Cortland County Business Development Corp. will 
keep the investigation confidential to the extent possible. Effective corrective action 
will be taken whenever sexual harassment is found to have occurred. All employees, 
including managers and supervisors, are required to cooperate with any internal 
investigation of sexual harassment. 

 
6. All employees are encouraged to report any harassment or behaviors that violate this 

policy. Cortland County Business Development Corp. will provide all employees a complaint 
form for employees to report harassment and file complaints. 
 

7. Managers and supervisors are required to report any complaint that they receive, or any 
harassment that they observe or become aware of, to the Chairman. 
 

8. This policy applies to all employees, paid or unpaid interns, and non-employees and 
all must follow and uphold this policy. This policy must be provided to all employees 
and should be posted prominently in all work locations to the extent practicable (for 
example, in a main office, not an offsite work location) and be provided to 
employees upon hiring. 

 
 

What Is “Sexual Harassment”? 
 
Sexual harassment is a form of sex discrimination and is unlawful under federal, state, and 
(where applicable) local law. Sexual harassment includes harassment on the basis of sex, 
sexual orientation, self-identified or perceived sex, gender expression, gender identity and 
the status of being transgender. 
 

 
workers and temporary workers. Also included are persons providing equipment repair, cleaning services or any other services 
provided pursuant to a contract with the employer. 
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Sexual harassment includes unwelcome conduct which is either of a sexual nature, or 
which is directed at an individual because of that individual’s sex when: 
 

• Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an 
individual’s work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work 
environment, even if the reporting individual is not the intended target of the sexual 
harassment; 
 

• Such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of 
employment; or 
 

• Submission to or rejection of such conduct is used as the basis for employment 
decisions affecting an individual’s employment. 

 
A sexually harassing hostile work environment includes, but is not limited to, words, signs, 
jokes, pranks, intimidation or physical violence which are of a sexual nature, or which are 
directed at an individual because of that individual’s sex. Sexual harassment also consists of 
any unwanted verbal or physical advances, sexually explicit derogatory statements or 
sexually discriminatory remarks made by someone which are offensive or objectionable to 
the recipient, which cause the recipient discomfort or humiliation, which interfere with the 
recipient’s job performance. 
 
Sexual harassment also occurs when a person in authority tries to trade job benefits for 
sexual favors. This can include hiring, promotion, continued employment or any other 
terms, conditions or privileges of employment. This is also called “quid pro quo” 
harassment. 
 
Any employee who feels harassed should report so that any violation of this policy can be 
corrected promptly. Any harassing conduct, even a single incident, can be addressed under 
this policy. 
 
 
Examples of sexual harassment 
 
The following describes some of the types of acts that may be unlawful sexual harassment 
and that are strictly prohibited: 
 

• Physical acts of a sexual nature, such as: 
o Touching, pinching, patting, kissing, hugging, grabbing, brushing against 

another employee’s body or poking another employee’s body; 
o Rape, sexual battery, molestation or attempts to commit these assaults. 

 
• Unwanted sexual advances or propositions, such as: 
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o Requests for sexual favors accompanied by implied or overt threats 
concerning the target’s job performance evaluation, a promotion or other job 
benefits or detriments; 

o Subtle or obvious pressure for unwelcome sexual activities. 
 

• Sexually oriented gestures, noises, remarks or jokes, or comments about a person’s 
sexuality or sexual experience, which create a hostile work environment. 
 

• Sex stereotyping occurs when conduct or personality traits are considered 
inappropriate simply because they may not conform to other people's ideas or 
perceptions about how individuals of a particular sex should act or look. 
 

• Sexual or discriminatory displays or publications anywhere in the workplace, such 
as: 

o Displaying pictures, posters, calendars, graffiti, objects, promotional material, 
reading materials or other materials that are sexually demeaning or 
pornographic. This includes such sexual displays on workplace computers or 
cell phones and sharing such displays while in the workplace. 

 
• Hostile actions taken against an individual because of that individual’s sex, sexual 

orientation, gender identity and the status of being transgender, such as: 
o Interfering with, destroying or damaging a person’s workstation, tools or 

equipment, or otherwise interfering with the individual’s ability to perform 
the job; 

o Sabotaging an individual’s work; 
o Bullying, yelling, name-calling. 

Who can be a target of sexual harassment? 
 
Sexual harassment can occur between any individuals, regardless of their sex or gender. 
New York Law protects employees, paid or unpaid interns, and non-employees, including 
independent contractors, and those employed by companies contracting to provide 
services in the workplace. Harassers can be a superior, a subordinate, a coworker or 
anyone in the workplace including an independent contractor, contract worker, vendor, 
client, customer or visitor. 
 
Where can sexual harassment occur? 
 
Unlawful sexual harassment is not limited to the physical workplace itself. It can occur 
while employees are traveling for business or at employer sponsored events or parties. 
Calls, texts, emails, and social media usage by employees can constitute unlawful workplace 
harassment, even if they occur away from the workplace premises, on personal devices or 
during non-work hours. 
 

 

Retaliation 
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Unlawful retaliation can be any action that could discourage a worker from coming forward 
to make or support a sexual harassment claim. Adverse action need not be job-related or 
occur in the workplace to constitute unlawful retaliation (e.g., threats of physical violence 
outside of work hours).  
 
Such retaliation is unlawful under federal, state, and (where applicable) local law. The New 
York State Human Rights Law protects any individual who has engaged in “protected 
activity.” Protected activity occurs when a person has: 
 

• made a complaint of sexual harassment, either internally or with any anti-
discrimination agency;  
 

• testified or assisted in a proceeding involving sexual harassment under the Human 
Rights Law or other anti-discrimination law;  
 

• opposed sexual harassment by making a verbal or informal complaint to 
management, or by simply informing a supervisor or manager of harassment;  
 

• reported that another employee has been sexually harassed; or  
 

• encouraged a fellow employee to report harassment. 
 
Even if the alleged harassment does not turn out to rise to the level of a violation of law, the 
individual is protected from retaliation if the person had a good faith belief that the 
practices were unlawful. However, the retaliation provision is not intended to protect 
persons making intentionally false charges of harassment. 
 
 
 
 
 

Reporting Sexual Harassment 
 
Preventing sexual harassment is everyone’s responsibility. Cortland County Business 
Development Corp. cannot prevent or remedy sexual harassment unless it knows about it. 
Any employee, paid or unpaid intern or non-employee who has been subjected to behavior 
that may constitute sexual harassment is encouraged to report such behavior to a 
supervisor or manager. Anyone who witnesses or becomes aware of potential instances of 
sexual harassment should report such behavior to a supervisor or manager.  
 
Reports of sexual harassment may be made verbally or in writing. A form for submission of 
a written complaint is attached to this Policy, and all employees are encouraged to use this 
complaint form. Employees who are reporting sexual harassment on behalf of other 
employees should use the complaint form and note that it is on another employee’s behalf. 
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Employees, paid or unpaid interns or non-employees who believe they have been a target 
of sexual harassment may also seek assistance in other available forums, as explained 
below in the section on Legal Protections. 
 
 

Supervisory Responsibilities 
 
All supervisors and managers who receive a complaint or information about suspected 
sexual harassment, observe what may be sexually harassing behavior or for any reason 
suspect that sexual harassment is occurring, are required to report such suspected sexual 
harassment to Chairman  
 
In addition to being subject to discipline if they engaged in sexually harassing conduct 
themselves, supervisors and managers will be subject to discipline for failing to report 
suspected sexual harassment or otherwise knowingly allowing sexual harassment to 
continue.  
 
Supervisors and managers will also be subject to discipline for engaging in any retaliation. 

 
 

Complaint and Investigation of Sexual Harassment 
 
All complaints or information about sexual harassment will be investigated, whether that 
information was reported in verbal or written form. Investigations will be conducted in a 
timely manner, and will be confidential to the extent possible. 
 
An investigation of any complaint, information or knowledge of suspected sexual 
harassment will be prompt and thorough, commenced immediately and completed as soon 
as possible. The investigation will be kept confidential to the extent possible. All persons 
involved, including complainants, witnesses and alleged harassers will be accorded due 
process, as outlined below, to protect their rights to a fair and impartial investigation.  
 
Any employee may be required to cooperate as needed in an investigation of suspected 
sexual harassment. Cortland County Business Development Corp. will not tolerate 
retaliation against employees who file complaints, support another’s complaint or 
participate in an investigation regarding a violation of this policy. 
 
While the process may vary from case to case, investigations should be done in accordance 
with the following steps: 

• Upon receipt of complaint, Executive Director will conduct an immediate review of 
the allegations, and take any interim actions (e.g., instructing the respondent to 
refrain from communications with the complainant), as appropriate. If complaint is 
verbal, encourage the individual to complete the “Complaint Form” in writing. If he 
or she refuses, prepare a Complaint Form based on the verbal reporting. 



 61 of 52 

 

 

 
• If documents, emails or phone records are relevant to the investigation, take steps 

to obtain and preserve them.  
 

• Request and review all relevant documents, including all electronic 
communications. 
 

• Interview all parties involved, including any relevant witnesses;  
 

• Create a written documentation of the investigation (such as a letter, memo or 
email), which contains the following: 

o A list of all documents reviewed, along with a detailed summary of relevant 
documents; 

o A list of names of those interviewed, along with a detailed summary of their 
statements; 

o A timeline of events; 
o A summary of prior relevant incidents, reported or unreported; and 
o The basis for the decision and final resolution of the complaint, together with 

any corrective action(s). 
 

• Keep the written documentation and associated documents in a secure and 
confidential location. 
 

• Promptly notify the individual who reported and the individual(s) about whom the 
complaint was made of the final determination and implement any corrective 
actions identified in the written document. 
 

• Inform the individual who reported of the right to file a complaint or charge 
externally as outlined in the next section. 

 

Legal Protections And External Remedies 
 
Sexual harassment is not only prohibited by Cortland County Business Development Corp. 
but is also prohibited by state, federal, and, where applicable, local law. 
  
Aside from the internal process at [Cortland County Business Development Corp., 
employees may also choose to pursue legal remedies with the following governmental 
entities. While a private attorney is not required to file a complaint with a governmental 
agency, you may seek the legal advice of an attorney. 
 
In addition to those outlined below, employees in certain industries may have additional 
legal protections.  
State Human Rights Law (HRL) 
 
The Human Rights Law (HRL), codified as N.Y. Executive Law, art. 15, § 290 et seq., applies to all 
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employers in New York State with regard to sexual harassment, and protects employees, paid or 
unpaid interns and non-employees, regardless of immigration status. A complaint alleging violation 
of the Human Rights Law may be filed either with the Division of Human Rights (DHR) or in New 
York State Supreme Court. 
 
Complaints with DHR may be filed any time within one year of the harassment. If an individual did 
not file at DHR, they can sue directly in state court under the HRL, within three years of the alleged 
sexual harassment. An individual may not file with DHR if they have already filed a HRL complaint 
in state court. 
 
Complaining internally to the Cortland County Business Development Corp. does not extend your 
time to file with DHR or in court. The one year or three years is counted from date of the most 
recent incident of harassment. 
 
You do not need an attorney to file a complaint with DHR, and there is no cost to file with DHR. 
 
DHR will investigate your complaint and determine whether there is probable cause to believe that 
sexual harassment has occurred. Probable cause cases are forwarded to a public hearing before an 
administrative law judge. If sexual harassment is found after a hearing, DHR has the power to 
award relief, which varies but may include requiring your employer to take action to stop the 
harassment, or redress the damage caused, including paying of monetary damages, attorney’s fees 
and civil fines. 
 
DHR’s main office contact information is: NYS Division of Human Rights, One Fordham Plaza, 
Fourth Floor, Bronx, New York 10458. You may call (718) 741-8400 or visit: www.dhr.ny.gov. 
 
Contact DHR at (888) 392-3644 or visit dhr.ny.gov/complaint for more information about filing a 
complaint. The website has a complaint form that can be downloaded, filled out, notarized and 
mailed to DHR. The website also contains contact information for DHR’s regional offices across New 
York State.  
 
 
Civil Rights Act of 1964 
 
The United States Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) enforces federal anti-
discrimination laws, including Title VII of the 1964 federal Civil Rights Act (codified as 42 U.S.C. § 
2000e et seq.). An individual can file a complaint with the EEOC anytime within 300 days from the 
harassment. There is no cost to file a complaint with the EEOC. The EEOC will investigate the 
complaint, and determine whether there is reasonable cause to believe that discrimination has 
occurred, at which point the EEOC will issue a Right to Sue letter permitting the individual to file a 
complaint in federal court.  
 
The EEOC does not hold hearings or award relief, but may take other action including pursuing 
cases in federal court on behalf of complaining parties. Federal courts may award remedies if 
discrimination is found to have occurred. In general, private employers must have at least 15 
employees to come within the jurisdiction of the EEOC. 
 
An employee alleging discrimination at work can file a “Charge of Discrimination.” The EEOC has 
district, area, and field offices where complaints can be filed. Contact the EEOC by calling 1-800-
669-4000 (TTY: 1-800-669-6820), visiting their website at www.eeoc.gov or via email at 

http://www.dhr.ny.gov/
https://dhr.ny.gov/complaint
http://www.eeoc.gov/


 63 of 52 

 

 

info@eeoc.gov. 
 
If an individual filed an administrative complaint with DHR, DHR will file the complaint with the 
EEOC to preserve the right to proceed in federal court. 
 
 
Local Protections 
 
Many localities enforce laws protecting individuals from sexual harassment and discrimination. An 
individual should contact the county, city or town in which they live to find out if such a law exists. 
For example, employees who work in New York City may file complaints of sexual harassment with 
the New York City Commission on Human Rights. Contact their main office at Law Enforcement 
Bureau of the NYC Commission on Human Rights, 40 Rector Street, 10th Floor, New York, New 
York; call 311 or (212) 306-7450; or visit www.nyc.gov/html/cchr/html/home/home.shtml. 
 
 
Contact the Local Police Department 
 
If the harassment involves unwanted physical touching, coerced physical confinement or coerced 
sex acts, the conduct may constitute a crime. Contact the local police department. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Verification you have received a copy of the  
Sexual Harassment Prevention Policy 

 
 
 

I, _______________________________________________, hereby acknowledge that I have received a copy of the 
Cortland County Business Development Corp. Sexual Harassment Prevention Policy. 
 
___________________________________________________ 
Signature 
 
___________________________________________________ 
Date 

 

mailto:info@eeoc.gov
http://www.nyc.gov/html/cchr/html/home/home.shtml
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Cortland County IDA/IDA/BDC/CCDC/CCDC reporting to the County: 
 
As a recipient of county funding, the Cortland County Business Development Corporation is 
required by contract to submit regular financial and program reports to the Cortland County 
Legislature. It is the practice of the Business Development Corporation to furnish monthly board 
books, financial reports and program reports readily available on the IDA/BDC/CCDC website. 
Business Development Corporation staff also make periodic presentations and updates to the 
planning committee of the Legislature, budget committee of the Legislature, or the full Legislature, 
upon invitation by the committee chairs, Chairman of the Legislature or Cortland County 
Administrator or other designee. The Cortland County Business Development Corporation also 
furnishes quarterly statements to the County Budget Officer. 
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Appendix H 

DIRECTOR ATTENDANCE POLICY 
 
Governing Boards have certain legally required duties, including duties of care, loyalty and 
obedience. Boards should ensure strong, effective organizations, ethical operations and approaches 
to corporate governance  
 
Duties of a director of the Business Development Corp. include: 
 
• To represent the organization's point of view through interpretation of its programs and 

services, and advocacy for them 

• Govern the organization by establishing a mission, as well as broad policies and objectives, 
including the implementation of programs and services, and ensuring the organization's 
capacity to carry out programs by reviewing its work 

• Acquire sufficient resources for the organization's operations to ensure that programs and 
services are adequately financed 

• Account to the public for the programs and services of the organization and expenditures of 
its funds, including fiscal accountability for the budget, and oversight of spending 

• Assess the Corporation’s own performance, as well as that of staff 
 
To properly govern, the director is expected to attend meetings. An attendance problem occurs if any 
of the following conditions exist concerning a director's attendance at meetings of the Corporation: 
 
• A director has two un-notified absences in a row ("un-notified" means the director did not 

call ahead to a reasonable contact in the organization before the upcoming meeting to 
indicate they would be absent from the upcoming meeting). 

• The director misses one third of the total number of meetings of the Corporation in a twelve-
month period. 

 
If an attendance problem exists regarding a director, the Chairman will contact the director to discuss 
the problem. The director's response will be shared by the Chairman with the entire Corporation, 
which will decide what actions to take regarding the director's participation with the Corporation.  If 
the Corporation decides that a director should be asked to resign, the Chairman will request a letter 
of resignation from the director.  If the director resigns, the Corporation will promptly initiate a 
process to begin recruiting a new director. 
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IDA Solar Project Summary   



PROJECT MW Total MW RATE Annual PILOT Payment PILOT Term (Yrs) PILOT / HCA Total Project Investment Project Fee 1% PILOT Status / Yr

Lapeer Cortland Solar 15 $3,000 $45,000 30 $1,350,000.00 $27,185,245 $270,000 Closed 2019

DG NY Cortlandville I 5 $4,500 + 2% $22,500 + 2% inc 25 $720,682.00 $17,449,190 $174,491.90 Closed 2021

DG NY Cortlandville III 5 $4,500 + 2% $22,500 + 2% inc 25 $720,682.00 $17,497,224 $174,972.24 Closed 2021

Yellow 3 LLC Tower Rd Cville 3 $5,500 + 2% $16,500 + 2% inc 15 $285,341.00 $4,758,900 $47,589 Closed 2021

$1,500 Host $4,500 (no inc) 15 $67,500.00

Janis Solar - Willet 20 $1,500 + 2% $30,000 + 2% inc 30 $1,217,042.00 $22,100,000 $221,000 Closed 2021

$550 + 2% HCA $11,000 + 2% inc 30 $446,249.00

Cortlandville PV 5 $5,500 + 2% $27,500 + 2% inc 15 $475,569.00 $12,433,043 $124,330 Closed 2025

$1,500 + 2% HCA $7,500 + 2% inc 15 $129,701.00

SV Cortland One 3 $3,000 + 2% $9,000 + 2% inc 25 $288,273.00 $7,605,380 $76,053.80 Closed 2025

(Leasing city land - no HCA)

Homer Solar Energy (AES) 90 $500 + 2% $45,000 + 2% inc 15 $778,204.00 $204,304,500.00 $2,043,045.00 Pending 2026

$5,500 + 2% HCA $495,000 + 2% inc 15 $8,560,242.00

Scott Road Solar 5 $1000 + 2% $5,000 + 2% inc 15 $86,465.00 $14,552,641.00 $145,526.41 Pending 2026

$8,000 + 2% HCA $40,000 + 2% inc 15 $691,737.00

Crown City Solar 3 15 $250 + 2% $3,750 + 2% inc 15 $64,850.00 $27,240,000.00 $272,400.00 Pending 2026

$3,900 + 2% HCA $58,500 + 2% inc 15 $1,011,665.00

TOTALS: PILOT $5,987,108 $355,126,123 $3,549,408

HCA $10,907,094

CORTLAND COUNTY IDA 
SOLAR PROJECT SUMMARY - 2026





Cortland County IDA
Balance Sheet

February 28, 2026

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
NBT - Checking 5112 $ 96,139.03
NBT Proj Invest Checking 2,733,485.98
NBT Money Mkt Savings 50,127.69
Prepaid Expenses 1,400.34

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2,881,153.04

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Land-Railroad Properties 209,818.00
Land-Contento Property 91,835.00
Land-Cleveland St - Apex 303,143.60
Building- 5 Kennedy Pkwy 182,345.26
Leasehold Improvements 3,376.80
Accum.Depreciation-L.H.I. (3,376.80)
Office Equipment/Furniture 2,159.08
Accum.Depreciation-FF&E (462.66)

NET PROPERTY & EQUIPMENT 788,838.28

RECEIVABLES
Lease A/R - Park Outdoor 42,232.94

TOTAL RECEIVABLES 42,232.94

TOTAL ASSETS $ 3,712,224.26

LIABILITIES/FUND BALANCE

CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 0.00

LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Deferred Inflows-Leases $ 42,232.94

TOTAL LONG TERM LIABILITIES 42,232.94

TOTAL LIABILITIES 42,232.94

FUND BALANCE
Unrestricted  Earnings 3,157,669.50
Net Income 512,321.82

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 3,669,991.32

TOTAL LIAB &  FUND BALANCE $ 3,712,224.26



Page: 1

Cortland County IDA
Income Statement

For the Two Months Ending February 28, 2026

Current Month Year to Date
REVENUE
Application Fees $ 17,600.00 $ 17,600.00
Interest on Deposits 4,548.05 9,312.25
Lease Interest Revenue 0.00 1,123.40
Land Lease 0.00 13,709.60
Homer Ave Bridge Project 525,875.00 525,875.00
Cortlandville PV Solar PILOT 0.00 27,500.00
Creamery Hills PILOT 0.00 12,376.31
83-85 Main LLC PILOT 16,393.05 16,393.05
Lapeer Cortland Solar PILOT 0.00 45,000.00
DG NY 1 C Ville LLC 0.00 24,354.72
Janis Solar LLC 0.00 32,472.96
Yellow 3 LLC 0.00 17,860.13
DG NY C'Ville #3 0.00 23,877.18
Crescent Commons 0.00 26,523.00

Total Revenue 564,416.10 793,977.60

TOTAL REVENUE 564,416.10 793,977.60

EXPENSES
5 Kennedy Pkwy 100.00 100.00
Apex/Cleveland St Property 60.26 93.35
Accounting 0.00 4,500.00
Meetings/Seminars/Conf 150.00 150.00
Property Tax-Sewer/Water 0.00 209.24
D & O Insurance 122.92 245.84
Creamery Hills PILOT 0.00 12,376.31
83-85 Main LLC PILOT 16,393.05 16,393.05
Lapeer Cortland Solar PILOT 0.00 45,000.00
DG NY 1 C Ville 0.00 24,354.72
Janis Solar LLC 0.00 32,472.96
Yellow 3 LLC 0.00 17,860.13
DG NY C'Ville #3 0.00 23,877.18
Crescent Commons 0.00 26,523.00
Cortlandville PV Solar PILOT 0.00 27,500.00
BDC Admin Support 0.00 50,000.00

TOTAL EXPENSES 16,826.23 281,655.78

NET INCOME $ 547,589.87 $ 512,321.82
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Director’s Report   



Cortland County Business Development Corporation 

Cortland County Industrial Development Agency 
 

2025 Annual Report 
March 9, 2026 

 
The BDC and the IDA are the county’s lead economic development agencies working closely with their 
many local, state, and national partners to retain, create, and attract jobs and to grow Cortland County as a 
desirable community in which to work, live, and invest. The work to achieve these goals was 
comprehensive over the past year.  
 
Micron 
 

The Micron announcement has led to many conversations about development opportunities both for 
business and housing across the county. The official groundbreaking was January 16, 2026, which meant 
most of 2025 was busy with permitting, approvals and planning.  The IDA has held numerous planning 
sessions with appropriate local, regional, and state partners to move those opportunities forward. The IDA 
has met with the Micron Community Engagement Committee to see what best connections the county 
might need to be making to properly situate itself for future development. The Agency continues this 
engagement and has entertained a few grant proposals to support initiatives in Cortland County that have 
been identified by the Micron Community Engagement Committee. 
 

Downtown Revitalization Initiative & New York Forward 
 

The Cortland County Business Development Corporation has also been directly involved in the planning 
and development of the Village of Homer’s Downtown Revitalization Initiative (“DRI”). Homer had a 
successful application and are working through the process to start their approved projects. The BDC will 
be handling the small project fund which will account for $500,000 of the DRI money to be used for 
projects less than $150,000. 
 

The Cortland County Business Development Corporation has also funded and advocated for the Village 
of Marathon which was awarded the NY Forward grant. This program is very similar to the Downtown 
Revitalization Initiative, but for smaller municipalities. The Village of Marathon has submitted a list of 
potential projects to NY for evaluation.  Upon receipt of the selected projects from NY the construction 
will begin.  The projects are highly impactful for the village and the greater Cortland County community. 
 
Initial discussions with the Village of McGraw took place for a potential New York Forward in the Fall of 
2026.  Planning and preparation will be key to a successful application. 
 
 

APEX 
 

The former APEX manufacturing site on the city’s east end was mothballed in 2017 and was razed in 
2021 with the contractor leaving mountains of debris on site that could not be sold for scrap.  CCIDA 
acquired and removed the remaining debris field using licensed abatement contractors. The project is a 
major redevelopment opportunity, with 8 acres of land, appropriate zoning, and proximity to the Interstate 
and other transportation infrastructure. The recent announcement of Micron’s intention to build a $100 



billion chip-fab facility in Onondaga County only enhances the site's marketability just 50 minutes down 
Interstate 81. This site has had numerous Environmental Site Assessments performed on it, paid for by the 
City’s Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA) Brownfield Cleanup grant, that revealed a few different 
environmental concerns on the site and adjoining sites.  The CCIDA will look to do an appraisal on the 
site to find out the value of the site. We have received an EPA Brownfield grant to assist with this site 
reuse plan. 
 

EPA Brownfield Community Grant 
 

The Agency applied to the Environmental Protection Agency’s Community Brownfield Grant in 2023 to 
receive up to $500,000 in grant funds to assist with environmental studies to be performed on 
developmental sites across the county. These studies will help to assist in the redevelopment of sites or 
general cleanup if any environmental issues are found. Fortunately, the Agency was approved for this 
funding. We are now waiting for the award letter from NY.  Upon receipt of the award letter, we will 
move forward in identifying uses for the grant. 
 

Solar Development 

The agency has incentivized numerous solar projects of varying sizes to date, with 2 more projects in the 
pipeline. One is a proposed 90 mega-watt (“MW”) facility across various locations in the towns of 
Homer, Cortlandville, and Solon. Developers have already secured a power contract and a siting permit 
with New York. The IDA assisted in negotiating mega-watt PILOT payments and host community 
agreements with the municipalities and the developer.  This project has an estimated start date of Spring 
2026.  These conversations regarding a Payment in Lieu of Tax agreement with the company will be 
finalized in early 2026. Two other solar projects are looking for approval in early 2026, one being in the 
Town of Cortlandville and another in the Town of Homer. 

Agency Headquarters 
 

CCIDA has acquired a new location at 5 Kennedy Parkway in the city of Cortland. The acquisition 
solidifies the agency’s presence in the city of Cortland and comprises a meaningful and cost-effective 
approach to managing the agency’s overhead costs. The agency will seek proposals for interior 
renovations to 5 Kennedy Parkway and look to relocate mid-2026.   

Byrne Dairy 

A Payment in Lieu of Tax agreement was negotiated and approved by the IDA board of directors in 2025. 
The company will invest $120 million and currently has over 100 employees working at the site.  When 
the project is completed in 2027 there will be over 200 employees.  Byrne Dairy is an important employer 
in Cortland with possibilities of future expansions.   

Homer Bridge FEMA Grant 

In 2024 there was a flood that had a damaging impact on the bridge that accesses the property (known as 
the “Contento” property) owned by the IDA in the Village of Homer.  A grant application was submitted 
in 2024 and was awarded in early 2026.  The agency is planning to move forward on bridge construction 
in the summer of 2026. 



Rural Health Institute Day Center 

Rural Health Institute (“RHI”) applied and received $100,000 from the revolving loan fund for a day 
center that was established by purchasing a building on Pendleton Street in the city of Cortland.  RHI ran 
a day center the prior year out of a temporary location which allowed them an opportunity to refine their 
operations.  In addition, the BDC provided a $60,000 grant to put towards the purchase.  This center will 
have a meaningful impact on individuals experiencing homelessness or severe hardship.  The center 
provides showers, bathrooms, laundry facilities and access to counseling or support that can prevent crises 
and reduce emergency intervention. 

Small Business Consulting 

The BDC continues to work closely with the Small Business Development Center (“SBDC”).  This 
program helps entrepreneurs and small business owners start, grow and improve their businesses by 
providing free or low-cost business counseling, training, planning and advisory services. 

Ag Summit 

The agency plans this annual event with the Cortland Soil & Water, Cornell Cooperative Extension, Farm 
Bureau and the USDA.  Agriculture continues to play an important role in the county and this is a great 
opportunity to recognize these important community members.   

Outreach 

The BDC staff spend a great deal of time in the community providing education to the business partners.  
This includes chamber events, county finance committee meetings, county sessions, town and village 
board meetings, meet and greets with business leaders, legislative events, community summits and events.  
This interaction and communication are key to moving the county forward in economic development. 
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